
 
 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

Regular Meeting of Council 

Tuesday, June 16, 2015 

6:00 P.M. 

City Hall Council Chambers – 325 Farr Drive 

Agenda  

1. Call to Order 

 

2. Roll Call 

 

3. Review of Revisions or Deletions to Agenda 

 

4. Approval of Agenda 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that City Council approves the agenda as printed/amended. 

 

5. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and General Nature 

 

6. Review and adoption of Council Mintues 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that City Council approves the following minutes as printed: 

a) Regular Meeting of Council – June 2, 2015 

 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – June 16, 2015 Page 2 
 

 

7. Public Meetings pursuant to the Planning Act, Municipal Act and other 
Statutes 

 

8. Question and Answer Period 

 

9. Presentations / Delegations 

a) Tim Uttley, Fire Chief – Temiskaming Shores 

Re: Introduction of Fire Training Officer – Gregg Miller 

 

10. Communications 

a) Minister Mario Sergio – Minister Responsible for Seniors Affairs 

Re: Funding Approval - Age-Friendly Community Planning  

Reference: Motion to be presented 

 

b) Government of Ontario – News Release 

Re: New Rules will help Reduce Collisions, Injuries and Fatalities 

Reference: Received for Information 

 

c) Katrina Miller – Keep Hydro Public 

Re: Request for Resolution - Privatization of Hydro One 

Reference: Received for Information 

 

d) Michael Gravelle, MPP – Northern Ontario Heritage Fund Corporation 

Re: Funding Approval - Engineering Technician/Technologist 

Reference: Refer to By-law No. 2015-000 (Agreement) 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – June 16, 2015 Page 3 
 

 

e) Government of Ontario – News Release 

Re: Ontario Launches Consultations on Infrastructure Priorities 

Reference: Referred to Senior Management 

 

f) Government of Ontario – News Release 

Re: Ontario Moving Forward with Accessibility Certification Program 

Reference: Referred to Municipal Clerk 

 

g) Rachelle Cote, Executive Assistant – Timiskaming Health Unit 

Re: 2014 Timiskaming Health Unit Audited Financial Statements 

Reference: Motion to be presented 

 

h) Alison Stanley, Information and Communications Officer - FONOM 

Re: FONOM Spring Newsletter 2015 

Reference: Received for Information 

 

i) Letter from Brian Folco and response by Mayor Kidd 

Re: Road condition: Landry, Dixon, Glen, Bolger and Farah 

Reference: Received for Information 

 

j) John Vanthof, MPP Timiskaming Cochrane 

Re: News Release – Hwy Access for Off-Road and All-Terrain Vehicles 
becoming Law in Summer 2015 

Reference: Received for information 

 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – June 16, 2015 Page 4 
 

 

k) Government of Ontario – News Release 

Re: Ontario Increasing On-Road Access for Off-Road and All-Terrain 
Vehicles 

Reference: Referred to Municipal Clerk 

 

l) Joe Torlone, Secretary-Treasurer – Northeastern Ontario Municipal 
Association 

Re: Request for support – Mushkegowuk conceptual plan to bring a 
railway to the Ring of Fire 

Reference: Motion to be presented under New Business 

 

m) Joe Torlone, Secretary-Treasurer – Northeastern Ontario Municipal 
Association 

Re: Request for support – English University in Timmins 

Reference: Motion to be presented under New Business 

 

n) Joe Torlone, Secretary-Treasurer – Northeastern Ontario Municipal 
Association 

Re: Request for support – Protest Divestment of Hydro One assets 

Reference: Motion to be presented under New Business 

 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that City Council agrees to deal with Communication Items 10. a)  
to 10. n) according to the Agenda references. 

 

11. Committees of Council – Community and Regional 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the following minutes be accepted for information: 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – June 16, 2015 Page 5 
 

 

a) Minutes of the Northeastern Ontario Municipal Association meeting held on 
May 15, 2015; 

b) Minutes of the District of Timiskaming Social Services Administration Board 
meeting held on April 22, 2015; 

c) Minutes of the Temiskaming Transit Committee meeting held on May 25, 
2015. 

 

12. Committees of Council – Internal Departments 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the following minutes be accepted for information: 

a) Minutes of the Building Maintenance Committee meeting held on May 26, 
2015. 

 

13. Reports by Members of Council 

 

14. Notice of Motions 

 

15. New Business 

a) Temiskaming Shores Public Library – Strategic Plan 2014-2018 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of the 2014-2018 Strategic Plan for the 
Temiskaming Shores Public Library as well as the presentation of the Plan 
from Board member Roger Oblin and Library CEO, Rebecca Hunt at the 
June 2, 2015 Regular Council meeting. 

 

b) 2014 Timiskaming Health Unit – Audited Financial Statements 

Draft Motion 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – June 16, 2015 Page 6 
 

 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of the 2014 Timiskaming Health Unit – Audited 
Financial Statements. 

 

c) Second Quarter Operating Financial Report - 2015 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of the Second Quarter Operating Financial Report 
for information purposes. 

 

d) Northeastern Ontario Municipal Association – Request for Support – 
Mushkegowuk conceptual plan for a railway to the Ring of Fire 

Draft Motion 

Whereas at the May 15, 2015 meeting of the Northeastern Ontario 
Municipal Association adopted Resolution No. 2015-08 to support the 
Mushkegowuk Council’s conceptual plan to bring a railway to the Ring of 
Fire in a public/private partnership; 

Now therefore be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming 
Shores does hereby support the NEOMA resolution supporting the 
Mushkegowuk Council’s conceptual plan to bring a railway to the Ring of 
Fire. 

 

e) Northeastern Ontario Municipal Association – Request for Support – 
English University in Timmins 

Draft Motion 

Whereas at the May 15, 2015 meeting of the Northeastern Ontario 
Municipal Association adopted Resolution No. 2015-09 in support of the 
need for an English University in the City of Timmins; 

Now therefore be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming 
Shores does hereby support the NEOMA resolution for the need for an 
English University in the City of Timmins. 

 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – June 16, 2015 Page 7 
 

 

f) Northeastern Ontario Municipal Association – Request for Support – 
Protest Divestment of Hydro One Assets 

Draft Motion 

Whereas at the May 15, 2015 meeting of the Northeastern Ontario 
Municipal Association adopted Resolution No. 2015-10 to protest the sale 
of 60 percent of the assets of Hydro One to the private sector; 

Now therefore be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming 
Shores does hereby support the NEOMA resolution to strongly protest the 
sale of 60 percent of the assets of Hydro One. 

 

g) Memo No. 023-2015-CGP – Door to Door Sales of Dog and Cat Tags 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Memo No. 023-2015-CGP; 

That Council acknowledges the communications campaign in concert with 
the Animal Control Officer initiating a Door to Door Sales of Dog and Cat 
Tags in accordance with By-law No. 2013-051 being a by-law to regulate 
the keeping of animals and the registration of dogs and cats within the City 
of Temiskaming Shores 

 

h) Administrative Report No. CGP-029-2015 – Land Sale – Jelly Towing 
– Dymond Industrial Park 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. CGP-029-2015; 

That Council accepts the Offer to Purchase in the amount of $25,000 plus 
HST from G&W Jelly’s Ltd. for land legally described as Dymond 
Concession 1 North Part of Lot 6, Reference Plan 54R-4314 Part 12, 
Parcel 21726SST; Temiskaming Shores, District of Timiskaming; 

That Council agrees to waive the requirement for the purchaser to 
construct a building on the lot; 

That Council agrees to retain George Kemp of Kemp Pirie to represent the 
City in this land sale; and 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – June 16, 2015 Page 8 
 

 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary By-law to accept the 
Offer to Purchase for Council’s consideration at the June 16, 2015 Regular 
Council meeting. 

 

i) Administrative Report No. CGP-030-2015 – Amendment to Sign By-
law No. 2007-019 – Annual Encroachment Fees 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. CGP-030-2015; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to amend By-
law No. 2007-019 for consideration at the July 7, 2015 Regular Council 
meeting. 

 

j) Administrative Report No. CGP-031-2015 – Award – Housing for 
Small Families, Seniors and Persons Living with Disabilities 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. CGP-031-2015; 

That Council accepts Ron Rice’s proposal for Project 3 on Little Street to 
construct a single detached dwelling with a second unit; 

That Council accepts Laurier Loranger’s proposal for Project 6 on Carter 
Boulevard to construct a single detached dwelling with a second unit 
provided one or both units are accessible for persons living with 
disabilities; 

That Council does not accept Alyssa Breault and Robert Cunningham’s 
proposal for Project 3 on Little Street to construct a single detached 
dwelling because it does not meet the criteria of the Request for 
Proposals; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-laws and Offers to 
Sell for Council’s consideration at a future meeting. 

 

k) Administrative Report No. CS-023-2015 – Delegation of Powers 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – June 16, 2015 Page 9 
 

 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. CS-023-2015; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law for the 
delegation of various powers for consideration at the June 16, 2015 
Regular Council meeting. 

 

l) Administrative Report No. CS-024-2015 – Amendment to Accounts 
Receivable Policy 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. CS-024-2015; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to amend By-
law No. 2007-045 to reflect the changes to Section 11 – Non Tax Debt for 
consideration at the June 16, 2015 Regular Council meeting. 

 

m) Administrative Report No. PPP-005-2015 – Appointment of Volunteer 
Firefighter – Kevin Dufresne 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. PPP-005-2015; and 

That Council hereby appoints Kevin Dufresne as a Volunteer Firefighter to 
the Temiskaming Shores Fire Department in accordance with the 
Volunteer Firefighter Hiring and Promotional Policy. 

 

n) Administrative Report No. PW-035-2015 – Tender Award – Asphalt 
Marking Services 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. PW-035-2015; 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – June 16, 2015 Page 10 
 

 

That Council approves the award of the 2015 Asphalt Marking Services 
contract to Grass King Inc. in the amount of $ 21,253.00 plus HST; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law and agreement 
for consideration at the June 16, 2015 Regular Council meeting. 

 

o) Administrative Report No. PW-036-2015 – Tender Award – Asphalt 
Patching 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. PW-036-2015; 

That as outlined in Section 3.5 of the City’s Purchasing Policy, Council 
approves the award of the 2015 Asphalt Patching contract to Miller Paving 
Limited in the amount of $122,666.50 plus HST; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law and agreement 
for consideration at the June 16, 2015 Regular Council meeting. 

 

p) Administrative Report No. PW-037-2015 – Tender Award – Concrete 
Sidewalk and Curb Repairs 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. PW-037-2015; 

That as outlined in Section 3.5 of the City’s Purchasing Policy, Council 
approves the award of the 2015 Concrete Sidewalk and Curb Repair 
contract to Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. in the amount of $27,025.50 
plus HST; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law and agreement 
for consideration at the June 16, 2015 Regular Council meeting. 

 

q) Administrative Report No. PW-038-2015 – Application for a Municipal 
Drain – Peters Road 

Draft Motion 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – June 16, 2015 Page 11 
 

 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. PW-038-2015; and 

That Council approves the submission of a Petition for Drainage Works by 
the Road Authority for Peters Road between Highway 65 E and Drive-in 
Theatre Road. 

 

r) Administrative Report No. PW-039-2015 – Dymond Water Looping 
Project 

 
Tenders for the Dymond Water Looping Project were opened at 3:00 p.m. 
on Friday, June 12, 2015. An Administrative Report will be presented to 
Council on Tuesday, June 16, 2015. 

 

s) Administrative Report No. RS-015-2015 – Knock Cancer out of the 
Park 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. RS-015-2015; 

That Council Proclaim July 10-12, 2015 as the “Shanna Larsen Memorial 
“Team Shan” Weekend in the City of Temiskaming Shores; and 

That Council approves the application of the non-profit rate for the use of 
the municipal ball diamonds at the same rate as 2014 and that the rental 
fee of $224.00 plus applicable taxes for the use of the  New Liskeard 
Arena Hall for a community dance reception be waived. 

 

t) Proclamation of Shanna Larsen Memorial “Team Shan” Weekend 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that Council hereby proclaims the weekend of July 10-12, 
2015 as the Shanna Larsen Memorial “Team Shan” Weekend in the 
City of Temiskaming Shores. 

 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – June 16, 2015 Page 12 
 

 

u) Administrative Report No. RS-016-2015 – Age Friendly Grant  and 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. RS-016-2015; 

That Council approves the inclusion of the revenues and expenditures of 
the Age Friendly Community Planning Grant Program and Community 
Transportation Pilot Grant program in the 2015 fiscal year and the 2016 
budget estimates as presented in the report; 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into an 
agreement with the Ministry of Citizenship, Immigration and International 
Trade in the amount of $25,000 for the Age Friendly Community Grant and 
an agreement with the Ministry of Transportation in the amount of $40,000 
for the Community Transportation Pilot Grant; and 

That Council directs staff to commence the hiring process for one (1) 
coordinator to carry out the completion of both projects simultaneously. 

 

16. By-laws 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that: 

By-law No. 2015-130 Being a by-law to enter into a Lease Agreement with 
the New Liskeard Lions Midget Hockey Club for the 
operation of the Haileybury Arena Concession 

 

By-law No. 2015-131 Being a by-law to enter into a Lease Agreement with 
Rick’s Magic Touch Catering for the provision of 
Concession Services at the Don Shepherdson 
Memorial Arena 

 

By-law No. 2015-132 Being a by-law to enter into an Agreement with Grass 
King Inc. for the Supply and Application of Asphalt 
Marking Services  

 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – June 16, 2015 Page 13 
 

 

By-law No. 2015-133 Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with Miller 
Paving Limited for Asphalt Patching Services  

 

By-law No. 2015-134 Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with 
Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. for Concrete 
Sidewalks and Curb Repair Services 

 

By-law No. 2015-135 Being a by-law for the assumption of a Highway for 
public use within the City of Temiskaming Shores – 
Lorne Avenue 

 

By-law No. 2015-136 Being a by-law to amend By-law No. 2012-039 (Fee By-
law) – Schedule “E” Planning, By-law and Building 
Services 

 

By-law No. 2015-137 Being a by-law to authorize the Sale of Land to G & W 
Jelly’s Ltd. – Roll No. 54-18-020-001-027.21 

 

By-law No. 2015-138 Being a by-law to amend By-law No. 2007-045, being a 
by-law for the adoption of a Municipal Property Tax 
Policy 

 

By-law No. 2015-139 Being a by-law to enter into a Funding Agreement with 
Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Ontario as 
represented by the Minister of Transportation for the 
Province of Ontario – Community Transportation Pilot 
Grant Program 

 

By-law No. 2015-140 Being a by-law to enter into a Funding Agreement with 
Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Ontario as 
represented by the Minister of Citizenship, Immigration 
and International Trade – Age Friendly Community 
Planning Grant Program 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – June 16, 2015 Page 14 
 

 

 

By-law No. 2015-141 Being a by-law to adopt the Delegation of Powers and 
Duties Policy for the City of Temiskaming Shores 

 

By-law No. 2015-142 Being a by-law to enter into a Funding Agreement with 
Northern Ontario Heritage Fund Corporation (NOHFC) 
under the Northern Internship Program – Engineering 
Technician 

be hereby introduced and given first and second reading. 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that: 

By-law No. 2015-128 Being a by-law to establish a system for the Collection 
and Disposal of Garbage, Recyclables and other refuse 

By-law No. 2015-130; 

By-law No. 2015-131; 

By-law No. 2015-132; 

By-law No. 2015-133; 

By-law No. 2015-134; 

By-law No. 2015-135; 

By-law No. 2015-136; 

By-law No. 2015-137; 

By-law No. 2015-138; 

By-law No. 2015-139; 

By-law No. 2015-140; 

By-law No. 2015-141; 

By-law No. 2015-142; 

be given third and final reading, be signed by the Mayor and Clerk and the 
corporate seal affixed thereto. 

 

17. Schedule of Meetings  



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – June 16, 2015 Page 15 
 

 

a) Regular Meeting of Council – Tuesday, July 7, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. 

b) Regular Meeting of Council – Tuesday, August 4, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

18. Question and Answer Period 

 

19. Closed Session 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that Council agrees to convene in Closed Session at ______ pm to 
discuss the following matters: 

a) Adoption of the June 2, 2015 – Closed Session Minutes; 

 

b) Under Section 239 (2) (c) of the Municipal Act, 2001 –  
Pending acquisition of land – Hwy 65E 

 

c) Under Section 239 (2) (c) of the Municipal Act, 2001 – Disposition of land – 
Groom Drive 

 

d) Under Section 239 (2) (b) of the Municipal Act, 2001 – Personal matters 
about identifiable individuals and under Section 239 (2) (e) potential 
litigation 

 

20. Confirming By-law 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that By-law No. 2015-143 being a by-law to confirm certain 
proceedings of Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores for 
its Regular Meeting held on June 16, 2015 be hereby introduced and given first 
and second reading. 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that By-law No. 2015-143 be given third and final reading, be 
signed by the Mayor and Clerk and the corporate seal affixed thereto. 



Regular Meeting of Council Agenda – June 16, 2015 Page 16 
 

 

 

21. Adjournment 

Draft Motion 

Be it resolved that City Council adjourns at ________ pm. 

 
 
__________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 

 
 
 

__________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 
 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

Regular Meeting of Council 

Tuesday, June 2, 2015 

6:00 P.M. 

City Hall Council Chambers – 325 Farr Drive 

Minutes  

1. Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Carman Kidd at 6:01 p.m. 
 

2. Roll Call 

Present:  Mayor Carman Kidd  
Councillors Jesse Foley (6:08 pm), Patricia Hewitt, Doug Jelly, Jeff 
Laferriere, Mike McArthur and Danny Whalen  
 

Also  
Present:  Christopher W. Oslund, City Manager  
 David B. Treen, Municipal Clerk  
 Doug Walsh, Director of Public Works  
 Tammie Caldwell, Director of Recreation  
 Shelly Zubyck, Director of Corporate Services  
 Karen Beauchamp, Director of Community Growth and Planning 
 Tim Uttley, Fire Chief  
 
Regrets:  
 
Media:  Diane Johnston, Temiskaming Speaker  
 Bill Buchberger, CJTT 
 
Members of the Public Present:  0 

  

 

 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 Page 2 
 

3. Review of Revisions or Deletions to Agenda 

None 

 

4. Approval of Agenda 

Resolution No. 2015-341 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Laferriere 

Be it resolved that City Council approves the agenda as printed. 

Carried  

5. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and General Nature 

Councillor Whalen disclosed a pecuniary interest in regards to Item 15 j) 
Administrative Report No. PW-026-2015 – Equipment Purchase – Water 
Services Vehicle and By-law No. 2015-124 in regards to the same matter. 

 

6. Review and adoption of Council Mintues 

Resolution No. 2015-342 
Moved by:  Councillor Hewitt 
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 

Be it resolved that City Council approves the following minutes as printed: 

a) Regular Meeting of Council – May 19, 2015 

Carried  

 

7. Public Meetings pursuant to the Planning Act, Municipal Act and other 
Statutes 

None 

 

8. Question and Answer Period 

None 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 Page 3 
 

 

9. Presentations / Delegations 

a) Roger Oblin, Library Board member and Rebecca Hunt, Library CEO 

Re: Temiskaming Shores Public Library – Strategic Plan 2014-2018 

Roger Oblin, member of the Library Services Board made a presentation 
to Council in regards to the Temiskaming Shores Public Library Strategic 
Plan 2014-2018 utilizing a powerpoint presentation. 

Roger commenced by providing some stats on the library in 2014, over 
65,000 people visited, over 58,000 items checked out, over 10,000 access 
to computers, over 16,000 visits to library website and 2,400 people took 
part in a library program. 

Roger illustrated a list of over 20 partnerships with the library and outlined 
that there were four (4) Strategic Priorities within the plan, Library Space; 
Library facility / buildings, enhancement of Library services and assess the 
library’s role in the community. 

Roger indicated with priority No. 1 that some of these items have been 
initiated, for example a building committee has been established. There 
are four choices, expansion of current facilities, renovation of existing 
facilities; new designed library facility or participation in a multi-use facility 
with other community organizations. During the term of this plan a decision 
will have to be made as to which direction is to be pursued otherwise we 
will get nowhere. 

Roger indicated that priority No. 2 is the facility/building renewal and 
thanked Council for approving the Building Audit of 2014 which has given 
the board a plan to follow. The third priority is the enhancement of library 
services. Library is a living thing and must change with how the culture 
changes. The final priority is to assess the library’s role in the community 
by surveying the needs of the population on an ongoing basis, consult with 
patrons through town-hall style meetings and consider community led 
library model. 

Mayor Kidd indicated that himself and Councillor Laferriere are very proud 
to be on the library board and thanked Mr. Oblin and Mrs. Hunt for their 
presentation. 

 

b) Laura-Lee MacLeod, Treasurer 

Re: 2014 Audited Financial Statements 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 Page 4 
 

Laura-Lee MacLeod, Treasurer outlined that the 2014 Audited Financial 
Statements were previously distributed to members of Council and 
provided an overview of the document. 

Laura reviewed the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position for the 
City with Council followed by notes to the financial statement. 

Laura reviewed the Consolidated Statement of Operations with Council 
followed by notes to the financial statements for operations. 

Laura reviewed the Consolidated Statement of Change in Net Financial 
Assets (Net Debt) with Council followed by Consolidated Statement of 
Cash Flows including notes to the financial statements for financial assets. 

Laura reviewed the Net Long-term Liabilities with Council as well as the 
accumulated surplus of various reserves. 

Laura reviewed Trust Funds with Council followed by the Statement of 
Financial Position for the Temiskaming Shores Library Board and the 
Business Improvement Area. 

Mayor Kidd thanked Laura-Lee for her presentation. 

 
Resolution No. 2015-343 
Moved by:  Councillor Laferriere 
Seconded by:  Councillor Whalen 

Be it resolved that Council hereby acknowledges receipt and accepts the 
2014 Consolidated Financial Statements for the City of Temiskaming 
Shores as prepared by the firm of Kemp, Elliott and Blair L.L.P. – 
Chartered Accountants; and 

That Council directs the Treasurer to publish notice that a copy of the 2014 
Consolidated Financial Statements are available at City Hall and on the 
City’s website in accordance with Section 295 of the Municipal Act, 2001, 
as amended. 

Carried  

10. Communications 

a) Share the Road Cycling Coalition  

Re: Invitation - Bicycle Friendly Communities Workshop – June 10th, 
2015 (10:00 am – 3:30 pm) 

Reference: Received for information 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 Page 5 
 

b) Canadian Heritage – Canada 150 Fund 

Re: Canada 150 Fund Application Kits  

Reference: Referred to Senior Management 

 

c) Linda Mason, Information Analyst – Office of the Fire Marshall 

Re: Community and Fire Department Profile Data Collection process 

Reference: Referred to the Fire Chief 

 

d) Mike Lapointe, Captain/Commanding Officer – 2344 Royal Canadian Army 
Cadet Corps 

Re: Invitation to the 66th Annual Review (June 6th, 2015) 

Reference: Received for Information 

 

e) Michael Miller, Executive Director & Marianne Fortier, Director of Services 
– Kunuwanimano Child and Family Services (KCFS) 

Re: Designation as a Children’s Aid Society 6th Annual Review – 
provide child welfare/prevention services to Aboriginals within the 
Districts of Timiskaming, Sudbury, Cochrane and Algoma 

Reference: Received for Information 

 

Resolution No. 2015-344 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that City Council agrees to deal with Communication Items 10. a)  
to 10. e) according to the Agenda references. 

Carried 

11. Committees of Council – Community and Regional 

Resolution No. 2015-345 
Moved by:  Councillor Laferriere 
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 Page 6 
 

Be it resolved that the following minutes be accepted for information: 

a) Minutes of the Temiskaming Shores and Area Physician Recruitment and 
Retention Committee meeting held on May 6, 2015; 

b) Minutes of the Temiskaming Shores Public Library Board meeting held on 
April 16, 2015; 

c) Minutes of the Earlton-Timiskaming Regional Airport Joint Municipal 
Services Board meeting held on April 16, 2015;  

d) Minutes of the Ontario Clean Water Agency consultation meeting held on 
April 23, 2015; and 

e) Minutes of the Timiskaming Board of Health meeting held on April 1, 2015. 

Carried 

12. Committees of Council – Internal Departments 

Resolution No. 2015-346 
Moved by:  Councillor McArthur 
Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly 

Be it resolved that the following minutes be accepted for information: 

a) Minutes of the Recreation Services Committee meeting held on April 13, 
2015; 

b) Minutes of the Protection to Persons and Property Committee meeting 
held on May 20, 2015; 

c) Minutes of the Corporate Services Committee meeting held on May 14, 
2015; 

d) Minutes of the Corporate Services Committee meeting held on May 28, 
2015; 

e) Minutes of the Public Works Committee meeting held on May 26, 2015. 

Carried 

13. Reports by Members of Council 

Doug Jelly outlined that he attended the Ontario Association of Police Services 
Boards convention and was officially voted onto the Provincial body and will meet 
4-5 times a year and his expenses are covered by the Province. Should be an 
interesting four years as they will be reviewing the Police Services Act, should be 
some changes from a governance perspective. 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 Page 7 
 

14. Notice of Motions 

None 

 

15. New Business 

a) Memo No. 022-2015-CGP – Solid Waste Management - Enforcement 

Resolution No. 2015-347 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Memo No. 022-2015-CGP; 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law for Solid Waste 
Management and repeal By-law No. 2015-021 for consideration of First 
and Second Reading at the June 2, 2015 Regular meeting of Council; and 

That Council directs staff to forward the draft by-law to the Ministry of the 
Attorney General and Regional Senior Justice for approval of the short 
form wording and set fines prior to Third and Final Reading. 

Carried  

b) Approval of Council Meeting Schedule – July 2015 to January 2016 

Resolution No. 2015-348 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Hewitt 

Whereas By-law 2008-160, as amended indicates that Regular Meetings 
of Council shall be held on the first and third Tuesdays of each month 
commencing at 6:00 p.m. unless otherwise decided by Council. 

Now therefore be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming 
Shores does hereby confirms the following schedule of meetings for the 
months of July 2015 to January 2016: 

Tuesday, July 7, 2015 Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, August 4, 2015 Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, September 1, 2015 Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, September 15, 2015 Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, October 6, 2015 Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, October 20, 2015 Regular Meeting 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 Page 8 
 

Tuesday, November 3, 2015 Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, November 17, 2015 Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, December 1, 2015 Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, December 15, 2015 Regular Meeting 

Carried 

c) Supplemental Administrative Report No. CGP-018-01-2015 – 
Amendment to By-law No. 2013-052 Building Permit Fees (Orders) 

Resolution No. 2015-349 
Moved by:  Councillor Laferriere 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Supplemental Administrative Report No. CGP-
018-01-2015; 

That Council directs staff to submit the final draft of By-law No. 2015-094 
to amend Building By-law No. 2013-052 for consideration of Third and 
Final reading at the June 2, 2015 Regular Council meeting; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to amend By-
law No. 2012-039 (Fee By-law) to include the changes in fees associated 
to the Building Department for consideration at the June 16, 2015 Regular 
Council meeting. 

Carried 

 

d) Supplemental Administrative Report No. CGP-026-01-2015 – 
Amendment to Traffic and Parking By-law – Paget Street 

Resolution No. 2015-350 
Moved by:  Councillor McArthur 
Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Supplemental Administrative Report No. CGP-
026-01-2015; 

That Council concurs with the Protection to Persons and Property 
Committee’s recommendation to continue to allow parking on both sides of 
Paget Street from Whitewood Avenue to Church Street, and to retain the 
accessible parking space on the East side as stated in the current Traffic 
and Parking By-law; and 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 Page 9 
 

That Council hereby repeals Resolution No. 2015-299 adopted at the May 
5, 2015 Regular Meeting directing staff to amend By-law No. 2014-101. 

Carried 

 

e) Administrative Report No. CS-020-2015 – Lease Agreement – Don 
Shepherdson Memorial Arena Concession 

Resolution No. 2015-351 
Moved by:  Councillor Hewitt 
Seconded by:  Councillor Laferriere 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. CS-020-2015; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into a 
lease agreement with Rick’s Magic Touch Catering for the use of the Don 
Shepherdson Memorial Arena Concession Stand from October 1, 2015 to 
April 30, 2018 for consideration at the June 16, 2015 Regular Council 
meeting. 

Carried 

f) Administrative Report No. CS-021-2015 – Lease Agreement – 
Haileybury Arena Concession 

Resolution No. 2015-352 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Laferriere 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. CS-021-2015; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into a 
lease agreement with the New Liskeard Lions Midget Hockey Club for the 
operation of the Haileybury Arena Concession Stand from September 1, 
2015 to April 30, 2016 for consideration at the June 16, 2015 Regular 
Council meeting. 

Carried 

 

 

 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 Page 10 
 

g) Administrative Report No. CS-022-2015 – Maintenance of Boundary 
Roads  

Resolution No. 2015-353 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. CS-022-2015; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into 
agreements with the Township of Harley, Township of Harris and 
Township of Hudson for the provision of road services and repairs of 
boundary roads for consideration at the June 2, 2015 Regular Council 
meeting. 

Carried 

 

h) Administrative Report No. PW-024-2015 – Change Order – NL / 
Dymond Water Linking Project and Gray Road Lift Station Project 

Resolution No. 2015-354 
Moved by:  Councillor Foley 
Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly 

Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report PW-024-2015; 

That Council approves the Contract Change Order to By-law No. 2014-
080, being an agreement with Exp Services to provide engineering 
services for linking the New Liskeard Water System, in the amount of 
$86,430.00 plus applicable taxes;  and 

That Council approves the Contract Change Order to By-law No. 2011-
078, being an agreement with Exp Services for the design of the Gray 
Road Sanitary Lift Station upgrade project, in the amount of $49,430.00 
plus applicable taxes.  

Carried 

 

i) Administrative Report No. PW-025-2015 – Contract Change Order – 
Storm Water Management System – Dymond Industrial Park 

Resolution No. 2015-355 
Moved by:  Councillor McArthur 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 Page 11 
 

Seconded by:  Councillor Laferriere 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. PW-025-2015; and  
That Council approves the Contract Change Order to By-law No. 2014-
201, being an agreement with Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. for 
Construction of the Storm Water Management System in the Dymond 
Industrial Park, in the amount of $48,800.00 plus applicable taxes. 

Carried 

 

j) Administrative Report No. PW-026-2015 – Equipment Purchase – 
Water Service Vehicle 

Councillor Whalen disclosed a pecuniary interest with Administrative 
Report No. PW-026-2015 and did not participate in the discussion of 
the subject matter nor did he vote on Resolution No. 2015-356. 

 
Resolution No. 2015-356 
Moved by:  Councillor Laferriere 
Seconded by: Councillor Hewitt 

Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. PW-026-2015; 

That Council hereby approves the acquisition of a Water Service Vehicle 
from Bill Mathews Motors, as detailed in Request for Proposal PW-RFP-
002-2015, at a cost of $58,762.00 plus applicable taxes; and  

That Council directs Staff to prepare the necessary by-law and agreement 
for the said purchase for consideration at the June 2, 2015, Regular 
meeting of Council. 

Carried 

 

k) Administrative Report No. PW-027-2015 – Equipment Purchase – 
Light Duty Pick-up Trucks 

Resolution No. 2015-357 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Whalen 

Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. PW-027-2015; 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 Page 12 
 

That Council approves the purchase of two new light duty trucks (one 
crew cab and one extended cab), as detailed in Request for Tender PW-
RFP-003-2015 (as amended), to Wilson Chevrolet Buick GMC at a cost of 
$59,779.00 plus applicable taxes; and  

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law and agreement 
for consideration at the June 2, 2015 Regular Council meeting. 

Carried 

 

l) Administrative Report No. PW-028-2015 – Centre and Edge Line 
Roadway Marking Services 

Resolution No. 2015-358 
Moved by:  Councillor Laferriere 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. PW-028-2015;  

That Council approves the award of the 2015 Centre and Edge Line 
Painting Services contract to Midwestern Line Striping in the amount of 
$ 34,525.59 plus HST; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law and agreement 
for consideration at the June 2, 2015 Regular Council meeting. 

Carried 

m) Administrative Report No. PW-029-2015 – Bulk Salt  

Resolution No. 2015-359 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of    Administrative Report No. PW-029-2014;  

That Council approves the award of the 2015 – 2016 Supply and Delivery 
of Bulk Course Highway Salt contract to Compass Minerals in the amount 
of $ 104.55 per tonne plus HST; and 

That Council directs Staff to prepare the necessary by-law and agreement 
for consideration at the June 2, 2015 Regular Council meeting. 

Carried 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 Page 13 
 

n) Administrative Report No. PW-030-2015 – Communications Upgrades 
– Phase 1 and Phase 2 

Resolution No. 2015-360 
Moved by:  Councillor McArthur 
Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly 

Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. PW-030-2015; 

That Council agrees to waive the Tender requirements of the City’s 
Purchasing Policy, as set forth in Section 4.10 of By-law No. 2009-012, 
and authorizes an agreement with the Ontario Clean Water Agency under 
provisions of Section 4.11 – Optional Services of By-law No. 2011-117, 
utilizing Selog and Spectrum Group for the completion of Phase One and 
initiation of Phase Two of the communication upgrades at various water 
and wastewater facilities at an upset limit of $407,500; and 

That Council directs Staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into an 
Optional Services Agreement with Ontario Clean Water Agency for 
consideration at the June 2, 2015 Regular Council meeting. 

Carried 

 

o) Administrative Report No. PW-031-2015 – Contract Award for 
Miscellaneous Culverts – Corix Water Products 

Resolution No. 2015-361 
Moved by:  Councillor Laferriere 
Seconded by:  Councillor Hewitt 

Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of    Administrative Report No. PW-031-2015;  

That Council approves the award of the Supply and Delivery of 
Miscellaneous Culverts contract to Corix Water Products in the amount of 
$ 28,182.39 plus HST; and 

That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into an 
agreement with Corix Water Products for consideration at the June 2, 
2015 Regular Council meeting. 

Carried 

 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 Page 14 
 

p) Administrative Report No. PW-032-2015 – Public Works Engineering 
Technician Position 

Resolution No. 2015-362 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report PW-032-2015; 

That Council hereby approves the creation of the Engineering Technician 
Intern position for a period of two (2) years; and  

That Council directs staff: 

 To prepare the required by-law to enter into an Agreement with the 
Northern Ontario Heritage Fund Corporation (NOHFC) as a funding 
partner. 

 To advertise externally, as is required under the terms of the 
funding agreement, for the position of Engineering Technician / 
Technologist Intern, with the terms to be “intern, contract full-time 
placement” for a period of fifty-two (52) weeks.  

 To fill the position, in accordance with the terms of the funding 
agreement and as described in the NOHFC Application submitted 
on March 18, 2015.  

 To provide remuneration, as provided for, and in accordance, with 
the funding Agreement. 

 To initiate an application for funding for the second year of the 
placement as outlined in the Project Work Plan submitted with the 
initial application. 

Carried 

q) Administrative Report No. PW-033-2015 – Funding Application for 
Canada 150 Community Infrastructure Program 

Resolution No. 2015-363 
Moved by:  Councillor Hewitt 
Seconded by:  Councillor Laferriere 

Whereas the City of Temiskaming Shores is committed to treating all 
people in a manner that allows them to maintain their dignity and 
independence; and 

Whereas the City believes in integration and equal opportunity; and 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 Page 15 
 

Whereas the City is committed to meeting the needs of people with 
disabilities in a timely manner and will do so by preventing and removing 
barriers to accessibility and meeting accessibility requirements under the 
Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act; and 

Whereas the goal of the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 
2005 (AODA) is to make Ontario accessible for all people with disabilities 
by 2025; and 

Whereas renovation projects provide opportunities for enhanced 
accessibility in existing buildings; and  

Whereas the community and the Temiskaming Shores Public Library New 
Liskeard Branch would benefit from renovations that include a barrier free 
design features such as:  entrances, corridors, washrooms, access to all 
storeys within the building and visual fire safety devices.   

Now therefore be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores acknowledges receipt of Administrative Report No. PW-033-2015; 
and 

That Council directs staff to submit an Application to the Canada 150 
Community Infrastructure Program for Rehabilitation and Accessibility 
Upgrades to the New Liskeard Branch of the Temiskaming Shores Public 
Library. 

Carried 

r) May 2015 Capital Financial Report 

Resolution No. 2015-364 
Moved by:  Councillor Laferriere 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt of the May 2015 Capital Financial Report for 
information Purposes. 

Carried 

s) Memo No. 004-2015-CS – Scotia Leasing Credit Facility 

Resolution No. 2015-365 
Moved by:  Councillor Hewitt 
Seconded by:  Councillor Laferriere 

Be it resolved that the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
acknowledges receipt Memo No. 004-2015-CS; and 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 Page 16 
 

That Council approves the use of leases as a credit facility option for the 
purchase of equipment. 

Carried 

16. By-laws 

Resolution No. 2015-366 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Councillor Whalen disclosed a pecuniary interest with By-law No. 2015-124 
and did not participate in the discussion of the subject matter nor did he 
vote on Resolution No. 2015-366. 

Be it resolved that: 

By-law No. 2015-124 Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with Bill 
Mathews Motors Inc. for the Supply and Delivery of a 
Water Services Field Response Vehicle to the City of 
Temiskaming Shores 

be hereby introduced and given first and second reading. 

Carried 

Resolution No. 2015-367 
Moved by:  Councillor Laferriere 
Seconded by:  Councillor Whalen 

Be it resolved that: 

By-law No. 2015-118 Being a by-law to enter into a lease agreement with the 
Little Claybelt Homesteaders Museum 

 

By-law No. 2015-119 Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with 
Midwestern Line Striping Inc. for the Supply of 
Roadway Centre and Edge Line Painting Services 
within the City of Temiskaming Shores 

 

By-law No. 2015-120 Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with the 
Township of Harley for the provision of road services 
and repairs of boundary roads – Uno Park Road 

 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 Page 17 
 

By-law No. 2015-121 Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with the 
Township of Harris for the provision of road services 
and repairs of boundary roads – Sales Barn Road 

 

By-law No. 2015-122 Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with the 
Township of Hudson for the provision of road services 
and repairs of boundary roads – Pipeline Road 

 

By-law No. 2015-123 Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with Corix 
Water Products for the Supply and Delivery of 
Miscellaneous Culvert Pipe  

 

By-law No. 2015-125 Being a by-law to enter into an Optional Service 
Agreement with Ontario Clean Water Agency (OCWA) 
for the completion of Phase 1 and 2 Communications 
Upgrades at various Water and Wastewater Facilities 

 

By-law No. 2015-126 Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with 
Compass Minerals Canada Corp. for the Supply and 
Delivery of Bulk Course Highway Salt at various 
locations within the City of Temiskaming Shores 

 

By-law No. 2015-127 Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with Wilson 
Chevrolet Buick GMC for the Supply and Delivery of 
Light Duty Pick-up Trucks to the City of Temiskaming 
Shores 

 

By-law No. 2015-128 Being a by-law to establish a system for the Collection 
and Disposal of Garbage, Recyclables and other refuse 

be hereby introduced and given first and second reading. 

Carried 

Resolution No. 2015-368 
Moved by:  Councillor Foley 
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 Page 18 
 

Be it resolved that By-law No. 2015-124 be given third and final reading, be 
signed by the Mayor and Clerk and the corporate seal affixed thereto. 

Carried 

Resolution No. 2015-369 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor McArthur 

Be it resolved that: 

By-law No. 2015-094 Being a by-law to amend By-law No. 2013-052 being a 
by-law to regulate Construction, Demolition, Change of 
Use, Inspections, Permits and Associated Fees and to 
repeal By-law NO. 2005-066 

By-law No. 2015-118; 

By-law No. 2015-119; 

By-law No. 2015-120; 

By-law No. 2015-121; 

By-law No. 2015-122; 

By-law No. 2015-123; 

By-law No. 2015-125; 

By-law No. 2015-126; 

By-law No. 2015-127; 

be given third and final reading, be signed by the Mayor and Clerk and the 
corporate seal affixed thereto. 

Carried 

17. Schedule of Meetings 

a) Regular Meeting of Council – Tuesday, June 16, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. 

b) Regular Meeting of Council – Tuesday, July 7, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

18. Question and Answer Period 

Councillor Whalen outlined concern with the process used in regards to the 
motion adopted by Council at the last regular meeting for a potential proposed 
feasibility study for a multi-use complex. Does not agree with the resolution 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 Page 19 
 

where if a capital project is not completed we would consider this feasibility study 
which does not pay fair respect to the capital budget process. 

Councillor Whalen outlined feels that Council is being swept up in the urgency of 
to meet a deadline in regards to the Farmer’s Market location and based on the 
last five years the Farmer’s Market should be providing us with a Business Plan 
of how they will carry their share of the cost if a new structure is constructed. 
Further he feels Council is being rushed into making a decision. 

Mayor Kidd outlined that they is a meeting next week with the BIA to obtain their 
feedback on potential locations and any impacts that may have on them with 
revised budgetary costs and stand pat on the $300,000 budget. 

 

19. Closed Session 

Resolution No. 2015-370 
Moved by:  Councillor Laferriere 
Seconded by:  Councillor Whalen 

Be it resolved that Council agrees to convene in Closed Session at 7:35 pm to 
discuss the following matters: 

a) Adoption of the April 21, 2015 – Closed Session Minutes 

b) Under Section 239 (2) (c) of the Municipal Act, 2001 – Disposition of Land 
– Housing for Small Families, Seniors and Persons Living with Disabilities 
– Update 

c) Under Section 239 (2) (d) of the Municipal Act, 2001 – Labour Relations – 
Human Resources Update – May 2015 

Carried 

Resolution No. 2015-371 
Moved by:  Councillor McArthur 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 
 

Be it resolved that Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores agrees to rise with 
report at 7:46 p.m. 

Carried 

 

 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 Page 20 
 

a) Adoption of the April 21, 2015 – Closed Session Minutes 

 
Resolution No. 2015-372 
Moved by:  Councillor Whalen 
Seconded by:  Councillor Laferriere 
 

Be it resolved that Council approves the April 21, 2015 Closed Session 
Minutes as printed. 

Carried 

 

b) Under Section 239 (2) (c) of the Municipal Act, 2001 – Disposition of 
Land – Housing for Small Families, Seniors and Persons Living with 
Disabilities – Update 

Staff provided a verbal update on the project to Council. 

 

c) Under Section 239 (2) (d) of the Municipal Act, 2001 – Labour 
Relations – Human Resources Update – May 2015 

Staff reviewed the May 2015 HR update with Council. 

 

20. Confirming By-law 

Resolution No. 2015-373 
Moved by:  Councillor Jelly 
Seconded by:  Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that By-law No. 2015-129 being a by-law to confirm certain 
proceedings of Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores for 
its Regular Meeting held on June 2, 2015 be hereby introduced and given first 
and second reading. 

Carried 

Resolution No. 2015-374 
Moved by:  Councillor Laferriere 
Seconded by:  Councillor Hewitt 
 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 Page 21 
 

Be it resolved that By-law No. 2015-129 be given third and final reading, be 
signed by the Mayor and Clerk and the corporate seal affixed thereto. 

Carried 

21. Adjournment 

Resolution No. 2015-375 
Moved by:  Councillor McArthur 
Seconded by:  Councillor Jelly 

Be it resolved that City Council adjourns at 7:47 pm. 

Carried 

 
 
__________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 
 
 
 

__________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



May 20, 2015

His Worship Carman Kidd
Mayor
The City of Temiskaming Shores
325 Farr Drive
Haileybury, ON P01 1KO

Dear Mayor Kidd:

Re: Age-Friendly Community Planning Grant Program (2014-11-1-53061429)

I am pleased to provide you with a conditional approval of up to a maximum amount of $25,000
to support your application to the Age-Friendly Community Planning Grant Program. In the
coming days, you will be contacted by a representative from the Ontario Seniors’ Secretariat,
who will discuss the terms and conditions of the funding agreement.

As you know, age-friendly communities are supportive physical and social environments that
enable older people to live active, safe and meaningful lives that continue to contribute in all
areas of community life. A community that works for seniors works, for everyone.

Until you have signed the agreement with the Ontario Seniors’ Secretariat, I would ask that you
do not make any public announcements regarding this conditional approval.

We appreciate the time that you took to develop your application, and encourage you to visit our
website (http://www.ontario.calseniors) and use the resources referenced in the Age-Friendly
Community Planning Guide to help you to continue to develop your age-friendly community.

Mario $ergio
Minister Responsible for Seniors Affairs

c: MPP John Vanthof - Timiskaming-Cochrane
Mrs. Tammie Caldwell, Director of Recreation

Minister Responsible Ministre delegue aux
for Seniors Affairs Affaires des personnes ãgées

77 WellesTey Street West 77, rue Wellesley Ouest
12th Floor, Ferguson Block 12e étage, bloc Ferguson
Toronto, ON M7A 1N3 Toronto ON M7A 1N3
Tel:416-314-9710 Tél. 416314-9710
Fax 416-325-4787 Téléc. 416 325-4787 Ontario

// %

*j7

/



 

  

  

News Release  

Ontario Passes Legislation to Improve Road Safety  

June 2, 2015 

New Rules Will Help Reduce Collisions, Injuries and Fatalities 

Today, Ontario passed the Making Ontario's Roads Safer Act to help ensure that the 

province's roads are among the safest in North America. 

In order to reduce collisions, injuries and fatalities on Ontario's roads, the new act will:  

 Increase fines for distracted driving from the current range of $60 to $500 to a 

range of $300 to $1,000, assigning three demerit points upon conviction, and 

escalating sanctions on convictions for novice drivers 

 Apply current alcohol-impaired sanctions to drivers who are drug impaired 

 Introduce additional measures to address repeat offenders of alcohol impaired 

driving 

 Require drivers to wait until pedestrians have completely crossed the road before 

proceeding at school crossings and pedestrian crossovers 

 Increase fines and demerits for drivers who 'door' cyclists, and require all drivers 

to maintain a minimum distance of one-metre when passing cyclists where 

possible 

 Help municipalities collect unpaid fines by expanding licence plate denial for 

drivers who do not pay certain Provincial Offences Act fines. 

 Allow a broader range of qualified medical professionals to identify and report 

medically unfit drivers and, clarify the ty pes of medical conditions to be reported. 

The new fines and measures will come into force over the coming months. The new 

legislation builds on action that the province has already taken to improve road safety, 

including making booster seats mandatory, ensuring every person wears a seatbelt, 

introducing the Graduated Licensing System for novice drivers, establishing stiffer 

penalties for aggressive driving and excess speeding, bringing in tougher impaired 

http://news.ontario.ca/mto/en/2015/06/ontario-passes-legislation-to-improve-road-safety.html?utm_source=ondemand&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=p


driving laws, and banning hand-held devices while driving.  

Ensuring Ontario's roads and highways are safe is part of the government's economic 

plan for Ontario. The four-part plan includes investing in people's talents and skills, 

making the largest investment in public infrastructure in Ontario's history, creating a 

dynamic, innovative environment where business thrives, and building a secure 

retirement savings plan. 

  
QUICK FACTS  

 If current collision trends continue, fatalities from distracted driving may exceed 

those from drinking and driving by 2016. 

 According to recent statistics, over 45 per cent of drivers killed in Ontario were 

found to have drugs or a combination of drugs and alcohol in their system. 

 Pedestrians represent about one in five motor vehicle-related fatalities on Ontario 

roads — 46 per cent of which occurred at intersections.  

 

 



KEEP HYDRO PUBLIC

WWWKEEPHYDROPUBLIC.CA LID
r. 4

Ig u
David Treen

Municipal Clerk, City of Temiskaming Shores

_________________

325 Farr Drive

Haileybury, Ontario POJ 1KO

Subject: Resolution regarding the proposed privatization of Hydro One

Dear Mr. Treen:

The Ontario government’s plan to sell 60 per cent of Hydro One, the provincial electricity

transmission utility, has far-reaching implications for every citizen and municipality in the province.

On behalf of Keep Hydro Public, a broad-based coalition created to stop the sell-off, I am writing to

encourage your municipality to add its voice to the many others that are already telling the

provincial government to change course and keep Hydro One in public hands.

By now I am sure council members will have heard the many arguments against the sale:

• Selling the majority of shares in Hydro One will take control of this vital asset away from the

people in Ontario and put it in the hands of private investors, including foreign investors

who may not even care whether we have reliable, affordable electricity.

• Privatization will increase electricity prices for residential, business, and government

customers alike.

• Under the plan proposed by the government, oversight of Hydro One by independent

officers of the legislature would end. The Auditor General and the Financial Accountability

Officer would no longer be able to scrutinize the utility’s books or its operations; consumers

would no longer be able to appeal to the Ombudsman when problems arise; citizens would

not be able to access information about Hydro One through the Freedom of Inform ation

and Protection of PrivacyAct; salaries of top Hydro One officials would no longer be made

public under the Public Sector Salary Disclosure Act; the Integrity Commissioner would not

be able to review expenses of Hydro One officials; and Hydro One would no longer be

subject to the French Language Services Act. In other words, transparency and public

accountability would end. Ontarians would truly be “in the dark” with respect to Hydro One

operations.

(Please turn over)



• Privatization will provide government with a short-term cash injection that will soon be

spent in exchange for giving up a steady, long-term source of revenue that pays for public

services we all depend on. The cost to Ontarians will be hundreds of millions of dollars per

year.

Perhaps more significant than these strong arguments is the simple fact that the provincial

government has no mandate from the people of Ontario to make a sale of this magnitude. (This

may explain why the government chose to put the Hydro One sale inside its 2015-16 Budget bill and

push it through the legislature with minimal opportunity for public input.)

It is crystal clear that the people of Ontario do not support the sale of any part of Hydro One.

Published opinion polls show opponents of the sale outnumbering supporters by three-to-one

margin. Editorial opinion is similarly opposed. If democracy means anything, we must stop this sale.

At this time, Keep Hydro Public is asking municipal councils, from the largest to the smallest, to pass

a resolution opposing the sale or partial sale of Hydro One and to communicate that opposition to

the government, area MPPs, and the Association of Municipalities of Ontario. Included with this

letter you will find a draft resolution which municipal councils are, of course, free to use and modify

as they see fit.

Your assistance in putting this issue on the agenda of your council as soon as possible is greatly

appreciated; we would also appreciate hearing back from your municipality if and when council

takes action on this matter.

For mote information about Hydro One privatization or the ever-growing Keep Hydro Public, please

visit our web site at www.keephydropublic.ca or contact me directly at info@keephydropublic.ca or

(647) 272-5024.

Thank you for your time.

Sincerely,

Katrina Miller

On behalf of Keep Hydro Public

P.S. If your municipal council has already considered this matter, thank you for doing so!



IREeE1VED

—“ Ontario J MAY 21 2;5

Northern Ontario Heritage Honourable Michael Gravelle - Chair
Fund Corporation

Sociétë de gestion du Fonds
dii patrimoine dii Nord
de Ontario

Board of Directors NOHFC File #8500713
May 15, 2015

David Sinclair,
Vice Chair Mr. Douglas Walsh

Director, Public Works
Lorraine Irvine, Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores
Vice Chair 325 Farr Drive

P0 Box 2050
Jason Corbett Haileybury ON POJ 1 KO

Robert Fontaine Dear Mr. Walsh:

I am pleased to advise that your request for financial assistance from the NorthernVictoria Hanson
Ontario Heritage Fund Corporation (NOHFC) has been approved for an amount not to
exceed thirty one thousand five hundred dollars ($31,500). This funding is a conditional

Geordi Kakepetum contribution toward your Engineering Technician / Technologist Intern placement for 52
weeks of employment to be completed within an 18 month time frame commencing on

Sharon Hacio date of approval.

Robert Norris
You may now proceed with hiring an eligible employee. Your Project Officer will contact
you regarding placing the job advertisement, the employee verification process and the
legal and contractual requirements for disbursement and administration of the

Marielle Brown contribution. If you have not selected, hired, and advised your Project Officer of an
eligible candidate within 6 months of the date of this approval letter, NOHFC will close the

Michael Fox file and this funding approval will automatically be withdrawn without further notice.

Ella-Jean Richter On behalf of the Board of Directors, please accept my best wishes.

Carolyn Lane-Rock Sincerely,

Jj/
Murray Scott

Michael Gravelle, MPP
John Simperl Chair, Northern Ontario Heritage Fund

Minister of Northern Development and Mines

Suite 200, Roberta Bondar Place, 70 Foster Drive, Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario P6A 6V8
Tel: (705) 945-6700 or 1-800-461-8329, Fax. (705) 945-6701. www.nohfc.com

Place Roberta Bondar, Bureau 200, 70, promenade Foster, Sault Ste. Marie (Ontario) P6A 6V8
Tél: (705) 945-6700 ou 1800-461-8329, Téléc. (705) 945-6701 www.nohfc.com



  

  

News Release  

Ontario Launches Consultations on Infrastructure Priorities  

May 21, 2015 

Moving Ontario Forward by Investing in Infrastructure to Meet Regional Needs  

Ontario is launching consultations to inform the design of new infrastructure programs and a 

framework to prioritize needs for communities and regions outside the Greater Toronto and 

Hamilton Area (GTHA). 

As part of Moving Ontario Forward, the government has allocated $15 billion for investment in 

roads, bridges, transit and other critical infrastructure in regions outside the GTHA. 

The province has released a discussion guide, Moving Ontario Forward - Outside the GTHA, to 

provide interested parties with information about these investments and how their voices can be 

heard. 

Feedback can be submitted online or in writing by September 18, 2015. Additional opportunities 

to provide advice will be available through regional roundtable meetings that will be held across 

the province in June and July, 2015. 

Supporting critical infrastructure across Ontario is part of the government's plan to build Ontario 

up. The four-part plan includes investing in people's talents and skills, making the largest 

investment in public infrastructure in Ontario's history, creating a dynamic, innovative 

environment where business thrives, and building a secure retirement savings plan. 

QUICK FACTS  

 Moving Ontario Forward is part of the government’s plan to invest more than $130 billion 

over 10 years in public infrastructure, which will support more than 110,000 jobs on 

average each year in construction and related industries.  

 A significant amount of that total investment, $31.5 billion, is allocated to Moving Ontario 

Forward, Ontario’s plan to improve public transit, transportation and other priority 

http://news.ontario.ca/medt/en/2015/05/ontario-launches-consultations-on-infrastructure-priorities.html?utm_source=ondemand&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=o
www.ontario.ca/document/moving-ontario-forward-outside-greater-toronto-hamilton-area
www.ontario.ca/business-and-economy/infrastructure-consultation


infrastructure projects across the province over the next 10 years. 

 Part of the $15 billion in funding is already working to build important projects in 

communities across Ontario, including investments through the Ontario Community 

Infrastructure Fund, transportation in the Ring of Fire region, a new Connecting Links 

program and strategic highway improvements. 

  

 

http://www.omafra.gov.on.ca/english/rural/infrastructure-broadband/ocif-projects.htm
http://www.omafra.gov.on.ca/english/rural/infrastructure-broadband/ocif-projects.htm


  

News Release  

Ontario Moving Forward with Accessibility Certification Program  

May 29, 2015 

Province Encouraging Businesses to Be Leaders in Accessibility  

Ontario is continuing its work towards an accessible province by 2025 by exploring options for a 

new accessibility certification program.  

The province will consult with industry, disability advocates, certification experts, municipalities, 

and not-for-profits to develop a voluntary, third-party certification program -- inspired by the 

success of the LEED designation promoting excellence in green building -- to recognize 

businesses and organizations that have championed accessibility.  

This program would help leaders stand out in their sector or community and promote the 

economic advantages of accessibility. It would encourage businesses to go beyond the 

requirements of the law and make accessibility part of daily life.  

The Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act (AODA) would guide the program's 

requirements. Since 2005, this act has set standards that make it easier for people with 

disabilities to participate in their workplaces and communities.  

Improving accessibility is part of the government's plan to build Ontario up. The four-part plan 

includes investing in people's talents and skills, making the largest investment in public 

infrastructure in Ontario's history, creating a dynamic and innovative environment where 

business thrives, and building a secure retirement savings plan.  

QUICK FACTS  

 One in seven Ontarians has a disability, a number that will increase to one in five by 
2035.  

 People with disabilities and their families represent an economic market worth $25 billion 
in Canada.  

 Ontario will host its first Accessibility Innovation Showcase this August.  

With the passage of the AODA, Ontario became an accessibility leader, establishing standards 
in five key areas of daily life and implementing them within clear timeframes. 

http://news.ontario.ca/medt/en/2015/05/ontario-moving-forward-with-accessibility-certification-program.html?utm_source=ondemand&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=p
http://www.usgbc.org/leed
http://www.e-laws.gov.on.ca/html/statutes/english/elaws_statutes_05a11_e.htm


















































































88 Riverside Drive, Kapuskasing ON P5N 1B3     Tel: (705) 337-4454      Fax: (705) 337-1741Email: fonom.info@gmail.com    Website: www.fonom.org

Spring Newsletter 2015

FONOM/MMAH Northeastern Municipal Conference – The conference sold out with 300 registrations
to attend the 55

th
 Annual Conference in the City of Greater Sudbury, May 6, 7 & 8, 2015. On behalf of

the FONOM Board of Directors, thank you for making this year’s conference a success! A number of
informative and engaging workshops that catered to the large number of newly elected officials were
scheduled during the three day conference. FONOM was pleased to have representation from the
Province with 8 Cabinet Ministers, 2 Parliamentary Assistants and Premier Kathleen Wynne all
attending. We look forward to next year’s conference in the City of Timmins, May 11, 12 & 13, 2016.

FONOM Annual General Meeting – The annual meeting consisted of an update to delegates on the
activities that FONOM has been involved in over the last year as well as an update on the status of a
number of issues. Delegates also approved the minutes from the 2014 annual meeting and approved
the financial report for the 2014-2015 fiscal year. A focus of the meeting was the resolutions which
were all passed.

Membership Renewals – The work that FONOM has been able to accomplish has been because of
the support from our members and we look forward to another year working on issues that are
important to the North! There are unpaid memberships remaining for the 2015-2016 year. For those
that have outstanding membership fees, please send payment so that your municipality will continue
to receive our communications. If you require a copy of your invoice, please contact the FONOM
office and another copy can be sent.

Highlights:

Northern Industrial Electricity Rate (NIER) Program – After advocacy efforts were undertaken from
FONOM and industry, we were pleased by the announcement that the NIER Program will become
permanent. This program supports major industries in Northern Ontario by providing rebates on
electricity program.

Connecting Links Program – FONOM has been requesting the return of the Connecting Links
program since its cancellation in 2013. This program provides municipalities with much needed
assistance with road construction and improvements on provincial highways that run through their
communities. We look forward to further communication regarding the implementation of the program
as well as additional transportation infrastructure funding as part of the Province’s investments
outside of the GTHA.



88 Riverside Drive, Kapuskasing ON P5N 1B3     Tel: (705) 337-4454      Fax: (705) 337-1741Email: fonom.info@gmail.com    Website: www.fonom.org

Events:

State of the North Summit – The April 2
nd

 event which was hosted by The Empire Club in Toronto;
one of the most prominent speaker platforms in the country. The summit catered to the Queen’s Park
and financial and investment community and brought together industry, municipal and First Nations
Leaders to discuss the opportunities and challenges in the North. It was a great opportunity showcase
Northern Ontario and FONOM looks forward to participating in a future event.

Ongoing Advocacy Initiatives:

Bill 52 (Anti-SLAPP) – FONOM, in partnership with the Northwestern Ontario Municipal Association
(NOMA) continue to request that the Attorney General revise the legislation and implement the
recommendations that have been put forward. The two recommendations, if implemented, would
address the concerns of Northern Ontario while balancing the need to protect discussions of public
interest important to individuals or community based organizations.

Policing Modernization – The affordability of policing in communities remains an ongoing issue across
municipalities in the North, whether policed by OPP or through municipal police forces. FONOM
President, Al Spacek, recently chaired AMO’s Policing Modernization Task Force, which consisted of
Mayors and Police Board representatives from across the Province that developed a report with
several recommendations. Moving forward, there will be continued discussion and a request that the
Ministry of Community Safety and Correctional Services implement the recommendations.

Relationship Building Initiatives:

Organizations – FONOM has recently developed a formal working relationship with NOMA and the
Northern Ontario Service Deliverers Association (NOSDA) in an effort to increase communication and
effectiveness when advocating to the Province on common issues.

First Nations – FONOM is continuing to build on our relationship with Nishnawbe Aski Nation (NAN)
and will be developing a framework for collaboration which will include leaders from FONOM, NOMA,
NAN and the Chiefs of Ontario.

Follow us on Twitter and Facebook!
@fonom_info

www.facebook.com/federationofnorthernontariomunicipalities



Brian Folco
480 Bolger Avenue
New Liskeard ON POJ PO
705-647-7429

Mayor Carman Kidd and Councillors
City of Temiskaming Shores
325 Farr Avenue, Box 2050
HaileyburyON POJ 1KO

June 2, 2015

Re: City Road Conditions

This letter is written to express concerns regarding the deteriorated road conditions in the city, most
notably in New Liskeard. Many streets and roads are in varying stages of disrepair including bumpy
pavement, pot holes, raised water main covers and broken pavement. Such conditions not only make
walking and driving difficult, but also have the potential of being extremely hazardous.

Streets that are most troubling are Landry Drive, Dixon Road, Glen Road, Bolger Avenue and the west
end of Farah Avenue. As you may be aware, these routes are the main means of traveling from ‘the hill’
to the downtown area. Although Shepherdson Road is an option, it proves to be more time-consuming
and inconvenient for many.

It is hoped that you, as Mayor and Councillors, regard our concerns with a keen understanding of the
need to repair and restore these roads as soon as possible. As a viable tourist area, these road
conditions not only make it difficult for visitors to navigate, but also do not portray our city in the best
way. In addition, it is difficult to convey to residents and visitors alike that the City of Temiskaming
Shores is a community to be proud of when the most basic element of our infrastructure compromises
that pride.

Please find attached a petition, signed by local residents, supporting the above and requesting your
immediate attention to these concerns. Thank you for your consideration in this extremely important
matter. Hopefully, we will soon be walking and driving on well-maintained, safe roads once again.

Sincerely,

Brian Folco

PC:
Jessie Foley Patricia Hewitt Doug Jelly
Jeff Laferriere Mike McArthur Danny Whalen



The City of

325 Fart Drive TCI1’liSka.1111fl11g IJ1 Tel: (705) 672-3363
P0. Box 2050 Fax: (705) 672-3200
Halleybury, Ontario P0] 1 K0 www.temiskamngshores.ca

Brian Folco
480 Bolger Avenue
New Liskeard, ON
POj 1PO

June 8, 2015

Dear Sir:

I received your letter last week, and would like to respond to you and the other ratepayers, with regard
to the condition of our roads. Your council and I are very much aware of the deteriorating state of our
roads, and like other Cities across the North, continually push the Federal and Provincial for more
infrastructure dollars. The winters are taking their toll; creating the millions of potholes and heaving the
storm, water and sewer, man holes and piping.

We have cut budgets, and trimmed spending, so that we can allocate, at least one million dollars of our
local taxes towards road resurfacing. This is on top of just over three million dollars that gets spent
annually on toad maintenance, such as culverts, dust control, patching, sand and salt.

We budgeted the funds and have had EXP do the engineering required to have the water, sewer and
storm infrastructure replaced and road resurfacing of Dixon, Glen, and Farah roads. This is what we call
a shovel ready project, now, with a projected cost of over four million dollars. Hopefully our grant
applications will be approved, and this work can proceed over the next couple of years. I realize that
these roads have been talked about for years, and deferred over and over again. This year we were
forced by the Ministry of Enviroment to apply for funding, to connect the New Liskeard and Dymond
water systems, because raw water quality concerns, in the Dymond wells. As well, the Grey road sewage
pumping station has reached the end of its life and must be upgraded. These two projects are our
priorities this year, but as I stated in the tax insert, as well as publicly, these three toads ate our next
priority.

We have a good relationship with our funding partners, but with so many other municipalities, also
screaming for more infrastructure funding, we never know when and if, we will be approved for funding.
They announced new Federal and provincial infrastructure programs recently, but no funding has been
awarded as of yet. If municipalities can’t access more funding, from these programs, we are going to be
forced to raise local taxes, in order to start replacing our aging infrastructure, which may be a necessary
evil. I realize that people feel they are paying too much in taxes now, but with the ever increasing cost to
provide services, and extreme cost to replace the underground infrastructure, this may be our only
option.

I am giving you my assurance that these road upgrades, are our next priority, and as soon as we can
arrange the financing, the work will begin.

Sincerely

Carman Kidd
CC: Temiskaming Shores Council



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

NEWS RELEASE 
Communiqué 

 
John Vanthof 
MPP/Deputé  

Timiskaming-Cochrane 
 

New Liskeard Office/Bureau  
247 Whitewood Ave., Box 398  

Pinewoods Centre, Unit 5  
New Liskeard, ON P0J 1P0  

Phone: (705) 647-5995  
Toll Free: 1-888-701-1105  

Fax: (705) 647-1976  
Email/Courriel:  

jvanthof-co@ndp.on.ca 
 

Kirkland Lake Office/Bureau  
30 Second Street East  
2nd Floor, East Wing  

Kirkland Lake, ON P2N 3H7  
Phone: (705) 567-4650  

Toll Free: 1-800-461-2186  
Fax: (705) 567-4208  

Email/Courriel:  
jvanthof.kl-co@ndp.on.ca  

 
Sturgeon Falls Office/Bureau  

193 King Street, 2nd Floor  
Sturgeon Falls, ON P2B 1R8  

Phone: (705) 753-0200  
Fax: (705) 753-0800  

Email/Courriel  
jvanthof.sf-co@ndp.on.ca  

 
Matheson, Iroquois Falls,  
Cochrane Office/Bureau  
Mobile: (705) 288-1788  

Email/Courriel:  
LiseB@ndp.on.ca 

 
Working for you in 

Timiskaming-Cochrane! 
 

Travailler pour vous dans 
Timiskaming-Cochrane! 

 
 

Highway Access for Off-Road and All-Terrain 
Vehicles Becoming Law in Summer 2015  

 
 

June 8, 2015 
 
 
TIMISKAMING-COCHRANE –After many months of lobbying, the intent of NDP MPP 
John Vanthof ‘s bill to allow side-by-side and two-up off-road vehicles, and utility –
terrain vehicles (UTVs) to be driven on the shoulders of provincial highways has finally 
become law. Off-road vehicle and all-terrain vehicle enthusiasts will be pleased to learn 
that as of July 1, 2015, they will be permitted to drive on the shoulder of Ontario’s public 
roadways.   
 
Through the active participation of the public in the Ontario Ministry of Public 
Transportation consultation process, the Government of Ontario implemented legislation 
to correct long-standing barriers impacting multi-passenger off-road vehicle work and 
leisure usage. Going forward, drivers and passengers of all ages will be required to wear a 
helmet, and use any applicable seatbelt and foot rests. 
 
QUOTES 
 
“Finally, the rules for off-road vehicles reflect the reality in Northern and rural Ontario, 
where people regularly use side-by-sides and two-ups for daily work and leisure,” Vanthof 
said.  “Someone driving their side-by-side from their home to their worksite will no longer 
run the risk of being charged just because their machine has room for two passengers.” 
 
“I really appreciate the efforts of everyone who took the time to sign UTV petitions, write 
letters of support, and provide insightful commentary during the Ministry of 
Transportation public review. This victory demonstrates that we can win when we work 
together.” 
 
John Vanthof 
MPP Timiskaming Cochrane 
 
 
For more information, contact 1-888-701-1105. 
 
 
 
 

 

mailto:jvanthof-co@ndp.on.ca
mailto:jvanthof.kl-co@ndp.on.ca
mailto:jvanthof.sf-co@ndp.on.ca
mailto:LiseB@ndp.on.ca


  

  

News Release  

Ontario Increasing On-Road Access for Off-Road and All-Terrain Vehicles  

June 8, 2015 

New Rules Will Also Strengthen Safety Requirements for Riders 

Ontario is enhancing on-road access for more types of off-road vehicles (ORVs) and all-terrain vehicles 

(ATVs) while increasing safety requirements for riders.  

Beginning July 1, 2015, the province is implementing the following changes to ensure that ORV and ATV 

riders safely reach their destination:   

 More types of ORVs and ATVs, including two-up ATVs, side-by-side ATVs and utility-terrain 

vehicles (UTVs), will be allowed to use the shoulder of public roads. 

 All riders -- including drivers and passengers of all ages -- will have to wear a helmet and use a 

seatbelt or foot rests, where applicable   

This month, the province is promoting the new rules before they come in force July 1st, 2015 to ensure 

that municipalities have enough time to make necessary by-law amendments and to remind riders and 

drivers about the change. 

The province is also allowing an education period to take place between July 1 to Sept. 1, 2015, before 

violation tickets are issued. However, during this time police officers may still lay a charge through a 

summons.     

Ontario is home to thousands of kilometres of recreational trails making it a popular destination for riders 

from across Canada and the world. The province consulted with a wide array of trail, municipal, industry, 

enforcement, as well as health and safety stakeholders to ensure the rules strike the right balance. 

Enhancing Ontario's tourism and recreational opportunities is part of the government's plan for Ontario. 

The four-part plan includes investing in people's talents and skills, making the largest investment in public 

infrastructure in Ontario's history, creating a dynamic, innovative environment where business thrives, 

and building a secure retirement savings plan. 

 

http://news.ontario.ca/mto/en/2015/06/ontario-increasing-on-road-access-for-off-road-and-all-terrain-vehicles.html?utm_source=ondemand&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=p


 

NORTHEASTERN ONTARIO MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION 

220 Algonquin Blvd. East, TIMMINS, ON P4N 1B3 

Counc. M. Doody, President     Joe Torlone, Secretary-Treasurer 
(705) 363-7634               (705) 360-2601 

  michael.doody@timmins.ca            joe.torlone@timmins.ca  

 

 

Resolution # 2015-08 

 

Moved by:  Mayor Steve Black 

Seconded by:  Mayor Peter Politis 

 
WHEREAS the Ring of Fire is a massive chromite mining and smelting development project; 

AND WHEREAS this globally significant deposit of minerals in Ontario’s far north is one of the provinces 
greatest economic development opportunities in a century; 

AND WHEREAS this once in a life-time opportunity will create jobs and generate growth and long-term 
prosperity for Northern Ontario, First Nation communities, the province of Ontario and Canada; 

AND WHEREAS increased and fully functional rail services and improved transportation corridors 
throughout Northern Ontario are critical for the sustainability and growth of Northeastern Ontario and Frist 
Nation communities; 

AND WHEREAS NEOMA municipalities have the required brownfield infrastructure to refine the Ring of 
Fire products; 

BE IT RESOLVED that NEOMA supports the Mushkegowuk Council’s conceptual plan to bring a railway 
to the Ring of Fire in a public/private partnership consistent with existing NEOMA resolutions including 
maintaining existing public assets such as the ONTC in the public sector’ 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that NEOMA supports the need to develop much needed access to 
First Nations communities and Northeastern Ontario communities in order to create social and economic 
growth; 

AND FURTHER that this resolution be sent to Premier Wynne, Minister Gravelle, the Mushkegowuk 
Council, NEOMA members, City of Timmins Council, MPP John Vanthof, MPP France Gelinas, MP 
Charlie Angus, MPP Gilles Bisson. 

CARRIED 
 

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY 

OF RESOLUTION # 2015-08 

 

       

Joe Torlone, NEOMA Secretary-Treasurer 

May 15, 2015 

mailto:michael.doody@timmins.ca
mailto:joe.torlone@timmins.ca


 

NORTHEASTERN ONTARIO MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION 

220 Algonquin Blvd. East, TIMMINS, ON P4N 1B3 

Counc. M. Doody, President     Joe Torlone, Secretary-Treasurer 
(705) 363-7634               (705) 360-2601 

  michael.doody@timmins.ca            joe.torlone@timmins.ca  

 

 

Resolution # 2015-09 

 

Moved by:  Mayor Steve Black 

Seconded by:  Mayor Al Spacek 

 
WHEREAS, Timmins’ strategic plan – Timmins 2020 has identified the need for a English University in 
Timmins;  

AND WHEREAS, Timmins’ vision is to strengthen its position as a regional hub and in light of this provide 
other post-secondary opportunities to our neighbouring municipalities;  

AND WHEREAS, although Timmins has excellent post-secondary opportunities at the college level in 
both English and French and at the University level in French, the creation of a University will create 
stable long-term jobs, and also create the potential to support regional business and industry in their 
efforts to be sustainable, to diversify and to grow;  

AND WHEREAS, in recognition of our neighbouring communities within the Mushkegowuk Council and 
Wabun Tribal Council, Timmins wishes to incorporate a strong Aboriginal component into the curriculum 
of this proposed University;  

AND WHEREAS, a University located in Timmins will allow the youth of Northeastern Ontario and of First 
Nations communities to attend post-secondary education closer to home at a more affordable cost;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council supports the creation of an English University in 
Timmins;  

AND FURTHER that this resolution be sent for support to each of the Municipalities of the Northeastern 
Ontario Municipal Association (NEOMA) and to the communities within the Mushkegowuk Council and 
Wabun Tribal Council;  

AND FURTHER that all resolutions of support be returned to the City of Timmins for submission to the 
Premier of Ontario, the Minister of Aboriginal Affairs, the Minister of Training, Colleges and Universities 
and the Minister of Northern Development and Mines.  

CARRIED. 

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY 

OF RESOLUTION # 2015-09 

 

Joe Torlone, NEOMA Secretary-Treasurer 

May 15, 2015 

mailto:michael.doody@timmins.ca
mailto:joe.torlone@timmins.ca


 

NORTHEASTERN ONTARIO MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION 

220 Algonquin Blvd. East, TIMMINS, ON P4N 1B3 

Counc. M. Doody, President     Joe Torlone, Secretary-Treasurer 
(705) 363-7634               (705) 360-2601 

  michael.doody@timmins.ca            joe.torlone@timmins.ca  

 

 

Resolution # 2015-10 

 

Moved by:  Counc. P. Bamford 

Seconded by:  Counc. W. Wawrzaszek 

 

 
WHEREAS energy is an essential commodity and an essential service for economic growth and quality of 
life in Ontario; 

WHEREAS Hydro One is owned by the citizens of Ontario and returns approximately $1 billion in 
dividends to the citizens of Ontario annually; 

WHEREAS the citizens of Ontario would net a one-time only profit of approximately $4 billion from the 
sale of Hydro One; 

WHEREAS the private sector will most certainly demand a significant annual profit ...increasing energy 
costs substantially for Ontario residents and industry alike; 

WHEREAS private energy companies in North America have a bad history of frequent and lengthy power 
outages, which would be deadly during severe Northern Ontario winters; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that members of NEOMA strongly protest the sale of 60 percent of the 
assets of Hydro One to the private sector; and, 

FURTHER be it resolved that the government of Ontario hold extensive public hearings across Ontario 
before any change is made to Hydro One; and, 

FURTHER that this resolution be sent to the Premier of Ontario, all Members of Provincial Parliament, 
AMO, NEOMA, FONOM, and NOMA. 

CARRIED 

 

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY 

OF RESOLUTION # 2015-10 

 

       

Joe Torlone, NEOMA Secretary-Treasurer 

May 15, 2015 

mailto:michael.doody@timmins.ca
mailto:joe.torlone@timmins.ca


Page 1 of 7 

 

 

 

NORTHEASTERN ONTARIO MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION 

220 Algonquin Blvd. East, TIMMINS, ON P4N 1B3 
 

 
Counc. Michael Doody, President        Mayor Roger Sigouin, Vice President        Joe Torlone, Secretary-Treasurer 

(705) 363-7634          (705) 362-4341                               (705) 360-2601 
    michael.doody@timmins.ca                     rsigouin@hearst.ca            joe.torlone@timmins.ca 
 

 

Friday, May 15, 2015 @ 10:00 a.m. 
 Royal Canadian Legion Branch 70 – IROQOUIS FALLS, ON 

MINUTES 

 

Attendees: Steve Black (Timmins), Joe Torlone (Timmins), Pat Bamford (Timmins), Walter Wawrzaszek (Timmins), 
Michael Doody (Timmins), Joe Campbell (Timmins), Michael Shea (Iroquois Falls),Isabelle Denault (Cochrane), 
Tony Antoniazzi (Kirkland Lake), Carman Kidd (Temiskaming Shores), Luc Denault (Smooth Rock Falls), Betty 
Lou Purdon (Iroquois Falls), Colin Kennedy (Iroquois Falls), Jean Pierre Ouellette (Cochrane), Michel Arsenault 
(Smooth Rock Falls), John Lemieux (Smooth Rock Falls), Sue Perras (Smooth Rock Falls), Gilles Laderoute 
(Black River-Matheson), Robert Brown (Black River-Matheson), Doug Bender (Black River-Matheson), Garry 
Edwards (Black River-Matheson), Richard Lemay (Mattice Val Cote), Don Nolet (Opasatika), Denis Dorval 
(Opasatika), Carole Boucher (Iroquois Falls), Yves Labelle (Kapuskasing), Al Spacek (Kapuskasing), 
Madeleine Tremblay (Fauquier-Strickland), Sylvie Albert (Fauquier-Strickland), Michel Briere (Mattice Val Cote), 
Robert Courchesne (Fauquier-Strickland), Peter Politis (Cochrane), Nicole Fortier Levesque (Moonbeam),  
Roger Sigouin (Hearst),  
 
Guests: 
Grand Chief Lawrence Martin - Mushkegowuk, David Landers (CDSSAB), OPP Insp. M. Demeules,  OPP Staff 
Sgt. D. Foy 
 
(Please note that the names above are names of the attendees that signed the “Attendance Sheet”) 

 
 

 If there are any errors or omissions in these minutes, please contact the undersigned. 
 ITEM 

 
DISCUSSION ACTION 

REQUIRED 

1. Welcome The meeting was called to order at 10:05 a.m. Mayor M. 
Shea welcomed all NEOMA participants to the town of 
Iroquois Falls.  
 

 

2. Opening 
remarks 

President M. Doody reminded the group that we are 
going through challenging times and of the need for 
NEOMA to speak as one voice. 
 

 

3. Introductions Introductions were made by each of the participants.  

4. Approval of 
agenda 

2015-04 
Moved by P. Politis 
Seconded by S. Black 
 
THAT the NEOMA meeting agenda for May 15, 2015 be 
approved as circulated, with the following addition: 
 
17b)  Northland Power - Cochrane 
 

 

mailto:michael.doody@timmins.ca
mailto:rsigouin@hearst.ca
mailto:joe.torlone@timmins.ca


Page 2 of 7 

 

CARRIED 
 

5. Declaration of 
pecuniary 
interest 
 

There were no declarations of pecuniary interest. 
 
 

 

6. Adoption of 
Minutes of 
February 6, 
2015 

2015-05 
Moved by  G. Laderoute 
Seconded by M. Briere 
 
THAT the minutes of the February 6, 2015 NEOMA 
meeting be approved as presented.  
 
CARRIED 
 

 
 
 
 
 

7. Business arising 
from the minutes  

a)  Stable Funding Formula – Twp. of Fauquier Strickland 
 
Mayor M. Tremblay explained the Township of Fauquier-
Strickland’s concept for a stable funding model. This 
formula is for small communities. Documentation was 
provided to the group. Mayor A. Spacek indicated that 
from a Provincial prospective, a small community is 
defined as a community of less than 100,000 in 
population. President M. Doody recommended that a 
committee be formed made up of Mayor P. Politis, Mayor 
A. Spacek, Mayor M. Tremblay and President M. Doody. 
The group will schedule a meeting to discuss this matter 
further and report back to the group. 
 

 

8. Presentations: a) Temiskaming Shores & Kirkland Lake - NEOMA 
Membership 
 

Mayor C. Kidd of the City of Temiskaming Shores and 
Mayor Antoniazzi of Kirkland Lake made a presentation 
to the NEOMA group. The purpose of the presentation 
was to request NEOMA’s consideration to have these 
two (2) communities join NEOMA. The following 
resolution was passed: 
 
2015-06 
Moved by Mayor M. Shea 
Seconded by Mayor R. Sigouin 
 
THAT the Northeastern Ontario Municipal Association 
(NEOMA) is willing to amend the NEOMA constitution in 
order to allow the City of Temiskaming Shores and the 
Town of Kirkland Lake to become members of NEOMA; 
 
AND FURTHER that a constitutional amendment will 
have to be made at the annual meeting to incorporate 
this change. 
 
CARRIED 
 
The two (2) communities were welcomed into the 
NEOMA group. 
 
b) OPP (Insp. M. Demeules & Staff Sgt. D. Foy) – Road 

closures 
 

 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 7 

 

Insp. M. Demeules & Staff Sgt. D. Foy discussed with the 
NEOMA group the policies and processes with respect to 
road closures. The NEOMA group indicated their 
concerns that road closures as sometimes too lengthy 
thereby preventing people from going to work or 
performing their day to day functions. Insp. M. Demeules 
& Staff Sgt. D. Foy indicated that there were policies and 
procedures that had to be maintained, and maintained in 
order to ensure the health and safety of the OPP officers 
as well as the citizens using the Highway 11 corridor. In 
the end, the group pledged to work together to find 
solutions acceptable to all.  
 
c) Grand Chief Lawrence Martin - Energy 

Transportation Corridor 
 
Grand Chief L. Martin provided the group with a detailed 
description of his conceptual plans with respect to an 
energy transportation corridor in the Mushkegowuk 
territorial lands. In general, the group supported the 
concept and will anxiously await further news as to how 
this conceptual plan evolves into reality. 
 

9. Financial Report  The Secretary-Treasurer provided the financial report. 
Counc. B. Brown indicated that NEOMA may wish to 
investigate the investment rates with LAS. The Secretary-
Treasurer undertook to investigate this matter further.  
 
2015-07 
Moved by A. Spacek 
Seconded by B. Brown 
 
THAT the NEOMA financial report as at March 31, 2015 
be approved as circulated; 
 
CARRIED 
 

 

10. Hospital report Counc. S. Perras provided her hospital report which was 
circulated at the meeting. 
 

Hospital report? 

11. Federal & 
Provincial elected 
officials 

J. Vanthof attended the meeting and thanked the group 
for their support of not divesting Hydro One resolution. 
Mr. Vanthof spoke of the Cochrane Power situation as 
well as the need for an understanding that it is a bio-
mass plant. Mr. Vanthof also indicated that he is working 
on the caribou plan file. 
 

 

12. AMO Update Mayor A. Spacek advised the group of the following: 
 

 The group is encouraged to access the services 
of LAS 

 The gas tax will now consider a cost of living 
increase 

 There is a special committee to discuss MPAC 
issues. The common issue appears to be 
consideration of economic obsolescence.  

 

 
 
 
 
 

13. FONOM Update Mayor A. Spacek provided the following: 
 

 The FONOM Conference recently held in 

 



Page 4 of 7 

 

Sudbury was a success 

 More work is being done with respect to taxes in 
the unorganized areas. Currently there is a 
position paper under review.  

 In order to promote Northern Ontario in the 
905/GTA area, a northern summit was held in 
Toronto and discussed northern issues, 
opportunities and challenges. 

 The influence of environmental groups was 
discussed with respect to Northern Ontario 
development 

 

14. AFMO Update The group was advised that the annual general meeting 
for AFMO will be held in North Bay. 
 

 

15. NeCN Update There was no update at this time. 
 

 

16. Resolutions a) Railway – Mushkegowuk conceptual plan – Mayor 
S. Black 
 
After considerable discussion, Mayor S. Black and Mayor 
P. Politis agreed to re-write this resolution for the group’s 
consideration, as follows: 
  
2015-08 
Moved by Steve Black 
Seconded by Peter Politis 
 
WHEREAS  the Ring of Fire is a massive chromite 
mining and smelting development project; 
 
AND WHEREAS this globally significant deposit of 
minerals in Ontario’s far north is one of the provinces 
greatest economic development opportunities in a 
century; 
 
AND WHEREAS this once in a life-time opportunity will 
create jobs and generate growth and long-term prosperity 
for Northern Ontario, First Nation communities, the 
province of Ontario and Canada; 
 
AND WHEREAS increased and fully functional rail 
services and improved transportation corridors 
throughout Northern Ontario are critical for the 
sustainability and growth of Northeastern Ontario and 
Frist Nation communities; 
 
AND WHEREAS NEOMA municipalities have the 
required brownfield infrastructure to refine the Ring of 
Fire products; 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that NEOMA supports the 
Mushkegowuk Council’s conceptual plan to bring a 
railway to the Ring of Fire in a public/private partnership 
consistent with existing NEOMA resolutions including 
maintaining existing public assets such as the ONTC in 
the public sector’ 
 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that NEOMA 
supports the need to develop much needed access to 

 



Page 5 of 7 

 

First Nations communities and Northeastern Ontario 
communities in order to create social and economic 
growth; 
 
AND FURTHER that this resolution be sent to Premier 
Wynne, Minister Gravelle, the Mushkegowuk Council, 
NEOMA members, City of Timmins Council, MPP John 
Vanthof, MPP France Gelinas, MP Charlie Angus, MPP 
Gilles Bisson. 
 
CARRIED 
 
b) English university – Mayor S. Black 
 
Mayor S. Black provided a brief summary of this 
resolution. 
 
2015-09 
Moved by Mayor S. Black 
Seconded by Mayor A. Spacek 
 
WHEREAS, Timmins’ strategic plan – Timmins 2020 has 
identified the need for a English University in Timmins;  
 
AND WHEREAS, Timmins’ vision is to strengthen its 
position as a regional hub and in light of this provide 
other post-secondary opportunities to our neighbouring 
municipalities;  
 
AND WHEREAS, although Timmins has excellent post-
secondary opportunities at the college level in both 
English and French and at the University level in French, 
the creation of a University will create stable long-term 
jobs, and also create the potential to support regional 
business and industry in their efforts to be sustainable, to 
diversify and to grow;  
 
AND WHEREAS, in recognition of our neighbouring 
communities within the Mushkegowuk Council and 
Wabun Tribal Council, Timmins wishes to incorporate a 
strong Aboriginal component into the curriculum of this 
proposed University;  
 
AND WHEREAS, a University located in Timmins will 
allow the youth of Northeastern Ontario and of First 
Nations communities to attend post-secondary education 
closer to home at a more affordable cost;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council 
supports the creation of an English University in Timmins;  
 
AND FURTHER that this resolution be sent for support to 
each of the Municipalities of the Northeastern Ontario 
Municipal Association (NEOMA) and to the communities 
within the Mushkegowuk Council and Wabun Tribal 
Council;  
 
AND FURTHER that all resolutions of support be 
returned to the City of Timmins for submission to the 
Premier of Ontario, the Minister of Aboriginal Affairs, the 



Page 6 of 7 

 

Minister of Training, Colleges and Universities and the 
Minister of Northern Development and Mines.  
 
CARRIED. 
 
c) Hydro One divestment – Counc. P. Bamford 
 
2015-10 
Moved by P. Bamford 
Seconded by W. Wawrzaszek 
 
WHEREAS energy is an essential commodity and an 
essential service for economic growth and quality of life 
in Ontario; 
 
WHEREAS Hydro One is owned by the citizens of 
Ontario and returns approximately $1 billion in dividends 
to the citizens of Ontario annually; 
 
WHEREAS the citizens of Ontario would net a one-time 
only profit of approximately$4 billion from the sale of 
Hydro One; 
 
WHEREAS the private sector will most certainly demand 
a significant annual profit ...increasing energy costs 
substantially for Ontario residents and industry alike; 
 
WHEREAS private energy companies in North America 
have a bad history of frequent and lengthy power 
outages, which would be deadly during severe Northern 
Ontario winters; 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that members of 
NEOMA strongly protest the sale of 60 percent of the 
assets of Hydro One to the private sector; and, 
 
FURTHER be it resolved that the government of Ontario 
hold extensive public hearings across Ontario before any 
change is made to Hydro One; and, 
 
FURTHER that this resolution be sent to the Premier of 
Ontario, all Members of Provincial Parliament, AMO, 
NEOMA, FONOM, and NOMA. 

 
CARRIED 
 
d) NEOMA member fee increase for 2016 – 3% 
 
The group agreed to a 3% increase to the membership 
fee for 2016.  
 
2015-11 
Moved by Mayor A. Spacek 
Seconded by Mayor R. Sigouin 
 
THAT the 2016 membership fee for NEOMA 
communities be increased by 3%, effective January 1, 
2016. 
 
CARRIED 



Page 7 of 7 

 

 

17. Mayor’s 
Coalition on 
Affordable 
Policing  

Mayor Politis advised that there is no update at this time. 
 
17b)  Northland Power – Cochrane 
 
Mayor P. Politis provided an update with respect to the 
power situation in Cochrane. A package of information 
requesting support from the Town of Cochrane was 
provided to the NEOMA municipalities. At the present 
time, there is hope that this major issue could be 
resolved.  
 

 

18. Caribou plan – 
Mayor R. 
Sigouin 

Mayor R. Sigouin and Counc. M. Doody provided an 
update regarding the caribou plan.  

 

19. Public Bus 
Service 
Westward – 
Mayor R. Seguin 

Mayor R. Sigouin advised that there are issues and in 
particular bus service between Hearst and Long Lac has 
been discontinued.  

 

20. Correspondence a) Twp. of Black River-Matheson– Increase in flock limit 
for broiler birds 
b)  Twp. of Black River-Matheson – Closure of Hwy 655 
c)  Letter to Resolute Forest Products re: Mill Closure-  
Iroquois Falls 
d)  Ministry of Natural Resources – B. Mauro – Northland 
Power 
e)  Greenpeace – Forest products sector – Town of 
Hearst 
 
All correspondence above was provided for the group’s 
review. 
 

 

21. Other matters There were no other matters.  
 
 

22. Date of next 
meeting 

The next meeting will be in mid-September in the 
town of Hearst. 
 

 

23. Adjournment The NEOMA meeting adjourned at 1:45 p.m. 
 
 

 

 
Minutes taken by: 
 
JOE TORLONE, 
NEOMA Secretary-Treasurer 
City of Timmins 









Temiskaming Transit Committee - Minutes 
Monday, May 25, 2015 – 2:30 p.m. 

City Hall (325 Farr Drive – Haileybury Boardroom) 
 
 

 

Page 1 

 
1.0 Call To Order 
 

The meeting was called to order at 2:36 p.m.  
 
2.0 Roll Call 
 

 Councillor Mike McArthur   Chris Oslund, City Manager  
 

 Councillor Danny Whalen    Candice Bedard, CAO Town of Cobalt  
 

 Tina Sartoretto – Mayor, Town of Cobalt  Gary Wadge, Public Works Clerk 
 

 Mitch Lafreniere, Manager of Physical Assets  
        

 Councillor Rochelle Schwartz, Town of Cobalt  
 

 Logan Belanger, Special Programs Coordinator 
 

 Luc Charlebois, General Manager, Stock Transportation (Haileybury location) 
 

3.0 Review of Revisions or Deletions to Agenda 
 

 None 
 

4.0 Approval of Agenda 
 
Recommendation TC-2015-017 
Moved by: Councillor Danny Whalen 
 
Be it recommended that:  
The Transit Committee agenda for the May 25, 2015 meeting be approved as printed. 

 
Carried. 

5.0 Approval of Agenda 
 
Recommendation TC-2015-018 
Moved by: Councillor Mike McArthur 
 
Be it recommended that:  
The Transit Committee agenda for the March 25, 2015 and the April 27, 2015 meeting be 
approved as printed. 

 
Carried. 

 
  



Temiskaming Transit Committee - Minutes 
Monday, May 25, 2015 – 2:30 p.m. 

City Hall (325 Farr Drive – Haileybury Boardroom) 
 
 

 

Page 2 

6.0 Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and General Nature 
 
 None 

 

7.0 Unfinished Business 
 

7.1 Status of Purchase of New Transit Buses 
 
Discussion 
The paperwork to purchase the new transit buses has been approved and their shipment has 
been confirmed. The Committee discussed equipping the buses with bike racks due to the 
increased number of users travelling with bikes, particularly to the skate park. 
 
Recommendation TC-2015-019 

Moved by: Councillor Danny Whalen 

 

Be it recommended that: 

The Transit Committee hereby approves the additional cost of $2,500 (approx.) per bus for 
bike racks for the new transit buses. 

             Carried.  
 
Mitch Lafreniere, Manager of Physical Assets, commented that the transit buses are 
expected to arrive in June; however, it is anticipated that the buses will be put into operation 
by the end of August, due to training requirements and decal placement. 
 
The Committee will consider advertising opportunities on the interior of the transit buses upon 
their arrival. 
   
7.2 Location of Transit Shelter at Wal-Mart 
 
Discussion 
The Committee sent a letter to Riocan requesting the relocation of the existing bus shelter; 
however, the proposed location was denied. After a discussion, the Committee proposed an 
alternative location - the Southwest corner of the parking lot, between Walmart and Canadian 
Tire; this location would provide access to Highway 11 with less traffic congestion.  A letter 
will be sent to Riocan for consideration.  
 
7.3 Automated Stop Announcement System Status 

 
Discussion 
The Committee agreed to proceed with the preliminary work/ research on the automated stop 
announcement system for the new transit buses.  Tina Sartoretto, Mayor of Cobalt, 
commented that the objective will be to find an affordable system/ procedure that would not 
compromise the needs of visually impaired persons using the transit system.  
  



Temiskaming Transit Committee - Minutes 
Monday, May 25, 2015 – 2:30 p.m. 

City Hall (325 Farr Drive – Haileybury Boardroom) 
 
 

 

Page 3 

8.0 New Business 
 

8.1 Transit Financial: January – April 2015 
 
Discussion 
The Committee reviewed the transit financial summary from January to April 2015.   
 
8.2 Passenger Counts: March and April 2015 
 
Discussion 
The Committee reviewed the passenger counts for March and April of 2015.  There has been 
a trend of lower ridership in the month of April due to statutory holiday’s (28 days of service 
instead of 31 days), as well as post secondary students were completing  school and were 
not using the service as frequently.   
 
The Committee discussed requesting a financial contribution from Coleman Township for the 
transit stop and bus shelter located at Mileage 104. A letter will be sent requesting an annual 
contribution of $2,500.   
 
8.3 Transit Services for Fireworks 
 
Discussion 
The Committee discussed transit requirements on Saturday, June 27, 2015, for the Canada 
Day long weekend firework display.   
 
Recommendation TC-2015-020 

Moved by: Councillor Danny Whalen 

 

Be it recommended that: 

On Saturday, June 27, 2015, the Transit Committee approves the transit service to provide: 

a) free ridership to passengers; 

b) one-hour of additional services (the additional hour will be included on the evening 
route); and  

c) three (3) transit buses (instead of two) .      
           Carried.  

 
8.4 Transit Shelter Maintenance 
 
Discussion 
The Committee discussed that the cleanliness of bus shelters have been a reoccurring issue 
due to competing work demands for City staff.  Christopher Oslund, City Manager, 
commented that the City has contracted the cleaning of eight (8) City-owned bus shelters; 
this service includes the general cleaning and garbage removal for each bus shelter on 



Temiskaming Transit Committee - Minutes 
Monday, May 25, 2015 – 2:30 p.m. 

City Hall (325 Farr Drive – Haileybury Boardroom) 
 
 

 

Page 4 

weekly basis, and a full-cleaning once per month. The cost associated with this service is 
$7.50 per shelter, per week.  
 
8.5 Contract Negotiations with Stock Transportation 
 
Discussion 
Luc Charlebois, General Manager with Stock Transportation, is in the process of updating 
the contract between Stock Transportation and Temiskaming Transit, and requested 
feedback from the Committee regarding any adjustments to the document. The revised 
contract will reflect a new price for service due to the requirements of the new transit buses, 
such as each mechanic will require 40 hours of training for maintenance, and drivers will 
require their Z endorsement.  The Committee agreed that the cleanliness of the buses have 
been an ongoing concern. Luc commented that the buses are swept and garbage is emptied 
daily; however, cleaning has been difficult with the significant down-time of the existing 
buses.  He expects that cleanliness will improve once the new buses are in service. The 
Committee also expressed concerns regarding the speed at which the transit buses travel. 
  
Councillor Danny Whalen requested that the revised contract be presented to the Committee 
for review. 
 
9.0  Closed Session 

 

 None 
  

10.0 Next Meeting 

 

The next meeting of the Transit Committee is scheduled for Wednesday, July 22, 2015 at 
2:30 p.m. 

 

11.0 Adjournment 

 
Recommendation TC-2015-021 
 
Moved by:  Councillor Mike McArthur 
 
Be it recommended that: 
The Transit Committee meeting is adjourned at 4:00 p.m. 

Carried 
 

_______________________ 
Committee Chair 

 
 

_______________________ 
Recorder 



BUILDING MAINTENANCE COMMITTEE  
MEETING AGENDA – FARMERS MARKET 

Tuesday, May 26, 2015 – 1:30 PM 
City Hall, 325 Farr Dr. - Haileybury Boardroom 

 

 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Building Maintenance Committee meeting – Farmer’s Market meeting was called to order at 
1:35 PM  
 
2.0 ROLL CALL  
 

Present: Mayor Carman Kidd; Councillor Doug Jelly; Councillor Danny Whalen; 
Christopher Oslund, City Manager; Doug Walsh, Director of Public 
Works, Tammie Caldwell, Director of Recreation; Mitch Lafreniere, 
Manager of Physical Assets, Kelly Conlin, Executive Assistant 

Regrets: Steve Burnett, Technical and Environmental Compliance Coordinator 

Others Present: Farmers Market Representatives:  Larry Craig, Dianna Wabi, Tim 
Vandermeer, Lisa Vandermeer 

 
 

 
3.0 REVIEW OF REVISIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 

 None 
 

4.0   ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 

Recommendation PW-BL-2015-022 
 

Moved by: Mayor Carman Kidd  
 
Be it recommended that: 
The May 26, 2015 Building Maintenance Committee Meeting Agenda be adopted as printed.  

 
 

CARRIED 
 

5.0  DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND GENERAL NATURE 
 

 None 
 

 
6.0  DELEGATIONS/PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

  None 
  



BUILDING MAINTENANCE COMMITTEE  
MEETING AGENDA – FARMERS MARKET 

Tuesday, May 26, 2015 – 1:30 PM 
City Hall, 325 Farr Dr. - Haileybury Boardroom 

 

 

 
7.0  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
7.1 Farmer’s Market Discussion 
 
Discussion: 
 
Doug Walsh, Director of Public Works presented  via Power Point, the background information 
and what has taken place since the first meeting on April 28, 2015.   The presentation provided 
information on the potential locations along with New Liskeard waterfront and was accompanied 
by the approximate costs to construct at each respective location. 
 
Councillor Danny Whalen requested an opinion from the Farmers Market Representatives 
regarding the Harbour Front in Haileybury and why this existing facility could not be utilized.  
Larry Craig informed the committee that in previous years, the Market had tried to expand into 
Haileybury and it was deemed unsuccessful.  Although the group felt the layout of the building 
was ideal, there was less foot traffic and very limited parking space.  The Farmers Market group 
also struggled with getting vendors to participate at the Harbour Front location.   
 
After discussions surrounding cost and location of the possible sites, it was determined that the 
municipal parking lot location was the most cost effective and central location.   
 
Both Councilors and staff made the Farmers Market group aware that they will be responsible 
for the ongoing operating costs of this structure; however, the City will maintain the ownership of 
the building and land.  Once the project is set to move forward, a formal agreement will be 
drafted and approved by both the City and the Farmers Market Group clearly outlining these 
details. 
 
A public meeting has been scheduled for Tuesday, June 9, 2015 at 7:00 pm at Riverside Place. 
 
Recommendation PW-BL-2015-023 

 
Moved by: Councillor Doug Jelly 
Seconded by: Mayor Carman Kidd 

 
Be it recommended that:  
 
The Building Maintenance Committee hereby recommends the south east corner of the 
municipal parking lot located between Whitewood and Cedar Avenue in the Town of New 
Liskeard, as their preferred location for a new farmers market structure and further, that staff 
proceed with the public consultation process and report to Council on June 16, 2015. 
 

CARRIED 
 
  



BUILDING MAINTENANCE COMMITTEE  
MEETING AGENDA – FARMERS MARKET 

Tuesday, May 26, 2015 – 1:30 PM 
City Hall, 325 Farr Dr. - Haileybury Boardroom 

 

 

8.0  ADJOURNMENT 

 
Recommendation PW-BL-2015-024 

 
Moved by: Councillor Danny Whalen 

 
Be it recommended that:  

The Building Maintenance Committee – Farmers Market, be hereby adjourned at 2:30 PM 

 

 CARRIED 



 Community Growth and Planning 
023-2015-CGP 

Memo  
To: Mayor and Council 
From: Karen Beauchamp, Director Community Growth and Planning 
Date:  June 16, 2015 
Subject: Door to Door Sales of Dog and Cat Tags 
Attachment:  Appendix 01 – Calling Card 

Mayor and Council: 

The City’s Animal Control By-law No. 2013-051 requires that every owner of a dog or cat 
shall register the dog or cat with the Registrar on or before January 1st in each year that he 
or she is the owner of that dog or cat; and every person who becomes an owner of a dog or 
cat after January 1st in any year shall register the dog or cat within 7 days of becoming the 
owner and on or before January 1st in each year thereafter.  

The City’s agreement with Prodigal Pets operating as Temiskaming Animal Care and 
Control for the provision of animal control and pound services requires the Contractor to pro-
actively sell dog and cat tags and the method of sale includes appointing Licence Agents, 
door to door sales, public service announcements, mail outs, website, kiosks, etc.  

During 2015 budget deliberations, Council expressed a concern that there are a large 
number of dogs and cats in the City that do not have tags. As of May 31, 2015, the City has 
sold 551 tags with a revenue of $8,240. In 2014 a total of 601 tags were sold with a revenue 
of $7,162.00. The United States Humane Society (humanesociety.org) estimates that the 
average number of pets per household is 1.47 dogs and 2.11 cats. Given that there are 
approximately 4,500 households in the City, these statistics would indicate that there is a 
potential for 6,615 dogs and 9,495 cats. 

For the past several years, the City has promoted dog and cat tag sales by offering 50% 
discounts before January 31, 2015 and at CJTT Lifestyles, having next year’s tags available 
in October to promote Christmas sales, developing an Animal Control Webpage, posting 
ads in the Community Bulletin in the Temiskaming Speaker and Weekender, on the City’s 
website and Facebook page, as well as public service announcements on CJTT Radio. The 
City has also increased the number of depots that sell tags and offer a royalty of $2 / tag to 
depots to encourage tag sales.  

At their May 20, 2015 meeting the Protection to Persons and Property Committee 
considered door to door sales of dog and cat tags and passed Recommendation PPP-2015-
024 as follows:  

Moved by: Councillor Mike McArthur 



The PPP Committee supports the Animal Control Officer going door to door to notify residents 
that for each dog and cat they are required to purchase a tag and further that public notice be 
given on the City’s website and Facebook page that a door to door campaign is taking place.  

On May 25, 2015, the City Manager and Director of Community Growth and Planning met 
with the Animal Control Contractor to conduct an annual review of the Animal Control 
Contract and discuss the door to door tag sales. The Animal Control Contractor advised that 
he would start the campaign during the week of June 8 in order to give the City time to place 
the public service announcements. During the door to door campaign, the contractor will sell 
dog and cat tags or leave a door hanger letting people know that a tag is required within two 
weeks. The door hanger lists the depots where a tag can be purchased. A copy of the door 
hanger is attached as Appendix 01. 

In accordance with the Animal Control By-law No. 2013-051, the cost for a tag is as follows:  

1. Spayed or neutered dog or cat $20 
2. Unfixed dog or cat $30 
3. If the owner is a senior citizen the cost of the tag is reduced by 50%.  

The Set Fine for “Fail to register dog or cat” is $100.  

The City is posting notice of the door to door campaign in the Community Bulletin in the 
Temiskaming Speaker and Weekender as well as on the City’s Website, Public Notice page 
for the month of June; on the City’s Facebook page once each week for the month of June, 
and a public service announcement on CJTT Radio three times per day for 5 days starting 
June 9th. 

Prepared by: Reviewed and submitted for 
 Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” “Original signed by”  
___________________ _______________________ 
Karen Beauchamp, MCIP, RPP, CMO Christopher W. Oslund 
Director of Community Growth City Manager 
and Planning 



The City of
Temiskaming Shores

requires that
all dogs and cats

be licensed yearly.

Tags can be purchased at the
following locations:

• Library - Haileybury & New Liskeard

• Temiskaming Veterinary Services
• Lakeside Animal Clinic
• Pet Valu • Fit-for Pets
• Animal Hospital • City Hall

La vIlle de
Temiskaming Shores

exige que tous les
chiens et chats soient
enregistrés a chaque

année.
Médailles en vente aux end roits

ci-dessous:

• Bibliothèque-Haileybury et New Liskeard

• Temiskaming Veterinary Services
• Lakeside Animal Clinic
• Pet Valu • Fit-for Pets
• Animal Hospital • L’hötel de ville

For each dog and cat that lives at this
address, you are required to purchase
atagby

Pour chaque chien et chat qul demeure a
cette adresse il est obligatoire d’acheter
une médaille par

___________________

For more information call Pour plus d’information contactez
705-672-3363 705-672-3363

4
City of .WII d

Terniskarning
Shores

uskord
City of Wi1 do

Terniskarning
Shores



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Confidential Administrative Report 

 

 

Subject: Land Sale – G&W Jelly’s Ltd. Report No.: CGP-029-2015 
 (Roll No. 5418-030-007-207.00) Agenda Date: June 16, 2015 

 
Attachments 
Appendix 01:   Map showing Subject Land 
Appendix 02: Offer to Purchase 
Appendix 03: Draft By-law to accept the Offer to Purchase 

Recommendations 

It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of 
Administrative Report CGP-029-2015; 

2. That Council accepts the Offer to Purchase in the amount of $25,000 plus HST from 
G&W Jelly’s Ltd. for land legally described as Dymond Concession 1 North Part of Lot 
6, Reference Plan 54R-4314 Part 12, Parcel 21726SST; Temiskaming Shores, District 
of Timiskaming; 

3. That Council agrees to waive the requirement for the purchaser to construct a 
building on the lot; 

4. That Council agrees to retain George Kemp, of Kemp Pirie to represent the City in this 
land sale; and 

5. That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary By-law to accept the Offer to 
Purchase for Council’s consideration at the June 16, 2015 regular Meeting of Council. 

Background:  

On July 16, 2013, Council passed By-law No. 2013-114 authorizing the sale of two lots in the 
Dymond Industrial Park, being Parts 3 and 4 on Plan 54R-4314, to G&W Jelly’s Ltd. The 
purchaser operates Jelly’s Towing which offers light and heavy towing, storage and repair of 
vehicles, as well as truck and cargo transfers; and employs 8 people. The purchaser has 
constructed a 60’ x 120’ shop with a 20’ x 100’ office on the 2.5 acre property.   

On June 5, 2015 G&W Jelly’s Ltd. presented an Offer to Purchase Part 12 on Plan 54R-4314, 
being the lot which abuts Part 3 on the North side. The purpose is to join this property with 
the existing properties in order to expand the business and allow more parking space for 
towed vehicles. A map is attached as Appendix 01.  

Analysis:  

The subject land is 1.25 acres in area and fronts on Brazeau Boulevard in the Dymond 
Industrial Park. Once joined with the existing properties, the total area of the parcel will be 
3.75 acres.  

 
Community Growth and Planning Page 1 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Confidential Administrative Report 

 

 

Generally, the City puts a condition on the purchase requiring a building with a value of 
$100,000 or greater to be constructed on the lot within 3 years. Staff recommends that 
Council waive this requirement because the purchaser has already constructed a building 
with a value exceeding $300,000 on the existing lots and the proposed use on this lot is 
accessory to the business. 

The land is designated Employment Areas in the City of Temiskaming Shores Official Plan 
and is zoned M2-Manufacturing Industrial in the Township of Dymond Zoning By-law 984. 
The proposed use of the property is a permitted use.  

G&W Jelly’s Ltd. has offered the full asking price of $25,000 plus HST and has provided a 
10% deposit in the amount of $2,500.  The transaction is scheduled to close on June 30, 
2015. The City Manager accepted the Offer on June 8, 2015. A copy of the Offer to Purchase 
is attached as Appendix 02.  

Staff recommends that Council confirm their acceptance of the Offer to Purchase and have 
attached a Draft By-law for Council’s consideration (Appendix 03).  

The purchasers retained George Kemp, Kemp Pirie to represent them in the previous land 
transaction and would like to do the same for this transaction. In order to save costs for the 
purchasers, staff recommends that the City retain the same law firm to act on behalf of the 
City. 

Alternatives 

No alternatives were considered. 

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   
This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A   

The Treasurer advises that the property is currently exempt from taxation. The sale will revert 
the properties to a taxable assessment, thereby increasing the assessment base and 
taxation revenues. The $25,000 revenue from the sale of the land will be directed to the 
Community Development Reserve. Staffing implications related to this matter are limited to 
normal administrative functions and duties. 

Submission 

Prepared by: Reviewed and submitted for 
 Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” “Original signed by”  
___________________ _______________________ 
Karen Beauchamp, MCIP, RPP, CMO Christopher W. Oslund 
Director of Community Growth City Manager 
and Planning 

 
Community Growth and Planning Page 2 
 



Appendix 01 
CGP-029-2015 
June 16, 2015 

 

 
H

aw
n 

D
r

H
aw

n 
D

r
H

aw
n 

D
r

H
aw

n 
D

r
H

aw
n 

D
r

Brazeau BlvdBrazeau BlvdBrazeau BlvdBrazeau BlvdBrazeau Blvd

H
aw

n D
r.

H
aw

n D
r.

H
aw

n D
r.

H
aw

n D
r.

H
aw

n D
r.

H
w

y 
11

H
w

y 
11

H
w

y 
11

H
w

y 
11

H
w

y 
11

Bolger Ave.Bolger Ave.Bolger Ave.Bolger Ave.Bolger Ave.

H
w

y 
11

H
w

y 
11

H
w

y 
11

H
w

y 
11

H
w

y 
11

R
oc

kl
ey

 R
R

oc
kl

ey
 R

R
oc

kl
ey

 R
R

oc
kl

ey
 R

R
oc

kl
ey

 R

H
aw

n D
r.

H
aw

n D
r.

H
aw

n D
r.

H
aw

n D
r.

H
aw

n D
r.

Ro
ck

le
y 

Rd
.

Ro
ck

le
y 

Rd
.

Ro
ck

le
y 

Rd
.

Ro
ck

le
y 

Rd
.

Ro
ck

le
y 

Rd
.

704130

177150

177150

703490

704024

704024

437103

437125

437103

437120

437136

437142

437110

437100

437086

437086 437085

437099

744031744037744043744055

744052 744046 744038744042

744108 744136 744136

744087744083744081

744075

744069

744063

Owned by G&W 
Jelly’s Ltd.  

Subject Land 



1H ‘L)I OW-Q or71

KEMP PIRIE Page I of 5

OFFER TO PURCHASE

GW.J[LLYLtd, cW S1Iç &F.
(as “Purchaser”), having inspected the property, hereby agree to and with

THE CORPORATION OF THE CiTY OF TEMISKAMING SHORES.
(as “Vendor”) to purchase the property being: L+3.

DYMOND CON 1 N PT LOT 6 BG; RP 54R34 PART 12 PCJ 21726SST;
TEMISKAMING SHORES; DISTRICT OF TIMISKAMING (7Q46 Brazeau Blvd)

PpC piry F,vt/ tx (r7
(herein cafled the “Real Property”) at the price of -RTh THOUSA D’ OLLARS ($25,000.00)
payable TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,500.00) to t Vendor as a deposit to be
held in trust pending completion or other termination of this Agreement and to be credited on account
of the purchase price on closing and agree to pay the balance of the purchase price by certified
cheque, subject to adjustments, on the closing date hereinafter set forth.

This offer to Purchase shall be conditional upon the Purchaser entering into an agreement with the
Vendor on or before closing substantially in the form attached hereto as Schedule “A” failing which
this Offer to Purchaser shall be null and void and the deposit returned to the Purchaser without any
reduction or interest. Only the Vendor may waive this condition at its option.

RELEASE OF INFORMATION:
Vendor authorizes the release of any information relating to the Real Property to the Purchaser
and the Purchaser’s solicitor by any governmental body or authority and appoints the
Purchaser and the Purchaser’s solicitor as its agent for the purpose. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing the Vendor consents to the disclosure to the Purchaser and the
Purchaser’s solicitor of any information relating to the Real Property or the use thereof
pursuant to the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990. C.F. 31 and
the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990, C. M. 56.

DEFICIENCY NOTICES AND WORK ORDERS:
The Vendor represents that as at the date of acceptance hereof the Vendor has not received from
any municipal or other governmental authority any deficiency notice or work order affecting the Real
Property pursuant to which any deficiencies are required to be remedied or any demolition, repairs or
replacements are required to be carried out. If the Vendor receives any such deficiency notice or
work order after the date of acceptance hereof, the Vendor shall forthwith produce same to the
Purchaser for inspection. If by the date of closing the Vendor has not either (a) complied with such
deficiency notice or work order, or(b) settled with the Purchaser any question of an abatement of the
purchase price arising out of such deficiency notice or work order, the Purchaser may at his option
either (a) accept the Real Property subject to such deficiency notice or work order or (b) terminate
this Agreement. In the event of termination as aforesaid, all moneys paid hereunder shall be returned
to the Purchaser without interest or deductions.

ADOPTION OF LSUC - OBA DOCUMENT REGISTRATION AGREEMENT
Provided the solicitors for each of the Vendor and the Purchaser ate able to complete transactions
using electronic registration, the parties agree to complete this transaction using electronic
registration, to adopt the LSUC-OBA Document Registration Agreement in use on the Closing Date,
and to abide by, and instruct their solicitors to abide by, the closing procedures set forth therein for

ti -t AOi5



KEMP PIRE Page2of5

electronic registration.

ACCEPTANCE:
This Offer shall be irrevocable by the Purchaser until 11:59 P.M. on the 30th day after the date of
signing the offer, after which time, if not accepted, this Offer shall be null and void and the deposit
returned to the Purchaser without interest or deduction.

TITLE:
Title to the Real Property shall be good and free from all encumbrances, except as set out in this
Agreement, and except local rates, and except as to any registered restrictions or covenants that run
with the land, and subdivision agreements with the municipality, provided the same have been
complied with, and except for minor easements for hydra, gas, telephone or like services. Purchaser
shall accept the Real Property subject to municipal and other governmental requirements, including
building and zoning by-laws, regulations and orders, provided same have been complied with.

REQUISITIONS:
Purchaser shall be allowed until closing to investigate the title at his own expense and to satisfy
himself that there is no breach of municipal or other governmental requirements affecting the Real
Property, that its present use may be lawfully continued and that the principal buildings may be
insured against risk of fire. If within that time any valid objection to title or to any breach of municipal
or other governmental requirements, or to the fact that the present use may not be lawfully
continued, or that the principal buildings may not be insured against risk of fire, which the Vendor is
unable or unwilling to remove, remedy or satisfy, and which the Purchaser will not waive, this
Agreement shall notwithstanding any intermediate acts or negotiations, be null and void and the
deposit money returned to the Purchaser, without interest or deduction, and the Vendor shall not be
liable for any costs or damages whatever. Save as to any valid objection so made within such time
the Purchaser shall be conclusively deemed to have accepted the Vendor’s title to the Real Property.

SURVEYS AND DOCUMENTS:
The Purchaser shall not call for the production of any title deed, abstract, survey or other evidence of
title except such as are in the possession or control of the Vendor. The Vendor agrees that he will
deliver any existing survey to the Purchaser as soon as possible and prior to the last day allowed for
examining title. In the event that a discharge of any mortgage or charge held by a Chartered Bank,
Trust Company, Credit Union or Insurance Company which is not to be assumed by the Purchaser
on completion, is not available in registrable form on completion, the Purchaser agrees to accept the
Vendor’s solicitor’s personal undertaking to obtain, out of the closing funds, a discharge or cessation
of charge in registrable form and to register same on title within a reasonable period of time after
completion, provided that on or before completion the Vendor shall provide to the Purchaser a
mortgage statement prepared by the mortgagee setting out the balance required to obtain the
discharge, together with a direction executed by the Vendor directing payment to the mortgagee, of
the amount required to obtain the discharge out of the balance due on completion.

CLOSING:
This Agreement shall be completed on or before June 30, 2015 on which date vacant
possession of the Real Property shall be given to the Purchaser unless otherwise provided for
herein.

INSPECTION OF PROPERTY:
The Purchaser acknowledges having inspected the Real Property prior to submitting this Offer and



KEMP PIRIE Page3of5

understands that upon the Vendor accepting this offer there shall be a binding Agreement of
Purchase and Sale between the Purchaser and the Vendor. The Purchaser shall be entitled to
inspect the Real Property immediately prior to the date for completion.

ADJUSTMENTS:
Unearned fire insurance premiums, fuel, taxes, rentals and aH local improvements and water rates
and other charges for municipal improvements to be apportioned and allowed to the date of
completion of sale (the day itself to be apportioned to the Purchaser). Provided Purchaser may elect
not to accept assignment of fire insurance in which case no adjustment for insurance premiums.

COSTS:
The deed or transfer, save for Land Transfer Tax Affidavit, to be prepared at the expense of the
Vendor in a form acceptable to the Purchaser and if a mortgage or charge is to be given back, it
shall be prepared at the expense of the Purchaser in a form acceptable to the Vendor.

PLANNING ACT COMPLIANCE:
This Agreement shall be effective only if the provisions of Section 50 of the Planning Act, R.S.O.
1990, OP. 13 as amended, are complied with, and the Vendor agrees, at his expense, to comply
with such provisions and to proceed diligently with the application for such compliance, if necessary.

The Transfer/Deed of Land to be given to the Purchaser shall contain a statement of the Vendor and
the Vendor’s solicitor pursuant to section 50(22) of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, C.P. 13 as
amended.

SPOUSAL CONSENT:
The Vendor represents and warrants that no consent to this transaction is required pursuant to
s.21(1) of the Family LawAct, R.S.O. 1990, C.F. 3 unless the Vendor’s spouse has executed this
agreement to consent thereto, and that the Transfer/Deed shall contain a statement by the Vendor
as required by section 21(3) of the Family Law Act, R.S.O. 1990, C.F. 13 or the spouse of the
Vendor shall execute the Transfer/Deed to consent thereto.

RESIDENCY OF VENDOR:
Vendor further agrees to produce evidence that he is not now and that on closing he will not be a
non-resident of Canada within the meaning of s.116 of the Income Tax Act of Canada, or in the
alternative, evidence that the provisions of s. 116 regarding disposition of property by a non-resident
person have been complied with at or before closing, failing which the Purchaser will be credited
towards the purchase price with the amount, if any, which shall be necessary for the Purchaser to
pay to the Minister of Revenue in order to satisfy the Purchaser’s liability in respect of tax payable by
the Vendor under S. 116 of the Income Tax Act of Canada by reason of the sale.

FACSIMILE:
Either party may execute this document by signing a facsimile thereof. The parties agree that
execution by any party of a facsimile shall be in all respects identical to execution of an original or
photocopy. The parties agree to accept a facsimile of the signature of any party as evidence of the
fact that the agreement has been executed by that party. In all respects a facsimile signature may
be accepted as having the same effect as an original signature.

COUNTERPART:
This agreement may but need not be executed in counterpart.



KEMP PIRIE Page4of5

TIME OF ESSENCE:
This Offer, when accepted, shall constitute a binding contract of purchase and sale, and time in all
respects shall be of the essence in this Agreement.

G.S.T./H.ST.:
This transaction is subject to Goods and Services Tax (G.S.T.) pursuant to the Excise Tax Act
(Canada) as amended (the ‘Act”) and/or Harmonized Sales Tax (H.S.T.) pursuant to the Act and the
Ontario Tax Plan for More Jobs and Growth Act, 2009, SO. 2009, C.34, and such G.S.T./H.S.T. is
in addition to and not included in the purchase price.
The Purchaser is registered under the Act and shall provide the Vendor and his solicitor with proof of
his G.S.TJH.S.T. registration and an indemnity in a form reasonably satisfactory to the Vendor and
its solicitor.

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES:
It is agreed that there is no representation, warranty, collateral agreement or condition affecting this
Agreement or the Real Property or supported hereby other than as expressed herein in writing.

TENDER:
Any tender of documents or money hereunder may be made upon the Vendor or Purchaser or upon
the solicitor acting for the party on whom tender is desired, and it shall be sufficient that a cheque
certified by a chartered bank or a trust company or the trust cheque of the law firm acting for the
party desiring such tender be tendered instead of cash.

COSTS OF REGISTRATION:
Each party to pay the costs of registration and taxes on his own documents.



KEMP PIRIE PageS of 5

GENDER:
This Offer and the resulting Agreement to be read with aD changes of gender or number required by
the context.

SIGNED, SEAI..EO AND DELIVERED this 5t1 day of June, 2015.
in the presence of:

Purchaser .W.Jelly Towing.

Per:
Tom Jelly, Preside%3 )“

I have authority to bind the Corporation.

The Vendor hereby accepts the above offer.
c’kfti

Dated at the City of Temiskaming Shores this day of Jify, 281.

Vendor: THE CORPORATION Of THE CITY Of TEMISKAMING SHORES

rj g
Ga-KyT

Christopher W. Oslund, City Manager/Deputy Clerk

We have authority to bind the Corporation.

Purchaser’s Address:
GWtIyThwtrTgttd. C1W
744108 Brazeau Blvd.
New Liskeard, ON POJ 1 P0
Attn: Tom Jelly

Phone Number: (705)647-5751
Fax Number: (705)647-5980

Vendor’s Address:
City of Temiskaming Shores
P.O. Box 2050
325 Farr Drive
Haileybury, Ontario POJ I KO
Attn: David B. Treen, Clerk

Phone Number: (705)672-3363ext 4136
Fax Number: (705)672-3200

Purchaser’s Solicitor: Vendor’s Solicitor:

KEMP PIRIE
P.O. Box 1540
22 Armstrong Street
New Liskeard, ON POJ 1 P0
Attn: George W. Kemp
Phone Number: (705) 647-7353
Fax Number: (705) 647-6473

KEMP PIRIE
P.O. Box 1540
22 Armstrong Street
New Liskeard, ON P0] 1PO
Attn: George W. Kemp
Phone Number: (705) 647-7353
Fax Number: (705) 647-6473



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
By-law No. 2015-000 

Being a by-law to authorize the Sale of Land to G & W 
Jelly’s Ltd. Roll No. 54-18-020-001-027.21 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, the 
powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to govern its affairs as 
it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s ability to respond to municipal 
issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural 
person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  

And whereas By-law No. 2004-031 establishes procedures for the disposal of real 
property, including the giving of notice to the public, governing the sale of land; 

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. CGP-029-2015 at the 
Regular meeting of Council on June 16, 2015 and deemed it desirable to enter into an 
Agreement of Purchase and Sale with G&W Jelly’s Ltd. for municipal real property; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That Council hereby confirms the procedures set forth in By-law No. 2004-031 have 
been followed by the municipality in order to allow for the sale of lands herein after 
referred to in this By-law; 

2. That Council authorizes the entering into an Agreement of Purchase and Sale 
between G&W Jelly’s Ltd. as Purchaser and The Corporation of the City of 
Temiskaming Shores as Vendor, in the form annexed hereto as Schedule “A” and 
forming part of this by-law; 

3. That Council agrees to sell land legally described as: Dymond Concession 1 North 
Part Lot 6; Part 12 on Reference Plan 54R-3480; Parcel 21726SST; Temiskaming 
Shores, District of Timiskaming to G&W Jelly’s Ltd. in the amount of $25,000 plus 
H.S.T. and other such considerations outlined in the said agreement; 

4. That Council affirms the City Manager’s authorization to execute the Agreement of 
Purchase and Sale annexed hereto as Schedule “A” to this by-law and that the 
Mayor and Clerk be hereby authorized and directed to execute any and all other 
documentation necessary to complete the sale of land transaction. 

Appendix 03 
CGP-029-2015 
June 16, 2015 



5. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make any 
minor modifications or corrections of an administrative, numerical, grammatical, 
semantically or descriptive nature or kind to the by-law and schedule as may be 
deemed necessary after the passage of this by-law, where such modifications or 
corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law. 

Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 16th day of June, 2015. 

 
 

____________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 
 
 
____________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

Subject: Amendments to Sign By-law No. 2007-019 Report No.: CGP-030-2015 
 – Annual Encroachment Fees  Agenda Date: June 16, 2015 

 
Attachments 
Appendix 01:   Sign Inventory 
Appendix 02:   Proposed By-law Amendment  

Recommendations 

It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of 
Administrative Report No. CGP-030-2015; and 

2. That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to amend By-law No. 
2007-019 for consideration at the July 7, 2015 Regular Council meeting.  

Background 

On January 23, 2007, Council passed By-law No. 2007-019 being a By-law to Regulate 
Signs. A person who wishes to erect a sign in the City is required to apply for a sign 
permit and pay an associated fee. For signs that are constructed on City property 
including road allowances, the owner is required to enter into an encroachment 
agreement and pay an annual encroachment fee in the amount of $100/year. 

Encroachment fees from 2007-2014 have not been collected and no invoices have been 
processed for 2015. 

Analysis 

In the Fall of 2014, Staff inventoried signs on City property in order to confirm 
compliance with the City’s Sign By-law. The sign inventory is attached as Appendix 01.  

The inventory identified a number of signs with community messaging for non-profit 
corporations and community groups; as well as small directional signs and billboards for 
businesses. A number of signs are in disrepair and appear to be abandoned.  

The Protection to Persons and Property Committee reviewed the sign inventory and 
considered the annual encroachment fee at their regular meeting on May 20, 2015. The 
committee passed recommendation No. PPP-2015-020 as follows: 

Moved by: Mayor Carman Kidd 

Be it recommended that: 

 
Community Growth and Planning Page 1 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

The PPP Committee recommends that Council waive the yearly encroachment fee for 
signs for non-profit corporations and community groups; and further that the PPP 
Committee directs staff to review and amend the Sign By-law to reflect an annual 
encroachment fee of $50 for signage that is not more than 10 square feet and $100 for 
signage over 10 square feet and further take action to remove abandoned signs. 

Staff have prepared an amendment to Appendix 3 of Schedule A of By-law No. 2007-
019 to reflect the new fees as recommended by the Committee. A copy of the 
amendment is attached as Appendix 02. Staff recommends that Council consider 
adopting the amendment at the regular Council meeting on July 7, 2015. 

Following adoption of the amendment, staff will update the encroachment agreements 
for businesses that wish to keep their signs and send invoices in accordance with the 
new fees. Businesses that do not enter into a new encroachment agreement and pay 
the annual fee will be required to remove their signs from City property. Alternatively, 
abandoned signs will be removed by the City and the cost of removal will be charged 
back to the owner. 

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   
This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A   

The revenues for the annual encroachment fees would be $1,150 based on the current 
inventory.    

The City’s cost for removal of abandoned signs will be charged back to the owner.    

Alternatives 

No alternatives were considered in the preparation of this report.  

Submission 

Prepared by: Reviewed and submitted for 
 Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” “Original signed by”  
___________________ _______________________ 
Karen Beauchamp, MCIP, RPP, CMO Christopher W. Oslund 
Director of Community Growth City Manager 
and Planning 

 
Community Growth and Planning Page 2 
 



Appendix 01
CGP-030-2015
June 16, 2015

Location Description Message Sign Shop
Colu Column1 Column3 Column4 Column5

1 Armstrong St N - West side south of Grey Rd Billboard Road Safety Coalition Phippen 
2 Armstrong St N- West side south of Grey Rd Billboard Biker's Reunion Phippen
3 Browning St and West Rd Billboard Haileybury businesses Lakeview
4 Golf Course Rd at River Rd- South side Freestanding Greenhaus Unknown 
5 Golf Course Rd at River Rd- South side Freestanding DSBONE Unknown 
6 Golf Course Rd at River Rd- South side Freestanding Dreamcatcher Equestrian Unknown 
7 King St- East side at Queen St/ Silver St Freestanding Haileybury Heritage Museum Unknown 
8 King St- East side (North of 375047 King St) Freestanding Haileybury Heritage Museum Unknown 
9 Lakeshore Rd S at Lowry St- West side Billboard Haileybury Beach Motel ARC 

10 Lakeshore Rd S at Lowry St- West side Billboard Haileybury Businesses Lakeview
11 Lakeshore Rd S at Lowry St- West side Freestanding Slow down children at play Unknown 
12 Lakeshore Rd S at Sunnyside Rd- West side Freestanding Haileybury Heritage Museum Unknown 
13 Lakeshore Rd S- West side at Sunnyside Rd Billboard JVS/ blank Unknown 
14 Lakeshore Rd South - West side Billboard Valumart/ Mike's One Stop Unknown 
15 Lakeshore Rd S- West side Billboard Report Impaired Driving (Eng) Unknown 
16 Lakeshore Rd S- West side Billboard North Cobalt Flea Market Unknown 
17 Lakeshore Rd S- West side  Billboard Telus Phippen
18 Lakeshore Rd S- West side Billboard Report Impaired Driving (Fr) Phippen
19 Niven St S- West side at Main St Freestanding Mehtal Construction Unknown 
20 Rorke Ave- East side at Rotary Park Billboard Garb Angels Unknown 
21 King St - West side Billboard Tri-Town Ski Village Phippen
22 Shepherdson Rd- west side across from 

hospital
Freestanding Parking instructions Unknown 

23 West Rd- South side Billboard Northern College Price
25 West Rd- South side at Ramsay Rd Freestanding Leisure Inn Unknown 
26 Whitewood Ave and Regina St Freestanding Tri-Town Motor Sports Unknown 
27 Whitewood Ave- South side at Glen Rd Billboard Biker's Reunion Phippen

Yellow is "Not-for-Profit" or "Community Groups" 

Signs on City Property (current as of 12 Dec 2014)

City of Temiskaming Shores



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2015-000 

Being a by-law to amend By-law No. 2007-019, as 
amended, being a by-law to regulate signs in the City of 

Temiskaming Shores 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, the 
powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to govern its affairs as 
it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s ability to respond to municipal 
issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural 
person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act, 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public; 

And whereas at its January 23, 2007 Regular Meeting, Council adopted By-law No. 
2007-019 to regulate signs in the City of Temiskaming Shores; 

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report CGP-030-2015 at the June 16, 
2015 Regular meeting of Council and directed staff to amend By-law No. 2007-019 with 
respect to fees for a permit to erect a sign for consideration at the July 7, 2015 Regular 
meeting of Council; 

And whereas the Council of the Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores deems 
it desirable to amend By-law No. 2007-019. 

Now therefore the Council of the Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
hereby enacts the following as a By-law: 

1. That By-law No. 2007-019, as amended be further amended by deleting Appendix 
“3” of Schedule “A” and replacing it with Schedule “A” attached hereto and forming 
part of this by-law. 

2. That this by-law shall come into force and take effect on the date of its final 
passing. 

3. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make 
minor changes or corrections of a grammatical or typographical nature to the by-
law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where such modifications or 
corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law. 

 

Appendix 02 
CGP-030-2015 

June 16, 2015 



Read a first, second and third time and final passed this 7th day of July, 2015. 

 
 
________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 
 
________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Amendment to By-law No. 2007-019 By-law No. 2015-000 

 

 
Fees for a Permit to Erect a Sign and with respect to  
“Encroachment Agreements with respect to Signs” 

 

 Type of Sign Fee Payable 

1. 

 

A Permit to erect a Fascia Sign, 
Painted Wall Sign, Canopy Sign, Under 
Canopy Sign, Portable Sign or Banner 
Sign. 

Five dollars ($5.00) per one thousand dollars 
($1,000.00) or portion thereof of the valuation of 
the sign and it’s supporting structure (including 
cost of installation), or a minimum of Fifty 
dollars ($50.00) 

2.  

 

A Permit to erect an Awning Sign, a 
Free Standing Sign, a Bill Board Sign, a 
Projecting Sign or a Roof Sign. 

Seven dollars and fifty cents ($7.50) per 
thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or portion thereof 
of the cost of valuation of the construction or a 
minimum of Seventy-Five dollars ($75.00) 

3. Annual Fee with respect to placement 
of a sign on City property including road 
allowance. (Encroachment Agreement 
with respect to signs). 

Greater than 10 square feet in area: 

One Hundred dollars ($100.00) per agreement. 

10 square feet or less in area:  

Fifty dollars ($50.00) per agreement. 

 

4. Annual fee with respect to placement of 
a sign on City property including road 
allowance where the sign promotes or 
is in support of an event sanctioned by, 
or affiliated with the City of 
Temiskaming Shores, or supports a 
community service initiative. 
(Encroachment Agreement with respect 
to signs) 

One Dollar ($1.00) per agreement. 

 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

Subject: Award - Housing for Small Families, Seniors Report No.: CGP-031-2015 
 & Persons Living with Disabilities Agenda Date: June 17, 2015 

 
Attachments 
Appendix 01: Project 3 – Proposal Submission - Breault / Cunningham 
Appendix 02: Project 3 – Proposal Submission - Rice   
Appendix 03: Project 6 – Proposal Submission - Loranger 

Recommendations 
It is recommended: 
1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of 

Administrative Report CGP-031-2015; 
2. That Council accepts Ron Rice’s proposal for Project 3 on Little Street to construct a 

single detached dwelling with a second unit; 
3. That Council accepts Laurier Loranger’s proposal for Project 6 on Carter Boulevard 

to construct a single detached dwelling with a second unit provided one or both units 
are accessible for persons living with disabilities;  

4. That Council does not accept Alyssa Breault and Robert Cunningham’s proposal for 
Project 3 on Little Street to construct a single detached dwelling because it does not 
meet the criteria of the Request for Proposals; and 

5. That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-laws and Offers to Sell for 
Council’s consideration at a future Council meeting. 

Background 

On March 19, 2015 the City issued Request for Proposals No. CGP-RFP-001-2015 for 
the construction of housing for small families, seniors and persons living with 
disabilities. The purpose of the project was to increase the number of affordable and 
accessible housing units in the City by offering free land and other development 
incentives. 

Analysis: 

The Request for Proposals, CGP-RFP-001-2015 closed on May 14, 2015 and three 
proposals were received.  

A committee comprised of the Director of Community Growth and Planning, and the 
Chair and Vice Chair of the Temiskaming Shores Accessibility Advisory Committee met 
on May 28, 2015 to evaluate the proposals and make a recommendation to Council. 

 
Community Growth and Planning Page 1 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

The evaluation committee compared the proposals with the evaluation criteria outlined 
in the Request for Proposals and provided the following comments and 
recommendations: 

Project No. 3 – Alyssa Breault and Robert Cunningham propose to construct a single 
detached dwelling for their small family. The proposal has limited accessibility features 
and no second unit. The committee recommends that Council decline this proposal 
because it does not meet the criteria of the Request for Proposals which was to construct 
a single detached dwelling with a second unit or a duplex and one or both units would be 
constructed with the principles of universal design. 

The Breault/Cunningham proposal is attached as Appendix 01. 

Project No. 3 – Ron Rice proposes to construct a single detached dwelling for a retirement 
home with a second unit to rent to persons with disabilities. Both units are proposed to be 
constructed with the principles of universal design. The committee awarded a high score 
for this proposal as it met most of the criteria of the Request for Proposals. 

The Rice proposal is attached as Appendix 02. 

Project No. 6 – Laurier Loranger proposes to construct a single detached dwelling for a 
retirement home with a second unit to rent to persons with mental health disabilities. The 
single detached dwelling has limited accessibility features and there was very little 
information on the design of the second unit. The committee would like to meet with Mr. 
Loranger to obtain additional information regarding the accessible design features of both 
units. The committee recommends that the project be awarded to Mr. Loranger conditional 
on confirmation that one or both units will be accessible for persons living with disabilities.  

The Loranger proposal is attached as Appendix 03. 

Staff recommends that Council endorse the evaluation committee’s recommendations.  

Following the award of the projects, staff will work with the proponents to finalize their 
proposals and will prepare by-laws and Offers to Sell for Council’s consideration at a 
future Council meeting.  

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   
This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A   

The Treasurer advises that the properties are currently exempt for taxation purposes. 
The sale will result in assessable properties which will generate increased tax revenues.  
Tax revenues will be further increased once the property is developed.   

 
Community Growth and Planning Page 2 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

Council has agreed to offer the land for free and waive the fees for a building permit and 
any planning applications that may be required, as well as waive the cost for tipping 
fees for 40 cubic metres of construction waste hauled to the City’s landfill site.  

Staffing implications related to this matter are limited to normal administrative functions 
and duties. 

Alternatives 

No alternatives were considered in the preparation of this report. 

Submission 

Prepared by: Reviewed and submitted for 
 Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” “Original signed by”  
___________________ _______________________ 
Karen Beauchamp, MCIP, RPP, CMO Christopher W. Oslund 
Director of Community Growth City Manager 
and Planning 
 

 
Community Growth and Planning Page 3 
 



Project #3 — Housing for Small families 2015

Applicants: Alyssa Breault & Robert Cunningham

Application type: 1000 sq.fi. Single detached dwelling.

Manufacturer: Yvon Champoux Inc., modular home.

Project purpose:

We are looking to start a small family in a new energy efficient home that will last for
generations. We want to be able to include the Universal Design principles to simplify our
everyday living, both present and future. To accommodate family and friends that may be elderly
or may have disabilities that hinder their day to day lives. In short; have a lasting and
accommodating, residence in Temiskaming Shores.

List of the Universal Design principles featured in dwelling:

Main floor;

-All interior doors are 34”, exterior front door 36”, patio door 72”, and 3 0-60” closet
bifolds

-front loading laundry facilities with controls in front on 16” pedestal

-Bathroom, wheelchair accessible, raised toilet, bathtub equipped with flexible hose for
showerhead, and single lever faucet for vanity and bath

-Linen near vanity and towel rack near bath

-Ceramic and hardwood flooring throughout house

-Diameter of 60” wheelchair turning space at critical locations throughout the house

-Wider hallways also kitchen island clearance of 3$” and greater

-Majority of window sills at height of 36” or lower

-Interconnected smoke alarms, GfI plugs when near water sources

-Kitchen, dining room and living room on dimmer switches to be energy efficient

-Single lever kitchen faucet and “D” shaped cupboard handles

-Open concept throughout kitchen, dining room and living room

-Electrical outlets and switches at standard height

-All windows are triple thermo casements from “Roberge”



Project #3 — Housing for Small Families 2015

Basement;

-Sectioned off mechanical room (Natural gas furnace, tankless water heater, fuse panel)

-All doors 34” and 30-48” closet bifolds

-Open concept recreational room

-Dedicated storage room

-Windows are double thermo, double sliders also from “Roberge”

Exterior;

-Sheltered front porch

-Exterior pathways 4$” wide

-Driveway set at 2’ away from the house foundation to alleviate future pressure

-Consistent 8’ of clearance patio design



Cn
m

o
z

3
0

=
3 CD

(0
0

C
.
-
.
.

0
-
‘

>
-u

CD 0
CD

-
4
,

—
•

(I
)

_

-
,

i
i

CD
C

I
I
I

0
0

—
I

C
N

cn
CD

D
0

I
0

(0
-

-D CD (0 0
i

CD
—

.

V
0

0
(
t

C
)

-D

CD

I
-‘

CD
D

0
C

3
-
,

-

3
—

_

—
.

0’
C”

—
D

o
0

CD
-

D
U

1
—

z
0

CO
-I

CD 0 C
o

I :3
-

£
o

0
N CD 0 -u CD U

,
0



This page to be submitted with Proposal

Req uest for Proposals

CGP-RFP-001 -2015

Housing for Seniors and Persons Living with Disabilities

Conflict of Interest Declaration

Please check appropriate response:

I/we hereby confirm that there is not nor was there any actual or perceived conflict of
interest in our submission or performing/providing the Goods/Services required by the
Agreement.

The following is a list of situations, each of which may be a conflict of interest, or appears
as potentially a conflict of interest in our submission or the contractual obligations under
the Agreement.

List Situations:

In making this quotation submission, I/we/our Company has / has no (strike out inapplicable
portion) knowledge of or the ability to avail ourselves of confidential information of the City (other
than confidential information which may have been disclosed by the City in the normal course of
the quotation process) and the confidential information was relevant to the Work/Services, their
pricing or quotation evaluation process.

Dated at 7tQ çc-,. this (I day of

_______________,

201.5

FIRM NAME (if applicable):

__________________________________

BIDDER’S AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL: -

TITLE: (ThtJL

SIGNATURE: kAJc,SL



Adresse Services écoPlus 247, chemin Freeman Gatineau (Os) ]8Z 2A9

ecoPlus
Téléphone 91) Courri mio@servicesec:usca

train)
Télécopieur

8197717296

Pour une maison confortable, same, sécuritaire et économIgue

201 3-02-05

M. Philippe Dugay
Sales Director

Yvon Champoux Inc.
40, rue Ontario
Notre-Dame-du-Nord,
Qc JOZ3BO

Objet : Thermal Resistance Calculation — Total R and Effective R Values

Hello Philippe,

Here is the calculation for the thermal resistance value for the ceiling composition that we
discussed. These calculations were made by Johnny Menhem (certified energy advisor by
Natural Resources of Canada) using the HOT2000 software.

Exterior air layer 0.17
Vinyl siding 0.62
Air gap — with ¾” strapping 1 .53
House wrap negligible
Plywood 3/8” 0.47
Fibreglass R24 (between 2x6 studsl6’oc) 23.97
Energy shield rigid insulation (11/2” thick with aluminium foil on both sides) 11.65
Air gap — with ¾” strapping 1 .53
Drywall ½” 0.67
Interior air layer 0.82

Total R value 41.43
Effective R value calculated with (HOT2000 version 10.51) 37.50

Best regards,

Raymond Ouellet, CEO

Depistage preachat — Efficacité énergétigue — Qualité d’air et moisissure



Adresse Seruices écoPlus 247, chemin Freeman Gatineau tOo) ]8Z 2A9 eerunoe

ecoPlus Téléphone 819J71 6151 (Québec) Courri zzz:
tram)

Telecopteur
819.771.7286

Pour une malson confortable, same, sécuritaire et ëconomique

2013-02-05

M. Philippe Duguay
Sales Director

Yvon Champoux Inc.
40, rue Ontario
Notre-Dame-du-Nord,
Qc, JOZ 3B0

Thermal Resistance Calculation for Ceiling - Total and Effective R values

Hello Philippe,

Here is the calculation for the thermal resistance value for the wall composition that we
discussed. These calculations were made by Johnny Menhem (certified energy advisor by
Natural Resources of Canada) using the HOT2000 software.

Drywall ½” 0.45
Aluminium vapour barrier foil negligible
Plywood 3/8 0.47
R31 fibreglass insulation (batts between the ceiling joists) 31 .0
R31 fibreglass insulation (batts perpendicular to the first layer) 31 .0

Total R Value 62.92
Effective R value calculated with HOT2000 version 10.51 61 .97

Best regards,

Raymond Ouellet, CEO

Depistage preachat — Efficacité énergétigue — Qualité d’air et moisissure..



2
X

8
T

re
at

ed
si

ll
p
la

te
C

/W
g
a
sk

e
t

an
ch

o
r

b
o
lt

s
1/

2”
d
ia

m
.

©
7

-1
0

”
C

/C
m

i
n
.
\

F
in

is
h

ed
g

ra
d

e
to

b
e

sl
o

p
ed

aw
ay

fr
o

m
dw

el
li

n

p
ro

v
id

e
a

m
m

.
of

12
”

n
at

iv
e
m

a
t
e
r
i
a
k

—

p
ro

v
id

e
a

p
ro

p
er

d
ra

in
ag

e
la

Y
e
r
_
-
\ç

‘
j

—

4”
w

ee
p
in

g
ti

le
c/

w
”

6”
c
le

a
rs

to
n
e

co
v

er
I’

X
2’

pr
d

co
n
c.

fo
o

ti
n

g
ar

m
o

re
d

—
w

it
h

ro
d

10
M

il
©

6”
c/

c
fo

o
ti

n
g

sh
aH

re
st

o
n

u
n
d
is

tu
rb

ed
so

il

,.—
51

8”
T

G
I

fl
o
o
r

sh
ea

th
in

g
fl

oo
r

jo
is

ts
w

o
o
d

I
@

16
”

c/
c

W
ea

th
er

p
ro

o
f

M
em

b
ra

n
e

2
-5

/8
”

F
o
am

6”
p

o
u

re
d

co
n
c.

R
im

B
o

ar
d

R
-2

7
In

su
la

ti
o
n

—
6

M
il.

V
.B

.

2
6

-0
”

1
3’

-O
”

I
3’

-O
”

co
n

cr
et

e
to

b
e2

O
M

P
A

.
2
-5

/8
”

F
o
am

6
M

u
P

o
ly

V
B

3/
4”

F
u

rr
in

g
‘w

al
l

jw
[J

B
ea

m
si

ze
)

[E
’1

E
4

L
V

L
4
4
”

m
ax

h
ei

g
h
t

[M
l
.

st
ee

l
p
la

te
’

of
fi

n
is

h
ed

g
ro

u
n
d

[j4
st

ee
l

p
o

sy
ab

o
v

e
fi

n
is

h
ed

b
a
se

m
e
n
t

jJ
)
1
0
M

b
ar

h
o
ri

zo
n
ta

l
A”

m
m

.
p
o
u
re

d
co

n
c.

sl
ab

ir
i
7

/
6
m

m
p

o
ly

et
h

y
le

n
e

V
.P

B
.

fl,4
j
/

1O
M

b
ar

ve
rt

.@
1
5
-3

/4
”

c/
c

4”
g
ra

n
n
u
la

ro
n

co
m

p
ac

te
d

Ii

IN
[i

,
,

P
o
ly

et
h
y
le

n
e

m
ay

b
e

o
m

it
te

d
w

h
er

e
2
5
M

P
a

co
n

cr
et

e
is

u
s

.
-

-

9

B
o
n
d

b
re

ak
‘P

o
u
re

d
co

n
c.

p
ad

k
ey

ed
fo

o
ti

n
g

36
”X

36
”X

1
6”

fo
o
ti

n
g

sh
al

l
re

st
o
n

u
n
d
is

tu
rb

ed
so

ij
..
.)

ar
m

o
re

d
w

it
h

10
M

il
ro

d
©

9
”c

/c

d
at

io
n

d
ep

th
to

b
e

m
in

.5
’

if
h

ea
te

d
o

r
6’

if
u

n
h

ea
te

d

I,
D

om
in

iq
ue

B
ri

ss
on

de
cl

ar
e

th
at

re
vi

ew
an

d
ta

ke
re

sp
on

si
bi

li
ty

fo
r

th
e

de
si

gn
w

or
k

on
be

ha
lf

of
a

fir
m

re
gi

st
er

ed
un

de
r

su
bs

ec
ti

on
2.

17
.4

of
th

e
bu

ild
in

g
co

de
.

la
m

qu
al

if
ie

d
an

d
th

e
fim

,
is

re
gi

st
er

ed
,

in
th

e
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e
cl

as
se

s/
ca

te
go

ri
os

IN
D

IV
ID

U
A

L
B

C
IN

25
79

3
FI

R
M

B
C

IN
35

90
1

T
Y

PI
C

A
L

B
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

S
E

C
T

IO
N

ii
t:

r
1/

4”
=

1’
-O

”
7



Les Maisons Champoux

db
r F

Page 1 sur 2

ACCUEIL MODECES I (DUACII INThPIEUPS CONTACT

FiCHE TECHNIQUE

FiCHE TECHNiQUE

11. 1 . LI LFT I

PLPNCHER

Sotives (poureies en I) cu 15” cenLre
Pourour de LV.L. Laminé coLlé el cLoue

-, Poleaux de cave en rnéxa fournis et nsaaés seton Ic pLan
‘ Corcrepaqué 5/8 embouveté, coLe e vissé au sotives

MUPS EXTERIEURS: EPRIS5EUR DE 9” 7/8” R TotaL H1.3*

Revétement de vinute de sLtte CoLonia
Fourrures de 1” X 3 pour jeu dair exlérieur

‘ PaminLempérie
‘ Contreptaqué 3/8
‘ Slruclure 2.: X 5” au 5 cenlre, scettée a La semeNe
‘ Lame R-2H”
‘ Isotani rigide 11/2 a haute densité enduil de deux (2)

parements d’atuminium scettés dans Les joints (isote La
structure de bois et crée un bris thermique intérieur)

‘ Fourrures de I X 3” pour jeu d’arr intérieur
GLjpse 1/2” vissé

PLAFOND ET TOITURE R Total 62.92*

‘ Gjpse 1/2” vissé
Coupe vapeur d’atuminium conbnu, scette dana tes joints
Contreplaquè de 3/8’ au ptafond pour une meitteure sotidité
Fermes de toil approuvées en bois sec

‘ Lame isolante installée en deux étapes (P31 + P31)”
‘ Contreptaqué de 1/2” cur Loiture
-‘ Protecteur davant bit

Bardeaux dasphatte Msbque
‘ SoFFite eb Facia (qoutbëre non-induce)

Stjstème de ventftabon sbabque (Maximum) pour Lentretoit

5Y5TEME ELECTRIQUE

‘ IsoLation supérieure des prises étectriques
‘ VëriFicabon de chaque circuit 3 t’usine

Fitage en cuivre
-, Panneau étectrique de 200 amperes
‘ 5orhe de tumière au ptaFond dens tee chambres
‘ Lumières exterieures
‘ Prices extérieures
‘ Détecteurs de fumée et de monoxyde de carbone

Mát étectrique Fourni et instatté en usine
Lumëre cu dessus de Levier cc cuisine avec interrupteur
ncCpendant

‘ Deux (2) tumiCres dans La saLLe de bain avec n:errL.ptear
ncCpendant
Sonnette de porte
Hotte de cuisine qui dvacue tar 3 Lextêr:eur

‘ Echanqeur d’air, récupérateur de chateur pom .maximiser La ou1ité
de t’ar

5Y5TEME DE PLOMBERIE

Conduit decu chaude et iroide jusqu’au niveaudes solives
+ Robinets pour taveuse (ophonnet)

Robinets pour tave-vaissette (optionnet)

Event supptèmentaire pour appareits luturs au souc-sol
+ Reservoir de toiLette sole

Sam mouté une (I) pièce en acrtjtique et robinet a pression équ
o \/aste choix de robinetterie
+ Evier de cuisine en acier inoxdabLe

Dra.n en P35 jusqu’au niveau des sotives
Vériticabon en usine

F IN IT ION

° ‘Jaste choix de vac,itës pour salle de bain
+ Rrmoires de cuisine de styLe moderne au choix
° PUnthes et cadrages de styLe CoLoniaL
° Portes mntérmeurec de styLe CoLonial
° Fenétres tout PVC
° Thermos triple verre Low-E Pryon, standard dans toutes nos m
° Porte paho Low E-Rrgon
° SouFftage et cadrage intèrieur en P.V.C.
+ Pourtour des portes et Fenëtres scetté a La mousse de potyurèt
° Porte extèrieure en acier avec cadrage de vinyte

*Les catcuts ont etè Fait avec Le togiciet Hot2000 par un conseitté en
eFficacité energéhque agréé par Ressources Canada

http ://maisonschampoux.com/fiche-technique. asp 2015-05-01



Les Maisons Champoux Page 2 sur 2

Rccueil I Lentreprise Modèles I lnlérieurs I Qualité I Comparatil en ligne I Soumission en ligne I Contact

21

00

http://maisonschampoux.comlfiche-technique. asp 2015-05-01



L
E

v
II

Q
N

_
1
Q

S
’-

C
C

E
IL

fN

M
A

IN
F

L
C

O

E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

i’
-O

”
I
O

O
F

F
O

O
II

N

F
R

O
N

T
L

E
V

A
II

O
N



E
L

E
V

A
iI

Q
N

Q
a
’1

C
E

IL
IN

C

E
E

y
4
I!

Q
N

1
Q

Q
O

”
M

A
IN

L
O

O

E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

1
’-

O
”

T
O

F
O

O
O

T
IN

C

IG
1

-4
I

E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N



E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

1
O

-O
”

C
E

IL
IN

C

E
L

E
Y

I1
Q

N
A

o
o

‘-
0”

M
A

IN
F

L
0
O

E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

1
’-

0
”

T
O

P
O

F
F

O
O

T
IN

C

E
A

E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N



E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

ic
’-

c”
C

E
IL

IN
G

t’I
A

IN
L

O
Q

E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

1
’-

C
”

T
o
p
o

F
O

O
II

N
C

L
E

F
T

E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N



‘N
_
—



Bathroom vanity, countertop and wall color

Kitchen cupboards, countertop and wall color



n 0 0 -
‘ 0 -
q 0 0 -
‘ 0 CD 0 —

h

CD Cf
-I CD N
)

CD CD C
, 0 D (1 CD CD -
‘ CD c
i

O
C

R
CL

A
SS

IC
[)

re
u

,n
/I

i

D
RE

A
M

FL
O

O
R

CL
A

SS
IC

T
d

f
l
h

A
(

L1

1
p

E
A

M
L

O
O

R
G

A
S

5
IC

-

R
E

A
M

F
L

O
O

R
C

LA
SS

IC



Color of flooring for bathroom preferred

J





DImr

Yvon
“ II::i

Champoux

____

01

--

-

-

1”I-GII
= —

9

1

2’-O”

3-0”

-p Aqp

I2’-3”

I

(‘3

1

1-P

L

x

01

01

x

01

r

0

9

C

01

Lfl--&‘-3’: /
/1 -

411

In

x

_____

-Of -O]_f
aver I8un

-oI,
4&

36”

‘I
11-11%

Ca tiruaue
uII ta thin
par t

I-

.—

0

13 -0
x S’3 1,16t

2’-O”



•
=

I
2
I
I

—
I
3
I
I

03
I
-

(p
I

0
&

0 Iz
I

n)

4
1
0
1
1

3
6

’-
O

”

6
0

0

LD

—
12

’—
’’

*

6

/ 1< (
:

I-
i

P

_
_

_
_

_

_
r

—
I

—

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

o
:

_
_
_
_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

f
l
I
4
I
I

3
4
I
I
4
4

4i

_

I

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_

F=
EI

_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_

112
’—

V
12

1_
]1

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

I

_
_
_

_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

L
1
2
z
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

I
V

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

7

4
I/

1
’

x
T

I
/
I
1

1
4
’

I
/I

x
2
]

/I
b

4
*

I/
lb

x
2

]
/I

b

II



m2Y 4?/

4LJ 4J]

L4t

?rL %i*-S ,43 - ooC —

&)c 3/C,L

I’411ts5

C)

J4I

/

)‘?.?OAJ 6,cE



This page is to be submitted with Proposal

Request for Proposals

CGP-RFP-OO1-2015

Housing for Seniors and Persons Living with Disabilities

Bidder Information Form

Name of Bidder: ROWALD 1 Rc

Contact Person:

Mailing Address:

pie

Phone:70 -4%o(, Fax:

Email: k-0 ir7tL

lb x I ‘1- JciL&-t’4T OAJ.
I I

Signature of Authorized Person Print Name of Authorized Person



This page to be submitted with Proposal

Request for Proposals

CGP-RFP-001 -2015

Housing for Seniors and Persons Living with Disabilities

Conflict of Interest Declaration

g I/we hereby confirm that there is not nor was there any actual or perceived conflict of
interest in our submission or performing/providing the Goods/Services required by the
Agreement.

fl The following is a list of situations, each of which may be a conflict of interest, or appears
as potentially a conflict of interest in our submission or the contractual obligations under
the Agreement.

List Situations:

In making this quotation submission, I/we/our Company has / has no (strike out inapplicable
portion) knowledge of or the ability to avail ourselves of confidential information of the City (other
than confidential information which may have been disclosed by the City in the normal course of
the quotation process) and the confidential information was relevant to the Work/Services, their
pricing or quotation evaluation process.

Dated a

FIRM NAME (if applicable):

BIDDER’S AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL:

TITLE:

this fZ _day of -i#

&IALi

‘QQ

Please check appropriate response:

SI G NATU RE:



Proposal Evaluation Criteria

An evaluation team consisting of key municipal staff and members of the community will
conduct the evaluation of proposals.

The City of Temiskaming Shores reserves the right in its evaluation of the proposal to consider
all pertinent criteria whether or not such criteria are contained in the Request for Proposals.

PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA MAXIMUM

POINTS POINTS
Qualifications, Experience, Ability to undertake successful 30
project
Experience of developer or their contractor 3 -1- yea. Tc

Qualifications of developer or their contractor v V

Ability to obtain financing for the project
Ability to meet 3 year Umeline to complete conswction
Completeness and quality of Request for Proposal submission

Demonstrated need for universal design housing
Affordable Housing Partnership Letter of Intent with a Social
Services agency or non-profit housing corporation f’S

Design based on Universal Design Principles 60

Number of units that are designed based on Universal Design
Principles
Floor plan
Modest size units

Open concept with fewer doors, fewer hallways, and rooms V
that flow into one another
Continuous accessible path of travel of at lease 915mm (36’)
wide throughout all living spaces. This path should provide
access to all furniture, storage units, switches and controls.
Circular turning spaces of 1 525mm (69”).
Hallways at least 1220mm (48”) wide V

Doors
Doors that are at least 915mm (36”) wide. Omit doors that are V
not necessary.
Clear floor space at least 600mm (24”) is recommended at the /latch side of the door on the pull side; and 300mm (12”) in the
push side
Door handle and lock can be operated using only one hand.
Lever door handles. Push button locking mechanisms.
Window in entry door that is no higher than 915mm (36)
Level door thresholds or less than 6mm (1/4” high) V



Windows ,,grn (to1 .-y’
Sill height no higher than 765mm (30’) ‘wei’it .-CI,(€

Sill height in bedroom no higher than 610mm (24”) ,in 1tc4. if
Casement, awning, and hopper windows that can be easily
opened with one hand uTiZrank handle or lever and the V
opening and locking mechanisms are easy to reach.
Sliding windows so long as they are not large and heavy.
Window opening and locking mechanisms should be between
6 10mm and 1220 mm (24 and 48”J from the floor with a dear
760mm x 1220mm (30” x
controls.

Cabinets and Storage
Adjustable shelving and storage systems.
Maximize storage options with 400-1200mm (16-47’) reach. V
Pull-out drawers and shelves. V1

Cabinet hardware can be operated with one hand without tight
grasping, pinching or twisting wrist. D-shaped handles work
well as well as touch latches.

Kitchen
Kitchen with work surfaces for standing and seated use
Kitchen with storage options within reach —drawers and pull V
out shelves
Cabinet hardware can be operated with one hand without tight
grasping, pinching or twisting wrist. D-shaped handles work
well as well as touch latches.
Knee room under sink V

Single lever or hands-free faucet V

Laundry Room

Main floor laundry room U

Pedestal to raise appliances 406mm (16”) off floor /
Front load appliances with controls at front V

Entrance

Free from steps and stairs .w.I /
Covered from weather

Pathway from parking area to main entrance 1220mm (48’)
. V

wide, slope no greater than 1/12, stable surface such as
concrete, asphalt, interlock: good drainage; slip resistant finish
Ramp with slope no greater than 1/12.

Good lighting, motion sensors

Floor finishes that are level, smooth, slip resistant and glare V
free such as ceramic, hardwood, laminate,

£LQP



Lighting

Dimmer switches

Plenty of electrical outlets minimum 610mm L24joor

light switches — 860-960mm (34-38”) from floor

Good and consistent lighting in hallways and entrances,
stairwells, work surfaces in bathroom and kitchen
Task lighting under cabinets, and over work surfaces in
bathroom and kitchen
Motion detectors in rooms not normally occupied

Bathroom

Bathroom that features enough space to accommodate a
walker or wheelchair
Grab Bars near shower

Larger, spa-type, curbless shower stall capable of
accommodating a seat or stool and featuring easy to use
controls, non-slip surface
Towel racks located near the shower

Storage for makeup and medicine near the vanity/sink

Showerhead on a vertical slide bar

Raised seat for the toilet

Grab bars that fold down on both sides of toilet

Single lever or hands-free sink faucet

Sink with knee room under it — pipes wrapped for safety

V
VI

V

/

/
/

V
/
V

V
U

Colour considerations
Walls contrast with windows/doors V

Switch plates and electrical outlets contrast with walls V
Counter top contrasts with cabinets .7
Matte finishes (non-glare) /
Walls contrast with floors

Door handles contrast with door; cabinet handles contrast with v
cabinet, window handles contrast with windows

Energy Efficiency 10
A minimum of R_ insulation in walls, R ceilings
Energy efficient natural gas furnace, hot water

Thermostats 860 — 960mm (j” above from floor V
Energy efficient appliances V

Energy efficient bathroom fixtures and kitchen faucets

Energy efficient lighting

Energy efficient windows

Energy efficient landscaping
Remote control doors, windows, blinds, lights, heat controls



4-

S 0-

&1

0 -oC

a

t

Lime sreer



_
_
_
—

—

—
-—

—
-—

—
—

I

@
L

fj
j
j
c
ç

røTO
flY

L
N

9
W

L
JcW

L
r
C

t’s
i

t_
Y

’O
1

-
1

1
%

L

1
rei

:
i
Y

9
’
/
J

;
5
g

I

H
H

H
H

H

o
c
—

.



‘,‘-

t10
‘s—

‘V



F

çbj

•

--

HIji



Project No. 3 &16f/.

Roll Number 5418-030-006-051.00
Address Little Street, Haileybury between 295 Little

Street and 242 Bruce Street
Legal Description Plan M3ONB; Lot 34; Parcel 7724SST;
Size Frontage: 50 feet on Little Street

Depth: 125 feet
Area: 6250 square feet

Services Available Municipal water and sanitary sewer
laterals available at the lot line.

Zoning Zoned Residential fR) in the Town of
Haileybury Zoning By-law 85-27

Development Options 1. Single detached dwelling with a second
unit

- -2BHpx
Comments None.

•



lai W9B12SW Skqing t.. CciCt Ciai, NarcmIMcAr PhctD GIery. Vacion, NcrUwt Hc*se P1is &HDe&gr

Square Footage’

First Floor:

Floors:

Bedrooms:

Bathrooms’

Mdth:

Depth:

Height:

Foundation:

Main Roof Pitch:

Framing:
Don’t see your preferr.’

free quote t.

Ceiling Height

First Floor.

______________—

-

—_I’ a feat cn_:’’aun savadaole please •p thai 1 rey ette,: he lOmeCVeel’S 1IT(II’ ,31 I’ns tO he plan 311] II]I 501, 5I1(’iilO

A(i1 - A4JLt
7/ I /3oTTc)A1

(3-H I%KE ç’

jkJ1.

Click here to Mfrror Reverse olpn

Plan W9812SW: Ultimate Retreat



tkl 1l

/•

Vo &z/ Z e%d/2’7( /t

//i1
a

/ia // rntA

• Ltvrytr ttd

0

(6Laa/;i

It D/



PaI
.
.

H

‘
.

,
/ II

K

‘H

—

I

tiI

—
1



9m
B

x
n

o
d

w
e
q

I
J
j.

1
C

A
&

h

‘p 6’

cm

II



Welcome to the website of Champoux Homes, Inc. Page 1 sur 1

YVONdb

CHAMPoUX INC.
Tuesday, March 24, 2015

40, Ontario street
phone.: (819) 723-2253 tollfree: (877) 823-2253

fax. (819) 723-2474 Yvon.chainpoux@tlb.svinpatico.ca

Budget Planner

Champoux modular home high quality: $1 13,000.00
Lot and service: $0.00
Excavation and foundation:: $30,000.00
Electrical hook up:: $2,500.00
Plumbing hook up:: $7,500.00
Flooring: $8,000.00
Plastering: $6,000.00
Basement insulation and finishing (stairs, windows, ...) $4,000.00
Deck and balcony: $3,000.00
Gutters: $1,200.00
Landscape and decoration: $0.00
Permits and lawyers’ fee: $0.00
Garage: $35,000.00
Furnace: $10,000.00

6 r /- c
Total: $220,200.00
HST: $28,626.00
Total with HST: , $248,826.00

Q ‘9 bü

Mortgage:

Mortgage total: $0.00
Monthly paiement: $0.00

Some conditions may apply.

http://www.maisonschampoux.comlcalculaide-a.asp 2015-03-24



This page is to be submitted with Proposal

Request for Proposals

CGP-RFP-001 -2015

Housing for Seniors and Persons Living with Disabilities

Bidder Information Form

L1-1

Print Name of Authorized Person

Name of Bidder:

Contact Person:

Mailing Address:

e

/3o, y1/J o/t
C

Phone: 75 Fax:

7i2S-éii- -io/
Email:

_______ ______________

Signature of Authorized etson



This page to be submitted with Proposal

Req uest for Proposals

CGP-RFP-OO1-201 5

Housing for Seniors and Persons Living with Disabilities

Conflict of Interest Declaration

Please check appropriate response:

I/we hereby confirm that there is not nor was there any actual or perceived conflict of
interest in our submission or performing/providing the Goods/Services required by the
Agreement.

LI The following is a list of situations, each of which may be a conflict of interest, or appears
as potentially a conflict of interest in our submission or the contractual obligations under
the Agreement.

List Situations:

In making this quotation submission, I/we/our Company has / has no (strike out inapplicable
portion) knowledge of or the ability to avail ourselves of confidential information of the City (other
than confidential information which may have been disclosed by the City in the normal course of
the quotation process) and the confidential information was relevant to the WorklServices, their
pricing or quotation evaluation process.

Dated at

_________________________

this

______

day of

_______________,

2014.

FIRM NAME (if applicable):

BIDDER’S AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL:

TITLE:

SIGNATURE:



This page to be submitted with Proposal

Request for Proposals

CGP-RFP-OO1-201 5

Housing for Seniors and Persons Living with Disabilities

Please check appropriate response:

Conflict of Interest Declaration

I/we hereby confirm that there is not nor was there any actual or perceived conflict of
interest in our submission or performing/providing the GoodslServices required by the
Ag teem ent.

The following is a list of situations, each of which may be a conflict of interest, or appears
as potentially a conflict of interest in our submission or the contractual obligations under
the Agreement.

List Situations:

In making this quotation submission, I/we/our Company has I has no (strike out inapplicable
portion) knowledge of or the ability to avail ourselves of confidential information of the City (other
than confidential information which may have been disclosed by the City in the normal course of
the quotation process) and the confidential information was relevant to the Work/Services, their
pricing or quotation evaluation process.

‘/

Dated at_./ ..c this 7/ _day of

_________

6’

FIRM NAME (if applicable):

BIDDER’S AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL:

TITLE:

L/

SIGNATURE:



Proposal Evaluation Criteria

An evaluation team consisting of key municipal staff and members of the community will

conduct the evaluation of proposals.

The City of Temiskaming Shores reserves the right in its evaluation of the proposal to consider

all pertinent criteria whether or not such criteria are contained in the Request for Proposals.

PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA MAXIMUM

POINTS POINTS
Qualifications, Experience, Ability to undertake successful 30
project
Experience of developer or their contractor

Qualifications of developer or their contractor

Ability to obtain financing for the project
Ability to meet 3 year timeline to complete construction

Completeness and quality of Request for Proposal submission

Demonstrated need for universal design housing
Affordable Housing Partnership Letter of Intent with a Social
Services agency or non-profit housing corporation
Design based on Universal Design Principles 60

Number of units that are designed based on Universal Design
Principles
Floor plan
Modest size units

Open concept with fewer doors, fewer hallways, and rooms
that flow into one another
Continuous accessible path of travel of at lease 915mm (36”)
wide throughout all living spaces. This path should provide
access to all furniture, storage units, switches and controls.
Circular turning spaces of 1 525mm (69”).
Hallways at least 1220mm (48”) wide

Doors
Doors that are at least 915mm (36”) wide. Omit doors that are
not necessary.
Clear floor space at least 600mm (24”) is recommended at the
latch side of the door on the pull side; and 300mm (12”) in the
push side
Door handle and lock can be operated using only one hand.
Lever door handles. Push button locking mechanisms.
Window in entry door that is no higher than 91 5mm (36”)
Level door thresholds or less than 6mm (1/4” high)



Windows
Sill height no higher than 765mm (30”)
Sill height in bedroom no higher than 610mm (24”)
Casement, awning, and hopper windows that can be easily
opened with one hand using a crank handle or lever and the
opening and locking mechanisms are easy to reach.
Sliding windows so long as they are not large and heavy.
Window opening and locking mechanisms should be between
6 10mm and 1220 mm (24 and 48”) from the floor with a clear
760mm x 1220mm (30” x 48’ floor space in front of window
controls.

Cabinets and Storage
Adjustable shelving and storage systems.
Maximize storage options with 400-1200mm (16-47”) reach.
Pull-out drawers and shelves.
Cabinet hardware can be operated with one hand without tight
grasping, pinching or twisting wrist. D-shaped handles work
well as well as touch latches.

Kitchen
Kitchen with work surfaces for standing and seated use
Kitchen with storage options within teach —drawers and pull
out shelves
Cabinet hardware can be operated with one hand without tight
grasping, pinching or twisting wrist. D-shaped handles work
well as well as touch latches.
Knee room under sink

Single lever or hands-free faucet

Laundry Room

Main floor laundry room

Pedestal to raise appliances 406mm (16”) off floor

Front load appliances with controls at front

Entrance

Free from steps and stairs

Covered from weather

Pathway from parking area to main entrance 1220mm (48”)
wide, slope no greater than 1/12, stable surface such as
concrete, asphalt, interlock; good drainage; slip resistant finish
Ramp with slope no greater than 1/12.

Good lighting, motion sensors

Floor finishes that are level, smooth, slip resistant and glare
free such as ceramic, hardwood, laminate, vinyl



Lighting

Dimmer switches

Plenty of electrical outlets minimum 610mm (24”) from floor

Light switches — 860-960mm (34-38”) from floor

Good and consistent lighting in hallways and entrances,
stairwells, work surfaces in bathroom and kitchen
Task lighting under cabinets, and over work surfaces in
bathroom and kitchen
Motion detectors in rooms not normally occupied

Bathroom

Bathroom that features enough space to accommodate a
walker or wheelchair
Grab Bars near shower

Larger, spa-type, curbless shower stall capable of
accommodating a seat or stool and featuring easy to use
controls, non-slip surface
Towel racks located near the shower

Storage for makeup and medicine near the vanitylsink

Showerhead on a vertical slide bar

Raised seat for the toilet

Grab bars that fold down on both sides of toilet

Single lever or hands-free sink faucet

Sink with knee room under it — pipes wrapped for safety

Colour considerations

Walls contrast with windows/doors

Switch plates and electrical outlets contrast with walls

Counter top contrasts with cabinets

Matte finishes (non-glare)

Walls contrast with floors

Door handles contrast with door; cabinet handles contrast with
cabinet, window handles contrast with windows

Energy Efficiency 10
A minimum of R insulation in walls, R ceilings
Energy efficient natural gas furnace, hot water

Thermostats 860 — 960mm (34” — 38”) above from floor

Energy efficient appliances

Energy efficient bathroom fixtures and kitchen faucets

Energy efficient lighting

Energy efficient windows

Energy efficient landscaping
Remote control doors, windows, blinds, lights, heat controls



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

Subject: Delegation of Powers Report No.: CS-023-2015 
  Agenda Date: June 16, 2015 

 
Attachments 
Appendix 01: By-law No. 2010-123 
Appendix 02: Draft delegating By-law 

Recommendations 

It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of 
Administrative Report No. CS-022-2015; and 

2. That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to for the delegation of 
various powers for consideration at the June 16, 2015 Regular Council meeting. 

Background 

The Clerk’s Office initiated development of training documents related to the Records 
Retention and requirements under the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection 
of Privacy Act (MFIPPA) with the purpose of enhance staff’s understanding of their roles 
and responsibilities for the retention of documents as well as collection, storage and 
distribution of information. 

Section 3 (1) – Designation of Head of MFIPPA states “The members elected of the 
council of a municipality may by by-law designate from among themselves an individual 
or a committee of the council to act as head of the municipality for the purposes of this 
Act.” 

Typically a municipality delegates the Clerk to act as head for the purpose of 
compliance with the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. 
Upon review of City by-laws for delegation of powers, the City adopted By-law No. 
2010-123, attached hereto as Appendix 01. By-law No. 2010-123 outlines various 
powers that Council may delegate and based on Appendix 1 to the by-law delegated the 
authority to employ employees below the rank of Director to fill vacant positions to the 
Acting City Manager for the period between September 10, 2010 until December 31, 
2010. In essence By-law No. 2010-123 expired on December 31, 2010 and the 
municipality is in default of Section 270 (1)(6) of the Municipal Act requiring the adoption 
and maintenance of policies with respect to delegation of powers and duties. 

Analysis 

Under Section 270 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001 reads as follows: 

 
Corporate Services Page 1 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

A municipality shall adopt and maintain policies with respect to the following matters: 
1. Its sale and other disposition of land; 
2. its hiring of employees; 
3. its procurement of goods and services; 
4. the circumstances in which the municipality shall provide notice to the public and, if 

notice is to be provided, the form, manner and times notice is to be given; 
5. The manner in which the municipality will try to ensure that it is accountable to the 

public for its actions, and the manner in which the municipality will try to ensure 
that its actions are transparent to the public; and 

6. the delegation of its powers and duties. 

Appendix 02 – Draft Delegating By-law outlines the powers and duties to which Council 
would be delegating which are summarized as follows: 

City Manager: Duties and responsibilities delegated to City Manager geared 
towards day to day operations of the municipality. 

Improve Loans: authorize Treasurer and Clerk to sign Community Improvement 
Loans. 

Facility Rentals: Delegation to the Director of Recreation the powers to enter into 
agreements for the rental of facilities. 

MFFIPA: Delegation to the Clerk to act as head of the institution for the 
purpose of the Act. 

Property: Delegation to negotiate and acquire property on behalf of 
municipality for values under $50,000, execute real estate 
transaction for values under $50,000 and execute leases for rents 
less than $50,000. 

Service Agts: Delegation to managing Director to enter into agreements associated 
with providing services in accordance to Purchasing By-law. 

SPCA: Delegation to City Manager to execute Site Plan Control Agreements 
where interest of municipality is adequately protected. 

Subdivision Agt: Delegation to City staff to negotiate Subdivision Agreements based 
on certain criteria. 

Taxi Licensing: Delegation of powers to license and regulate taxicabs to Community 
Growth and Planning. 

Road Closure: Delegation of the power to close roads to Public Works for special 
events (i.e. BBQ’s) and infrastructure construction and/or repair. 

 
Corporate Services Page 2 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

It is recommended that Council direct staff to prepare the necessary by-law to delegate 
the above noted powers and duties. 

Financial / Staffing Implications 
This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   
This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A   

There is no financial implication with the adoption of a delegating by-law. 

Alternatives 

No alternatives were considered in the preparation of this report. 

Submission 
Prepared by: Reviewed and approved by: Reviewed and submitted for 
  Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” “Original signed by” “Original signed by” 
___________________ ________________________ _______________________ 
David B. Treen, CET Shelly Zubyck, CHRP Christopher W. Oslund 
Municipal Clerk Director of Corporate Services City Manager 

 
Corporate Services Page 3 
 



C C”

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF TEMISKAMING SHORES
BY-LAW NO. 2010-1 23

BEING A BY-LAW TO ADOPT THE
DELEGATION OF POWERS AND DUTIES POLICY FOR THE CITY OF

TEMISKAMING SHORES

WHEREAS section 270. (1) (6) of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended, provides that
every municipality shall adopt and maintain policies with respect to the delegation of
powers and duties;

AND WHEREAS Council deems it expedient to pass a by-law with respect to the
delegation of powers and duties to municipal staff;

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF
TEMISKAMING SHORES HEREBY ENACTS THE FOLLOWING AS A BY-LAW:

1. That the Policy for the Delegation of Powers and Duties attached as Schedule
“A” hereto is hereby adopted.

2. This by-law shall take force and effect upon being passed.

READ a FIRST, SECOND and THIRD TIME and FINALLY PASSED this 7th day of
September, 2010.

--

MAYOR

/72/ --

CLERK



C C

I
Dt,inond
FIaileyburi
Nezv Liskctird

City of • Wile de

Terniskarning
Shores

Discover a whole new O,ttario • Découvrez un tout nouvet Ontario

DELEGATION OF POWERS AND DUTIES POLICY

SCHEDULE “A” TO

BY-LAW 2010-123



C C
DELEGATION OF POWERS SCHEDULE “A” TO
AND DUTIES POLICY BY-LAW NO. 2010-123

PURPOSE

Section 270 of the Municipal Act, 2007, as amended (the “Act”) requires that all
municipalities adopt and maintain a policy with respect to the delegation of Council’s
legislative and administrative authority.

The purpose of this policy is to set out the scope of the powers and duties which Council
may delegate its legislative and administrative authority and to establish principles
governing such delegation. This policy has been developed in accordance with the Act in
order to comply with its other applicable sections, including section 270. This policy applies
to all committees of Council, departments and staff.

DEFINITIONS

1) “Legislative Powers” - includes all matters where Council acts in a legislative or
quasi judicial function including enacting by-laws, setting policies, and exercising
decision making authority.

ii) “Administrative Powers” - includes all matters required for the management of
the corporation which do not involve discretionary decision making.

POLICY STATEMENT

The Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores, as a duly elected
municipal government is directly accountable to its constituents for its legislative decision
making, policies, and administrative functions. Council’s decisions are generally expressed
by by-law or resolution of Council carried by a majority vote. The efficient management of
the municipal corporation and the need to respond to issues in a timely fashion require
Council to entrust certain powers and duties to designated staff while concurrently
maintaining accountability, which can be effectively accomplished through the delegation of
certain legislative and administrative functions. Council authority will be delegated within the
context set out in the Act and will respect the applicable restrictions outlined in the Act.

POLICY REQUIREMENTS

1. All delegations of Council powers, duties or functions shall be effected by by-law.

2. Unless a power, duty, or function of Council has been expressly delegated by bylaw,
all of the powers, duties and functions of Council remain with Council.

3. A delegation of a power, duty or function under any by-law to any member of staff
includes a delegation to a person who is appointed by the City Manager or selected
from time to time by the delegate to act in the capacity of the delegate in the
delegate’s absence.

Page 2 of 4



C C
DELEGATION OF POWERS SCHEDULE “A” TO
AND DUTIES POLICY BY-LAW NO. 2010-123

4. Subject to section 3, a person to whom a power, duty or function of Council has
been delegated by by-law has no authority to further delegate to another person any
power, duty or function that has been delegated, unless such sub-delegation is
expressly permitted.

5. Legislative matters may be delegated by Council where they are minor in nature or
where Council has explicitly provided for the terms and conditions under which the
powers shall be exercised, and must take into account the limitations set out in the
Act.

6. Administrative matters may generally be delegated to staff subject to the conditions
set out in the delegation and in this policy, and must take into account the limitations
set out in the Act.

7. Council has authorized the delegation of specific administrative matters to those
individuals listed in Appendix “1” subject to the terms set out therein.

GENERAL DELEGATION LIMITS AND RULES

In exercising any delegated power, the delegate shall ensure the following:

• Any expenditure related to the matter shall have been provided for in the current
year’s budget (or as authorized by the City’s Purchasing By-law).

• The scope of the delegated authority shall not be exceeded by the delegate.

• Where required by the specific delegated authority, reports shall be submitted to
Council advising of the exercise of a delegated power and confirming compliance
with the delegated authority and this policy.

• All policies regarding insurance and risk management shall be complied with.

• Delegates shall ensure the consistent and equitable application of Council policies
and guidelines.

• Any undertaking or contract with a third party shall be subject to the approval of legal
services.

POWERS AND DUTIES THAT CAN NOT BE DELEGATED

• The power to appoint or remove from office an officer of the municipality whose
appointment is required by the Act.

• The power to pass a by-law for municipal taxation, limitation on taxes for certain
property classes or tax collection.

Page 3 of 4



C C
DELEGATION OF POWERS SCHEDULE “A” TO
AND DUTIES POLICY BY-LAW NO. 2010-123

• The power to incorporate corporations.

• The power to adopt an official plan or an amendment to an official plan under the
Planning Act.

• To pass a zoning by-law under the Planning Act.

• The power to pass a by-law for the establishment of a counseling service to small
businesses operating in the municipality or for the provision of municipal capital
facilities.

• The power to adopt a community improvement plan.

• The power to adopt or amend the budget of the municipality.

• Any other power or duty that may be prescribed.

DELEGATION

The delegated powers and duties by Council to municipal officers, staff positions,
agents, and appointees which may change from time as directed by Council, is attached
as Appendix “1” to this policy.

ADMINISTRATION

This policy shall apply to all municipal officers, staff, appointees and agents with respect
to carrying out delegated powers and duties of Council.

ATTACHMENTS

Appendix “1”— Delegation Approval

Page 4 of 4



DELEGATION OF POWERS APPENDIX “1” TO SCHEDULE “A”
AND DUTIES POLICY OF BY-LAW NO. 2010-123

ACTING CITY MANAGER

1. The following duties and responsibilities are delegated to the Acting City
Manager for the period of September 10, 2010 until December 31, 2010 at
which time this Appendix shall expire and the delegated authority returned to
the Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores:

a) to have authority to employ employees below the rank of Director to fill
vacant positions considered expedient and critical to the operations of the
City of Temiskaming Shores, in accordance with applicable City Policies.



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
By-law No. 2015-000 

Being a by-law to adopt the Delegation of Powers and Duties 
Policy for the City of Temiskaming Shores 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as amended, 
the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to govern its affairs 
as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s ability to responds to 
municipal issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural 
person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  

Whereas under Section 270 (1)(6) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, provides that every municipality shall adopt and maintain policies with 
respect to the delegation of powers and duties; 

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report CS-023-2015 at the June 16, 
2015 Regular meeting of Council and directed staff to prepare the necessary by-law for 
the adoption of a Delegation of Powers and Duties Policy for the City of Temiskaming 
Shores; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby adopts a Policy for the 
Delegation of Powers and Duties, a copy of which is attached hereto as Schedule “A” 
forming part of this by-law; 

2. That  the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make 
minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical nature to the 
by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where such modifications or 
corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its associated schedule. 

Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 16th day of June, 2015. 

 
______________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 
 
______________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 
 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law No. 2015-000 

Delegation of Powers and Duties Policy 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Delegation of Powers Policy By-law No. 2015-000 
 

Delegation of Powers and Duties Policy 

Purpose 

Section 270 of the Municipal Act, 2001 as amended (the “Act”) requires that all 
municipalities adopt and maintain a policy with respect to the delegation of Council’s 
legislative and administrative authority. 

The purpose of this policy is to set out the scope of the powers and duties which 
Council may delegate its legislative and administrative authority and to establish 
principles governing such delegation. This policy has been developed in accordance 
with the Act in order to comply with its other applicable sections, including section 270. 
This Policy applies to all committees of Council, departments and staff. 

Definitions 

i. Legislative Powers includes all matters where Council acts in a legislative or quasi-
judicial function including enacting by-laws, setting policies, and exercising decision 
making authority; 

ii. Administrative Powers includes all matters required for the management of the 
corporation which do not involve discretionary decision making. 

Policy Statement 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores, as a duly elected 
municipal government is directly accountable to its constituents for its legislative 
decision making, policies and administrative functions. Council’s decisions are generally 
expressed by by-law or resolution of Council carried by a majority vote. The efficient 
management of the municipal corporation and the need to respond to issues in a timely 
fashion require Council to entrust certain powers and duties to designated staff while 
concurrently maintaining accountability, which can be effectively accomplished through 
the delegation of certain legislative and administrative functions. Council authority will 
be delegated within the context set out in the Act and will respect the applicable 
restrictions outlined in the Act. 

Policy Requirements 

1. All delegations of Council powers, duties or functions shall be effected by by-law; 

2. Unless a power, duty or function of Council has been expressly delegated by by-
law, all of the powers, duties and functions of Council remain with Council; 

3. A delegation of a power, duty or function under any by-law to any member of staff 
includes a delegation to a person who is appointed by the City Manager or selected 
from time to time by the delegate to act in the capacity of the delegate in the 
delegate’s absence; 

4. Subject to section 3, a person whom a power, duty or function has been delegated 
by by-law has no authority to further delegate to another person any power, duty or 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Delegation of Powers Policy By-law No. 2015-000 
 

function that has been delegated, unless such sub-delegation is expressly 
permitted; 

5. Legislative matters may be delegated by Council where they are minor in nature or 
where Council has explicitly provided for the terms and conditions under which the 
powers shall be exercised, and must take into account the limitations set out in the 
Act; 

6. Administrative matters may generally be delegated to staff subject to the conditions 
set out in the delegation and in this policy, and must take into account the limitations 
set out in the Act; 

7. Council has authorized the delegation of specific administrative matters to those 
individuals listed in Appendix 01 subject to the terms set out therein. 

 

General Delegation Limits and Rules 

In exercising any delegated power, the delegate shall ensure the following: 

 Any expenditure related to the matter shall have been provided for in the current 
year’s budget (or as authorized by the City’s Purchasing By-law); 

 The scope of the delegated authority shall not be exceeded by the delegate; 

 Where required by the specific delegated authority, reports shall be submitted to 
Council advising of exercise of a delegated power and confirming compliance 
with the delegated authority and this policy; 

 All policies regarding insurance and risk management shall be complied with; 

 Delegates shall ensure the consistent and equitable application of Council 
policies and guidelines; 

 Any undertaking or contract with a third party shall be subject to the approval of 
the City Manager. 



City of Temiskaming Shores Appendix 01 to Schedule “A” to 
Delegation of Powers Policy By-law No. 2015-000 
 

Appendix 01 

Delegation of Powers and Duties 

1. City Manager 

The following duties and responsibilities are delegated to the City Manager. 

1.1 to direct and coordinate the business of the City in all its branches and 
departments in accordance with the policies and plans established and 
approved by Council; 

1.2 to direct and coordinate the preparation of plans and programs to be submitted 
to the Council and to the appropriate Committees of Council for the 
development, construction, maintenance, improvement and rehabilitation of the 
City property and facilities and for the development and improvement of City 
services; 

1.3 to direct and coordinate the compilation, consideration and presentation to 
Council, and the appropriate Committees, recommendations arising from 
departmental operations, which require Council’s approval and to propose by-
laws or resolutions arising from such recommendations; 

1.4 to direct the preparation and compilation of and to present to Council, the 
annual estimates of revenues and expenditures and the annual review of the 
periodic capital forecasts; 

1.5 to exercise general financial control over all departments in terms of the 
approved appropriation; 

1.6 to direct the placing and maintaining of adequate insurance on all City property, 
and to negotiate for the purchase and sale of all real property on behalf of the 
City; 

1.7 to have general control over all City purchasing with authority to enter into 
contracts for individual purchases of materials required for the normal operating 
of the budget not exceeding the sum of $50,000 including purchases provided 
for by any approved construction by-laws, provided that such expenditures are 
included within the annual estimates as approved by Council; 

1.8 to direct collective bargaining with all City employees within collective 
bargaining units, to recommend to Council agreements concerning wages, 
salaries and working conditions and upon approval by Council, to administer 
such agreements and in general to be responsible for wage and salary 
administration subject to normal grievance procedures, and to recommend to 
Council and its appropriate Committee, a system of grievance procedures for 
such employees as are not covered by existing agreements, or included in 
collective bargaining units; 

1.9 to have full control and direction of all City employees, except with respect to 



City of Temiskaming Shores Appendix 01 to Schedule “A” to 
Delegation of Powers Policy By-law No. 2015-000 
 

the statutory duties of such officials as are appointed pursuant to statute, and 
also subject to the personnel policies approved by Council; 

i. to have authority to recommend to Council the appointment, employment, 
suspension or dismissal of Managing Directors or the Treasurer; 

ii. to have authority to appoint, employ, suspend or dismiss for cause 
employees below the rank of Managing Directors or the Treasurer and not 
covered by collective bargaining agreements, subject to their right to 
appeal to Council in respect of any suspension or dismissal; 

iii. to have authority to appoint and employ other employees of the City in 
accordance with procedures contained in collective bargaining 
agreements, and to suspend or dismiss such employees for cause, 
subject to the normal grievance procedures contained in the relevant 
collective bargaining agreements; 

1.10 to present to the Council reports and information regarding progress and 
accomplishments of programs and projects, the status of revenues and 
expenditures, and the general administration of the City; 

1.11 to have cognizance of all correspondence and communications to the 
Corporation and to receive all communications from the several local boards 
and commissions and to direct the submission of the same to the Council, 
together with his/her recommendations thereon; 

1.12 to meet with Senior Management regularly to discuss matters of policy which 
have been agreed upon by the Council and to coordinate all departmental 
activities; and 

1.13 to perform such other duties and exercise such other powers as the Council 
may from time to time lawfully assign to him/her. 

 

2. Community Improvement Loans 

The Treasurer and the Clerk shall be delegated the authority to sign Community 
Improvement Loan Agreements on behalf of the City of Temiskaming Shores. 

 

3. Facility Rentals 

That the Director of Recreation or his/her delegate be authorized to enter into 
agreements associated with the rental of facilities. These activities would include such 
things as ice and field rental, park rentals and arena rentals for conventions, concerts 
and special events. 

 



City of Temiskaming Shores Appendix 01 to Schedule “A” to 
Delegation of Powers Policy By-law No. 2015-000 
 
4. Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act 

The Clerk shall be delegated to act as head of the institution for the purpose of the 
Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. 

 

5. Property 

5.1 The City Manager be delegated the authority to negotiate and authorize the 
acquisition of property on behalf of the municipality for values under $50,000. 

5.2 The City Manager and Clerk be delegated the authority to execute all 
documents necessary to complete the real estate transaction for property 
acquisitions on behalf of the municipality for values under $50,000. 

5.3 The City Manager and Clerk be delegated the authority to execute all 
documents necessary to complete the lease of City-owned land for up to a 10 
year term and for annual rents less than $50,000. 

 

6. Provision of Service Agreements 

6.1 The Managing Directors be authorized to enter into agreements associated with 
providing services, so long as the value associated with such agreements are 
within the signing authority defined under the Purchasing By-law. 

6.2 The Clerk shall, upon receipt of all required certificates and documentation, co-
sign all agreements for record purposes. 

 

7. Site Plan Control Agreements 

The City Manager, or his/her authorized delegate, is hereby authorized to execute any 
site plan control agreement in a zone designated as a Site Plan Control Area by City of 
Temiskaming Shores applicable zoning by-law where, in the opinion of the City 
Manager, the interest of the municipality and the subject neighborhood are adequately 
protected by the agreement. 

 

8. Subdivision Agreements 

8.1 The Director of Community Growth and Planning, Director of Public Works are 
delegated the authority to enter into negotiations on behalf of the City with land 
developers relating to Subdivision Agreements with respect to the following conditions, 
provisions, matters and items: 

8.1.1 Planning 



City of Temiskaming Shores Appendix 01 to Schedule “A” to 
Delegation of Powers Policy By-law No. 2015-000 
 

In general, when a plan of subdivision creates more than three lots or involves 
the dedication of road allowance, the developer will be required to prepare a 
plan and register same in the appropriate Land Titles Office. 

8.1.2 Services 

Standard requirements in new subdivisions will include the following: 

a) Watermains; 
b) Storm Sewers (where physically possible); 
c) Curbs and Gutters (where possible); 
d) Paved Streets; 
e) Sidewalks (at least one side of collector or arterial roads); 
f) Street lights; 
g) Street signs; 
h) Sodded boulevards; 
i) Rear lot drainage (where required); 
j) Underground wiring where soil conditions permit, subject to a satisfactory 

agreement with the associated utility. 

The subdivider will pay for the entire cost of the above fixtures. 

8.1.3 Financial Arrangements 

a) The developer will pay for all internal services required for the subdivision 
and the developer will post security for the 10 percent (10%) holdback 
required under the Construction Lien Act for the value of all work to be done 
on lands dedicated or to be dedicated as public highways by way of an 
irrevocable letter of credit from a bank or trust company which letter of 
credit shall not expire prior to the completion of the works. 

b) The City will participate on a negotiated basis for oversizing of facilities. In 
general, the City will only pay for the cost of the oversized required. The 
facility will be constructed by the developer and he will be reimbursed from 
the Extended Service Charges levied against the subdivision. 

c) The developer will be expected to commute all Local Improvement Charges 
against the lands to be subdivided. 

d) Where lots or blocks are provided with direct access the developer will pay 
one-half of the cost of boundary road improvements subject to oversizing 
negotiations. 

e) Offsite services required by the subdivision will be paid for on a basis to be 
negotiated with Council. 

f) The maximum amount of funds to be contributed by the City towards the 
participation in negotiated shared servicing costs for any one subdivision 
will not exceed the total sum of the funds derived from that subdivision as 



City of Temiskaming Shores Appendix 01 to Schedule “A” to 
Delegation of Powers Policy By-law No. 2015-000 
 

the Extended Service Fee. 
g) Extended service charges levied on a per dwelling unit basis at a rate to be 

determined from time to time will be paid by the developer at the time 
application is made for building permits. 

8.1.4 Oversizing 

Oversizing means in excess of the normal requirements of the subdivision or 
the following: 

a) Watermain – over 200 mm (8”) in diameter; 
b) Sanitary Sewers – over 200 mm (8”) in diameter; 
c) Storm Sewers over 680 mm (27”) in diameter; 
d) Roads – over 8.5 m (28’) in width. 

8.2 All such Subdivision Agreements shall be subject to approval by Council prior to 
the execution thereof. 

 

9. Taxi Licensing 

The exercise of the power under Section 156. (1) of the Municipal Act to license and 
regulate the business of taxicabs is hereby delegated to the Community Growth and 
Planning Department. 

 

10. Temporary Road Closures 

The Director of Public Works and/or the Roads Superintendent be delegated the 
authority to approve temporary road closures for the purpose of special events and 
infrastructure construction and/or repair. 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

Subject: Municipal Property Tax Policy Report No.: CS-024-2015 
Amendment (By-law 2007-045) Agenda Date: June 16, 2015 

 
Attachments 
Appendix 01: By-law 2007-045 Section 11 – Current wording 
Appendix 02: Draft Amending By-law 

Recommendations 
It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of 
Administrative Report No. CS-024-2015; and 

2. That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to amend By-law No. 
2007-045 to reflect the changes to Section 11 – Non Tax Debt for consideration at 
the June 16, 2015 Regular Council meeting. 

Background 

On April 24, 2007, Council passed By-law No. 2007-045 being a by-law for the Adoption 
of a Municipal Property Tax Policy. 

Section 11 (see Appendix 01) deals with Non-Tax Debt being charged to the property 
tax roll. Invoices related to non-tax debt are billed through the Accounts Receivable 
system and it takes approximately 90 days before these charges would be charged to 
the tax account if unpaid.   

Non-tax debt charges include, but are not limited to, returned cheque fees, water on/off 
charges, water/sewer connection fees, property standards orders and executions, 
facility rentals (hall, ice, equipment, marina, storage, etc.), program fees (memberships, 
registrations, user fees, etc.) and cemetery fees. 

Analysis 

Finance staff have determined that it would be more efficient to have property tax 
related charges (returned cheque fees on property related charges, water on/off, 
water/sewer connection fees and property standards orders and executions, etc.) 
applied immediately to the tax account upon invoicing.  Penalty would accrue at 1.25% 
if the invoice remains unpaid after 30 days consistent with the Accounts Receivable 
policy, By-law No. 2012-062, as amended. 

Due to the 90 day collection period under the Accounts Receivable policy, there are 
circumstances that arise where the property is sold prior to the non-debt charges being 
applied to the property tax account.  In these cases collection after 90 days reverts to a 
Collection Agency. 

 
Corporate Services Page 1 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

Staff recommends replacement of Section 11 of Schedule “A” to By-law No. 2007-045 
to amend the procedure and time frames for non-tax debt invoicing that is property 
related. 

Appendix 02 – Draft amending by-law identifies the amendment to Section 11. 

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   
This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A   

Staffing implications related to this matter are limited to normal administrative functions 
and duties. 

The amendment to the policy should result in more efficient collection processes for 
property related non-tax debt. 

Alternatives 

No alternatives were considered in the preparation of this report. 

Submission 
Prepared by: Reviewed and approved by: Reviewed and submitted for 
  Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” “Original signed by” “Original signed by”  
___________________ ________________________ _______________________ 
Laura Lee MacLeod Shelly Zubyck, CHRP Christopher W. Oslund 
Treasurer Director of Corporate Services City Manager 

 
Corporate Services Page 2 



 

Current wording of Section 11 of By-law No. 2007-045 Municipal Tax Policy 

11. Non-Tax Debt 

As per Section 398 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001 identifies debt as “fees and charges 
imposed by a municipality or local board on a person constitute a debt of the person to 
the municipality or local board, respectively”. 

Section 398 (2) states that non-tax debt can be added to the tax roll and collected in the 
same manner as municipal taxes. 

“Section 398 (2) Amount owing added to tax roll – The treasurer of a local municipality 
may, and upon the request of its upper-tier municipality, if any, or of a local board 
whose area of jurisdiction includes any part of the municipality shall, add fees and 
charges imposed by the municipality, upper-tier municipality or local board, respectively, 
to the tax roll for the following property in the local municipality and collect them in the 
same manner as municipal taxes: 

1. In the case of fees and charges for the supply of a public utility, the property to 
which the public utility was supplied. 

2. In all other cases, any property for which all of the owners are responsible for 
paying the fees and charges.” 

Procedure: 

i) All fees and charges will be initially processed thru the Accounts Receivable 
system as generated by the applicable department. 

ii) If an invoice remains unpaid for 60 days or more, a reminder letter will be 
generated from Accounts Receivable.  A deadline for payment will be applied 
and notification that the unpaid invoice will be added to the tax roll if it remains 
unpaid past the deadline. 

iii) If the invoice remains unpaid after the imposed deadline as stated in the 
reminder letter, the charge along with all penalty accrued to date will be 
removed from the Accounts Receivable system and added to the tax roll for 
collection. 

The scope of fees and charges that will be added to the tax roll if unpaid include but are 
not limited to the following: 

i) Returned cheque fees 
ii) Water On/Off charges 
iii) Water/Sewer Connection fees 
iv) Property Standards By-law clean up orders 
v) Facility rentals (hall, ice, equipment, marina, storage, etc.) 

Appendix 01 
CS-024-2015 

June 16, 2015 



 

vi) Program fees (memberships, registrations, user fees, etc.) 
vii) Cemetery fees 

 

 



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
By-law No. 2015-000 

Being a by-law to amend By-law No. 2007-045, being a 
by-law for the adoption of a Municipal Property Tax 

Policy 

Whereas Section 306 to Section 389 inclusive of the Municipal Act, S.O. 2001, 
c.25, as amended, provides legislation with respect to municipal property taxes; 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to 
govern its affairs as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s 
ability to respond to municipal issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural 
person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public; 

And whereas the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
adopted By-law No. 2007-045 for the adoption of a Municipal Property Tax Policy 
on September 16, 2008; 

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report CS-024-2015 at the June 
16, 2015 Regular Meeting of Council directing staff to prepare the necessary by-
law to amend By-law No. 2007-045 for consideration at the June 16, 2015 Regular 
meeting of Council; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That Council hereby amends Schedule “A” to By-law No. 2011-158 by 
deleting Article 11 and replacing it with the following: 

11. Non-Tax Debt 

As per Section 398 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001 identifies debt as “fees and 
charges imposed by a municipality or local board on a person constitute a 
debt of the person to the municipality or local board, respectively”. 

Section 398 (2) states that non-tax debt can be added to the tax roll and 
collected in the same manner as municipal taxes. 

“Section 398 (2) Amount owing added to tax roll – The treasurer of a local 
municipality may, and upon the request of its upper-tier municipality, if any, or 
of a local board whose area of jurisdiction includes any part of the municipality 
shall, add fees and charges imposed by the municipality, upper-tier 

Appendix 02 
CS-024-2015 

June 16, 2015 



municipality or local board, respectively, to the tax roll for the following 
property in the local municipality and collect them in the same manner as 
municipal taxes: 

1. In the case of fees and charges for the supply of a public utility, the 
property to which the public utility was supplied. 

2. In all other cases, any property for which all of the owners are 
responsible for paying the fees and charges.” 

a) Non-Tax Debt - Other 

Procedure: 

i) All fees and charges will be initially processed thru the Accounts 
Receivable system as generated by the applicable department. 

ii) If an invoice remains unpaid for 60 days or more, a reminder letter will 
be generated from Accounts Receivable.  A deadline for payment will be 
applied and notification that the unpaid invoice will be added to the tax 
roll if it remains unpaid past the deadline. 

iii) If the invoice remains unpaid after the imposed deadline as stated in the 
reminder letter, the charge along with all penalty accrued to date will be 
removed from the Accounts Receivable system and added to the tax roll 
for collection. 

The scope of fees and charges that will be added to the tax roll if unpaid 
include but are not limited to the following: 

i) Facility rentals (hall, ice, equipment, marina, storage, etc.) 
ii) Program fees (memberships, registrations, user fees, etc.) 
iii) Cemetery fees 
 

b) Non-Tax Debt – Property Related Charges 

Procedure: 

i) An invoice will be processed for all fees and charges for property related 
charges.   

ii) The invoice will applied directly to the applicable tax account. 
iii) If the invoice remains unpaid after the due date as stated on the invoice, 

penalty will be applied at a rate of 1.25% per month. 

The scope of fees and charges that will be applied directly to the tax roll are 
not limited to the following: 

i) Returned Cheque Fees for any property related charges 



ii) Water On/Off Charges 
iii) Water/Sewer Connection Fees 
iv) Property Standards Orders and Executions 

 

2. That is by-law shall come into effect upon its passing. 

3. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to 
make minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical 
nature to the by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where 
such modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its 
associated schedule. 

Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 16th day of June, 
2015. 

 

__________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

Subject: Appointment of Volunteer Firefighter Report No.: PPP-005-2015 
 Kevin Dufresne Agenda Date: June 16, 2015 

 
Attachments 
None 

Recommendations 

It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of 
Administrative Report No. PPP-005-2015; and 

2. That Council hereby appoints Kevin Dufresne as a Volunteer Firefighter to the 
Temiskaming Shores Fire Department in accordance with the Volunteer 
Firefighter Hiring and Promotional Policy. 

Background 

In an effort to fill a vacancy within the department at the Haileybury Fire Station, and to 
help ensure adequate staffing levels are maintained, the Department is seeking to fill a 
vacant Volunteer Firefighter’s position at the Haileybury Fire Station. 

Analysis 

Section 4.02 of Schedule “A” to By-law 2008-030, being the Fire Department 
Establishing and Regulating By-law for the Temiskaming Shores Fire Department, 
states that for the purposes of ensuring adequate staffing, twenty (20) shall be used as 
a guideline for the minimum number of firefighters per District Station and in no case 
shall the number of firefighters per District Station exceed twenty-five (25). 

Based on the identified need to fill one of the vacancies at the Haileybury Fire Station, 
an interview with the candidate was conducted by the Fire Chief and the Fire 
Department’s Interview panel. Subsequently a recommendation from the Haileybury 
Fire Station was provided to the Fire Chief requesting consideration of the appointment 
of Mr. Kevin Dufresne as a Volunteer Firefighter to the Temiskaming Shores Fire 
Department. 

The candidate being recommended has demonstrated a strong desire to be a member 
of the Temiskaming Shores Fire Department team. This coupled with his work related 
experience make him an excellent candidate for the position he is being recommended 
for. 

 
Protection to Persons and Property Page 1 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

Based on the above, I am pleased to recommend Kevin Dufresne as a Volunteer 
Firefighter to the Temiskaming Shores Fire Department in accordance with the 
Volunteer Firefighter Hiring and Promotional Policy. 

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   
This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A   
 

Financial implications include the provision of appropriate Volunteer Firefighter 
Honorariums which have been included in the 2015 Fire and Emergency Management 
Services Operational Budget. All costs associated with the appointment would include 
the provision of dress uniforms and protective equipment that would be drawn from the 
fire departments 2015 and 2016 operational budgets. 

Staffing implications associated with the proposed appointment are limited to normal 
administrative functions and duties, and the requirement to fill the vacant position at the 
Dymond Fire Station. Adequate staffing levels are established based on availability and 
the ability of fire department personnel to respond.  

Current fire station staffing levels are as follows: 

 23 members for the Dymond Station with one member on leave of absence; 
 21 for the Haileybury Station; and 
 21 for the New Liskeard Station. 

Alternatives 

No alternatives were considered. 

Submission 

Prepared by: Reviewed and submitted for 
 Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” “Original signed by” 
___________________ _______________________ 
Timothy H. Uttley Christopher W. Oslund 
Fire Chief City Manager 
 
 

 
Protection to Persons and Property Page 2 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

Subject: Tender Award - Asphalt Marking Services Report No.: PW-035-2015 
  Agenda Date: June 16, 2015 

 
Attachments 
Appendix 01: Tender Results 
Appendix 02: Draft Agreement 

Recommendations 

It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of    
Administrative Report No. PW-035-2015;  

2. That Council approves the award of the 2015 Asphalt Marking Services contract to 
Grass King Inc. in the amount of $ 21,253.00 plus HST; and 

3. That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law and agreement for 
consideration at the June 16, 2015 Regular meeting of Council. 

Background 

Each year the City of Temiskaming Shores procures the services of experienced and 
qualified contractors for the supply and application of asphalt marking services at 
various locations within the City of Temiskaming Shores. 

The work shall consists generally of retracing existing asphalt markings comprised of 
directional markings, intersection stop blocks, school crossings and accessible parking 
stalls. 

The Tender documents were prepared and Tender PWO-TEN-006-2015 was distributed 
to previous and known potential bidders with closing date at 2:00 p.m. on June 4, 2015. 

Analysis 

Several tender documents were distributed and only one (1) tender was received by the 
closing date. 

Bidder Tender Amount HST Total 
Grass King Inc. $20,593.00 * $2,677.09 $23,270.09 

*additional work identified $660.00 $85.80 $24,015.89 

Amended Contract Price of $24,015.89 

Grass King has successfully demonstrated their ability to complete this work for 
Temiskaming Shores for the past five years. 

 
Public Works Page 1 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

The tender was analysed for errors and/or omissions and was found to be correct and 
complete. The Contractor indicated in the Form of Tender that the City had omitted, in 
error, various asphalt markings resulting in an addition of $660.00 plus HST to the 
original tendered price (Appendix 02, Page 3). The tendering process was in keeping 
with the City’s Purchasing Policy (By-Law 2009-012, as amended). 

The tendered amount for the intended work is considered to be reasonable and within 
the approved and allotted budget for roadway maintenance. 

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   
This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A   

A total of $40,000 was included in the 2015 Budget.  Costs to date are $40,365. 

The contract, inclusive of non-refundable HST, totals $21,627 which exceeds the 
approved budget estimate. 

Staff will investigate other operational savings to offset the budget overage.  

Alternatives 

No alternatives were considered. 

Submission 

 
Prepared by: Reviewed and submitted for 
 Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” “Original signed by”  
___________________ _______________________ 
G. Douglas Walsh, CET Christopher W. Oslund 
Director of Public Works City Manager 

 
Public Works Page 2 
 



City of Tern iskaming Shores Submission Opening

Document Title: PWO-RFT-006-2015 Opening Date: June 4, 2015

Opening Time: 2:00 pm
Description: Asphalt Marking Services

Inquiry Contact: G. Douglas Walsh, Director of Public Works

Form of Proposal

Bidder: ,

New Liskeard Working Area

22 Accessible Parking Spaces:

3 School Crossings:

5 Intersections: ) .

12 Directional Arrows: I

5 Transit Bus Stop Curbs: f7

Directional Markings (PW):

Haileybury Working Area

14 Accessible Parking Spaces:

8 Intersections: , (, 5r

12 Directional Arrows: I L’4
Parking Indicator Lines: 7

1 School Crossing: 7

1 Transit Bus Stop Curb: I

Sub-Total: r’O

HST:

Total:

Collusion Affidavit nflict of interest’

Bidder:

D Non Collusion Affidavit 0 Conflict of Interest

Comment: Submissions will be reviewed for errors, omissions and accuracy by municipal staff prior to any
awarding. Subsequently bidders will be informed of the results.

In Attendance:

Print Name

4%,(

/V’?Ct
frt_ ,

(/L4d

Representing

De

C_

New Liskeard Working Area

22 Accessible Parking Spaces:

3 School Crossings:

5 Intersections:

12 Directional Arrows:

5 Transit Bus Stop Curbs:

Directional Markings (PW):

Haileybury Working Area

14 Accessible Parking Spaces:

8 Intersections:

12 Directional Arrows:

Parking Indicator Lines:

1 School Crossing:

1 Transit Bus Stop Curb:

Sub-Total:

HST:

Total:

Page of

______



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2015-000 

Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with Grass 
King Inc. for the Supply and Application of Asphalt 

Marking Services at various locations within the City of 
Temiskaming Shores 

 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to 
govern its affairs as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s 
ability to responds to municipal issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a 
natural person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other 
Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, 
as amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. PW-035-2015 at the 
June 16th, 2015 Regular meeting of Council and directed staff to prepare the 
necessary by-law to enter into an agreement with Grass King Inc. for the Supply 
and Application of Asphalt Marking Services for consideration at the June 16th, 
2015 Regular meeting of Council; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores hereby enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That Council authorizes the entering into an agreement with Grass King 
Inc. for the Supply and Application of Asphalt Marking Services at various 
locations in the City of Temiskaming Shores, in the amount of $21,253.00 
plus applicable taxes, a copy of which is attached hereto as Schedule “A” 
and forming part of this by-law; 

2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to 
make minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical 
nature to the by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where 
such modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its 
associated schedule. 

  

Appendix 02 
PW-035-2015 

June 16, 2015 



Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 16th day of June, 
2015. 

 
________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 
 

 
Schedule “A” to 

By-law 2015-000 

Agreement between  

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

and 

Grass King Inc. 

for the Supply and Application of Asphalt Marking Services 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Asphalt Marking – Grass King By-law No. 2015-000  

 

 

This agreement made in duplicate this 16th day of June 2015. 
 
Between: 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
(hereinafter called “the Owner”) 

 
and 

Grass King Inc. 
(hereinafter called “the Contractor”) 

 

Witnesseth: 

That the Owner and the Contractor shall undertake and agree as follows: 

Article I: 

The Contractor will: 

a) Provide all material and perform all work described in the Contract Documents entitled: 

Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Supply and Application of Asphalt Marking Services 

Tender No. PWO-RFT-006-2015 

b) Do and fulfill everything indicated by this Agreement and in the Contract Documents 
attached hereto as Appendix 01 and forming part of this agreement; and 

c) Complete, as certified by the Director, all the work by July 30th, 2015. 

Article II: 

The Owner will: 

a) Pay the Contractor in lawful money of Canada for the material and services 
aforesaid Twenty -One Thousand – Two Hundred and Fifty-Three Dollars and 
Zero Cents ($21,253.00) plus applicable taxes subject to additions and 
deductions as provided in the Contract Documents. 

b) Make payment on account thereof upon delivery and completion of the said work 
and receipt of invoice, in accordance with the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Purchasing Policy, and with terms of Net 30 days after receiving such invoice. 

Article III: 

A copy of each of the Form of Tender, Special Provisions, Item Special Provisions, 
General Conditions, Specifications, Addenda/Addendum No. 0 to 0 are hereto annexed 
to this Form of Agreement and together with the plans relating thereto, and listed in the 
Specifications, are made a part of this Contract, herein called the Contract Documents, 
as fully to all intents and purposes as though recited in full herein. 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Asphalt Marking – Grass King By-law No. 2015-000  

 

 

Article IV: 

All communications in writing between the parties, or between them and the Engineer 
shall be deemed to have been received by the addressee if delivered to the individual or 
to a member of the firm or to an officer of the Owner for whom they are intended or if 
sent by post or telegram addressed as follows: 

The Contractor: The Owner: 

Grass King Inc. City of Temiskaming Shores 
P.O. Box 339 P.O. Box 2050 / 325 Farr Drive 
New Liskeard, Ontario Haileybury, Ontario 
P0J 1P0 P0J 1K0 
 
The Director: 

Director of Public Works 
City of Temiskaming Shores 
P.O. Box 2050 
325 Farr Drive 
Haileybury, Ontario 
P0J 1K0 
 
In witness whereof the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 
 
Signed and Sealed in ) Grass King Inc. 
the presence of ) 
 ) 
Contractor’s Seal ) __________________________________ 
(if applicable) ) President – Gus McLennan 

 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Witness 

 ) Name: ______________________ 

 ) Title: ______________________ 

 ) 
Municipal Seal ) Corporation of the City of  
 ) Temiskaming Shores 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 

 
 

Appendix 01 to 
Schedule “A” to 

By-law No. 2015-000 

Form of Agreement 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Marking Services
PWO-RFT-006-2015

form of Tender

Each FORM OF TENDER should contain the legal name under which the Bidder carries on business,
telephone number and fax number, as well the name or names of appropriate contact personnel
which the City may consult regarding the Tender.

The Contractor has carefully examined the Provisions, Plans, Specifications and OPS General
Conditions of Contract referred to in the schedule of provisions, and has carefully examined the site
and location of the work to be done under this contract. The Contractor understands and accepts the
said Provisions, Plans, Specifications and General Conditions and, for the prices set forth in the
Quotation, hereby offer to furnish all machinery tools, apparatus and other means of construction,
furnish all material, except as otherwise specified in the contract. The work must be completed in
strict accordance with the Provisions, Plans, Specifications and General Conditions referred to in the
said schedule.

All prices shall be inclusive of all costs such as but not limited to the cost of the goods! services,
overhead and profit, shipping and any other costs but net of taxes. Taxes on the total costs should be
shown separately.

I/We, the undersigned, have carefully examined the attached documents and conditions of the
Tender. I/We understand and accept those specifications, conditions, and details as described herein,
and, for these rates/prices offer to furnish all equipment, labour, apparatus and documentation as are
required to satisfy this Tender.

NOTE: All portions of “Form of Tender” must be accurately and completely filled out.

Section 1 - New Liskeard working area

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION QUOTED BID PRICE

22 Accessible Parking Spots $

9 / U
3 School Crossings $ 2 5o

5 Intersections $

)I 00

12 Directional! multi -directional Arrows $

) ) 4
This is Page 1 of 7 to be suDmitted

City of Temiskaming Shores /1 PWO-RFTOO6-2O15 II PAGE 28



City of lemiskaming Shores Asphalt Marking Services
PWO-RFT-006-2015

Transit Bus Stop Curbs $
—V

Directional Arrows! Lines at Operations Division in New $ /
Liskeard @ 200 Lakeshore Rd. 3 , Q

l3))5 öD
Section 2 - Haileybury working area

SUB TOTAL

593.D
H.S.T.

)

TOTAL

)%iOIO9

Page 2 of 7 to be submitted

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION QUOTED BID PRICE

14 Accessible Parking Spots $

2 7
8 Intersections $

fl5O.O7
12 Directional Arrows $

1 b
Parking Indicator Lines $

1 School Crossing $

1 Transit Bus Stop Curb $

7

City of Temiskaming Shores // PWO-RFT-006-2015 II PAGE 29



Ht1Y)C1L(UJ4

9tl”LAg1-S
%LtXi

°VHJ--/‘%1tt7

-r07i
94tY/c)1fry

-

ç

JaA*g

(y,
9

c
LAs;dA

çCl)4y

c,‘t”3
4‘cV

A

cti,’ç;tL4AQ

i7c4cVrj



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Marking Services
PWO-RFT-006-2015

TiWe R S S )kJ 6 offer to supply the requirements stated within.

the corresponding total cost of $ 23, O 9 Tax included.

I/We hold the prices valid for 30 (thirty) days from submission date.

I/We will deliver the required services / equipment prior to July 31, 2015 upon receiving a signed
order. (Weather permitting)

The specifications have been read over and agreed to this 2.. day of u. )‘ E> 2015

Company Name Contact name (please print)

I y S 5 IC / A) b- J jv V r’ IL)

Mailing Address Title

f\?()
C2+

Postal Code Authorizing signature

PU ) PO
“I have the author y to bind the

company/corporation/partnership.”

Telephone Fax

S-7-S o

Cell Phone it possible Email

o5-

Page 3 of 7 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores/I PWO-RFT-006-2015 1/ PAGE 30



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Marking Services
PWO-RFT-006-2015 k...

City of Temiskaming Shores

PWO-RFT-006-2015
Asphalt Marking Services

Non Collusion Affidavit

A5 lA)/)tf

I/We
,- / )t) the undersigned, am fully informed respecting

the preparation and contents of the attached Tender and of all pertinent circumstances respecting
such Bid.

Such Bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham Bid.

Neither the Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or
patties of interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed
directly or indirectly with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collective or sham Bid in
connection with the work for which the attached Bid has been submitted nor has it in any manner,
directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or conference with any
other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached Bid or of any other Bidder, or to
fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the Bid price or the price of any Bidder, or to secure
through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City
of Temiskaming Shores or any person interested in the proposed Bid.

The price or prices quoted in the attached Bid are fair and proper and not tainted by any collusion,
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents,
representatives, owners, employees, or parties in interest, including this affiant.

The Bid, Tender or Proposal of any person, company, corporation or organization that does attempt to
influence the outcome of any City purchasing or disposal process will be disqualified, and the person,
company, corporation or organization may be subject to exclusion or suspension.

Dated at /Z)’ J5J(4,ctis 2 day of__________ .2015

Signed /
Company Name

Title

-.

M )-i&&

Ps

Page 4 of 7 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores // PWO-RFT-006-2015 // PAGE 31



City of Temiskaming Shores

City of Temiskaming Shores
PWO-RFT-006-2015

Asphalt Marking Services

Asphalt Marking Services
PWO-RFT-006-2015

Conflict of Interest Declaration

I/we hereby confirm that there is not nor was there any actual or perceived conflict of interest
in our quotation submission or performing/providing the Goods/Services required by the
Agreement.

The following is a list of situations, each of which may be a conflict of interest, or appears as
potentially a conflict of interest in our Company’s quotation submission or the contractual
obligations under the Agreement.

List Situations:

In making this quotation submission, our Company has / has no (strike out inapplicable portion)
knowledge of or the ability to avail ourselves of confidential information of the City (other than
confidential information which may have been disclosed by the City in the normal course of the
quotation process) and the confidential information was relevant to the Work/Services, their pricing
or quotation evaluation process.

Dated at Jp Lis O this 2 day of J ( , 2015.

Firm Name (.‘ kcSS

S )kj Cf
t1l),UA/L-

Pd? k5I 04e,vT

/

Please check appropriate response:

Bidder’s Authorization Official

Title

Signature

Page 5 of 7 to be submitted
/

City of Temiskaming Shores // PWO-RFT-006-2015 1/ PAGE 32



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Marking Services
PWO-RFT-006-2015

City of Temiskaming Shores
PWO-RFT-OO6-2015

Asphalt Marking Services

SCHEDULE “A” - LIST OF PROPOSED SUB-CONTRACTORS

A list of Sub-Contractors that the Contractor proposes to employ in completing the required work
outlined in this Tender must be included in the Tender documents submitted.

I I We verify that the information provided above is accurate and that the individuals are qualified,
experienced operators capable of completing the work outlined in this Tender document.

Signed by Company Official

Signed

Page 6 of 7 to be submitted

Printed

City of Temiskaming Shores /1 PWO-RFT-006-2015 // PAGE 33



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Marking Services
PWO-RFT-OO6-20i5.

Schedule B

Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 Compliance Agreement

I/We, by our signature below, certify that we are in full compliance with Section 6 of Ontario
Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service made under the Accessibility for
Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005. If requested, we are able to provide written proof that all
employees have been trained as required under the act.

This regulation establishes accessibility standards for customer service as it applies to every
designated public sector organization and to every person or organization that provides goods or
services to members of the public or other third parties and that have at least one employee in
Ontario.

Name s C Company Name l( y 6

Phone Number Address

I,

_________________________________

, declare that I, or my company, are in full compliance with

Section 6 of Ontario Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service under the
Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005.

I, ( C 41. ,)/V4IL1eclare that I, or my company, are not in full compliance

with Section 6 of Ontario Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service under the
Accessibilityfor Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005, yet fully agree to meet the required compliance
training standards on or before the delivery of the required goods and/or services. In an effort to assist
non-compliant vendors, a link to a free e-learning course module called Serve-Ability, Transforming
Ontario’s Customer Service is available at www.gov.on.ca/mcss/serveability/splash.html.

Date:

Page 7 of 7 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores 1/ PWO-RET-006-2015 1/ PAGE 34



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

Subject: Tender Award - Asphalt Patching Report No.: PW-036-2015 
  Agenda Date: June 16, 2015 

 
Attachments 
Appendix 01: Tender Results 
Appendix 02: Draft Agreement 

Recommendations 
It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of    
Administrative Report No. PW-036-2015;  

2. That as outlined in Section 3.5 of the City’s Purchasing Policy, Council approves 
the award of the 2015 Asphalt Patching contract to Miller Paving Limited in the 
amount of $122,666.50 plus HST; and 

3. That Council directs Staff to prepare the necessary by-law and agreement for 
consideration at the June 16, 2015 Regular Council meeting. 

Background 

Each year the City of Temiskaming Shores procures the services of qualified 
contractors for the provision of asphalt patching services at various locations within the 
City of Temiskaming Shores. 

The work consists generally of the supply of all materials as per specifications, labour 
and equipment for the successful installation of asphalt patches located at various 
locations within the City boundaries as directed by the Superintendent of Transportation 
or designate. It is understood that the Contractor shall have sufficient knowledge and 
expertise in the asphalt repair process and shall have the ability to administrate the 
project as well as operate all equipment.  

The Request for Tender documents were prepared and PWO-RFT-009-2015 was 
distributed to previous and known potential bidders with closing date at 2:00 p.m. on 
Thursday June 4th,  2015. 

Analysis 

Three (3) responses to the tender request were received by the closing date. 

Bidder Tender Amount HST Total 
Miller Paving Limited $122,666.50 $15,946.65 $138,613.15  
Loach Asphalt Ltd. $130,847.00 $17,010.11 $147,857.11 
Demora Construction $132,521.84 $17,227.84 $149,749.68 
Revised Tender Price 

 
Public Works Page 1 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

Miller Paving Northern and Loach Asphalt have successfully completed similar projects 
in Temiskaming Shores and have demonstrated the ability to successfully complete this 
work as intended. Miller Paving have requested that due to scheduling and anticipated 
workload, that they be permitted to sub-contract all or a portion of the proposed work to 
a local qualified contractor. It is recommended that this request be accommodated. 

The tenders were analysed for errors and/or omissions and an error in HST calculations 
was found in the Demora Construction submission. The error did not affect the 
placement of the bidders and the other submissions were found to be correct and 
complete. The process for obtaining competitive pricing was in keeping with the City’s 
Purchasing Policy (By-Law 2009-012, as amended). 

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   
This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A   

The 2015 Budget includes allocated funds within the Environmental and Transportation 
Operating Budgets to address asphalt repairs due to water and sewer ruptures as well 
as surface failures and will be distributed as applicable. 

A total of $225,000 was included in the 2015 Budget for repair work relating to 
water/sewer breaks.  Costs to date are $83,217 leaving a balance of $141,783. 

The contract, inclusive of non-refundable HST, totals $124,825 which is within budget, 
however, Administrative Report PW-037-2015 includes an additional $27,501 for 
concrete/curb repairs relating to water/sewer breaks. 

Following approval of both tenders, the budget will exceed its approval limit in the 
amount of $10,543. 

Alternatives 

No alternatives were considered. 

Submission 

Prepared by: Reviewed and submitted for 
 Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” “Original signed by”  
___________________ _______________________ 
G. Douglas Walsh, CET Christopher W. Oslund 
Director of Public Works City Manager 

 
Public Works Page 2 



City of Temiskaming Short
(3)

Document Title: PWO-RFT-009-2015

Description: Asphalt Patching

Inquiry Contact: Doug Walsh, Director of Public Works

Form of Proposal

Bidder: TU CTzD Bidder

Total: JS2..,’tyo iZ

1 — 50 mm Asphalt (1,463 m2):

2 -90 mm Asphalt (680 m2):

Sub-Total:

HST:

Non Collusion Conflict of Interest cãAbDA

Bidder: Loi --ç
1—50mm Asphalt (1,463 m2): 71g7,

2 -90 mm Asphalt (680 m2): 5? I Lo
Sub-Total: o

HST:

Total: ;t47gY57ll

1 —50 mm Asphalt (1,463 m2):

2 -90 mm Asphalt (680 m2): 5’, I

Sub-Total: \
I

HST: !9-R,
Total: I3?tDa.’

73., o>i
57 1o.,

•1
,o

0

El Non Collusion El Conflict of Interest El AODA

Bidder:
1 — 50 mm Asphalt (1,463 m2):

2 — 90 mm Asphalt (680 m2):

Sub-Total:

HST:

Total:

El Non Collusion El Conflict of Interest El AODA

Bidder:
1 — 50 mm Asphalt (1,463 m2):

2 —90 mm Asphalt (680 m2):

Sub-Total:

HST:

Total:

i’jon Collusion bonflict of Interest ODA El Non Collusion El Conflict of Interest El AODA

Comment: Submissions will be reviewed for errors, omissions and accuracy by municipal staff prior to any
awarding. Subsequently bidders will be informed of the results.

In Attendance:

Print Name

Ø,// 4-y

7/i

ftL

-“ 1’•

It

Submission Opening

Opening Date:

Opening Time:

June 4,2015

2:00 pm

1 — 50 mm Asphalt (1,463 m2):

____________

2 — 90 mm Asphalt (680 m2):

___________

Sub-Total:

HST:

7V5. “%ZJ Total:

00

Non Collusion ‘bonflict of Interest [TODA

Bidder: I G OT

Representing

A4) A ,%i

-‘ , ô rc

Signature



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2015-000 

Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with Miller 
Paving Limited for the supply of labour, equipment and 

material for Asphalt Patching Services at various 
locations within the City of Temiskaming Shores 

  

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to 
govern its affairs as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s 
ability to responds to municipal issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a 
natural person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other 
Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, 
as amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. PW-036-2015 at the 
June 16th, 2015 Regular meeting of Council and directed staff to prepare the 
necessary by-law to enter into an agreement with Miller Paving Limited for the 
supply of labour, equipment and material for Asphalt Patching Services for 
consideration at the June 16th, 2015 Regular meeting of Council; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores hereby enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That Council authorizes the entering into an agreement with Miller Paving 
Limited for the supply of labour, equipment and material for Asphalt 
Patching Services at various locations in the City of Temiskaming Shores, 
in the amount of $122,666.50 plus applicable taxes, a copy of which is 
attached hereto as Schedule “A” and forming part of this by-law; 

2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to 
make minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical 
nature to the by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where 
such modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its 
associated schedule. 

  

Appendix 02 
PW-036-2015 

June 16, 2015 



Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 16th day of June, 
2015. 

 
________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 
 

 
Schedule “A” to 

By-law 2015-000 

Agreement between  

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

and 

Miller Paving Limited 

for the Supply of Asphalt Patching Services 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Asphalt Patching – Miller Paving By-law No. 2015-000  

 

 

This agreement made in duplicate this 16th day of June 2015. 
 
Between: 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
(hereinafter called “the Owner”) 

 
and 

Miller Paving Limited 
(hereinafter called “the Contractor”) 

 

Witnesseth: 

That the Owner and the Contractor shall undertake and agree as follows: 

Article I: 

The Contractor will: 

a) Provide all material and perform all work described in the Contract Documents entitled: 

Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Supply and Application of Asphalt Patching Services 

Tender No. PWO-RFT-009-2015 

b) Do and fulfill everything indicated by this Agreement and in the Contract Documents 
attached hereto as Appendix 01 and forming part of this agreement; and 

c) Complete, as certified by the Director, all the work by October 31st, 2015. 

Article II: 

The Owner will: 

a) Pay the Contractor in lawful money of Canada for the material and services 
aforesaid One Hundred and Twenty-Two Thousand – Six Hundred and Sixty-Six 
Dollars and Fifty Cents ($122,666.50) plus applicable taxes subject to additions 
and deductions as provided in the Contract Documents. 

b) Make payment on account thereof upon delivery and completion of the said work 
and receipt of invoice, in accordance with the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Purchasing Policy, and with terms of Net 30 days after receiving such invoice. 

Article III: 

A copy of each of the Form of Tender, Special Provisions, Item Special Provisions, 
General Conditions, Specifications, Addenda/Addendum No. 0 to 0 are hereto annexed 
to this Form of Agreement and together with the plans relating thereto, and listed in the 
Specifications, are made a part of this Contract, herein called the Contract Documents, 
as fully to all intents and purposes as though recited in full herein. 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Asphalt Patching – Miller Paving By-law No. 2015-000  

 

 

Article IV: 

All communications in writing between the parties, or between them and the Engineer 
shall be deemed to have been received by the addressee if delivered to the individual or 
to a member of the firm or to an officer of the Owner for whom they are intended or if 
sent by post or telegram addressed as follows: 

The Contractor: The Owner: 

Miller Paving Limited City of Temiskaming Shores 
P.O. Box 248 P.O. Box 2050 / 325 Farr Drive 
New Liskeard, Ontario Haileybury, Ontario 
P0J 1P0 P0J 1K0 
 
The Director: 

Director of Public Works 
City of Temiskaming Shores 
P.O. Box 2050 
325 Farr Drive 
Haileybury, Ontario 
P0J 1K0 
 
In witness whereof the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 
 
Signed and Sealed in ) Miller Paving Limited 
the presence of ) 
 ) 
Contractor’s Seal ) __________________________________ 
(if applicable) ) Estimating Manager – Britt Herd 

 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Witness 

 ) Name: ______________________ 

 ) Title: ______________________ 

 ) 
Municipal Seal ) Corporation of the City of  
 ) Temiskaming Shores 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 

 
 

Appendix 01 to 
Schedule “A” to 

By-law No. 2015-000 

Form of Agreement 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services
PWO-RFT-009-2015 *

Form of Tender

Each FORM OF TENDER should contain the legal name under which the Bidder carries on business,

telephone number and fax number, as well the name or names of appropriate contact personnel

which the City may consult regarding the Tender.

The Contractor has carefully examined the Provisions, Plans, Specifications and OPS General

Conditions of Contract referred to in the schedule of provisions, and has carefully examined the site

and location of the work to be done under this contract. The Contractor understands and accepts the

said Provisions, Plans, Specifications and General Conditions and, for the prices set forth in the

Quotation, hereby offer to furnish all machinery tools, apparatus and other means of construction,

furnish all material, except as otherwise specified in the contract. The work must be completed in

strict accordance with the Provisions, Plans, Specifications and General Conditions referred to in the

said schedule.

All prices shall be inclusive of all costs such as but not limited to the cost of the goods! services,

overhead and profit, shipping and any other costs but net of taxes. Taxes on the total costs should be

shown separately.

l/’We, the undersigned, have carefully examined the attached documents and conditions of the

Tender. I/We understand and accept those specifications, conditions, and details as described herein,

and, for these rates/prices offer to furnish all equipment, labour, apparatus and documentation as are

required to satisfy this Tender.

NOTE: All portions of “Form of Tender” must be accurately and completelyfilled out.

Estimated Quoted price
Total Price

Item Description Quantity for per square

Bidding Purposes meter (m2)

Preparation of base, supply and Approx. 1,463 m2

placement of Hot Mix Asphalt - various locations $45. 50m2 $66, 566. 50

materials as described within. (50

mm thickness)

2 Preparation of base, supply and Approximately

placementofHotMixAsphalt 680m2-various $82.50m2
$56,100.00

materials as described within. (90 locations

mm thickness)

SUB-TOTAL: $122,666.50

HST: $15,946.65

TOTAL $138,613.15

Page 1 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores // PWO-RFT-009-2015 I! PAGE 29



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services
PWO-RFT-009-2015 r

I/We Miller Paving Limited offer to supply the requirements stated within.

the corresponding total cost of$ 138, 613 .15 Tax included.

I/We hold the prices valid for 30 (thirty) days from submission date.

I/We will deliver the required services / equipment within 7 calendar days from

receiving a signed order. (Weather permitting)

The specifications have been read over and agreed to this ‘h day of June 2015

Company Name

Miller Paving Limited

Contact name (please print)

Britt Herd

Mailing Address Title
704024 Rockley Road, Box 248 Manager - Estimating

New Liskeard, ON

<

Page 2 of 6 to be submitted

Postal Code

POJ lP0

ie authority tb bind the

company/corporation/partnership.”

Telephone Fax

705—647-4331 705—647—3611

Cell Phone if possible Email

britt .herd8millergroup ca

City of Temiskaming Shores II PWO-RFT-009-2015 II PAGE 30



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services 44
PWO-RFT-009-2015 p

City of Temiskaming Shores

PWO-RFT-009-2015
Asphalt Patching Services

Non Collusion Affidavit

I/We 1tt Herd the undersigned, am fully informed respecting

the preparation and contents of the attached Tender and of all pertinent circumstances respecting

such Bid.

Such Bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham Bid.

Neither the Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or

parties of interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed

directly or indirectly with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collective or sham Bid in

connection with the work for which the attached Bid has been submitted nor has it in any manner,

directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or conference with any

other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached Bid or of any other Bidder, or to

fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the Bid price or the price of any Bidder, or to secure

through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City

of Temiskaming Shores orany person interested in the proposed Bid.

The price or prices quoted in the attached Bid are fair and proper and not tainted by any collusion,

conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents,

representatives, owners, employees, or parties in interest, including this affiant.

The Bid, Tender or Proposal of any person, company, corporation or organization that does attempt to

influence the outcome of any City purchasing or disposal process will be disqualified, and the person,

company, corporation or organization may be subject to exclusion or suspension.

Dated at New Liskeard

_______ _______________________,

2015

Signed

Ccmpany N.me

_______________________________

Title

_______________________________________

Page 3 of 6 to be submitted

this 4h day of June

Miller Paving Limited

Manager - Estimating

City of Temiskaming Shores/I PWO-RFT-009-2015 1/ PAGE 31



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services 4,4PWO-RFT-009-2015

City of Temiskaming Shores
PWO-RFT-009-2015

Asphalt Patching Services

Conflict of Interest Declaration

Please check appropriate response:

I/we hereby confirm that there is not nor was there any actual or perceived conflict of interest

in our quotation submission or performing/providing the Goods/Services required by the

Agreement.

The following is a list of situations, each of which may be a conflict of interest, or appears as

potentially a conflict of interest in our Company’s quotation submission or the contractual

obligations under the Agreement.

List Situations:

In making this quotation submission, our Company has / has no (strike out inapplicable portion)

knowledge of or the ability to avail ourselves of confidential information of the City (other than

confidential information which may have been disclosed by the City in the normal course of the

quotation process) and the confidential information was relevant to the Work/Services, their pricing

or quotation evaluation process.

Dated at New Liskeard this 4th day of June , 2015.

Firm Name Miller Paving Limited

Bidder’s Authorization Official BriLt Herd

Title Manager -Estimating

Signature

Page 4 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores // PWO-RFT-009-2015 II PAGE 32



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services
PWO-RFT-009-2015 A

City of Temiskaming Shores

PWO-RFT-009-2015

Asphalt Patching Services

SCHEDULE “A” - LIST OF PROPOSED SUB-CONTRACTORS

A list of Sub-Contractors that the Contractor proposes to employ in completing the required work
outlined in this Tender must be included in the Tender documents submitted.

Name Address WSIB Certificate Number
(copy attached)

NA

I / We verify that the information provided above is accurate and that the individuals are qualified,
experienced operators capable of completing the work outlined in this Tender document.

Signed by Company Official

Britt Herd

Page 5 of 6 to be submitted

Printed Signed

City of Temiskaming Shores If PWO-RFT-009-2015 If PAGE 33



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services
PWO-RFT-009-2015

Schedule B

Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 Compliance Agreement

I/We, by our signature below, certify that we are in full compliance with Section 6 of Ontario
Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service made under the Accessibilityfor
Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005. If requested, we are able to provide written proof that all
employees have been trained as required under the act.

This regulation establishes accessibility standards for customer service as it applies to every
designated public sector organization and to every person or organization that provides goods or
services to members of the public or other third parties and that have at least one employee in
Ontario.

Name Br±t Herd Company Name

Phone Number
705-647-4331 Address 704024 Rockley Road, Box 248, New Liskeard, ON POJ 1PO

I, Brit Herd
, declare that I, or my company, are in full compliance with

Section 6 of Ontario Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service under the
Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005.

I,

_________________________________,

declare that I, or my company, are not in full compliance

with Section 6 of Ontario Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service under the
Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005, yet fully agree to meet the required compliance
training standards on or before the delivery of the required goods and/or services. In an effort to assist
non-compliant vendors, a link to a free e-learning course module called Serve-Ability, Transforming
Ontario’s Customer Service is available at www.gov.on.ca/mcss/serveability/splash.html.

Date: June 4, 2015

Page 6 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores // PWO-RFT-009-2015 II PAGE 34



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services
PWO-RFT-009-2015 A

City of Temiskaming Shores

PWO-RFT-009-2015

Asphalt Patching Services

Schedule C - Performance Evaluation (for City Use only)

Vendor’s Name Telephone

Address Postal Code

Vendor’s Representative

Contract Description; PWO-RFT-009-2015 Asphalt Patching Services

Awarded Contract Value Actual Contract Value

Cost Centre District/Region/Branch City Contact Division;
1.0610.3123.4.03.3405 Person; Public Works

Doug Walsh
Scheduled Start; Actual Start; Scheduled Actual Completion
Date of Individual Council Completion;
Resolution

Performance Rating

0-Outstanding 6-Good F-Fair P-Poor Rate Comments

1. Quality of Work Performed

2. Ability of Employees used for work

3. Scheduling and Coordination

4. Availability of Equipment and

Employees

5. Equipment/Procurement & Delivery

6. Condition and Suitability of Equipment

7. Cooperation of Municipality and

Employees

Page 1 of 2

City of Temiskaming Shores 1/ PWO-RFT-009-2015 1/ PAGE 35



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services
PWO-RFT-009-2015 ..r

8. Cooperation with outside Agencies

9. Conformity to Pertinent Acts and

Regulations

10. Safety (Overall)

11. Quality of Supervision

12. General Housekeeping

13. Responses to Unplanned Changes

14. Other (Specify)

Causes for Delays (if any)

Liquidated Damages (itemize)

*

Future Recommendations: Provider Yes No (explain)

recommended for future work

Comments:

Department Director Date

Title Project Coordinator

Company Representative

* To be completed at the end of the service period

Page 2 of 2

City of Temiskaming Shores/I PWO-RFT-009-2015 II PAGE 36



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services
PWO-RFT-009-2015

Asphalt Patching Services
PWO-RfT-009-2015

ACTUAL AREA! QUANTITY REMITTANCE FORM

Schedule “D”

This form must be attached and submitted in conjunction with the Contractors invoice for payment.

ADDRESS / LOCATION WIDTH LENGTH DEPTH SQ. METRES APPROX. Lifts in

(m.) (m.) (mm) TONNES mm.toa

max. of

original

thickness

Section 1

New Uskeard Working

Area

Hwy. 65 North,

“MacDonalds Restaurant”

134 Pine St. W

223 Byam Ave.

101 Rebecca St.

173 May St.

42 Wellington St.

Armstrong at Cedar

83 Whitewood Ave.

107 Whitewood Ave.

389 Whitewood Ave.

405 Whitewood Ave.

116 Jayne Ave.

408 Grills St.

50 Scott St.

City of Temiskaming Shores/I PWO-RFT-009-2015 1/ PAGE 37



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services
PWO-RFT-009-2015

ADDRESS / LOCATION WIDTH LENGTH DEPTH SQ. METRES APPROX. Lifts in

fm.) (m.) (mm) TONNES mm.toa

max. of

original

thickness

190 Farah Ave.

390 Farah Ave.

250 McCamus Ave.

567 Broadwood Ave.

527 Taylor Ave.

66 Lakeshore Rd.

95 Lakeshore Rd.

Section 2

Haileybury Working Area

83 Ferland St.

Lakeshore Road at

Florence St.

456 Browning St.

299 View St.

108 Bruce St.

Rorke and Albert

108 Carter St.

71 Station St.

r

City of Temiskaming Shores/I PWO-RFT-009-2015 I/PAGE 38



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services
PWO-RFT-009-2015 -.

ADDRESS / LOCATION WIDTH LENGTH DEPTH SQ. METRES APPROX. Lifts in

fm.) fm.) (mm) TONNES mm.toa

max. of

original

thickness

ADD ADD1TIONA1 PAGES IF REQUIRED

City of Temiskaming Shores II PWO-RFT-009-2015 II PAGE 39



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

Subject: Tender Award – Concrete Sidewalk Report No.: PW-037-2015 
                  & Curb Repairs Agenda Date: June 16, 2015 

 
Attachments 
Appendix 01: Tender Results 
Appendix 02: Draft Agreement 

Recommendations 
It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of    
Administrative Report No. PW-037-2015;  

2. That as outlined in Section 3.5 of the City’s Purchasing Policy, Council approves 
the award of the 2015 Concrete Sidewalk and Curb Repair contract to Pedersen 
Construction (2013) Inc. in the amount of $27,025.50 plus HST; and 

3. That Council directs Staff to prepare the necessary by-law and agreement for the 
said contract for consideration at the June 16, 2015 Regular Council meeting. 

Background 

Each year the City of Temiskaming Shores is required to repair a varying amount of concrete 
sidewalk and curb and gutter damaged during winter excavations for sewer and water repairs. 
Due to a significant workload in 2015 the Public Works Dept. City has opted to procure the 
services of experienced and qualified contractors for the provision of sidewalk and curb repair 
services at various locations within the City of Temiskaming Shores. 

The work consists generally of the supply of all labour, equipment and as per specifications, for 
the successful repair of concrete sidewalk and curb & gutter various locations within the City 
boundaries as directed by the Superintendent of Transportation or designate. It is understood 
that the Contractor shall have sufficient knowledge and expertise in concrete placement and the 
repair process and shall have the ability to administrate the project as well as operate all 
equipment.  

The Request for Tender document was prepared and PWO-RFT-011-2015 was distributed to 
local known potential bidders and was posted on the City’s web site. The closing date was 2:00 
p.m. on Thursday June 4th, 2015. 

Analysis 

Two (2) responses to the tender request were received by the closing date. 

Bidder Tender Amount HST Total 
Pedersen Const. $27,025.50 $3,513.32 $30,530.82 
Demora Const. $33,179.70 $4,313.36 $37,493.06 

Revised Tender Amount 

 
Public Works Page 1 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

Pedersen Construction has successfully completed similar projects in Temiskaming Shores and 
has demonstrated the ability to successfully complete work as intended. Demora construction is 
relatively new in the area, however, do have experienced concrete finishers at their disposal. 

The tenders were analysed for errors and/or omissions and an error in HST calculations was 
found in the Demora Construction submission. The error did not affect the placement of the 
bidders. The Pedersen submission was found to be correct and complete. The process for 
obtaining competitive pricing was in keeping with the City’s Purchasing Policy (By-Law 2009-
012, as amended). 

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   
This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A   

 

The 2015 Budget includes allocated funds within the Environmental and Transportation 
Operating Budgets to address asphalt repairs due to water and sewer ruptures as well as 
surface failures and will be distributed as applicable. 

A total of $225,000 was included in the 2015 Budget for repair work relating to water/sewer 
breaks.  Costs to date are $83,217 leaving a balance of $141,783. 

The contract, inclusive of non-refundable HST, totals $27,501, however, Administrative Report 
PW-036-2015 includes an additional $124,825 for asphalt patching relating to water/sewer 
breaks. 

Following approval of both tenders, the budget will exceed its approval limit in the amount of 
$10,543. 

Alternatives 

Due to workload, completing the work internally was not considered. 

Submission 

Prepared by: Reviewed and submitted for 
 Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” “Original signed by”  
___________________ _______________________ 
G. Douglas Walsh, CET Christopher W. Oslund 
Director of Public Works City Manager 

 
Public Works Page 2 



City of Temiskaming ShorL Submission Opening

Concrete Sidewalk (152.75 m2): 9 I
Concrete Curbs (27.42 m): 5’

Sub-Total: 35 I 19
HST: 4’79

Total: 3 I
“Non Collusion bnflict of Interest El-ADDA

0
Bidder: ij

Concrete Sidewalk (152.75 m2): 9 2. -

Concrete Curbs (27.42 m): ‘4 / l
Sub-Total: g2-7

HST: .357j3

Total: 1o-3f
9icion Collusion Cbnflict of Interest

Bidder:
Concrete Sidewalk (152.75 m2):

Concrete Curbs (27.42 m):

Sub-Total:

HST:

Total:

/

37 /9’.t/ Total:

U Non Collusion U Conflict of Interest U AODA

Concrete Sidewalk (152.75 m2):

Concrete Curbs (27.42 m):

Sub-Total:

HST:

Total:

[] Non Collusion El Conflict of Interest El AODA

Bidder:

Concrete Sidewalk (152.75 m2):

Concrete Curbs (27.42 m):

Sub-Total:

HST:

Total:
El Non Collusion El Conflict of Interest El AODA El Non Collusion U Conflict of Interest El AODA

Comment : Submissions will be reviewed for errors, omissions and accuracy by municipal staff prior to any
awarding. Subsequently bidders will be informed of the results.

In Attendance:

Print Name

Coh.

p2rb

yZeiQ

n Cii-/

Document Title: PWO-RFT-011-2015 Opening Date:

Opening Time:

Description: Sidewalk and curb construction

Inquiry Contact: G. Douglas Walsh, Director of Public Works

Form of Proposal

JOt5
4 f.-. I --

2:00 pm

Bidder:Bidder: rnc C0 1lTmz

Ic, Concrete Sidewalk (152.75 m2):

Concrete Curbs (27.42 m):

Sub-Total:

TJ(Tm13 Bidder:

Representing

/1

,.—‘

Signature

Pageo

_____

ci



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2015-000 

Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with Pedersen 
Construction (2013) Inc. for the supply of labour, 

equipment and material for Concrete Sidewalk and 
Curb Repair Services at various locations within the 

City of Temiskaming Shores 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to 
govern its affairs as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s 
ability to responds to municipal issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a 
natural person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other 
Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, 
as amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. PW-037-2015 at the 
June 16th, 2015 Regular meeting of Council and directed staff to prepare the 
necessary by-law to enter into an agreement with Pedersen Construction (2013) 
Inc. for the supply of labour, equipment and material for Concrete Sidewalk and 
Curb Repair Services for consideration at the June 16th, 2015 Regular meeting of 
Council; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores hereby enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That Council authorizes the entering into an agreement with Miller Paving 
Limited for the supply of labour, equipment and material for Concrete 
Sidewalk and Curb Repair Services at various locations in the City of 
Temiskaming Shores, in the amount of $27,025.50 plus applicable taxes, a 
copy of which is attached hereto as Schedule “A” and forming part of this 
by-law; 

2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to 
make minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical 
nature to the by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where 
such modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its 
associated schedule. 

  

Appendix 02 
PW-037-2015 

June 16, 2015 



Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 16th day of June, 
2015. 

 
________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 
 

 
Schedule “A” to 

By-law 2015-000 

Agreement between  

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

and 

Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. 

for the Supply of Concrete Sidewalk and Curb Repair Services 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Sidewalks & Curbs – Pedersen By-law No. 2015-000  

 

 

This agreement made in duplicate this 16th day of June 2015. 
 
Between: 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
(hereinafter called “the Owner”) 

 
and 

Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. 
(hereinafter called “the Contractor”) 

 

Witnesseth: 

That the Owner and the Contractor shall undertake and agree as follows: 

Article I: 

The Contractor will: 

a) Provide all material and perform all work described in the Contract Documents entitled: 

Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Supply Sidewalk and Curb Construction Services 

Tender No. PWO-RFT-011-2015 

b) Do and fulfill everything indicated by this Agreement and in the Contract Documents 
attached hereto as Appendix 01 and forming part of this agreement; and 

c) Complete, as certified by the Director, all the work by September 30th, 2015. 

Article II: 

The Owner will: 

a) Pay the Contractor in lawful money of Canada for the material and services 
aforesaid Twenty-Seven Thousand – and Twenty-Five Dollars and Fifty Cents 
($27,025.50) plus applicable taxes subject to additions and deductions as 
provided in the Contract Documents. 

b) Make payment on account thereof upon delivery and completion of the said work 
and receipt of invoice, in accordance with the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Purchasing Policy, and with terms of Net 30 days after receiving such invoice. 

Article III: 

A copy of each of the Form of Tender, Special Provisions, Item Special Provisions, 
General Conditions, Specifications, Addenda/Addendum No. 0 to 0 are hereto annexed 
to this Form of Agreement and together with the plans relating thereto, and listed in the 
Specifications, are made a part of this Contract, herein called the Contract Documents, 
as fully to all intents and purposes as though recited in full herein. 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Sidewalks & Curbs – Pedersen By-law No. 2015-000  

 

 

Article IV: 

All communications in writing between the parties, or between them and the Engineer 
shall be deemed to have been received by the addressee if delivered to the individual or 
to a member of the firm or to an officer of the Owner for whom they are intended or if 
sent by post or telegram addressed as follows: 

The Contractor: The Owner: 

Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. City of Temiskaming Shores 
P.O. Box 2409 P.O. Box 2050 / 325 Farr Drive 
New Liskeard, Ontario Haileybury, Ontario 
P0J 1P0 P0J 1K0 
 
The Director: 

Director of Public Works 
City of Temiskaming Shores 
P.O. Box 2050 
325 Farr Drive 
Haileybury, Ontario 
P0J 1K0 
 
In witness whereof the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 
 
Signed and Sealed in ) Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. 
the presence of ) 
 ) 
Contractor’s Seal ) __________________________________ 
(if applicable) ) President – Karl Pedersen 

 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Witness 

 ) Name: ______________________ 

 ) Title: ______________________ 

 ) 
Municipal Seal ) Corporation of the City of  
 ) Temiskaming Shores 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 

 
 

Appendix 01 to 
Schedule “A” to 

By-law No. 2015-000 

Form of Agreement 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores Sidewalk and Curb Construction
PWO-RFT-O11-2015

Form of Tender

Each FORM OF TENDER should contain the legal name under which the Bidder carries on business,
telephone number and fax number, as well the name or names of appropriate contact personnel
which the City may consult regarding the Tender.

I/We, the undersigned, have carefully examined the Provisions, Plans, Specifications and OPS General
Conditions of Contract referred to in the schedule of provisions, and has carefully examined the site
and location of the work to be done under this contract. The Contractor understands and accepts the
said Provisions, Plans, Specifications and General Conditions and, for the prices set forth in the
Quotation, hereby offer to furnish all machinery tools, apparatus and other means of construction,
furnish all material, except as otherwise specified in the contract. The work must be completed in
strict accordance with the Provisions, Plans, Specifications and General Conditions referred to in the
said schedule.

All prices shall be inclusive of all costs such as but not limited to the cost of the goods/ services,
overhead and profit, shipping and any other costs but net of taxes. Taxes on the total costs should be
shown separately.

NOTE: All portions of “Form of Tender” must be accurately and completely filled out.

Estimated
Item Description Quantity for Quoted price Total Price

Bidding Purposes

Construction and installation of Approx. 152.75
$l5tiW $22,912.50concrete sidewalk in accordance (m2) — sidewalk at

with OPSS 351 (Nov. 2010) and various locations
prior to June 12th, 2015 (weather
permitting)

2 Construction and installation of Approx. 27.42
concrete curb in accordance with (m) curb at $ 4,113.
OPSS 351 (Nov. 2010) and prior to various locations
June ;2th, 2015 (weather

permitting)

SUB-TOTAL: $27,025.50

HST: $ 3,513.32

TOTAL
$30,530.82

Page 1 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores/I PWO-RFT-O11-2015 II PAGE 27



• City of Temiskaming Shores Sidewalk and Curb Construction
PWO-RFT-011-2015

liwe Palersen Construction (2013) Inc. offer to supply the requirements stated within.

the corresponding total cost of $ 30,538.82 Tax included.

I/We hold the prices valid for 30 (thirty) days from submission date.

30
I/We will deliver the required services / equipment prior to June 1, 2015. (Weather permitting)

The specifications have been read over and agreed to this 4 day of j- 2015

Company Name Contact name (please print)

Peclersen Construction (2013) Inc. Alec Pedersen

Mailing Address Title

P.O. Fox 24( Secretary Tasurer
Nsw Uskearil, Chtario

Postal Code Authorizing si e

1 4%
“1 ha e the authority to bind the

corn pa ny/corporation/partnership.”

Telephone Fax

705-647-6223 705-647—8851

Cell Phone if possible Email

705-647-2707 apederserpedersenconstruction. ca

Page 2 of 6 to be submitted

City of Terniskaming Shores/I PWO-RE-011-2015 II PAGE 28



City of Temiskaming Shores Sidewalk and Curb Construction

____

PWO-RFT-011-2015

City of Temiskaming Shores

PWO-RFT-O11-2015

Sidewalk and Curb Construction

Non Collusion Affidavit

1/ We Alec PedErsen the undersigned, am fully informed respecting
the preparation and contents of the attached Tender and of all pertinent circumstances respecting
such Bid.

Such Bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham Bid.

Neither the Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or
parties of interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed
directly or indirectly with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collective or sham Bid in
connection with the work for which the attached Bid has been submitted nor has it in any manner,
directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or conference with any
other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached Bid or of any other Bidder, or to
fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the Bid price or the price of any Bidder, or to secure
through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City
of Temiskaming Shores or any person interested in the proposed Bid.

The price or prices quoted in the attached Bid are fair and proper and not tainted by any collusion,
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents,
representatives, owners, employees, or parties in interest, including this affiant.

The Bid, Tender or Proposal of any person, company, corporation or organization that does attempt to
influence the outcome of any City purchasing or disposal process will be disqualified, and the person,

company, corporation or organization may be subject to exclusion or suspension.

Dated at New Liskeard this 4th day of Jur
-, 2015

Signed

_____________________________________________

Company Name

Title

fc1ersen Ccristructicn (2013) Inc

Page 3 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores /1 PWO-RFt-011-2015 1/ PAGE 29



City of Temiskaming Shores Sidewalk and Curb Construction
PWO-RFr-O11-2015

City of Temiskaming Shores
PWO-RFT-O11-2015

Sidewalk and Curb Construction

Conflict of Interest Declaration

Please check appropriate response:

I/we hereby confirm that there is not nor was there any actual or perceived conflict of interest
in our quotation submission or performing/providing the Goods/Services required by the
Agreement.

The following is a list of situations, each of which may be a conflict of interest, or appears as
potentially a conflict of interest in our Company’s quotation submission or the contractual
obligations under the Agreement.

List Situations:

In making this quotation submission, our Company has / has no (strike out inapplicable portion)
knowledge of or the ability to avail ourselves of confidential information of the City (other than
confidential information which may have been disclosed by the City in the normal course of the
quotation process) and the confidential information was relevant to the Work/Services, their pricing
or quotation evaluation process.

Dated at this 4th day of , 2015.

Firm Name Palersen Construction (2013) Inc.

Bidder’s Authorization Official Alec Palersen

Title Secretary Treasurer

Signature

Page 4 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores // PWO-RFT-011-2015 I/PAGE 30



City of Temiskaming Shores Sidewalk and Curb Construction
PWO-RFT-011-2015

Schedule B

Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 Compliance Agreement

I/We, by our signature below, certify that we are in full compliance with Section 6 of Ontario
Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service made under the Accessibility for
Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005. If requested, we are able to provide written proof that all
employees have been trained as required under the act.

This regulation establishes accessibility standards for customer service as it applies to every
designated public sector organization and to every person or organization that provides goods or
services to members of the public or other third parties and that have at least one employee in
Ontario.

Name Palerseri ConstrUction (2013) Thc. Company Name

Phone Number 705-647—6223 Address j

tw Uskeard, Citario EOJ 110

I, Alec Peclerseri , declare that I, or my company, are in full compliance with

Section 6 of Ontario Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service under the
Accessibili yfot On ns with Disabilities Act, 2005.

I, , declare that I, or my company, are not in full compliance

with Section 6 of Ontario Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service under the
Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005. yet fully agree to meet the required compliance
training standards on or before the delivery of the required goods and/or services. In an effort to assist
non-compliant vendors, a link to a free e-learning course module called Serve-Ability, Transforming
Ontario’s Customer Service is available at www.gov.on.ca/mcss/serveability/splash.html.

Date:Jur4, 2015

Page 6 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores II PWO-RFT-0l1-2015 /1 PAGE 32



City of Temiskaming Shores Sidewalk and Curb Construction
PWO-RFt-O11-2015

City of Temiskaming Shores
PWO-RFT-O11-2015

Sidewalk and Curb Construction

SCHEDULE “A” - LIST OF PROPOSED SUB-CONTRACTORS

A list of Sub-Contractors that the Contractor proposes to employ in completing the required work
outlined in this Tender must be included in the Tender documents submitted.

Name Address WSIB Certificate Number
(copy attached)

t Applicable

I / We verify that the information provided above is accurate and that the individuals are qualified,
experienced operators capable of completing the work outlined in this Tender document.

Signed by Company Official

Alec

_____________

Printed Signd

Page 5 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores/I PWO-RFT-O11-2015 i/PAGE 31



Dyrnond

1 Haileyhunc

lvew Liskeard
Cityof.Viilede

Terniskarning
Shores

Discuvcr a whole new Ontario • Découurez an taut nouvel Ontario

ADDENDUM #1
Tender PWO-RFT-0 11-2015

Sidewalk and curb construction

Whereas - The City of Temiskaming Shores has stated a closing date of Thursday June 8th

2015 - 2 p.m. local time and further specified ‘shalI endeavor to complete the entire contract prior
to Friday June 12th 2015”

The closing date has been revised to read; Thursday June 04th 2015 at 2:00 pm with an
expected contract completion date of Tuesday June 30th 2015

The City regrets any inconvenience this may cause. Thank You for your time.

Please acknowledge receipt of this addendum by shining below and retumin copy of samey
fax to

Gary Wadge
Public Works Clerk
FAX # (705) 647-9632

I hereby acknowledge receipt of this addendum, understand and shall make allowances for the
ch

2— 4
SI NED PLEASE PRINT

(t7).
COMPANY



w
sibPU

C

C
learance

C
ertificate

I C
ertificat

de
décharge

C
o

n
tracto

r
L

egal
I

T
rade

N
am

e
I

C
o

n
tracto

r
C

o
n

tracto
r

P
rincipal

L
egal

I T
rade

N
am

e
I

P
rincipal

C
learan

ce
V

alidity
period

A
ppellation

co
m

m
erciale

ou
raiso

n
A

d
d
ress

I
C

lassificatio
n

A
ppellation

co
m

m
erciale

ou
raiso

n
A

d
d
ress

I
C

ertificate
(d

d
-m

m
m

so
ciale

de
l’en

trep
ren

eu
r

A
d
resse

de
U

nit
an

d
so

ciale
de

l’en
trep

ren
eu

r
p
rin

cip
al

A
d
resse

de
N

um
ber

I
yyyy)

I
P

ério
d
e

l’en
trep

ren
eu

r
D

escrip
tio

n
I

l’en
trep

ren
eu

r
N

um
éro

du
de

validité
U

nite
de

principal
certificat

de
(jjlm

m
laaaa)

classificatio
n

d
éch

arg
e

del’en
trep

ren
eu

r
et

d
escrip

tio
n

P
E

D
E

R
S

E
N

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
(2013)

177246
1000-010:

N
on-

T
H

E
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
IO

N
O

F
T

H
E

C
IT

Y
O

F
P

0
B

O
X

2050,
E

20000071S
Q

D
27-M

ay-2015
to

IN
C

.
B

E
D

A
R

D
R

D
,

E
xem

pt
T

E
M

ISK
A

M
IN

G
S

H
O

R
E

S
/

PA
R

E
N

T
H

A
IL

E
Y

B
U

R
Y

,
19-A

ug-2015
C

/O
H

E
A

T
H

E
R

P
artners

and
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

O
N

,
PO

J1K
O

,
B

R
A

Z
E

A
U

P
0

E
xecutive

C
A

B
O

X
2409,

O
fficers

in
R

ate
N

E
W

G
roup

748
L

ISK
E

A
R

D
,

O
N

,
4224-001:

PO
J1PO

,
C

A
C

oncrete
Finishing
3551-000:
R

eady-M
ix

C
oncrete

O
perations

4122-000:
W

aterw
orks

and
S

ew
age

S
ystem

s
421

1-001:
W

recking
and

S
tructural

D
em

olition
4222-002:

Form
W

ork
(L

ow
-

R
ise)

4231-000:
M

asonry
O

perations
4121-001:
H

ighw
ays,

S
treets,

and
Sm

all
B

ridges
4591-001:
H

ighw
ay,

S
treet,

and
B

ridge
M

aintenance

P
aqe

1
o

1



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

Subject: Application for a Municipal Drain Report No.: PW-038-2015 
 Peter’s Road Agenda Date: June 16, 2015 

 
Attachments 
Appendix 01: Anticipated Watershed Catchment Area 
Appendix 02: E-mail from Drainage Superintendent – April 23, 2015 
Appendix 03: Petition for Drainage Works by Road Authority 

Recommendations 

It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of    
Administrative Report No. PW-038-2015; and 

2. That Council approves the submission of a Petition for Drainage Works by the 
Road Authority for Peter’s Road between Highway 65 E and Drive-in Theatre 
Road. 

Background 

The Drainage Act provides the legislative vehicle for the construction and management 
of many of the communal drainage systems in rural Ontario. The local municipality is 
responsible for the management of the drainage systems (known as a Municipal Drain) 
located within their municipal boundaries and the cost of construction and maintenance 
of a Municipal Drain is assessed to the landowners in the watershed of the drain. 
Municipal drain construction or improvement projects must be completed in accordance 
with the procedures of the Drainage Act and must comply with applicable law.   

In 1983 a petition was submitted for a municipal drain for the watershed as shown in 
Appendix 01 and was entitled “Blain-Wilson Municipal Drain”. H. Sutcliffe Engineers 
was the firm retained by the former Township of Dymond to design the drain. 

In 2012, as part of the obligations of the Drainage Superintendent, this drain was 
inspected and found to be in need of significant repairs in order to bring it back into 
compliance with the original design. The City commenced initiatives to repair the drain; 
however during construction certain components of the drain could not be found and 
upon notification to landowners within the catchment area of a pending invoice for 
repairs, staff was alerted to the fact that the drain was never constructed. 

Upon review of archived files it was determined that a petition for the drain was 
submitted, engineer retained, design completed; however upon notification to 
landowners within the watershed of their financial obligations towards the drain the 
original petitioners withdrew their request for the drain. As a result, in 1986, the Ontario 
Drainage Tribunal was required to settle various issues related to the work done and as 

 
Public Works Page 1 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

to which party would be responsible financially. Of note in the Tribunal findings is the 
following statement: 

Mr. Blain noting that he had already completed the proposed work on his property, no 
doubt making use of the information prepared for the Report (Engineer’s Design).  

That would assist in understanding how the Drainage Superintendent assumed that it 
was a valid Municipal Drain. 

Analysis 

Subsequent to learning that the drainage system was not a valid drain, the City ceased 
any and all maintenance and/or repairs to this drainage system. The former Blain 
property was purchased and the owner has made improvements to the lands that have 
resulted in a significant impact to the drainage system along Peter’s Road. 

Appendix 02 – E-mail from Drainage Superintendent – April 23, 2015 provides further 
detail as to the issues related to the current conditions as well as additional background 
information. Mr. Gorecki states, at the end of the e-mail, that “the option of having the 
Road Superintendent petition for a Municipal Drain should be strongly considered. The 
existing drainage problems will only compound in the future if not addressed at this 
time.”  

Section 4 (c) – Petition of Drains in the Drainage Act states that “a petition for the 
drainage by means of a drainage works of an area requiring drainage as described in 
the petition may be filed with the clerk of the local municipality in which the area is 
situate by, 

a) the majority in number of the owners, as shown by the last revised assessment 
roll of lands in the area, including the owners of any roads in the area; 

b) the owner or owners as shown by the last revised assessment roll, of lands in 
the area representing at least 60 per cent of the hectarage in the area; 

c) where a drainage works is required for a road or part thereof, the engineer, road 
superintendent or person having jurisdiction over such road or part, despite 
subsection 61 (5); 

d) where a drainage works is required for the drainage of lands used for agricultural 
purposes, the Director.” 

It is recommended that Council approve, through resolution, Appendix 02 - Petition for 
Drainage Works by Road Authority as permitted under Section 4 (c) of the Drainage 
Act. 

If approved, the Clerk would initiate the process under the Act to retain a drainage 
engineer to conduct an on-site meeting and prepare a Preliminary Report. The purpose 
of the on-site meeting is to permit the engineer to determine the area requiring drainage 

 
Public Works Page 2 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

as well as provide an opportunity to landowners to express their concerns. The 
Preliminary Report will provide information on the extent of work required, the possible 
alternatives for the construction of the drain and the general cost of the alternatives to 
be considered. 

Once the preferred option for construction of the drain is confirmed the design would be 
completed, tender released, award of tender and the drainage works constructed. Upon 
completion costs for construction would be shared by the landowners within the 
catchment area as assessed through the engineering process.  

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   
This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A   

All costs associated with the construction of the drainage works (municipal drain) are 
distributed amongst the landowners contained within the catchment area as assessed 
by the Engineer. The City would have costs associated with the drainage works based 
on roadways and any City-owned land within the catchment area. 

Alternatives 

No alternatives were considered. 

Submission 

 
Prepared by: Reviewed and submitted for 
 Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” “Original signed by”  
___________________ _______________________ 
G. Douglas Walsh, CET Christopher W. Oslund 
Director of Public Works City Manager 

 
Public Works Page 3 
 



•

;•••

-
S

-
.

C,

‘S

i3
N

3
t

N
O

IL
V

.L
N

O

4
-

p

-
•
•
‘
.
•
•

•
•
•
:
-
!
,
‘
.
_

4
4
4

5
—

L
O

1
•Z

L
01

$1
1
0
1

0
1
L

0
1

6JX
X

1

1
.

•
‘
‘ -•.

:
[

1
1
M

lI
f
l

0
“

4
’;’-g

;
C,

1
j’S

’flL
’)

‘
1
f

F
•L

.V
2!&

:
t’2

’JiY
O

•V
j1

5
c
’
J
V

L
N

c
’
!
i

•
•
;_

•
-
e
_
-
•
•
-
•

•
.

7
1
iI.

1
0

t’Q
!

L
)

‘V
t.t

V
7

C
V

”
S

Q
IW

C
’
V

1
3
V

V
fr7

iV
t

Q
ç
f
.L

’
1.’1L

L
S

.
L

N
F

1
Ifrifi

•‘N
O

Z
1

:53.1
N

3
?
q
o

->j

I

Q
O

Q
Q

;
•J1V

D
S



Dave Treen

From: Ed & Nancy <ednancyl@parolink.net>
Sent: April-23-15 12:56 PM
To: Dave Treen
Cc: Doug Walsh; Steve Burnett; Chris Oslund; Jamie Sheppard
Subject: Peters Road Drainage “Blain -Wilson Project’

Gentlemen,

This is to confirm a site meeting, Apr. 22/14 held at Peters Road and Basil Lorangers property (W 1/2 of S
1/2 Lot 11, Conc. 3 Dymond). Meeting was attended by Steve Burnett, Jamie Sheppard and Ed Gorecki. For
the purpose of this report reference will be made to Blain-Wilson Project as there is an Engineers Report on
file containing good relative information, watershed plans, drawings etc. The original Petition for the Blain
Wilson Drain was withdrawn, however Blain had carried out some private works on the property (tile and C.B
‘s installations).

Background:

Mar. 03/14, Basil Loranger was given the opportunity to Petition for a Municipal Drain, however he opted to
repair, at his expense, existing portions, add a new tile and fill in an existing waterway / gully.

Oct. 16/14 Gaston Gauthier (pt. N 1/2 Lot 11, Conc. 3 Dymond) complained of flooding caused by recent
downstream drainage works carried out by Basil Loranger. Please refer to E. Gorecki report — email Oct.
17/14 and pictures submitted “Flooding/Gaston Gauthier property —Dymond Twp.”.

Site Meeting (Apr.22/14) Observations:

-During spring freshet 2015, the water level on the east side of Peters Road and Loranger prop. at the 1950
mm culvert ( and 750 mm drain outlet) breached the road.

-excessive erosion in Loranger field adjacent to the road occurred. Recently installed tile was
exposed. Erosion also occurred upstream in newly established grassed waterway.

-Resultant silt migrated to the 1950 mm culvert at Peters Road, 1/2 filling the culvert and depositing a silt
plug at the outlet. Road shoulder has erosion at the culvert.

-There is erosion to stream banks along Peters Road to Hwy # 65 E crossing.

-Poor alignment of waterway and road culvert inlet and no erosion protection.

Options:

Within the road right of way only, removal of the 1950 mm culvert, clean, replace and remove the silt plug
at the outlet. The Municipality would have no authority to carry out repair works up stream beyond the R of
W. If erosion control / permanent silt trap upstream is not installed, the pipe will block up again after the
first heavy flow condition.

1

dtreen
Highlight

dtreen
Highlight

dtreen
Highlight

dtreen
Typewritten Text
Owner of the former Blain property

dtreen
Highlight



Since Basil Loranger does not want to proceed with Petition for Municipal Drain under the Drainage Act,
the Road Superintendent, under section 4(1) of the Act, can file a
Petition. At that point a Preliminary Engineers Report would identify the watershed, problems and
options. ie. Grant Drain process.

Considerations:

-Is this a “Natural Water Course” ? It does have defined banks and channel. Water flows for a major part of
the year.

-Was the original Blain works approved under the lakes and Rivers Improvement Act (MNRF) being works on
shorelands / filling and works within a water body?

-Other potentially required approvals:
-Beds of Navigable Waters Protection Act.
-Ont. Water Resources Act.
-Conservation Authorities Act.
-Fisheries Act.
-The Municipal Act.
-Endangered Species and S. A.R. Act.

-Did Basil Loranger receive any approvals for the additional works he carried out, being installation of 12
drain and filling of the gully! waterway? Water quality due to erosion! siltation appears to be effected
downstream right to Lake Temiskaming.

-There is still the civil matter concerning flooding of upstream property owned by Gaston Gauthier.

-Road Superintendent, Jamie Sheppard, identified that Peters Road is being considered for future up grading,
being surface! culverts etc. . The flooding/erosion problem should be addressed prior to up grading. The
existing culvert (s) may be undersized for present flows. An Engineers Report would identify and outline
options.

-In view of the above, the option of having the Road Superintendent petition for a Municipal Drain should be
strongly considered. The existing drainage problems will only compound in the future if not addressed at this
time.

I have recent pictures (Apr. 22/14) on file. If you require further assistance in this matter, please advise.

Ed Gorecki
Drainage Superintendent

2

dtreen
Highlight

dtreen
Highlight

dtreen
Highlight



ft Ontario ‘

Petition for Drainage Works by Road
Authority — Form 2
Drainage Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. D.17, subs. 4(1)(c)

To: The Council of the Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores

Re: Road name and road location (provide description of road or section of road that requires drainage)
Peter’s Road between Highway 65 E and Drive-In Theatre Road.

Increased agricultural activity and/or modification to agricultural lands has increased water rtinoff to Peter’s
Road.

I, G. Douglas Walsh , as an individual having jurisdiction over
(Last, first name)

the above road system for the City of Terniskaming Shores

declare that the road described above requires drainage and hereby petition under subsection 4(1)(c) of the Drainage Act that

this area be drained by means of a drainage works.

Organization

City ofTemiskaming Shores

Position Title Signature Date (yyyy/mm/dd)

Director of Public Works 2015/06/17

Petitioners become financially responsible as soon as they sign a petition:
• Once the petition is accepted by council, an engineer is appointed to respond to the petition. Drainage Act, R.S.O. 1990,

c. D. 17 subs. 8(1).
• After the meeting to consider the preliminary report, if the petition does not comply with section 4, the project is terminated

and the road authority is responsible for the costs. Drainage Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. D. 17 subs. 10(4).
• After the meeting to consider the final report, if the petition does not comply with section 4, the project is terminated and the

road authority is responsible for the costs. Drainage Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. D. 17 5. 43.
• If the project proceeds to completion, a share of the cost of the project will be assessed to the involved properties in relation

to the assessment schedule in the engineer’s report, as amended on appeal. Drainage Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. D. 17 s. 61.

0175E (2012/08) © Queen’s Printer for Ontario, 2012 Disponible en francais



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

Subject:  Knock Cancer out of the Park Report No.: RS-015-2015 
 Agenda Date: June 16, 2015 
Attachments 
Appendix 01:  Letter of Request   

Recommendations 
It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of 
Administrative Report No. RS-015-2015; 

2. That Council Proclaim July 10-12, 2015 as the “Shanna Larsen Memorial “Team 
Shan” Weekend in the City of Temiskaming Shores; and 

3. That Council approves the application of the non-profit rate for the use of the 
municipal ball diamonds at the same rate as 2014 and that the rental fee of 
$224.00 plus applicable taxes for the use of the  New Liskeard Arena Hall for a 
community dance reception be waived. 

Background 

A letter of request was received on Monday June 8, 2015 from Mr. James T. Paterson, 
President – KCOotP/Shanna Larsen Memorial requesting: 

1. Municipal Council proclaim the weekend of July 10th to the 12th, 2015 as the 
“Shanna Larsen Memorial ‘TEAM SHAN’  Weekend in the City of Temiskaming 
Shores 

2. That Municipal Council consider the donation of the ball fields for the Knock 
Cancer Out of the Park Shanna Larsen Memorial slo-pitch tournament  

3. That Municipal Council consider the donation of the New Liskeard Arena Hall for 
the community dance reception on Saturday July 10th, 2015 

Attached as Appendix No. 01 is the report is the Letter of Request. 

Analysis 

The request was presented to the Recreation Services Committee at their regular 
monthly meeting on Monday June 8, 2015. The Committee commended the Organizing 
Committee of the great work they do for this event. The ball fields used last year 
included those in Dymond, New Liskeard and Haileybury. The Recreation staff drags 
the fields throughout the tournament, works with the committee to line the fields, and 
increases garbage pickup during the weekend and as result, it was determined the non-
profit would apply for the use of the fields. The rental fee for the use of the New 
Liskeard Community Hall for the community dance reception could be waived for this 
one time 10th Anniversary Event. The following recommendation was passed: 

 
Recreation Services Page 1 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

Recommendation No. 2015-024 

Moved by: Chuck Durrant 
Seconded by: Danny Lavigne 

Be it recommended that:  

1. The Recreation Services Committee reviewed the request from the Shanna Larsen 
Knock Cancer Out of the Park Ball Tournament to waive the fees for the ball fields 
and New Liskeard Arena Hall; and  

2. The Recreation Services Committee approves to waive the Non-Profit Rate at the 
New Liskeard Arena Hall and charge the same fee as 2014 for the Ball Fields; 
$472.50 plus HST.  The SOCAN Fee of $123.38 plus HST will also apply for the 
New Liskeard Arena Hall  

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   
This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A   

Alternatives 

Municipal Council may consider waiving the ball field rental fees in addition to the hall 
rental fee.    

Municipal Council may consider applying the non-profit fee for use of municipal facilities 

Submission 

 
Prepared by: Reviewed and submitted for 
 Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” “Original signed by” 
___________________ _______________________ 
Tammie Caldwell Christopher W. Oslund 
Director of Recreation Services City Manager 

 
Recreation Services Page 2 
 



KNOCK CANCER
OUT OF TIE PAflK

City of Temiskaming Shores
325 Farr Dr
Haileybury, ON POJ 1KO

Mayor KiUd, Mr. Oslund, Mr. Treen and members of Temiskaming Shores’ City Council:

As President of the “Knock Cancer Out of the Park - Shanna Larsen Memorial” sb-pitch
tournament, please accept this submission of a request for the City to once again recognize and
proclaim a “Shanna Larsen Memorial ‘Team Shan’ Weekend in the City of Temiskaming Shores”,
specifically July 10-11-12, 2015.

Each month council receives requests to recognize events, causes, and memorializations for
other municipalities, as well as many from recognized charities within our own. When the idea of a
Declaration of TEAM SHAN Weekend was brought to council 6 years ago, Mayor and council saw fit
to pass the motion without hesitation; the same occurred in 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014. Obviously I
am hoping the same will occur this year (please see attached Resolution No. 2014-343, June 17, 2014
for last year’s proclamation by the City).

TEAM SHAN is named in honour of Shanna Larsen, a former Haileybury resident, who passed
of breast cancer 9 years ago; she was 24 at the time of her passing. This slowpitch tournament - the
largest tournament in Northern Ontario - raises funds for the awareness of and the combat against
breast cancer, specifially in young women; Team Shan’s slogan is “not just a disease of older
women.”

In 2011 the “TEAM SHAN” initiative - founded and spearheaded by Shanna’s mother, Lorna
Larsen - received authorization and a registered number from Revenue Canada to operate as a
registered charity in Canada.

With this being a milestone event - our 10th annual - and with TEAM SHAN being a registered
charity in Canada, I am compelled to investigate avenues to increase the awareness of TEAM SHAN
and its cause while maximizing the funds raised for this initiative. One of the ways to achieve this
maximization is to minimize expenses to the operation. With this in mind, I am requesting the City of
Temiskaming Shores’ donation of the use of the local fields during the commemorative weekend,
July 10-12, 2015.

Knock Cancer out of the Park
do James Paterson

Box 1657 New Liskeard, ON POJ 1PO
jtp aterson@gmail. corn



NOVK VANVZ
QIJT OF’ TIE PJE,H,

In conjunction with our 10th annual event, TEAM SHAN will also be hosting a community
dance reception at the New Liskeard Arena Hall on Saturday, July 10th. In keeping with the attempt
to reduce expenses, I am requesting the CoTS’ donation of the facility for this event. Proof of
Liability Insurance and all documentation will of course be supplied as per CoTS’ hall rental
requirements.

I sincerely hope we can once again count on the City’s approval and support on this item.

Should you have any questions at all, please do not hesitate to ask. I will answer as best as
possible, or shall get the answers from TEAM SHAN directly.

Sincerely,

James T. Paterson
President - KCO0tP / Shanna Larsen Memorial
705.676.6036
kcootpgmail.com
www. kcootp.com

Knock Cancer out of the Park
do James Paterson

Box 1657 New Liskeard, ON POJ 1PO
jtpaterson@gmail.com



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

Subject:  Age Friendly Grant and Community Report No.: RS-016-2015 
 Transportation Pilot Grant Agenda Date: June 16, 2015 
Attachments 
None 

Recommendations 
It is recommended: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of 
Administrative Report No. RS-016-2015; 

2. That Council approves the inclusion of the revenues and expenditures of the Age 
Friendly Community Planning Grant Program and Community Transportation Pilot 
Grant program in the 2015 fiscal year and the 2016 budget estimates as presented 
in the report; 

3. That Council directs staff to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into an 
agreement with the Ministry of Citizenship, Immigration and International Trade in 
the amount of $25,000 for the Age Friendly Community Grant and an agreement 
with the Ministry of Transportation in the amount of $40,000 for the Community 
Transportation Pilot Grant for consideration at the June 16, 2015 Regular meeting 
of Council; and 

4. That Council directs staff to commence the hiring process for one (1) coordinator 
to carry out the completion of both projects simultaneously. 

Background 

Council received Memorandum 001-2015-RS on January 20, 2015 and passed 
Resolution No. 2015-081 by a recorded vote: 

Moved by: Councillor McArthur 
Seconded by: Councillor Foley 

Be it resolved that he Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores acknowledges receipt of 
Memo 001-2015-RS; 

That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores directs staff to submit a funding 
application to the Age-Friendly Community Planning Grant Program in the amount of 
$25,000 and to the Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program in the amount of 
$40,000; and 

That execution of these two projects is contingent upon receipt for funding under both 
programs. 

 Applications were submitted to both agencies. 

A Press Release issued by the Ministry of Transportation on communities that had 
received funding for this program did not include the City of Temiskaming Shores, 

 
Recreation Services Page 1 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

based on the requirement of both funding opportunities being approved to proceed, the 
project was not included in the 2015 operating project budget. 

The Municipal Budget was passed on April 7, 2015 (By-law No. 2015-073).   

On April 30, 2015 the City was informed that in fact they had been approved for the 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program and the “Transfer Agreement” was 
forwarded to the City.  

The City awaited approval from the Ontario Senior’s Secretariat in regard to the success 
of the funding application for the Age Friendly Community Planning Grant and were 
informed on May 20, 2015 that this funding application was also successful.  The 
Transfer Agreement has been forwarded to the City. 

The Corporate Services Committee approved Recommendation CS-2015-029 on May 
28, 2015: 

Moved by:  Carman Kidd 

That the Corporate Services Committee acknowledges receipt of funding approval for the 
Age Friendly Community Planning Grant Program and the community Transportation Pilot 
Grant program in the amount of $25,000 and $40,000 respectively; and further, 

That the Corporate Services Committee recommends the inclusion of the revenues and 
expenditures of the two (2) programs in the 2015 fiscal year and the 2016 Budget 
estimates as follows: 

 

 Cost Category Total 2015 2016 

Coordinator Salary and overhead $49,950 $24,975 $24,975 

Marketing Materials & Advertising Expenses $13,550 $3,550 $10,000 

Forums (3 x $500) $1,500 $1,000 $500 

 Total $65,000 $29,525 $35,475 

Analysis 

Funding was approved from both agencies to carry out the two projects simultaneously 
to create efficiencies as the partnerships and collaborations required for each funding 
program occur with similar organizations. 

Proceeding with the project will include the hiring of a Coordinator to define local 
principles, develop a custom needs assessment, action plan and implementation of an 
action plan and evaluation of the plan in beginning the process of becoming an Age 
Friendly Community.  It will also include the development of community transportation 
solutions, including ways to better utilize existing transportation resources for those who 
do not have access to their own transpiration. The Co-ordinator’s position is for a one 
year period. 

 
Recreation Services Page 2 



City of Temiskaming Shores 
Administrative Report 

 

 

Financial / Staffing Implications 

This item has been approved in the current budget: Yes   No   N/A   
This item is within the approved budget amount: Yes   No   N/A   

Funding received is to be applied to the hiring of a Project Coordinator for one year, 
marketing materials and promotion and community forums. The Coordinator would be 
working at City Hall under the guidance of the Director of Recreation Services.  Office 
equipment and other administrative costs will be included in the 2015 and 2016 
Operating budget. 

 Cost Category Total 2015 2016 
Coordinator Salary and overhead $49,950 $24,975 $24,975 
Marketing Materials & Advertising Expenses $13,550 $3,550 $10,000 
Forums (3 x $500) $1,500 $1,000 $500 
 Total $65,000 $29,525 $35,475 

Alternatives 

The municipality may opt not to move forward with the projects. 

Submission 

Prepared by: Reviewed and submitted for 
 Council’s consideration by: 
 
“Original signed by” “Original signed by” 
___________________ _______________________ 
Tammie Caldwell Christopher W. Oslund 
Director of Recreation Services City Manager 
 
 

 
Recreation Services Page 3 



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2015-130 

Being a by-law to enter into a Lease Agreement with the New 
Liskeard Lions Midget Hockey Club for the operation of the 

Haileybury Arena Concession  

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, the 
powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to govern its affairs as 
it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s ability to respond to municipal 
issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural 
person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public; 

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report CS-037-2014 at the June 2, 
2015 Regular meeting of Council and directed staff to prepare the necessary by-law to 
enter into a lease agreement with the New Liskeard Lions Midget Hockey Club for the 
operation of the Haileybury Arena Concession stand from September 1, 2015 to April 
30, 2016 for consideration at the June 16, 2015 Regular meeting of Council; 

And whereas the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores deems 
it desirable to enter into a Lease Agreement for the operation of concession services at 
the Haileybury Arena; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
hereby enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That the Mayor and Clerk be authorized to enter into a Lease Agreement with the 
New Liskeard Lions Midget Hockey Club for the operation of the Haileybury 
Arena Concession Stand for the period covering September 1, 2015 to April 30, 
2016, a copy of which is attached hereto as Schedule “A” and forming part of this 
by-law; 

2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make 
minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical nature to the 
By-law and schedule, after the passage of this By-law, where such modifications 
or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its associated schedule. 

 



Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 16th day of June, 2015. 
 
 

 
_________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 
 
 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law No. 2015-130 

Lease Agreement between 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

and 

New Liskeard Lions Midget Hockey Club 

For the operation of the Haileybury 
Arena Concession Stand 



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
 

- and - 
 

The New Liskeard Lions Midget Hockey Club 
 
 

              
 

LEASE 
             

 
 
 

Shelly Zubyck  
Director of Corporate Services  

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
P.O. Box 2050  

Haileybury, Ontario  
P0J lK0



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Lease – Lions Club – Hlby Arena Concession By-law 2015-130 

 

This lease made this 16th day of June, 2015 
 
Between: 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
(hereinafter called the "Landlord") 

 
And:  

The New Liskeard Lions Midget Hockey Club 
(hereinafter called the "Tenant") 

 

Whereas the Landlord is the owner of the lands in the City of Temiskaming Shores, in 
the District of Temiskaming. 

And whereas the parties hereto have agreed to enter into this Lease.  

1. Leased Premises 

The Landlord hereby demises and leases to the Tenant part of the Landlord's Building 
known as the Concession containing a rentable area located at the Haileybury Arena in 
the City of Temiskaming Shores, Ontario being hereinafter called the "premises".  

2. Term 

To hold the premises for a term commencing on September 1, 2015, to April 30, 2016. 

3. Rent 

The Tenant shall pay the Landlord One Hundred Dollars ($100) plus applicable taxes 
per month payable on the first day of each month from September 1, 2015 to April 30, 
2016. 

4. Tenants Covenants 

a) Rent – to pay rent; 

b) Operations – be responsible for operating the vending machines and to serve 
Coca Cola products only; 

c) Telephone – to pay when due the cost of telephone supplied to premises if 
required; 

d) Insurance - To provide General Liability Insurance for coverage of all areas under 
this lease in the joint names of the Tenant and the City of Temiskaming Shores 
with the limits of not less than ($1,000,000) two million dollars (Canadian), 
inclusive per occurrence for bodily injury, death or damage for property including 
loss of use thereof, with property deductible of five hundred dollars ($500). Proof of 
insurance must be supplied to the Landlord prior to occupying the facilities and 
thereafter to provide proof of insurance on each anniversary of the date of 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Lease – Lions Club – Hlby Arena Concession By-law 2015-130 

 

occupation; and, to provide proof of insurance forthwith upon request by the City at 
any time. 

e) Repair - to repair, reasonable wear and tear and damage by fire, lightning and 
tempest only excepted; and to permit the Landlord to enter and view the state of 
repair and to repair according to notice in writing, reasonable wear and tear and 
damage by fire, lightning and tempest only excepted; and to leave the premises in 
good repair, reasonable wear and tear and damage by fire, lightning and tempest 
only excepted;  

f) Cost of repair where Tenant at fault - that if the building including the premises, 
boilers, engines, pipes and other apparatus (or any of them) used for the purpose 
of heating or air conditioning the building, or if the water pipes, drainage pipes, 
electric lighting or other equipment of the building or the roof or outside walls of the 
building get out of repair or become damaged or destroyed through the negligence, 
carelessness or misuse of the Tenant, his servants, agents, employees or anyone 
permitted by him to be in the building (or through him or them in any way stopping 
up or injuring the heating apparatus, water pipes, drainage pipes, or other 
equipment or part of the building) the expense of any necessary repairs, 
replacements or alterations shall be paid by the Tenant to the Landlord forthwith on 
demand;  

g) Assigning or subletting - not to assign, sublet or part with possession of any part 
of the premises without leave of the Landlord, which leave shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, and which leave shall not be required in the event of a 
sublease to add any personnel to the group comprising the Tenant or to a 
management corporation which may be incorporated by the Tenant;  

h) Entry by Landlord - to permit the Landlord or its agents to enter upon the 
premises at any time and from time to time for the purpose of inspecting and 
making repairs, alterations or improvements to the premises or to the building, and 
the Tenant shall not be entitled to compensation for any inconvenience, nuisance, 
or discomfort occasioned thereby; provided that the Landlord shall give reasonable 
advance notice to avoid inconvenience to the Tenant, given the private and 
confidential nature of the profession of the Tenant;  

i) Indemnity - to indemnify and save harmless the Landlord against and from any 
and all claims by or on behalf of any person or persons, firm or firms, or corporation 
or corporations arising from the conduct or any work, by or through any act of 
negligence of the Tenant or any assignee, subtenant, agent, contractor, servants, 
employee or licensee of the Tenant;  

j) Alterations - not to make or erect in or to the premises any installation, alteration, 
addition, or partition without submitting plans and specifications to the Tenant and 
obtaining the Tenant's prior written consent (in each instance); such work shall if 
the Tenant so elects, be performed by employees of or contractors designated by 
the Tenant; in the absence of such election, such work may be performed with the 
Tenant's consent in writing (given prior to letting of contract) by contractors 
engaged by the Landlord but in each case only under written contract approved in 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Lease – Lions Club – Hlby Arena Concession By-law 2015-130 

 

writing by the Tenant and subject to all conditions which the Tenant may impose; 
the Landlord shall submit to the Tenant or the Landlord's contractors (as the case 
may be), when due the costs of all such work and of all materials, labour and 
services involved therein and of all decoration and all changes in the building, its 
equipment or services, necessitated thereby; provided, that it is at this time 
understood by the Tenant that certain equipment is to be installed and to be placed 
at convenient places as designated by the Landlord; and 

k) Use of Building - the Tenant shall not allow the building and/or property to be 
used for any purpose other than to carry on the business of a Concession Stand. 

 

5. Landlord’s Covenants 

The Landlord covenants with the Tenant; 

a) Quiet enjoyment - for the quiet enjoyment;  

b) Taxes - to pay all taxes and rates, municipal, parliamentary or otherwise, levied 
against the premises or the Tenant on account thereof;  

c) Electricity and water - to pay for the electricity and water supplied to the 
premises;  

d) Structural soundness - to keep the premises, common areas and parking lot 
structurally sound and to look after any structural defects which may arise. 

 

6. Provisos  

Provided always and it is hereby agreed as follows:  

a) Fixtures - The Landlord may remove his fixtures, but all installations, alterations, 
additions, partitions and fixtures except trade or Landlord's fixtures in or upon the 
premises, whether placed there by the Landlord or by the Tenant, shall be the 
Tenant's property without compensation therefore to the Landlord and shall not 
be removed from the premises at any time (either during or after the term);  

b) Fire - In case of damage to the premises by fire, lightning or tempest, rent shall 
cease until the premises are rebuilt; and the Tenant, instead of re-building or 
making the premises fit for the purpose of the Landlord, may at its option 
terminate this lease on giving to the Landlord within thirty days after such fire, 
lightning or tempest, notice in writing of its intention (so to do) and thereupon rent 
and any other payments for which the Landlord is liable under this lease shall be 
apportioned and paid to the date of such fire, lightning or tempest, and the 
Landlord shall immediately deliver up possession of the premises to the Tenant;  



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Lease – Lions Club – Hlby Arena Concession By-law 2015-130 

 

c) Damage to property - The Tenant shall not be liable nor responsible in any way 
for any loss of or damage or injury to any property belonging to the Landlord or to 
the employees of the Landlord or to any other person while in the building or in 
the yard of the building unless such loss, damage or injury shall be caused by the 
negligence of the Tenant or its employees, servants or agents for any damage to 
any such property caused by steam, water, rain or snow which may leak into, 
issue or flow from any part of the building or from the water, steam or drainage of 
the building or from any other place or quarter nor for any damage caused by or 
attributable to the condition or arrangement of any electric or other wiring omitted 
by any other Landlord;  

d) Impossibility of performance - It is understood and agreed that whenever and 
to the extent that the Tenant shall be unable to fulfill, or shall be delayed or 
restricted in fulfilling any obligation hereunder for the supply or provision of any 
service or utility or the doing of any work or the making of any repairs because it 
is unable to obtain the material, goods, equipment, service, utility or labour 
required to enable it to fulfill such obligations or by reason of any statute, law or 
order-in-council or any regulation or order passed or made pursuant thereto or by 
reason of the order or direction of any administrator, controller or board, or any 
government department or officer or other authority, or by reason of not being 
able to obtain any permission or authority required thereby, or by reason of any 
other cause beyond its control whether of the foregoing character or not, the 
Tenant shall be relieved from the fulfillment of such obligation and the Landlord 
shall not be entitled to compensation for any inconvenience, nuisance or 
discomfort thereby occasioned;  

e) Default of Landlord - If the rent reserved or any part thereof shall not be paid on 
the day appointed for payment, whether lawfully demanded or not, or in case of 
breach or non-observance or non-performance of any of the covenants or 
agreements or rules or regulations herein contained or referred to on the part of 
the Landlord to be observed and performed, or in case the premises shall be 
vacated or remain unoccupied or in case the term shall be taken in execution or 
attachment for any cause whatsoever, (and in every such case) the Tenant shall 
be entitled thereafter to enter (into and) upon the premises (or any part thereof in 
the name of the whole) and the same to (have again), repossess and enjoy as of 
its former estate, anything herein contained to the contrary notwithstanding;  

f) Bankruptcy of Landlord - In case without the written consent of the Tenant the 
premises shall remain vacant or not used for the period of fifteen days or be used 
by any other person than the Landlord or for any other purpose than that for 
which they were let or in case the term or any of the goods and chattels of the 
Landlord shall at any time be seized in execution or attachment by any creditor of 
the Landlord or if the Landlord shall make any assignment for the benefit of 
creditors or any bulk sale of any act (now or hereafter in force) for bankrupt or 
insolvent debtors (or if the Landlord is a company any order shall be made for the 
winding up of the Landlord), then in any such case this lease shall at the option 
of the Tenant cease and terminate and the term shall immediately become 
forfeited and void and the current month's rent and the next ensuing three 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Lease – Lions Club – Hlby Arena Concession By-law 2015-130 

 

month's rent shall immediately become due and payable and the Tenant may re- 
enter and take possession of the premises as though the Landlord or other 
occupant (or occupants) of the premises was (or were) holding over after the 
expiration of the term without any right whatever;  

g) Distress - The Landlord waives and renounces the benefit of any present or 
future statute taking away or limiting the Tenant's right of distress, and covenants 
and agrees that notwithstanding any such statute none of the goods and chattels 
of the Landlord on the premises at any time during the term shall be exempt from 
levy by distress for rent in arrears;  

h) Right of re-entry - On the Tenant's becoming entitled to re-enter the premises 
under any of the provisions of this lease, the Tenant in addition to all other rights 
may do so as the agent of the Landlord, using force if necessary, without being 
liable for any prosecution therefore, and may re-let the premises as agent of the 
Landlord, and receive the rent therefore, and as agent of the Landlord may take 
possession of any furniture or other property on the premises and sell the same 
at a public or private sale without notice and apply the proceeds of such sale and 
any rent derived from re-letting the premises upon account of rent under this 
lease, and the Landlord shall be liable to the Tenant for any deficiency;  

i) Right of termination by the Landlord - The lease may be terminated for any 
valid operational reason; 

j) Right of termination by the Tenant - On the Tenant's becoming entitled to re-
enter the premises under any of the provisions of this lease, the Tenant, in 
addition to all other rights, shall have the right to terminate this lease forthwith by 
leaving upon the premises notice in writing of its intention, and thereupon rent 
and any other payments for which the Landlord is liable under this lease shall be 
computed, apportioned and paid in full to the date of such termination, and the 
Landlord shall immediately deliver up possession of the Premises to the Tenant, 
and the Tenant may re-enter and take possession of the premises;  

k) Right of Renewal – The Tenant shall have the right, if not otherwise in default, 
of renewing the lease.  Terms and conditions to be negotiated at signing.  The 
Tenant shall be required to give written notice of his intention to renew the lease 
on or before the 1st day of June prior to the commencement of the renewal term; 

l) Notice - Any notice required or contemplated by any provision of this lease shall 
be deemed sufficiently given if contained in writing enclosed in a sealed envelope 
addressed, in the case of notice of the Tenant, to it, at c/o Shelly Zubyck, 325 
Farr Drive, P.O. Box 2050, Haileybury, Ontario. P0J 1K0, and in the case of 
notice to the Landlord, to the premises and deposited in one of Her Majesty's 
post offices in Haileybury, Ontario, registered and prepaid. The date of receipt of 
such notice shall be the fourth day next following the date of so mailing by 
registered mail. Provided that either party may, by notice to the other, designate 
another address in Canada to which notices mailed or delivered more than ten 
days thereafter shall be addressed.  



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Lease – Lions Club – Hlby Arena Concession By-law 2015-130 

 

7. Headings  

The headings in this lease have been inserted as a matter of convenience and for 
reference only and in no way define, limit or enlarge the scope or meaning of this lease 
or any provisions hereof.  

8. Effect of Lease  

This lease and everything herein contained, shall extend to and bind and may be taken 
advantage of by the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, as the 
case may be, of each (and every) of the parties hereto, and where there is more than 
one Landlord or there is a female party or a corporation, the provisions hereof shall be 
read with all grammatical changes thereby rendered necessary and all covenants shall 
be deemed joint and several.  

In Witness Whereas the Party of the First Part has hereunto affixed its corporate seal 
attested by the hands of its duly authorized officers, and the Party of the Second Part 
has hereunto set its hand and seal by execution under seal by each and every 
individual comprising the Party of the Second Part.  

Signed and Sealed in ) New Liskeard Lions Midget Hockey Club 
the presence of ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Signing Authority 

 ) Name: ______________________ 

 ) Title: ______________________ 

 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Witness 

 ) Name: ______________________ 

 ) Title: ______________________ 

 ) 
Municipal Seal ) Corporation of the City of  
 ) Temiskaming Shores 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Clerk – David B. Treen 
 



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2015-131 

Being a by-law to enter into a Lease Agreement with Rick’s 
Magic Touch Catering for the provision of Concession 

Services at the Don Shepherdson Memorial Arena 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, the 
powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to govern its affairs as 
it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s ability to respond to municipal 
issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural 
person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  

And whereas Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores considered Administrative 
Report CS-020-2015 at the June 2, 2015 Regular meeting of Council and directed staff 
to prepare the necessary by-law to enter into a lease agreement with Rick’s Magic 
Touch Catering for the operation of the Don Shepherdson Memorial Arena Concession 
Stand from October 1, 2015 to April 30, 2018 for consideration at the June 16, 2015 
Regular meeting of Council; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
hereby enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That the Mayor and Clerk be authorized to enter into an Agreement with Rick’s 
Magic Touch for the Operation of Concession Services at the Don Shepherdson 
Memorial Arena for the period covering October 1, 2015 to April 30, 2018, a copy of 
which is attached hereto as Schedule “A” and forming part of this by-law; 

2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make 
minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical nature to the 
By-law and schedule, after the passage of this By-law, where such modifications or 
corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its associated schedule. 

 
Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 16th day of June, 2015. 

 
 
_________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 
 
_________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



Schedule “A” to By-law No. 2015-131 
 

Dated this 16th day of June, 2015 
 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
 

- and - 
 

Rick’s Magic Touch Catering 
 
 

              
 

Lease 
              

 
 
 
 
 
 

Shelly Zubyck  
Director of Corporate Services  

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
P.O. Box 2050  

Haileybury, Ontario  
P0J lK0  



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
NL Arena Concession – Rick’s Magic Touch By-law No. 2015-131 

 

This lease made this 16th day of June, 2015.  
 
between: 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
(hereinafter called the "Landlord") 

 
and: 

Rick’s Magic Touch Catering 
(hereinafter called the "Tenant") 

 
 

Whereas the Landlord is the owner of the lands in the City of Temiskaming Shores, in 
the District of Temiskaming. 

And whereas the parties hereto have agreed to enter into this Lease.  

1. Leased premises 

The Landlord hereby demises and leases to the Tenant part of the Landlord's Building 
known as the Concession containing a rentable area located at the Don Shepherdson 
Memorial Arena in the City of Temiskaming Shores, Ontario being hereinafter called the 
"premises".  

2. Term 

To hold the premises for a term commencing on October 1, 2015 to April 30, 2018. 

3. Rent 

The Tenant shall pay the Landlord Two Hundred Dollars ($200) plus applicable taxes 
per month payable on the first day of each month from October 1, 2015 to April 30, 
2016; October 1, 2016 to April 30, 2017 and October 1, 2017 to April 30, 2018. 

4. Tenants Covenants 

a) Rent – to pay rent; 

b) Telephone – to pay when due the cost of telephone supplied to premises if 
required; 

c) Insurance - To provide General Liability Insurance for coverage of all areas under 
this lease in the joint names of the Tenant and the City of Temiskaming Shores 
with the limits of not less than ($2,000,000) two million dollars (Canadian), 
inclusive per occurrence for bodily injury, death or damage for property including 
loss of use thereof, with property deductible of five hundred dollars ($500). Proof of 
insurance must be supplied to the Landlord prior to occupying the facilities and 
thereafter to provide proof of insurance on each anniversary of the date of 
occupation; and, to provide proof of insurance forthwith upon request by the City at 
any time. 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
NL Arena Concession – Rick’s Magic Touch By-law No. 2015-131 

 

d) Repair - to repair, reasonable wear and tear and damage by fire, lightning and 
tempest only excepted; and to permit the Landlord to enter and view the state of 
repair and to repair according to notice in writing, reasonable wear and tear and 
damage by fire, lightning and tempest only excepted; and to leave the premises in 
good repair, reasonable wear and tear and damage by fire, lightning and tempest 
only excepted;  

e) Cost of repair where Tenant at fault - that if the building including the premises, 
boilers, engines, pipes and other apparatus (or any of them) used for the purpose 
of heating or air conditioning the building, or if the water pipes, drainage pipes, 
electric lighting or other equipment of the building or the roof or outside walls of the 
building get out of repair or become damaged or destroyed through the negligence, 
carelessness or misuse of the Tenant, his servants, agents, employees or anyone 
permitted by him to be in the building (or through him or them in any way stopping 
up or injuring the heating apparatus, water pipes, drainage pipes, or other 
equipment or part of the building) the expense of any necessary repairs, 
replacements or alterations shall be paid by the Tenant to the Landlord forthwith on 
demand;  

f) Assigning or subletting - not to assign, sublet or part with possession of any part 
of the premises without leave of the Landlord, which leave shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, and which leave shall not be required in the event of a 
sublease to add any personnel to the group comprising the Tenant or to a 
management corporation which may be incorporated by the Tenant;  

g) Entry by Landlord - to permit the Landlord or its agents to enter upon the 
premises at any time and from time to time for the purpose of inspecting and 
making repairs, alterations or improvements to the premises or to the building, and 
the Tenant shall not be entitled to compensation for any inconvenience, nuisance, 
or discomfort occasioned thereby; provided that the Landlord shall give reasonable 
advance notice to avoid inconvenience to the Tenant, given the private and 
confidential nature of the profession of the Tenant;  

h) Indemnity - to indemnify and save harmless the Landlord against and from any 
and all claims by or on behalf of any person or persons, firm or firms, or corporation 
or corporations arising from the conduct or any work, by or through any act of 
negligence of the Tenant or any assignee, subtenant, agent, contractor, servants, 
employee or licensee of the Tenant;  

i) Alterations - not to make or erect in or to the premises any installation, alteration, 
addition, or partition without submitting plans and specifications to the Tenant and 
obtaining the Tenant's prior written consent (in each instance); such work shall if 
the Tenant so elects, be performed by employees of or contractors designated by 
the Tenant; in the absence of such election, such work may be performed with the 
Tenant's consent in writing (given prior to letting of contract) by contractors 
engaged by the Landlord but in each case only under written contract approved in 
writing by the Tenant and subject to all conditions which the Tenant may impose; 
the Landlord shall submit to the Tenant or the Landlord's contractors (as the case 
may be), when due the costs of all such work and of all materials, labour and 
services involved therein and of all decoration and all changes in the building, its 
equipment or services, necessitated thereby; provided, that it is at this time 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
NL Arena Concession – Rick’s Magic Touch By-law No. 2015-131 

 

understood by the Tenant that certain equipment is to be installed and to be placed 
at convenient places as designated by the Landlord; and 

j) Use of Building - the Tenant shall not allow the building and/or property to be 
used for any purpose other than to carry on the business of a Concession Stand. 

 

5. Landlord’s covenants 

The Landlord covenants with the Tenant; 

a) Quiet enjoyment - for the quiet enjoyment;  

b) Taxes - to pay all taxes and rates, municipal, parliamentary or otherwise, levied 
against the premises or the Tenant on account thereof;  

c) Electricity and water - to pay for the electricity and water supplied to the 
premises;  

d) Structural soundness - to keep the premises, common areas and parking lot 
structurally sound and to look after any structural defects which may arise. 

 

6. Provisos  

Provided always and it is hereby agreed as follows:  

a) Fixtures - The Landlord may remove his fixtures, but all installations, alterations, 
additions, partitions and fixtures except trade or Landlord's fixtures in or upon the 
premises, whether placed there by the Landlord or by the Tenant, shall be the 
Tenant's property without compensation therefore to the Landlord and shall not 
be removed from the premises at any time (either during or after the term);  

b) Fire - In case of damage to the premises by fire, lightning or tempest, rent shall 
cease until the premises are rebuilt; and the Tenant, instead of re-building or 
making the premises fit for the purpose of the Landlord, may at its option 
terminate this lease on giving to the Landlord within thirty days after such fire, 
lightning or tempest, notice in writing of its intention (so to do) and thereupon rent 
and any other payments for which the Landlord is liable under this lease shall be 
apportioned and paid to the date of such fire, lightning or tempest, and the 
Landlord shall immediately deliver up possession of the premises to the Tenant;  

c) Damage to property - The Tenant shall not be liable nor responsible in any way 
for any loss of or damage or injury to any property belonging to the Landlord or to 
the employees of the Landlord or to any other person while in the building or in 
the yard of the building unless such loss, damage or injury shall be caused by the 
negligence of the Tenant or its employees, servants or agents for any damage to 
any such property caused by steam, water, rain or snow which may leak into, 
issue or flow from any part of the building or from the water, steam or drainage of 
the building or from any other place or quarter nor for any damage caused by or 
attributable to the condition or arrangement of any electric or other wiring omitted 
by any other Landlord;  



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
NL Arena Concession – Rick’s Magic Touch By-law No. 2015-131 

 

d) Impossibility of performance - It is understood and agreed that whenever and 
to the extent that the Tenant shall be unable to fulfill, or shall be delayed or 
restricted in fulfilling any obligation hereunder for the supply or provision of any 
service or utility or the doing of any work or the making of any repairs because it 
is unable to obtain the material, goods, equipment, service, utility or labour 
required to enable it to fulfill such obligations or by reason of any statute, law or 
order-in-council or any regulation or order passed or made pursuant thereto or by 
reason of the order or direction of any administrator, controller or board, or any 
government department or officer or other authority, or by reason of not being 
able to obtain any permission or authority required thereby, or by reason of any 
other cause beyond its control whether of the foregoing character or not, the 
Tenant shall be relieved from the fulfillment of such obligation and the Landlord 
shall not be entitled to compensation for any inconvenience, nuisance or 
discomfort thereby occasioned;  

e) Default of Landlord - If the rent reserved or any part thereof shall not be paid on 
the day appointed for payment, whether lawfully demanded or not, or in case of 
breach or non-observance or non-performance of any of the covenants or 
agreements or rules or regulations herein contained or referred to on the part of 
the Landlord to be observed and performed, or in case the premises shall be 
vacated or remain unoccupied or in case the term shall be taken in execution or 
attachment for any cause whatsoever, (and in every such case) the Tenant shall 
be entitled thereafter to enter (into and) upon the premises (or any part thereof in 
the name of the whole) and the same to (have again), repossess and enjoy as of 
its former estate, anything herein contained to the contrary notwithstanding;  

f) Bankruptcy of Landlord - In case without the written consent of the Tenant the 
premises shall remain vacant or not used for the period of fifteen days or be used 
by any other person than the Landlord or for any other purpose than that for 
which they were let or in case the term or any of the goods and chattels of the 
Landlord shall at any time be seized in execution or attachment by any creditor of 
the Landlord or if the Landlord shall make any assignment for the benefit of 
creditors or any bulk sale of any act (now or hereafter in force) for bankrupt or 
insolvent debtors (or if the Landlord is a company any order shall be made for the 
winding up of the Landlord), then in any such case this lease shall at the option 
of the Tenant cease and terminate and the term shall immediately become 
forfeited and void and the current month's rent and the next ensuing three 
month's rent shall immediately become due and payable and the Tenant may re- 
enter and take possession of the premises as though the Landlord or other 
occupant (or occupants) of the premises was (or were) holding over after the 
expiration of the term without any right whatever;  

g) Distress - The Landlord waives and renounces the benefit of any present or 
future statute taking away or limiting the Tenant's right of distress, and covenants 
and agrees that notwithstanding any such statute none of the goods and chattels 
of the Landlord on the premises at any time during the term shall be exempt from 
levy by distress for rent in arrears;  

h) Right of re-entry - On the Tenant's becoming entitled to re-enter the premises 
under any of the provisions of this lease, the Tenant in addition to all other rights 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
NL Arena Concession – Rick’s Magic Touch By-law No. 2015-131 

 

may do so as the agent of the Landlord, using force if necessary, without being 
liable for any prosecution therefore, and may re-let the premises as agent of the 
Landlord, and receive the rent therefore, and as agent of the Landlord may take 
possession of any furniture or other property on the premises and sell the same 
at a public or private sale without notice and apply the proceeds of such sale and 
any rent derived from re-letting the premises upon account of rent under this 
lease, and the Landlord shall be liable to the Tenant for any deficiency;  

i) Right of termination by the Landlord - The lease may be terminated for any 
valid operational reason; 

j) Right of termination by the Tenant - On the Tenant's becoming entitled to re-
enter the premises under any of the provisions of this lease, the Tenant, in 
addition to all other rights, shall have the right to terminate this lease forthwith by 
leaving upon the premises notice in writing of its intention, and thereupon rent 
and any other payments for which the Landlord is liable under this lease shall be 
computed, apportioned and paid in full to the date of such termination, and the 
Landlord shall immediately deliver up possession of the Premises to the Tenant, 
and the Tenant may re-enter and take possession of the premises;  

k) Right of Renewal – The Tenant shall have the right, if not otherwise in default, 
of renewing the lease.  Terms and conditions to be negotiated at signing.  The 
Tenant shall be required to give written notice of his intention to renew the lease 
on or before the 1st day of June prior to the commencement of the renewal term; 

l) Notice - Any notice required or contemplated by any provision of this lease shall 
be deemed sufficiently given if contained in writing enclosed in a sealed envelope 
addressed, in the case of notice of the Tenant, to it, at c/o Shelly Zubyck, 325 
Farr Drive, P.O. Box 2050, Haileybury, Ontario. P0J 1K0, and in the case of 
notice to the Landlord, to the premises and deposited in one of Her Majesty's 
post offices in Haileybury, Ontario, registered and prepaid. The date of receipt of 
such notice shall be the fourth day next following the date of so mailing by 
registered mail. Provided that either party may, by notice to the other, designate 
another address in Canada to which notices mailed or delivered more than ten 
days thereafter shall be addressed.  

7. Headings  

The headings in this lease have been inserted as a matter of convenience and for 
reference only and in no way define, limit or enlarge the scope or meaning of this lease 
or any provisions hereof.  

8. Effect of Lease 

This lease and everything herein contained, shall extend to and bind and may be taken 
advantage of by the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, as the 
case may be, of each (and every) of the parties hereto, and where there is more than 
one Landlord or there is a female party or a corporation, the provisions hereof shall be 
read with all grammatical changes thereby rendered necessary and all covenants shall 
be deemed joint and several.  



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
NL Arena Concession – Rick’s Magic Touch By-law No. 2015-131 

 

 

In witness whereof the Party of the First Part has hereunto affixed its corporate seal 
attested by the hands of its duly authorized officers, and the Party of the Second Part 
has hereunto set its hand and seal by execution under seal by each and every 
individual comprising the Party of the Second Part.  

 
Signed and Sealed in ) Rick’s Magic Touch Catering 
the presence of ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Caterer - Rick Hobson 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Witness 
 ) Name:  _________________________ 
 ) 
 ) Corporation of the City of  
 ) Temiskaming Shores 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
Municipal Seal ) Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Clerk – David B. Treen 



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2015-132 

Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with Grass 
King Inc. for the Supply and Application of Asphalt 

Marking Services at various locations within the City of 
Temiskaming Shores 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to 
govern its affairs as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s 
ability to responds to municipal issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a 
natural person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other 
Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, 
as amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. PW-035-2015 at the 
June 16th, 2015 Regular meeting of Council and directed staff to prepare the 
necessary by-law to enter into an agreement with Grass King Inc. for the Supply 
and Application of Asphalt Marking Services for consideration at the June 16th, 
2015 Regular meeting of Council; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores hereby enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That Council authorizes the entering into an agreement with Grass King 
Inc. for the Supply and Application of Asphalt Marking Services at various 
locations in the City of Temiskaming Shores, in the amount of $21,253.00 
plus applicable taxes, a copy of which is attached hereto as Schedule “A” 
and forming part of this by-law; 

2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to 
make minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical 
nature to the by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where 
such modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its 
associated schedule. 

  



Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 16th day of June, 
2015. 

 
________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 
 

 
Schedule “A” to 

By-law 2015-132 

Agreement between  

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

and 

Grass King Inc. 

for the Supply and Application of Asphalt Marking Services 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Asphalt Marking – Grass King By-law No. 2015-132  

 

 

This agreement made in duplicate this 16th day of June 2015. 
 
Between: 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
(hereinafter called “the Owner”) 

 
and 

Grass King Inc. 
(hereinafter called “the Contractor”) 

 

Witnesseth: 

That the Owner and the Contractor shall undertake and agree as follows: 

Article I: 

The Contractor will: 

a) Provide all material and perform all work described in the Contract Documents entitled: 

Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Supply and Application of Asphalt Marking Services 

Tender No. PWO-RFT-006-2015 

b) Do and fulfill everything indicated by this Agreement and in the Contract Documents 
attached hereto as Appendix 01 and forming part of this agreement; and 

c) Complete, as certified by the Director, all the work by July 30th, 2015. 

Article II: 

The Owner will: 

a) Pay the Contractor in lawful money of Canada for the material and services 
aforesaid Twenty -One Thousand – Two Hundred and Fifty-Three Dollars and 
Zero Cents ($21,253.00) plus applicable taxes subject to additions and 
deductions as provided in the Contract Documents. 

b) Make payment on account thereof upon delivery and completion of the said work 
and receipt of invoice, in accordance with the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Purchasing Policy, and with terms of Net 30 days after receiving such invoice. 

Article III: 

A copy of each of the Form of Tender, Special Provisions, Item Special Provisions, 
General Conditions, Specifications, Addenda/Addendum No. 0 to 0 are hereto annexed 
to this Form of Agreement and together with the plans relating thereto, and listed in the 
Specifications, are made a part of this Contract, herein called the Contract Documents, 
as fully to all intents and purposes as though recited in full herein. 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Asphalt Marking – Grass King By-law No. 2015-132  

 

 

Article IV: 

All communications in writing between the parties, or between them and the Engineer 
shall be deemed to have been received by the addressee if delivered to the individual or 
to a member of the firm or to an officer of the Owner for whom they are intended or if 
sent by post or telegram addressed as follows: 

The Contractor: The Owner: 

Grass King Inc. City of Temiskaming Shores 
P.O. Box 339 P.O. Box 2050 / 325 Farr Drive 
New Liskeard, Ontario Haileybury, Ontario 
P0J 1P0 P0J 1K0 
 
The Director: 

Director of Public Works 
City of Temiskaming Shores 
P.O. Box 2050 
325 Farr Drive 
Haileybury, Ontario 
P0J 1K0 
 
In witness whereof the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 
 
Signed and Sealed in ) Grass King Inc. 
the presence of ) 
 ) 
Contractor’s Seal ) __________________________________ 
(if applicable) ) President – Gus McLennan 

 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Witness 

 ) Name: ______________________ 

 ) Title: ______________________ 

 ) 
Municipal Seal ) Corporation of the City of  
 ) Temiskaming Shores 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 

 
 

Appendix 01 to 
Schedule “A” to 

By-law No. 2015-132 

Form of Agreement 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Marking Services
PWO-RFT-006-2015

form of Tender

Each FORM OF TENDER should contain the legal name under which the Bidder carries on business,
telephone number and fax number, as well the name or names of appropriate contact personnel
which the City may consult regarding the Tender.

The Contractor has carefully examined the Provisions, Plans, Specifications and OPS General
Conditions of Contract referred to in the schedule of provisions, and has carefully examined the site
and location of the work to be done under this contract. The Contractor understands and accepts the
said Provisions, Plans, Specifications and General Conditions and, for the prices set forth in the
Quotation, hereby offer to furnish all machinery tools, apparatus and other means of construction,
furnish all material, except as otherwise specified in the contract. The work must be completed in
strict accordance with the Provisions, Plans, Specifications and General Conditions referred to in the
said schedule.

All prices shall be inclusive of all costs such as but not limited to the cost of the goods! services,
overhead and profit, shipping and any other costs but net of taxes. Taxes on the total costs should be
shown separately.

I/We, the undersigned, have carefully examined the attached documents and conditions of the
Tender. I/We understand and accept those specifications, conditions, and details as described herein,
and, for these rates/prices offer to furnish all equipment, labour, apparatus and documentation as are
required to satisfy this Tender.

NOTE: All portions of “Form of Tender” must be accurately and completely filled out.

Section 1 - New Liskeard working area

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION QUOTED BID PRICE

22 Accessible Parking Spots $

9 / U
3 School Crossings $ 2 5o

5 Intersections $

)I 00

12 Directional! multi -directional Arrows $

) ) 4
This is Page 1 of 7 to be suDmitted

City of Temiskaming Shores /1 PWO-RFTOO6-2O15 II PAGE 28



City of lemiskaming Shores Asphalt Marking Services
PWO-RFT-006-2015

Transit Bus Stop Curbs $
—V

Directional Arrows! Lines at Operations Division in New $ /
Liskeard @ 200 Lakeshore Rd. 3 , Q

l3))5 öD
Section 2 - Haileybury working area

SUB TOTAL

593.D
H.S.T.

)

TOTAL

)%iOIO9

Page 2 of 7 to be submitted

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION QUOTED BID PRICE

14 Accessible Parking Spots $

2 7
8 Intersections $

fl5O.O7
12 Directional Arrows $

1 b
Parking Indicator Lines $

1 School Crossing $

1 Transit Bus Stop Curb $

7

City of Temiskaming Shores // PWO-RFT-006-2015 II PAGE 29



Ht1Y)C1L(UJ4

9tl”LAg1-S
%LtXi

°VHJ--/‘%1tt7

-r07i
94tY/c)1fry

-

ç

JaA*g

(y,
9

c
LAs;dA

çCl)4y

c,‘t”3
4‘cV

A

cti,’ç;tL4AQ

i7c4cVrj



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Marking Services
PWO-RFT-006-2015

TiWe R S S )kJ 6 offer to supply the requirements stated within.

the corresponding total cost of $ 23, O 9 Tax included.

I/We hold the prices valid for 30 (thirty) days from submission date.

I/We will deliver the required services / equipment prior to July 31, 2015 upon receiving a signed
order. (Weather permitting)

The specifications have been read over and agreed to this 2.. day of u. )‘ E> 2015

Company Name Contact name (please print)

I y S 5 IC / A) b- J jv V r’ IL)

Mailing Address Title

f\?()
C2+

Postal Code Authorizing signature

PU ) PO
“I have the author y to bind the

company/corporation/partnership.”

Telephone Fax

S-7-S o

Cell Phone it possible Email

o5-

Page 3 of 7 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores/I PWO-RFT-006-2015 1/ PAGE 30



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Marking Services
PWO-RFT-006-2015 k...

City of Temiskaming Shores

PWO-RFT-006-2015
Asphalt Marking Services

Non Collusion Affidavit

A5 lA)/)tf

I/We
,- / )t) the undersigned, am fully informed respecting

the preparation and contents of the attached Tender and of all pertinent circumstances respecting
such Bid.

Such Bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham Bid.

Neither the Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or
patties of interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed
directly or indirectly with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collective or sham Bid in
connection with the work for which the attached Bid has been submitted nor has it in any manner,
directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or conference with any
other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached Bid or of any other Bidder, or to
fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the Bid price or the price of any Bidder, or to secure
through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City
of Temiskaming Shores or any person interested in the proposed Bid.

The price or prices quoted in the attached Bid are fair and proper and not tainted by any collusion,
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents,
representatives, owners, employees, or parties in interest, including this affiant.

The Bid, Tender or Proposal of any person, company, corporation or organization that does attempt to
influence the outcome of any City purchasing or disposal process will be disqualified, and the person,
company, corporation or organization may be subject to exclusion or suspension.

Dated at /Z)’ J5J(4,ctis 2 day of__________ .2015

Signed /
Company Name

Title

-.

M )-i&&

Ps

Page 4 of 7 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores // PWO-RFT-006-2015 // PAGE 31



City of Temiskaming Shores

City of Temiskaming Shores
PWO-RFT-006-2015

Asphalt Marking Services

Asphalt Marking Services
PWO-RFT-006-2015

Conflict of Interest Declaration

I/we hereby confirm that there is not nor was there any actual or perceived conflict of interest
in our quotation submission or performing/providing the Goods/Services required by the
Agreement.

The following is a list of situations, each of which may be a conflict of interest, or appears as
potentially a conflict of interest in our Company’s quotation submission or the contractual
obligations under the Agreement.

List Situations:

In making this quotation submission, our Company has / has no (strike out inapplicable portion)
knowledge of or the ability to avail ourselves of confidential information of the City (other than
confidential information which may have been disclosed by the City in the normal course of the
quotation process) and the confidential information was relevant to the Work/Services, their pricing
or quotation evaluation process.

Dated at Jp Lis O this 2 day of J ( , 2015.

Firm Name (.‘ kcSS

S )kj Cf
t1l),UA/L-

Pd? k5I 04e,vT

/

Please check appropriate response:

Bidder’s Authorization Official

Title

Signature

Page 5 of 7 to be submitted
/

City of Temiskaming Shores // PWO-RFT-006-2015 1/ PAGE 32



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Marking Services
PWO-RFT-006-2015

City of Temiskaming Shores
PWO-RFT-OO6-2015

Asphalt Marking Services

SCHEDULE “A” - LIST OF PROPOSED SUB-CONTRACTORS

A list of Sub-Contractors that the Contractor proposes to employ in completing the required work
outlined in this Tender must be included in the Tender documents submitted.

I I We verify that the information provided above is accurate and that the individuals are qualified,
experienced operators capable of completing the work outlined in this Tender document.

Signed by Company Official

Signed

Page 6 of 7 to be submitted

Printed

City of Temiskaming Shores /1 PWO-RFT-006-2015 // PAGE 33



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Marking Services
PWO-RFT-OO6-20i5.

Schedule B

Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 Compliance Agreement

I/We, by our signature below, certify that we are in full compliance with Section 6 of Ontario
Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service made under the Accessibility for
Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005. If requested, we are able to provide written proof that all
employees have been trained as required under the act.

This regulation establishes accessibility standards for customer service as it applies to every
designated public sector organization and to every person or organization that provides goods or
services to members of the public or other third parties and that have at least one employee in
Ontario.

Name s C Company Name l( y 6

Phone Number Address

I,

_________________________________

, declare that I, or my company, are in full compliance with

Section 6 of Ontario Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service under the
Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005.

I, ( C 41. ,)/V4IL1eclare that I, or my company, are not in full compliance

with Section 6 of Ontario Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service under the
Accessibilityfor Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005, yet fully agree to meet the required compliance
training standards on or before the delivery of the required goods and/or services. In an effort to assist
non-compliant vendors, a link to a free e-learning course module called Serve-Ability, Transforming
Ontario’s Customer Service is available at www.gov.on.ca/mcss/serveability/splash.html.

Date:

Page 7 of 7 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores 1/ PWO-RET-006-2015 1/ PAGE 34



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2015-133 

Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with Miller 
Paving Limited for the supply of labour, equipment and 

material for Asphalt Patching Services at various 
locations within the City of Temiskaming Shores 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to 
govern its affairs as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s 
ability to responds to municipal issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a 
natural person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other 
Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, 
as amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. PW-036-2015 at the 
June 16th, 2015 Regular meeting of Council and directed staff to prepare the 
necessary by-law to enter into an agreement with Miller Paving Limited for the 
supply of labour, equipment and material for Asphalt Patching Services for 
consideration at the June 16th, 2015 Regular meeting of Council; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores hereby enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That Council authorizes the entering into an agreement with Miller Paving 
Limited for the supply of labour, equipment and material for Asphalt 
Patching Services at various locations in the City of Temiskaming Shores, 
in the amount of $122,666.50 plus applicable taxes, a copy of which is 
attached hereto as Schedule “A” and forming part of this by-law; 

2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to 
make minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical 
nature to the by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where 
such modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its 
associated schedule. 

  



Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 16th day of June, 
2015. 

 
________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 
 

 
Schedule “A” to 

By-law 2015-133 

Agreement between  

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

and 

Miller Paving Limited 

for the Supply of Asphalt Patching Services 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Asphalt Patching – Miller Paving By-law No. 2015-133  

 

 

This agreement made in duplicate this 16th day of June 2015. 
 
Between: 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
(hereinafter called “the Owner”) 

 
and 

Miller Paving Limited 
(hereinafter called “the Contractor”) 

Witnesseth: 

That the Owner and the Contractor shall undertake and agree as follows: 

Article I: 

The Contractor will: 

a) Provide all material and perform all work described in the Contract Documents entitled: 

Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Supply and Application of Asphalt Patching Services 

Tender No. PWO-RFT-009-2015 

b) Do and fulfill everything indicated by this Agreement and in the Contract Documents 
attached hereto as Appendix 01 and forming part of this agreement; and 

c) Complete, as certified by the Director, all the work by October 31st, 2015. 

Article II: 

The Owner will: 

a) Pay the Contractor in lawful money of Canada for the material and services 
aforesaid One Hundred and Twenty-Two Thousand – Six Hundred and Sixty-Six 
Dollars and Fifty Cents ($122,666.50) plus applicable taxes subject to additions 
and deductions as provided in the Contract Documents. 

b) Make payment on account thereof upon delivery and completion of the said work 
and receipt of invoice, in accordance with the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Purchasing Policy, and with terms of Net 30 days after receiving such invoice. 

Article III: 

A copy of each of the Form of Tender, Special Provisions, Item Special Provisions, 
General Conditions, Specifications, Addenda/Addendum No. 0 to 0 are hereto annexed 
to this Form of Agreement and together with the plans relating thereto, and listed in the 
Specifications, are made a part of this Contract, herein called the Contract Documents, 
as fully to all intents and purposes as though recited in full herein. 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Asphalt Patching – Miller Paving By-law No. 2015-133  

 

 

Article IV: 

All communications in writing between the parties, or between them and the Engineer 
shall be deemed to have been received by the addressee if delivered to the individual or 
to a member of the firm or to an officer of the Owner for whom they are intended or if 
sent by post or telegram addressed as follows: 

The Contractor: The Owner: 

Miller Paving Limited City of Temiskaming Shores 
P.O. Box 248 P.O. Box 2050 / 325 Farr Drive 
New Liskeard, Ontario Haileybury, Ontario 
P0J 1P0 P0J 1K0 
 
The Director: 

Director of Public Works 
City of Temiskaming Shores 
P.O. Box 2050 
325 Farr Drive 
Haileybury, Ontario 
P0J 1K0 
 
In witness whereof the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 
 
Signed and Sealed in ) Miller Paving Limited 
the presence of ) 
 ) 
Contractor’s Seal ) __________________________________ 
(if applicable) ) Estimating Manager – Britt Herd 

 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Witness 

 ) Name: ______________________ 

 ) Title: ______________________ 

 ) 
Municipal Seal ) Corporation of the City of  
 ) Temiskaming Shores 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 

 
 

Appendix 01 to 
Schedule “A” to 

By-law No. 2015-133 

Form of Agreement 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services
PWO-RFT-009-2015 *

Form of Tender

Each FORM OF TENDER should contain the legal name under which the Bidder carries on business,

telephone number and fax number, as well the name or names of appropriate contact personnel

which the City may consult regarding the Tender.

The Contractor has carefully examined the Provisions, Plans, Specifications and OPS General

Conditions of Contract referred to in the schedule of provisions, and has carefully examined the site

and location of the work to be done under this contract. The Contractor understands and accepts the

said Provisions, Plans, Specifications and General Conditions and, for the prices set forth in the

Quotation, hereby offer to furnish all machinery tools, apparatus and other means of construction,

furnish all material, except as otherwise specified in the contract. The work must be completed in

strict accordance with the Provisions, Plans, Specifications and General Conditions referred to in the

said schedule.

All prices shall be inclusive of all costs such as but not limited to the cost of the goods! services,

overhead and profit, shipping and any other costs but net of taxes. Taxes on the total costs should be

shown separately.

l/’We, the undersigned, have carefully examined the attached documents and conditions of the

Tender. I/We understand and accept those specifications, conditions, and details as described herein,

and, for these rates/prices offer to furnish all equipment, labour, apparatus and documentation as are

required to satisfy this Tender.

NOTE: All portions of “Form of Tender” must be accurately and completelyfilled out.

Estimated Quoted price
Total Price

Item Description Quantity for per square

Bidding Purposes meter (m2)

Preparation of base, supply and Approx. 1,463 m2

placement of Hot Mix Asphalt - various locations $45. 50m2 $66, 566. 50

materials as described within. (50

mm thickness)

2 Preparation of base, supply and Approximately

placementofHotMixAsphalt 680m2-various $82.50m2
$56,100.00

materials as described within. (90 locations

mm thickness)

SUB-TOTAL: $122,666.50

HST: $15,946.65

TOTAL $138,613.15

Page 1 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores // PWO-RFT-009-2015 I! PAGE 29



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services
PWO-RFT-009-2015 r

I/We Miller Paving Limited offer to supply the requirements stated within.

the corresponding total cost of$ 138, 613 .15 Tax included.

I/We hold the prices valid for 30 (thirty) days from submission date.

I/We will deliver the required services / equipment within 7 calendar days from

receiving a signed order. (Weather permitting)

The specifications have been read over and agreed to this ‘h day of June 2015

Company Name

Miller Paving Limited

Contact name (please print)

Britt Herd

Mailing Address Title
704024 Rockley Road, Box 248 Manager - Estimating

New Liskeard, ON

<

Page 2 of 6 to be submitted

Postal Code

POJ lP0

ie authority tb bind the

company/corporation/partnership.”

Telephone Fax

705—647-4331 705—647—3611

Cell Phone if possible Email

britt .herd8millergroup ca

City of Temiskaming Shores II PWO-RFT-009-2015 II PAGE 30



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services 44
PWO-RFT-009-2015 p

City of Temiskaming Shores

PWO-RFT-009-2015
Asphalt Patching Services

Non Collusion Affidavit

I/We 1tt Herd the undersigned, am fully informed respecting

the preparation and contents of the attached Tender and of all pertinent circumstances respecting

such Bid.

Such Bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham Bid.

Neither the Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or

parties of interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed

directly or indirectly with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collective or sham Bid in

connection with the work for which the attached Bid has been submitted nor has it in any manner,

directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or conference with any

other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached Bid or of any other Bidder, or to

fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the Bid price or the price of any Bidder, or to secure

through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City

of Temiskaming Shores orany person interested in the proposed Bid.

The price or prices quoted in the attached Bid are fair and proper and not tainted by any collusion,

conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents,

representatives, owners, employees, or parties in interest, including this affiant.

The Bid, Tender or Proposal of any person, company, corporation or organization that does attempt to

influence the outcome of any City purchasing or disposal process will be disqualified, and the person,

company, corporation or organization may be subject to exclusion or suspension.

Dated at New Liskeard

_______ _______________________,

2015

Signed

Ccmpany N.me

_______________________________

Title

_______________________________________

Page 3 of 6 to be submitted

this 4h day of June

Miller Paving Limited

Manager - Estimating

City of Temiskaming Shores/I PWO-RFT-009-2015 1/ PAGE 31



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services 4,4PWO-RFT-009-2015

City of Temiskaming Shores
PWO-RFT-009-2015

Asphalt Patching Services

Conflict of Interest Declaration

Please check appropriate response:

I/we hereby confirm that there is not nor was there any actual or perceived conflict of interest

in our quotation submission or performing/providing the Goods/Services required by the

Agreement.

The following is a list of situations, each of which may be a conflict of interest, or appears as

potentially a conflict of interest in our Company’s quotation submission or the contractual

obligations under the Agreement.

List Situations:

In making this quotation submission, our Company has / has no (strike out inapplicable portion)

knowledge of or the ability to avail ourselves of confidential information of the City (other than

confidential information which may have been disclosed by the City in the normal course of the

quotation process) and the confidential information was relevant to the Work/Services, their pricing

or quotation evaluation process.

Dated at New Liskeard this 4th day of June , 2015.

Firm Name Miller Paving Limited

Bidder’s Authorization Official BriLt Herd

Title Manager -Estimating

Signature

Page 4 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores // PWO-RFT-009-2015 II PAGE 32



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services
PWO-RFT-009-2015 A

City of Temiskaming Shores

PWO-RFT-009-2015

Asphalt Patching Services

SCHEDULE “A” - LIST OF PROPOSED SUB-CONTRACTORS

A list of Sub-Contractors that the Contractor proposes to employ in completing the required work
outlined in this Tender must be included in the Tender documents submitted.

Name Address WSIB Certificate Number
(copy attached)

NA

I / We verify that the information provided above is accurate and that the individuals are qualified,
experienced operators capable of completing the work outlined in this Tender document.

Signed by Company Official

Britt Herd

Page 5 of 6 to be submitted

Printed Signed

City of Temiskaming Shores If PWO-RFT-009-2015 If PAGE 33



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services
PWO-RFT-009-2015

Schedule B

Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 Compliance Agreement

I/We, by our signature below, certify that we are in full compliance with Section 6 of Ontario
Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service made under the Accessibilityfor
Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005. If requested, we are able to provide written proof that all
employees have been trained as required under the act.

This regulation establishes accessibility standards for customer service as it applies to every
designated public sector organization and to every person or organization that provides goods or
services to members of the public or other third parties and that have at least one employee in
Ontario.

Name Br±t Herd Company Name

Phone Number
705-647-4331 Address 704024 Rockley Road, Box 248, New Liskeard, ON POJ 1PO

I, Brit Herd
, declare that I, or my company, are in full compliance with

Section 6 of Ontario Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service under the
Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005.

I,

_________________________________,

declare that I, or my company, are not in full compliance

with Section 6 of Ontario Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service under the
Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005, yet fully agree to meet the required compliance
training standards on or before the delivery of the required goods and/or services. In an effort to assist
non-compliant vendors, a link to a free e-learning course module called Serve-Ability, Transforming
Ontario’s Customer Service is available at www.gov.on.ca/mcss/serveability/splash.html.

Date: June 4, 2015

Page 6 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores // PWO-RFT-009-2015 II PAGE 34



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services
PWO-RFT-009-2015 A

City of Temiskaming Shores

PWO-RFT-009-2015

Asphalt Patching Services

Schedule C - Performance Evaluation (for City Use only)

Vendor’s Name Telephone

Address Postal Code

Vendor’s Representative

Contract Description; PWO-RFT-009-2015 Asphalt Patching Services

Awarded Contract Value Actual Contract Value

Cost Centre District/Region/Branch City Contact Division;
1.0610.3123.4.03.3405 Person; Public Works

Doug Walsh
Scheduled Start; Actual Start; Scheduled Actual Completion
Date of Individual Council Completion;
Resolution

Performance Rating

0-Outstanding 6-Good F-Fair P-Poor Rate Comments

1. Quality of Work Performed

2. Ability of Employees used for work

3. Scheduling and Coordination

4. Availability of Equipment and

Employees

5. Equipment/Procurement & Delivery

6. Condition and Suitability of Equipment

7. Cooperation of Municipality and

Employees

Page 1 of 2

City of Temiskaming Shores 1/ PWO-RFT-009-2015 1/ PAGE 35



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services
PWO-RFT-009-2015 ..r

8. Cooperation with outside Agencies

9. Conformity to Pertinent Acts and

Regulations

10. Safety (Overall)

11. Quality of Supervision

12. General Housekeeping

13. Responses to Unplanned Changes

14. Other (Specify)

Causes for Delays (if any)

Liquidated Damages (itemize)

*

Future Recommendations: Provider Yes No (explain)

recommended for future work

Comments:

Department Director Date

Title Project Coordinator

Company Representative

* To be completed at the end of the service period

Page 2 of 2

City of Temiskaming Shores/I PWO-RFT-009-2015 II PAGE 36



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services
PWO-RFT-009-2015

Asphalt Patching Services
PWO-RfT-009-2015

ACTUAL AREA! QUANTITY REMITTANCE FORM

Schedule “D”

This form must be attached and submitted in conjunction with the Contractors invoice for payment.

ADDRESS / LOCATION WIDTH LENGTH DEPTH SQ. METRES APPROX. Lifts in

(m.) (m.) (mm) TONNES mm.toa

max. of

original

thickness

Section 1

New Uskeard Working

Area

Hwy. 65 North,

“MacDonalds Restaurant”

134 Pine St. W

223 Byam Ave.

101 Rebecca St.

173 May St.

42 Wellington St.

Armstrong at Cedar

83 Whitewood Ave.

107 Whitewood Ave.

389 Whitewood Ave.

405 Whitewood Ave.

116 Jayne Ave.

408 Grills St.

50 Scott St.

City of Temiskaming Shores/I PWO-RFT-009-2015 1/ PAGE 37



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services
PWO-RFT-009-2015

ADDRESS / LOCATION WIDTH LENGTH DEPTH SQ. METRES APPROX. Lifts in

fm.) (m.) (mm) TONNES mm.toa

max. of

original

thickness

190 Farah Ave.

390 Farah Ave.

250 McCamus Ave.

567 Broadwood Ave.

527 Taylor Ave.

66 Lakeshore Rd.

95 Lakeshore Rd.

Section 2

Haileybury Working Area

83 Ferland St.

Lakeshore Road at

Florence St.

456 Browning St.

299 View St.

108 Bruce St.

Rorke and Albert

108 Carter St.

71 Station St.

r

City of Temiskaming Shores/I PWO-RFT-009-2015 I/PAGE 38



City of Temiskaming Shores Asphalt Patching Services
PWO-RFT-009-2015 -.

ADDRESS / LOCATION WIDTH LENGTH DEPTH SQ. METRES APPROX. Lifts in

fm.) fm.) (mm) TONNES mm.toa

max. of

original

thickness

ADD ADD1TIONA1 PAGES IF REQUIRED

City of Temiskaming Shores II PWO-RFT-009-2015 II PAGE 39



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2015-134 

Being a by-law to enter into an agreement with Pedersen 
Construction (2013) Inc. for the supply of labour, 

equipment and material for Concrete Sidewalk and 
Curb Repair Services at various locations within the 

City of Temiskaming Shores 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to 
govern its affairs as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s 
ability to responds to municipal issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a 
natural person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other 
Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, 
as amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. PW-037-2015 at the 
June 16th, 2015 Regular meeting of Council and directed staff to prepare the 
necessary by-law to enter into an agreement with Pedersen Construction (2013) 
Inc. for the supply of labour, equipment and material for Concrete Sidewalk and 
Curb Repair Services for consideration at the June 16th, 2015 Regular meeting of 
Council; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores hereby enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That Council authorizes the entering into an agreement with Pedersen 
Construction (2013) Inc. for the supply of labour, equipment and material 
for Concrete Sidewalk and Curb Repair Services at various locations in the 
City of Temiskaming Shores, in the amount of $27,025.50 plus applicable 
taxes, a copy of which is attached hereto as Schedule “A” and forming part 
of this by-law; 

2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to 
make minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical 
nature to the by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where 
such modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its 
associated schedule. 

  



Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 16th day of June, 
2015. 

 
________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 
 

 
Schedule “A” to 

By-law 2015-134 

Agreement between  

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

and 

Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. 

for the Supply of Concrete Sidewalk and Curb Repair Services 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Sidewalks & Curbs – Pedersen By-law No. 2015-134  

 

 

This agreement made in duplicate this 16th day of June 2015. 
 
Between: 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
(hereinafter called “the Owner”) 

 
and 

Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. 
(hereinafter called “the Contractor”) 

Witnesseth: 

That the Owner and the Contractor shall undertake and agree as follows: 

Article I: 

The Contractor will: 

a) Provide all material and perform all work described in the Contract Documents entitled: 

Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Supply Sidewalk and Curb Construction Services 

Tender No. PWO-RFT-011-2015 

b) Do and fulfill everything indicated by this Agreement and in the Contract Documents 
attached hereto as Appendix 01 and forming part of this agreement; and 

c) Complete, as certified by the Director, all the work by September 30th, 2015. 

Article II: 

The Owner will: 

a) Pay the Contractor in lawful money of Canada for the material and services 
aforesaid Twenty-Seven Thousand – and Twenty-Five Dollars and Fifty Cents 
($27,025.50) plus applicable taxes subject to additions and deductions as 
provided in the Contract Documents. 

b) Make payment on account thereof upon delivery and completion of the said work 
and receipt of invoice, in accordance with the City of Temiskaming Shores 
Purchasing Policy, and with terms of Net 30 days after receiving such invoice. 

Article III: 

A copy of each of the Form of Tender, Special Provisions, Item Special Provisions, 
General Conditions, Specifications, Addenda/Addendum No. 0 to 0 are hereto annexed 
to this Form of Agreement and together with the plans relating thereto, and listed in the 
Specifications, are made a part of this Contract, herein called the Contract Documents, 
as fully to all intents and purposes as though recited in full herein. 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Sidewalks & Curbs – Pedersen By-law No. 2015-134  

 

 

Article IV: 

All communications in writing between the parties, or between them and the Engineer 
shall be deemed to have been received by the addressee if delivered to the individual or 
to a member of the firm or to an officer of the Owner for whom they are intended or if 
sent by post or telegram addressed as follows: 

The Contractor: The Owner: 

Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. City of Temiskaming Shores 
P.O. Box 2409 P.O. Box 2050 / 325 Farr Drive 
New Liskeard, Ontario Haileybury, Ontario 
P0J 1P0 P0J 1K0 
 
The Director: 

Director of Public Works 
City of Temiskaming Shores 
P.O. Box 2050 
325 Farr Drive 
Haileybury, Ontario 
P0J 1K0 
 
In witness whereof the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 
 
Signed and Sealed in ) Pedersen Construction (2013) Inc. 
the presence of ) 
 ) 
Contractor’s Seal ) __________________________________ 
(if applicable) ) Secretary-Treasurer - Alec Pedersen 

 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Witness 

 ) Name: ______________________ 

 ) Title: ______________________ 

 ) 
Municipal Seal ) Corporation of the City of  
 ) Temiskaming Shores 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 

 
 

Appendix 01 to 
Schedule “A” to 

By-law No. 2015-134 

Form of Agreement 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores Sidewalk and Curb Construction
PWO-RFT-O11-2015

Form of Tender

Each FORM OF TENDER should contain the legal name under which the Bidder carries on business,
telephone number and fax number, as well the name or names of appropriate contact personnel
which the City may consult regarding the Tender.

I/We, the undersigned, have carefully examined the Provisions, Plans, Specifications and OPS General
Conditions of Contract referred to in the schedule of provisions, and has carefully examined the site
and location of the work to be done under this contract. The Contractor understands and accepts the
said Provisions, Plans, Specifications and General Conditions and, for the prices set forth in the
Quotation, hereby offer to furnish all machinery tools, apparatus and other means of construction,
furnish all material, except as otherwise specified in the contract. The work must be completed in
strict accordance with the Provisions, Plans, Specifications and General Conditions referred to in the
said schedule.

All prices shall be inclusive of all costs such as but not limited to the cost of the goods/ services,
overhead and profit, shipping and any other costs but net of taxes. Taxes on the total costs should be
shown separately.

NOTE: All portions of “Form of Tender” must be accurately and completely filled out.

Estimated
Item Description Quantity for Quoted price Total Price

Bidding Purposes

Construction and installation of Approx. 152.75
$l5tiW $22,912.50concrete sidewalk in accordance (m2) — sidewalk at

with OPSS 351 (Nov. 2010) and various locations
prior to June 12th, 2015 (weather
permitting)

2 Construction and installation of Approx. 27.42
concrete curb in accordance with (m) curb at $ 4,113.
OPSS 351 (Nov. 2010) and prior to various locations
June ;2th, 2015 (weather

permitting)

SUB-TOTAL: $27,025.50

HST: $ 3,513.32

TOTAL
$30,530.82

Page 1 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores/I PWO-RFT-O11-2015 II PAGE 27



• City of Temiskaming Shores Sidewalk and Curb Construction
PWO-RFT-011-2015

liwe Palersen Construction (2013) Inc. offer to supply the requirements stated within.

the corresponding total cost of $ 30,538.82 Tax included.

I/We hold the prices valid for 30 (thirty) days from submission date.

30
I/We will deliver the required services / equipment prior to June 1, 2015. (Weather permitting)

The specifications have been read over and agreed to this 4 day of j- 2015

Company Name Contact name (please print)

Peclersen Construction (2013) Inc. Alec Pedersen

Mailing Address Title

P.O. Fox 24( Secretary Tasurer
Nsw Uskearil, Chtario

Postal Code Authorizing si e

1 4%
“1 ha e the authority to bind the

corn pa ny/corporation/partnership.”

Telephone Fax

705-647-6223 705-647—8851

Cell Phone if possible Email

705-647-2707 apederserpedersenconstruction. ca

Page 2 of 6 to be submitted

City of Terniskaming Shores/I PWO-RE-011-2015 II PAGE 28



City of Temiskaming Shores Sidewalk and Curb Construction

____

PWO-RFT-011-2015

City of Temiskaming Shores

PWO-RFT-O11-2015

Sidewalk and Curb Construction

Non Collusion Affidavit

1/ We Alec PedErsen the undersigned, am fully informed respecting
the preparation and contents of the attached Tender and of all pertinent circumstances respecting
such Bid.

Such Bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham Bid.

Neither the Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or
parties of interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed
directly or indirectly with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collective or sham Bid in
connection with the work for which the attached Bid has been submitted nor has it in any manner,
directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or conference with any
other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached Bid or of any other Bidder, or to
fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the Bid price or the price of any Bidder, or to secure
through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City
of Temiskaming Shores or any person interested in the proposed Bid.

The price or prices quoted in the attached Bid are fair and proper and not tainted by any collusion,
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents,
representatives, owners, employees, or parties in interest, including this affiant.

The Bid, Tender or Proposal of any person, company, corporation or organization that does attempt to
influence the outcome of any City purchasing or disposal process will be disqualified, and the person,

company, corporation or organization may be subject to exclusion or suspension.

Dated at New Liskeard this 4th day of Jur
-, 2015

Signed

_____________________________________________

Company Name

Title

fc1ersen Ccristructicn (2013) Inc

Page 3 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores /1 PWO-RFt-011-2015 1/ PAGE 29



City of Temiskaming Shores Sidewalk and Curb Construction
PWO-RFr-O11-2015

City of Temiskaming Shores
PWO-RFT-O11-2015

Sidewalk and Curb Construction

Conflict of Interest Declaration

Please check appropriate response:

I/we hereby confirm that there is not nor was there any actual or perceived conflict of interest
in our quotation submission or performing/providing the Goods/Services required by the
Agreement.

The following is a list of situations, each of which may be a conflict of interest, or appears as
potentially a conflict of interest in our Company’s quotation submission or the contractual
obligations under the Agreement.

List Situations:

In making this quotation submission, our Company has / has no (strike out inapplicable portion)
knowledge of or the ability to avail ourselves of confidential information of the City (other than
confidential information which may have been disclosed by the City in the normal course of the
quotation process) and the confidential information was relevant to the Work/Services, their pricing
or quotation evaluation process.

Dated at this 4th day of , 2015.

Firm Name Palersen Construction (2013) Inc.

Bidder’s Authorization Official Alec Palersen

Title Secretary Treasurer

Signature

Page 4 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores // PWO-RFT-011-2015 I/PAGE 30



City of Temiskaming Shores Sidewalk and Curb Construction
PWO-RFT-011-2015

Schedule B

Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 Compliance Agreement

I/We, by our signature below, certify that we are in full compliance with Section 6 of Ontario
Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service made under the Accessibility for
Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005. If requested, we are able to provide written proof that all
employees have been trained as required under the act.

This regulation establishes accessibility standards for customer service as it applies to every
designated public sector organization and to every person or organization that provides goods or
services to members of the public or other third parties and that have at least one employee in
Ontario.

Name Palerseri ConstrUction (2013) Thc. Company Name

Phone Number 705-647—6223 Address j

tw Uskeard, Citario EOJ 110

I, Alec Peclerseri , declare that I, or my company, are in full compliance with

Section 6 of Ontario Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service under the
Accessibili yfot On ns with Disabilities Act, 2005.

I, , declare that I, or my company, are not in full compliance

with Section 6 of Ontario Regulation 429/07, Accessibility Standards for Customer Service under the
Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005. yet fully agree to meet the required compliance
training standards on or before the delivery of the required goods and/or services. In an effort to assist
non-compliant vendors, a link to a free e-learning course module called Serve-Ability, Transforming
Ontario’s Customer Service is available at www.gov.on.ca/mcss/serveability/splash.html.

Date:Jur4, 2015

Page 6 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores II PWO-RFT-0l1-2015 /1 PAGE 32



City of Temiskaming Shores Sidewalk and Curb Construction
PWO-RFt-O11-2015

City of Temiskaming Shores
PWO-RFT-O11-2015

Sidewalk and Curb Construction

SCHEDULE “A” - LIST OF PROPOSED SUB-CONTRACTORS

A list of Sub-Contractors that the Contractor proposes to employ in completing the required work
outlined in this Tender must be included in the Tender documents submitted.

Name Address WSIB Certificate Number
(copy attached)

t Applicable

I / We verify that the information provided above is accurate and that the individuals are qualified,
experienced operators capable of completing the work outlined in this Tender document.

Signed by Company Official

Alec

_____________

Printed Signd

Page 5 of 6 to be submitted

City of Temiskaming Shores/I PWO-RFT-O11-2015 i/PAGE 31



Dyrnond

1 Haileyhunc

lvew Liskeard
Cityof.Viilede

Terniskarning
Shores

Discuvcr a whole new Ontario • Découurez an taut nouvel Ontario

ADDENDUM #1
Tender PWO-RFT-0 11-2015

Sidewalk and curb construction

Whereas - The City of Temiskaming Shores has stated a closing date of Thursday June 8th

2015 - 2 p.m. local time and further specified ‘shalI endeavor to complete the entire contract prior
to Friday June 12th 2015”

The closing date has been revised to read; Thursday June 04th 2015 at 2:00 pm with an
expected contract completion date of Tuesday June 30th 2015

The City regrets any inconvenience this may cause. Thank You for your time.

Please acknowledge receipt of this addendum by shining below and retumin copy of samey
fax to

Gary Wadge
Public Works Clerk
FAX # (705) 647-9632

I hereby acknowledge receipt of this addendum, understand and shall make allowances for the
ch

2— 4
SI NED PLEASE PRINT

(t7).
COMPANY



w
sibPU

C

C
learance

C
ertificate

I C
ertificat

de
décharge

C
o

n
tracto

r
L

egal
I

T
rade

N
am

e
I

C
o

n
tracto

r
C

o
n

tracto
r

P
rincipal

L
egal

I T
rade

N
am

e
I

P
rincipal

C
learan

ce
V

alidity
period

A
ppellation

co
m

m
erciale

ou
raiso

n
A

d
d
ress

I
C

lassificatio
n

A
ppellation

co
m

m
erciale

ou
raiso

n
A

d
d
ress

I
C

ertificate
(d

d
-m

m
m

so
ciale

de
l’en

trep
ren

eu
r

A
d
resse

de
U

nit
an

d
so

ciale
de

l’en
trep

ren
eu

r
p
rin

cip
al

A
d
resse

de
N

um
ber

I
yyyy)

I
P

ério
d
e

l’en
trep

ren
eu

r
D

escrip
tio

n
I

l’en
trep

ren
eu

r
N

um
éro

du
de

validité
U

nite
de

principal
certificat

de
(jjlm

m
laaaa)

classificatio
n

d
éch

arg
e

del’en
trep

ren
eu

r
et

d
escrip

tio
n

P
E

D
E

R
S

E
N

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
(2013)

177246
1000-010:

N
on-

T
H

E
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
IO

N
O

F
T

H
E

C
IT

Y
O

F
P

0
B

O
X

2050,
E

20000071S
Q

D
27-M

ay-2015
to

IN
C

.
B

E
D

A
R

D
R

D
,

E
xem

pt
T

E
M

ISK
A

M
IN

G
S

H
O

R
E

S
/

PA
R

E
N

T
H

A
IL

E
Y

B
U

R
Y

,
19-A

ug-2015
C

/O
H

E
A

T
H

E
R

P
artners

and
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

O
N

,
PO

J1K
O

,
B

R
A

Z
E

A
U

P
0

E
xecutive

C
A

B
O

X
2409,

O
fficers

in
R

ate
N

E
W

G
roup

748
L

ISK
E

A
R

D
,

O
N

,
4224-001:

PO
J1PO

,
C

A
C

oncrete
Finishing
3551-000:
R

eady-M
ix

C
oncrete

O
perations

4122-000:
W

aterw
orks

and
S

ew
age

S
ystem

s
421

1-001:
W

recking
and

S
tructural

D
em

olition
4222-002:

Form
W

ork
(L

ow
-

R
ise)

4231-000:
M

asonry
O

perations
4121-001:
H

ighw
ays,

S
treets,

and
Sm

all
B

ridges
4591-001:
H

ighw
ay,

S
treet,

and
B

ridge
M

aintenance

P
aqe

1
o

1



 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2015-135 

Being a by-law for the assumption of a Highway for public 
use within the City of Temiskaming Shores – Lorne Avenue 

Whereas under Section 28, of the Municipal Act, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, a 
municipality may pass by-laws in respect of a highway if it has jurisdiction over the 
highway; 

And whereas Council entered into a Development Agreement with 1345039 Ontario 
Limited as authorized by By-law No. 2012-103 for the development of Lorne Avenue; 

And whereas the Development Agreement provided, inter alia, that the roadways as 
defined in the Development Agreement would not be assumed by the City until various 
obligations, terms and conditions imposed upon the Developer had been completed and 
compiled with;   

And whereas the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores deems 
it necessary to assume the unopened road allowances on the said Registered Plan of 
Subdivision for public use; 

And whereas the Developer (1345039 Ontario Limited) agrees that, notwithstanding 
such assumption, it will continue to be responsible and liable for the various obligations, 
terms, conditions and guarantees imposed upon the Developer in the Development 
Agreement; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
hereby enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That the municipality hereby assumes unopened road allowance for public use, 
more specifically described as: Lorne Avenue registered as Parts 1 and 2 on 
Plan TER 499 and as shown on Plan 54M-240. 

2. That the unopened road allowance being assumed by the municipality is 
identified on Schedule “A”, hereto attached and forming part of this by-law. 

3. That the Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized to execute an Amending 
Agreement to the Development Agreement entered into between the Developer 
(1345039 Ontario Limited) and the City of Temiskaming Shores attached hereto 
as Schedule “B” and forming part of this by-law. 

4. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make 
minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical, numerical or typographical 
nature to the by-law and schedule after the passage of this by-law, where such 
modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law. 

 



Read a first, second and third time and finally passed on this 16th day of June, 
2015. 
 
 

 
__________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 

 
 
 
__________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 

 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Lorne Avenue Roadway Assumption By-law No. 2015-135 

 

Schedule “A” 
Assumed Lorne Avenue 

Robert Street to Katherine Street 
 

 

 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “B” to 
Lorne Avenue Roadway Assumption By-law No. 2015-135 

 

Schedule “B” 

Amending agreement made the 16th day of June, 2015 

Between: 

1345039 Ontario Ltd. 
(The “Developer”) 

And: 

The City of Temiskaming Shores 
(The “City”) 

Background: 

A. The Developer and the City entered into a Development Agreement on July 3, 
2012, being By-law No. 2012-103 which was registered on title to the lands 
described in it at the Land Registry Office at Haileybury on March 7, 2013 as 
Instrument DT39415. 

B. The Development Agreement provided, inter alia, that the Roadways, as defined in 
the Development Agreement, would not be assumed by the City until various 
obligations and terms and conditions imposed upon the Developer had been 
completed and complied with; 

C. The City and the Developer have decided that it would be in the best interests of 
both of them for the City to assume the Roadway at this time, and that 
notwithstanding such assumption, the Developer will continue to be responsible 
and liable for the various obligations and terms and conditions and guarantees 
imposed upon the Developer in the Development Agreement. 

Now therefore in consideration of the mutual agreements set out in this Amending 
Agreement the Parties agree: 

1. The City may proceed to pass an Assumption Bylaw, as defined in the 
Development Agreement, for the assumption of the Roadways; 

2. The Developer agrees that notwithstanding the passage of the Assumption Bylaw 
and the assumption of the Roadways by the City, the Developer shall remain as 
fully responsible and liable for the various obligations and terms and conditions 
and guarantees imposed upon the Developer by the Development Agreement as if 
the Assumption Bylaw had not been passed until completion of all the various 
obligations and terms and conditions imposed by the Developer; 

3. Snowplowing shall be provided by the City at the established standard 
notwithstanding that at least one lot has been developed with a residential 
dwelling. 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “B” to 
Lorne Avenue Roadway Assumption By-law No. 2015-135 

 

In witness whereof the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first 
above written. 
 
Signed and Sealed in ) 1345039 Ontario Ltd. 
the presence of ) 
 ) 
Developer’s Seal ) __________________________________ 
   (if applicable) ) President – Karl Pedersen 

 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Witness 

 ) Name: ______________________ 

 ) Title: ______________________ 

 ) 
Municipal Seal ) Corporation of the City of  
 ) Temiskaming Shores 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 ) 
 ) 
 ) __________________________________ 
 ) Clerk – David B. Treen 



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2015-136 

Being a by-law to amend By-law No. 2012-039, as amended 
being a by-law to adopt Schedules of Departmental User Fees 
and Services for the City of Temiskaming Shores – Schedule 

“E” Planning, By-law and Building Services 

Whereas Section 391(1) of the Municipal Act S.O. 2001, c. 25, as amended, authorizes 
the Council of a local municipality to pass by-laws imposing fees or charges for services 
or activities provided or done by or on behalf of it; for costs payable by it for services or 
activities provided or done by or on behalf of any other municipality or local board; and 
for the use of its property including property under its control; 

And whereas the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
adopted By-law No. 2012-039 on April 3, 2012 to adopt Schedules of Departmental 
User Fees and Service Charges for the City of Temiskaming Shores; 

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. CGP-013-2015 
“Accessibility Upgrades – Application Fees”; Administrative Report No. CGP-018-2015 
and Supplemental Administrative Report No. CGP-018-01-2015 “Amendments to By-
law No. 2013-052 Building Permit Fees” resulting in the adoption of By-law No. 2015-
093 and By-law No. 2015-094; 

And whereas By-law No. 2015-093 and By-law No. 2015-094 amend fees contained in 
Building By-law No. 2013-052 resulting in the need to amend By-law No. 2012-039: 
(Pool Fitness – Fee Schedule) at the May 19, 2015 Regular meeting of Council and 
directed staff to prepare the necessary by-law to amend By-law 2012-039 (Fees By-law) 
incorporating these fee changes; 

Now therefore The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores enacts the following 
as a by-law: 

1. That Council hereby amends Schedule “E” to Fees By-law No. 2012-039, as 
amended, Planning, By-law and Building Services by adding the following: 

Planning, By-law and Building Services 

 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 

Row 
No. 

Class of Permit or Fee 

Fee per $1,000 (k) or portion thereof of 
the cost of valuation of construction or a 

minimum fee amount 

2013 2014 2015 

12 A building permit for an Accessible Upgrade N/A N/A $50 

13 An order that has been issued N/A N/A $200 

14 
A building permit application for which construction has 

started 
N/A N/A 

Application 
permit fee 
shall be 
doubled 



2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make 
any minor modifications or corrections of an administrative, numerical, 
grammatical, semantically or descriptive nature or kind to the by-law and 
schedule as may be deemed necessary after the passage of this by-law, where 
such modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law. 

Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 16th, day of June, 2015. 
 
 

 
__________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2015-137 

Being a by-law to authorize the Sale of Land to G & W 
Jelly’s Ltd. Roll No. 54-18-020-001-027.21 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, the 
powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to govern its affairs as 
it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s ability to respond to municipal 
issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural 
person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  

And whereas By-law No. 2004-031 establishes procedures for the disposal of real 
property, including the giving of notice to the public, governing the sale of land; 

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. CGP-029-2015 at the 
Regular meeting of Council on June 16, 2015 and deemed it desirable to enter into an 
Agreement of Purchase and Sale with G&W Jelly’s Ltd. for municipal real property; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That Council hereby confirms the procedures set forth in By-law No. 2004-031 have 
been followed by the municipality in order to allow for the sale of lands herein after 
referred to in this By-law; 

2. That Council authorizes the entering into an Agreement of Purchase and Sale 
between G&W Jelly’s Ltd. as Purchaser and The Corporation of the City of 
Temiskaming Shores as Vendor, in the form annexed hereto as Schedule “A” and 
forming part of this by-law; 

3. That Council agrees to sell land legally described as: Dymond Concession 1 North 
Part Lot 6; Part 12 on Reference Plan 54R-3480; Parcel 21726SST; Temiskaming 
Shores, District of Timiskaming to G&W Jelly’s Ltd. in the amount of $25,000 plus 
H.S.T. and other such considerations outlined in the said agreement; 

4. That Council affirms the City Manager’s authorization to execute the Agreement of 
Purchase and Sale annexed hereto as Schedule “A” to this by-law and that the 
Mayor and Clerk be hereby authorized and directed to execute any and all other 
documentation necessary to complete the sale of land transaction. 



 

 

5. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make any 
minor modifications or corrections of an administrative, numerical, grammatical, 
semantically or descriptive nature or kind to the by-law and schedule as may be 
deemed necessary after the passage of this by-law, where such modifications or 
corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law. 

Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 16th day of June, 2015. 

 
 

____________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 
 
 
____________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



1H ‘L)I OW-Q or71

KEMP PIRIE Page I of 5

OFFER TO PURCHASE

GW.J[LLYLtd, cW S1Iç &F.
(as “Purchaser”), having inspected the property, hereby agree to and with

THE CORPORATION OF THE CiTY OF TEMISKAMING SHORES.
(as “Vendor”) to purchase the property being: L+3.

DYMOND CON 1 N PT LOT 6 BG; RP 54R34 PART 12 PCJ 21726SST;
TEMISKAMING SHORES; DISTRICT OF TIMISKAMING (7Q46 Brazeau Blvd)

PpC piry F,vt/ tx (r7
(herein cafled the “Real Property”) at the price of -RTh THOUSA D’ OLLARS ($25,000.00)
payable TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,500.00) to t Vendor as a deposit to be
held in trust pending completion or other termination of this Agreement and to be credited on account
of the purchase price on closing and agree to pay the balance of the purchase price by certified
cheque, subject to adjustments, on the closing date hereinafter set forth.

This offer to Purchase shall be conditional upon the Purchaser entering into an agreement with the
Vendor on or before closing substantially in the form attached hereto as Schedule “A” failing which
this Offer to Purchaser shall be null and void and the deposit returned to the Purchaser without any
reduction or interest. Only the Vendor may waive this condition at its option.

RELEASE OF INFORMATION:
Vendor authorizes the release of any information relating to the Real Property to the Purchaser
and the Purchaser’s solicitor by any governmental body or authority and appoints the
Purchaser and the Purchaser’s solicitor as its agent for the purpose. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing the Vendor consents to the disclosure to the Purchaser and the
Purchaser’s solicitor of any information relating to the Real Property or the use thereof
pursuant to the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990. C.F. 31 and
the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990, C. M. 56.

DEFICIENCY NOTICES AND WORK ORDERS:
The Vendor represents that as at the date of acceptance hereof the Vendor has not received from
any municipal or other governmental authority any deficiency notice or work order affecting the Real
Property pursuant to which any deficiencies are required to be remedied or any demolition, repairs or
replacements are required to be carried out. If the Vendor receives any such deficiency notice or
work order after the date of acceptance hereof, the Vendor shall forthwith produce same to the
Purchaser for inspection. If by the date of closing the Vendor has not either (a) complied with such
deficiency notice or work order, or(b) settled with the Purchaser any question of an abatement of the
purchase price arising out of such deficiency notice or work order, the Purchaser may at his option
either (a) accept the Real Property subject to such deficiency notice or work order or (b) terminate
this Agreement. In the event of termination as aforesaid, all moneys paid hereunder shall be returned
to the Purchaser without interest or deductions.

ADOPTION OF LSUC - OBA DOCUMENT REGISTRATION AGREEMENT
Provided the solicitors for each of the Vendor and the Purchaser ate able to complete transactions
using electronic registration, the parties agree to complete this transaction using electronic
registration, to adopt the LSUC-OBA Document Registration Agreement in use on the Closing Date,
and to abide by, and instruct their solicitors to abide by, the closing procedures set forth therein for

ti -t AOi5



KEMP PIRE Page2of5

electronic registration.

ACCEPTANCE:
This Offer shall be irrevocable by the Purchaser until 11:59 P.M. on the 30th day after the date of
signing the offer, after which time, if not accepted, this Offer shall be null and void and the deposit
returned to the Purchaser without interest or deduction.

TITLE:
Title to the Real Property shall be good and free from all encumbrances, except as set out in this
Agreement, and except local rates, and except as to any registered restrictions or covenants that run
with the land, and subdivision agreements with the municipality, provided the same have been
complied with, and except for minor easements for hydra, gas, telephone or like services. Purchaser
shall accept the Real Property subject to municipal and other governmental requirements, including
building and zoning by-laws, regulations and orders, provided same have been complied with.

REQUISITIONS:
Purchaser shall be allowed until closing to investigate the title at his own expense and to satisfy
himself that there is no breach of municipal or other governmental requirements affecting the Real
Property, that its present use may be lawfully continued and that the principal buildings may be
insured against risk of fire. If within that time any valid objection to title or to any breach of municipal
or other governmental requirements, or to the fact that the present use may not be lawfully
continued, or that the principal buildings may not be insured against risk of fire, which the Vendor is
unable or unwilling to remove, remedy or satisfy, and which the Purchaser will not waive, this
Agreement shall notwithstanding any intermediate acts or negotiations, be null and void and the
deposit money returned to the Purchaser, without interest or deduction, and the Vendor shall not be
liable for any costs or damages whatever. Save as to any valid objection so made within such time
the Purchaser shall be conclusively deemed to have accepted the Vendor’s title to the Real Property.

SURVEYS AND DOCUMENTS:
The Purchaser shall not call for the production of any title deed, abstract, survey or other evidence of
title except such as are in the possession or control of the Vendor. The Vendor agrees that he will
deliver any existing survey to the Purchaser as soon as possible and prior to the last day allowed for
examining title. In the event that a discharge of any mortgage or charge held by a Chartered Bank,
Trust Company, Credit Union or Insurance Company which is not to be assumed by the Purchaser
on completion, is not available in registrable form on completion, the Purchaser agrees to accept the
Vendor’s solicitor’s personal undertaking to obtain, out of the closing funds, a discharge or cessation
of charge in registrable form and to register same on title within a reasonable period of time after
completion, provided that on or before completion the Vendor shall provide to the Purchaser a
mortgage statement prepared by the mortgagee setting out the balance required to obtain the
discharge, together with a direction executed by the Vendor directing payment to the mortgagee, of
the amount required to obtain the discharge out of the balance due on completion.

CLOSING:
This Agreement shall be completed on or before June 30, 2015 on which date vacant
possession of the Real Property shall be given to the Purchaser unless otherwise provided for
herein.

INSPECTION OF PROPERTY:
The Purchaser acknowledges having inspected the Real Property prior to submitting this Offer and



KEMP PIRIE Page3of5

understands that upon the Vendor accepting this offer there shall be a binding Agreement of
Purchase and Sale between the Purchaser and the Vendor. The Purchaser shall be entitled to
inspect the Real Property immediately prior to the date for completion.

ADJUSTMENTS:
Unearned fire insurance premiums, fuel, taxes, rentals and aH local improvements and water rates
and other charges for municipal improvements to be apportioned and allowed to the date of
completion of sale (the day itself to be apportioned to the Purchaser). Provided Purchaser may elect
not to accept assignment of fire insurance in which case no adjustment for insurance premiums.

COSTS:
The deed or transfer, save for Land Transfer Tax Affidavit, to be prepared at the expense of the
Vendor in a form acceptable to the Purchaser and if a mortgage or charge is to be given back, it
shall be prepared at the expense of the Purchaser in a form acceptable to the Vendor.

PLANNING ACT COMPLIANCE:
This Agreement shall be effective only if the provisions of Section 50 of the Planning Act, R.S.O.
1990, OP. 13 as amended, are complied with, and the Vendor agrees, at his expense, to comply
with such provisions and to proceed diligently with the application for such compliance, if necessary.

The Transfer/Deed of Land to be given to the Purchaser shall contain a statement of the Vendor and
the Vendor’s solicitor pursuant to section 50(22) of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, C.P. 13 as
amended.

SPOUSAL CONSENT:
The Vendor represents and warrants that no consent to this transaction is required pursuant to
s.21(1) of the Family LawAct, R.S.O. 1990, C.F. 3 unless the Vendor’s spouse has executed this
agreement to consent thereto, and that the Transfer/Deed shall contain a statement by the Vendor
as required by section 21(3) of the Family Law Act, R.S.O. 1990, C.F. 13 or the spouse of the
Vendor shall execute the Transfer/Deed to consent thereto.

RESIDENCY OF VENDOR:
Vendor further agrees to produce evidence that he is not now and that on closing he will not be a
non-resident of Canada within the meaning of s.116 of the Income Tax Act of Canada, or in the
alternative, evidence that the provisions of s. 116 regarding disposition of property by a non-resident
person have been complied with at or before closing, failing which the Purchaser will be credited
towards the purchase price with the amount, if any, which shall be necessary for the Purchaser to
pay to the Minister of Revenue in order to satisfy the Purchaser’s liability in respect of tax payable by
the Vendor under S. 116 of the Income Tax Act of Canada by reason of the sale.

FACSIMILE:
Either party may execute this document by signing a facsimile thereof. The parties agree that
execution by any party of a facsimile shall be in all respects identical to execution of an original or
photocopy. The parties agree to accept a facsimile of the signature of any party as evidence of the
fact that the agreement has been executed by that party. In all respects a facsimile signature may
be accepted as having the same effect as an original signature.

COUNTERPART:
This agreement may but need not be executed in counterpart.



KEMP PIRIE Page4of5

TIME OF ESSENCE:
This Offer, when accepted, shall constitute a binding contract of purchase and sale, and time in all
respects shall be of the essence in this Agreement.

G.S.T./H.ST.:
This transaction is subject to Goods and Services Tax (G.S.T.) pursuant to the Excise Tax Act
(Canada) as amended (the ‘Act”) and/or Harmonized Sales Tax (H.S.T.) pursuant to the Act and the
Ontario Tax Plan for More Jobs and Growth Act, 2009, SO. 2009, C.34, and such G.S.T./H.S.T. is
in addition to and not included in the purchase price.
The Purchaser is registered under the Act and shall provide the Vendor and his solicitor with proof of
his G.S.TJH.S.T. registration and an indemnity in a form reasonably satisfactory to the Vendor and
its solicitor.

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES:
It is agreed that there is no representation, warranty, collateral agreement or condition affecting this
Agreement or the Real Property or supported hereby other than as expressed herein in writing.

TENDER:
Any tender of documents or money hereunder may be made upon the Vendor or Purchaser or upon
the solicitor acting for the party on whom tender is desired, and it shall be sufficient that a cheque
certified by a chartered bank or a trust company or the trust cheque of the law firm acting for the
party desiring such tender be tendered instead of cash.

COSTS OF REGISTRATION:
Each party to pay the costs of registration and taxes on his own documents.



KEMP PIRIE PageS of 5

GENDER:
This Offer and the resulting Agreement to be read with aD changes of gender or number required by
the context.

SIGNED, SEAI..EO AND DELIVERED this 5t1 day of June, 2015.
in the presence of:

Purchaser .W.Jelly Towing.

Per:
Tom Jelly, Preside%3 )“

I have authority to bind the Corporation.

The Vendor hereby accepts the above offer.
c’kfti

Dated at the City of Temiskaming Shores this day of Jify, 281.

Vendor: THE CORPORATION Of THE CITY Of TEMISKAMING SHORES

rj g
Ga-KyT

Christopher W. Oslund, City Manager/Deputy Clerk

We have authority to bind the Corporation.

Purchaser’s Address:
GWtIyThwtrTgttd. C1W
744108 Brazeau Blvd.
New Liskeard, ON POJ 1 P0
Attn: Tom Jelly

Phone Number: (705)647-5751
Fax Number: (705)647-5980

Vendor’s Address:
City of Temiskaming Shores
P.O. Box 2050
325 Farr Drive
Haileybury, Ontario POJ I KO
Attn: David B. Treen, Clerk

Phone Number: (705)672-3363ext 4136
Fax Number: (705)672-3200

Purchaser’s Solicitor: Vendor’s Solicitor:

KEMP PIRIE
P.O. Box 1540
22 Armstrong Street
New Liskeard, ON POJ 1 P0
Attn: George W. Kemp
Phone Number: (705) 647-7353
Fax Number: (705) 647-6473

KEMP PIRIE
P.O. Box 1540
22 Armstrong Street
New Liskeard, ON P0] 1PO
Attn: George W. Kemp
Phone Number: (705) 647-7353
Fax Number: (705) 647-6473



 

 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2015-138 

Being a by-law to amend By-law No. 2007-045, being a 
by-law for the adoption of a Municipal Property Tax 

Policy 

Whereas Section 306 to Section 389 inclusive of the Municipal Act, S.O. 2001, 
c.25, as amended, provides legislation with respect to municipal property taxes; 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to 
govern its affairs as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s 
ability to respond to municipal issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural 
person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public; 

And whereas the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
adopted By-law No. 2007-045 for the adoption of a Municipal Property Tax Policy 
on September 16, 2008; 

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report CS-024-2015 at the June 
16, 2015 Regular Meeting of Council directing staff to prepare the necessary by-
law to amend By-law No. 2007-045 for consideration at the June 16, 2015 Regular 
meeting of Council; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That Council hereby amends Schedule “A” to By-law No. 2011-158 by 
deleting Article 11 and replacing it with the following: 

11. Non-Tax Debt 

As per Section 398 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001 identifies debt as “fees and 
charges imposed by a municipality or local board on a person constitute a 
debt of the person to the municipality or local board, respectively”. 

Section 398 (2) states that non-tax debt can be added to the tax roll and 
collected in the same manner as municipal taxes. 

“Section 398 (2) Amount owing added to tax roll – The treasurer of a local 
municipality may, and upon the request of its upper-tier municipality, if any, or 
of a local board whose area of jurisdiction includes any part of the municipality 



 

 

shall, add fees and charges imposed by the municipality, upper-tier 
municipality or local board, respectively, to the tax roll for the following 
property in the local municipality and collect them in the same manner as 
municipal taxes: 

1. In the case of fees and charges for the supply of a public utility, the 
property to which the public utility was supplied. 

2. In all other cases, any property for which all of the owners are 
responsible for paying the fees and charges.” 

a) Non-Tax Debt - Other 

Procedure: 

i) All fees and charges will be initially processed thru the Accounts 
Receivable system as generated by the applicable department. 

ii) If an invoice remains unpaid for 60 days or more, a reminder letter will 
be generated from Accounts Receivable.  A deadline for payment will be 
applied and notification that the unpaid invoice will be added to the tax 
roll if it remains unpaid past the deadline. 

iii) If the invoice remains unpaid after the imposed deadline as stated in the 
reminder letter, the charge along with all penalty accrued to date will be 
removed from the Accounts Receivable system and added to the tax roll 
for collection. 

The scope of fees and charges that will be added to the tax roll if unpaid 
include but are not limited to the following: 

i) Facility rentals (hall, ice, equipment, marina, storage, etc.) 

ii) Program fees (memberships, registrations, user fees, etc.) 

iii) Cemetery fees 

 

b) Non-Tax Debt – Property Related Charges 

Procedure: 

i) An invoice will be processed for all fees and charges for property related 
charges.   

ii) The invoice will applied directly to the applicable tax account. 

iii) If the invoice remains unpaid after the due date as stated on the invoice, 
penalty will be applied at a rate of 1.25% per month. 

The scope of fees and charges that will be applied directly to the tax roll are 
not limited to the following: 



 

 

i) Returned Cheque Fees for any property related charges 

ii) Water On/Off Charges 

iii) Water/Sewer Connection Fees 

iv) Property Standards Orders and Executions 

 

2. That is by-law shall come into effect upon its passing. 

3. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to 
make minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical 
nature to the by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where 
such modifications or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its 
associated schedule. 

Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 16th day of June, 
2015. 

 

__________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 

 
 
 
__________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2015-139 

Being a by-law to enter into a Funding Agreement with Her 
Majesty the Queen in Right of Ontario as represented by the 

Minister of Transportation for the Province of Ontario – 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, the 
powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to govern its affairs as 
it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s ability to respond to municipal 
issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural 
person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  

And whereas Council, through Resolution No. 2015-081 directed staff to submit a 
funding application to the Age-Friendly Community Planning Grant Program and to the 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program; 

And whereas the Ministry of Transportation for the Province of Ontario under the 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program approved funds in the amount of 
$40,000 towards; 

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. RS-016-2015 at the June 
16, 2015 Regular Council meeting and directed staff to prepare the necessary by-law to 
enter into an agreement with the Ministry of Transportation for the Province of Ontario; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That the Mayor and Clerk be authorized to enter into a funding agreement with Her 
Majesty the Queen in Right of Ontario as represented by the Minister of 
Transportation for the Province of Ontario for the enhancement and strengthening 
the sharing of knowledge of the available transportation services in the City of 
Temiskaming Shores in the amount of $40,000, a copy of which is attached 
hereto as Schedule “A” and forming part of this by-law; and 

2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make  
minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical nature to the 
by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where such modifications 
or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law. 

 



Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 16th day of June, 2015. 

 
 
 
___________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 

 
Schedule “A” to  

 

By-law No. 2015-139 
 

Being a funding Agreement between 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores  

and 

Ministry of Transportation for the Province of Ontario 

For the enhancement and strengthening the sharing of 
knowledge of the available transportation services in the City 
of Temiskaming Shores under the Community Transportation 

Pilot Grant Program 
 
 
 
 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 34 

 
 

 
 
THIS COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION PILOT GRANT PROGRAM TRANSFER 
PAYMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) made in quadruplicate and effective as of 
the ____________ day of __________________, 2015.   
 
B E T W E E N : 
 

Her Majesty the Queen in right of the Province of Ontario as 
represented by the Minister of Transportation for the Province of 
Ontario 
 
(the “Province”) 
 
- and - 
 
Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 
 
(the “Recipient”) 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Province has established the Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program (the 
“Program”) to fund municipalities that partner with community organizations to plan and 
implement community transportation projects.   
 
The Recipient has applied to the Province for funds to assist the Recipient to carry out a 
community transportation project and the Province wishes to provide such funds. 
 
The Agreement sets out the terms and conditions applicable to the funding by the 
Province of the Project. 
 
CONSIDERATION: 
 
In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained in the Agreement 
and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
expressly acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

  
1.0 INTERPRETATION AND DEFINITIONS 

 
1.1 Interpretation.  For the purposes of interpretation: 
 

(a) words in the singular include the plural and vice-versa; 
 
(b) words in one gender include all genders; 

 

COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION PILOT GRANT PROGRAM 
TRANSFER PAYMENT AGREEMENT 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 2 of 34 

(c) the background and the headings do not form part of the Agreement; they 
are for reference only and will not affect the interpretation of the 
Agreement;   

(d) any reference to dollars or currency will be in Canadian dollars and 
currency; and   

 
(e) “include”, “includes” and “including” denote that the subsequent list is not 

exhaustive. 
 
1.2 Definitions.  In the Agreement, the following terms will have the following 

meanings: 
 

“Agreement” means this agreement entered into between the Province and the 
Recipient, and includes all of the schedules listed in section 30.1 (Schedules) 
and any amending agreement entered into pursuant to section 34.1 (Modification 
of Agreement). 
 
“BPSAA” means the Broader Public Sector Accountability Act, 2010 (Ontario). 
 
“Budget” means the budget attached to the Agreement as Schedule “B” 
(Budget). 
 
“Business Day” means any working day, Monday to Friday inclusive, excluding 
statutory and other holidays, namely: New Year’s Day; Family Day; Good Friday; 
Easter Monday; Victoria Day; Canada Day; Civic Holiday; Labour Day; 
Thanksgiving Day; Remembrance Day; Christmas Day; Boxing Day and any 
other day on which the Province has elected to be closed for business. 
 
“Completion Date” means March 31, 2017. 
 
“Effective Date” means the date the Agreement is signed by the last Party.  
 
“Eligible Costs” means the costs of the Project described in Schedule “C” 
(Eligible Costs and Ineligible Costs), Article C.1.0 (Eligible Costs), that are 
eligible for funding by the Province.  
 
“Event of Default” means an Event of Default that is listed in section 14.1 
(Events of Default). 
 
“Expiration Date” means the date on which the Agreement will expire and is the 
date set out in section 3.1 (Term). 
 
“Funding Year” means:  

 
(a) in the case of the first Funding Year, the period commencing on the 

Effective Date and ending on the following March 31; and  
 

(b) in the case of Funding Years subsequent to the first Funding Year, the 
period commencing on April 1 following the end of the previous Funding 
Year and ending on the following March 31. 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 3 of 34 

 
“Funds” means the money the Province provides to the Recipient pursuant to 
the Agreement.  
 
“Indemnified Parties” means Her Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario, Her 
ministers, agents, appointees and employees. 
 
“Ineligible Costs” means the costs of the Project described in Schedule “C” 
(Eligible Costs and Ineligible Costs), Article C.2.0 (Ineligible Costs), that are not 
eligible for funding by the Province.  

 
“Maximum Funds” means $ 40,000.00.      
 
“Notice” means any communication given or required to be given pursuant to 
the Agreement.  
 
“Notice Period” means the period of time within which the Recipient is required 
to remedy an Event of Default, and includes any such period or periods of time 
by which the Province considers it reasonable to extend that time.  
 
“Party” means either the Province or the Recipient, and “Parties” means the 
Province and the Recipient.  
 
“Program” means the Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program the 
Province has established to provide municipalities with the Funds. 
 
“Project” means the undertaking described in Schedule “A” (Project Description 
and Timelines).  
 
“PSSDA” means the Public Sector Salary Disclosure Act, 1996 (Ontario). 
 
“Reports” means the reports described in Schedule “E” (Reporting).  
 
“Timelines” means the Project schedule set out in Schedule “A” (Project 
Description and Timelines).  

 
2.0 REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS 

 
2.1 General.  The Recipient represents, warrants and covenants that: 
 

(a) it is, and will continue to be for the term of the Agreement, a validly 
existing legal entity with full power to fulfill its obligations under the 
Agreement;  

 
(b) it has, and will continue to have for the term of the Agreement, the 

experience and expertise necessary to carry out the Project;  

 

(c) it is in compliance with all federal and provincial laws and regulations, all 

municipal by-laws, and any other orders, rules and by-laws related to any 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 4 of 34 

aspect of the Project, the Funds or both;  

  
(d) unless otherwise provided for in the Agreement, any information the 

Recipient provided to the Province in support of its request for funds 
(including information relating to any eligibility requirements) was true and 
complete at the time the Recipient provided it and will continue to be true 
and complete for the term of the Agreement;  
 

(e) at least one community organization the Recipient identified in its 

Program funding application provides transportation services or has 

transportation resources or assets, or both;  

(f) the delivery of the services for the Project will begin no later than one 

year after the Effective Date, and will continue until the Completion Date; 

and 

 

(g) fares, as determined by the Recipient, are, and will continue to be until 

the Completion Date, charged for the community transportation services 

delivered for the Project. 

 
2.2 Execution of Agreement.  The Recipient represents and warrants that it has: 
 

(a) the full power and authority to enter into the Agreement; and 
 

(b) taken all necessary actions to authorize the execution of the Agreement. 
 
2.3 Governance.  The Recipient represents, warrants and covenants that it has, and 

will maintain, in writing for the period during which the Agreement is in effect:  
 
(a) a code of conduct and ethical responsibilities for all persons at all levels 

of the Recipient’s organization; 
 
(b) procedures to ensure the ongoing effective functioning of the Recipient;  
 
(c) decision-making mechanisms for the Recipient; 
 
(d) procedures to enable the Recipient to manage the Funds prudently and 

effectively;  
 
(e) procedures to enable the Recipient to complete the Project successfully;  
 
(f) procedures to enable the Recipient, in a timely manner, to identify risks to 

the completion of the Project, and strategies to address the identified 
risks; 

 
(g) procedures to enable the preparation and delivery of all Reports required 

pursuant to Article 7 (Reporting, Accounting and Review); and 
 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 5 of 34 

(h) procedures to enable the Recipient to deal with such other matters as the 
Recipient considers necessary to ensure that the Recipient carries out its 
obligations under the Agreement. 

 
2.4 Supporting Documentation.  Upon request, the Recipient will provide the 

Province with proof of the matters referred to in this Article 2.0 (Representations, 
Warranties and Covenants).    

 
3.0   TERM OF THE AGREEMENT 

 
3.1 Term.  The term of the Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and will 

expire on September 30, 2017 (the “Expiration Date”) unless terminated earlier 
pursuant to Article 12.0 (Termination on Notice), Article 13.0 (Termination Where 
No Appropriation) or Article 14.0 (Event of Default, Corrective Action and 
Termination for Default). 

 
4.0 FUNDS AND CARRYING OUT THE PROJECT 

 
4.1 Funds Provided.  Subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement, the 

Province will: 
 

(a) provide the Recipient up to the Maximum Funds for the purpose of 
carrying out the Project; 

 
(b) provide the Funds to the Recipient in accordance with the payment plan 

attached to the Agreement as Sub-schedule “D.1” (Payment Plan); and  
 
(c) deposit the Funds into an account designated by the Recipient provided 

that the account: 
 

(i) resides at a Canadian financial institution; and 
 
(ii) is in the name of the Recipient. 

 
4.2 Limitation on Payment of Funds.  Despite section 4.1 (Funds Provided): 
 

(a) the Province is not obligated to provide any Funds to the Recipient until 
the Recipient provides the Province with: 

 
(i) the insurance certificate or other proof as the Province may request 

pursuant to section 11.3 (Proof of Insurance); and 
 

(ii) a copy of the Recipient’s by-law or resolution, as applicable, 
authorizing it to enter into this Agreement and designating the 
Recipient’s signing officer for the Agreement; 

 
(b) the Province is not obligated to provide instalments of Funds until it is 

satisfied with the progress of the Project and the Recipient’s compliance 
with the terms and conditions set out in the Agreement; 

 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 6 of 34 

(c) the Province may adjust the amount of Funds it provides to the Recipient 
in any Funding Year based upon the Province’s assessment of the 
information provided by the Recipient pursuant to section 7.1 (Preparation 
and Submission); and 

 
(d) if, pursuant to the Financial Administration Act (Ontario), the Province 

does not receive the necessary appropriation from the Ontario Legislature 
for payment under the Agreement, the Province is not obligated to make 
any such payment, and, as a consequence, the Province may: 

 
(i) reduce the amount of Funds and, in consultation with the 

Recipient, change the Project; or  
 
(ii) terminate the Agreement pursuant to section 13.1 (Termination 

Where No Appropriation). 
 
4.3 Use of Funds and Project.  The Recipient will: 
 

(a) carry out the Project in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 
Agreement;  
 

(b) use the Funds only for the purpose of carrying out the Project; 
 

(c) spend the Funds only for Eligible Costs and in accordance with the 
Budget; and 

 
(d) not use the Funds to cover any specific cost that has or will be funded or 

reimbursed by any third party, including other ministries, agencies and 
organizations of the Government of Ontario.  

 
4.4 Province’s Role Limited to Providing Funds.  For greater clarity, the 

Province’s role under the Agreement is limited to providing Funds to the 
Recipient for the purposes of the Project and the Province is not responsible for 
carrying out the Project. 
 

4.5 No Changes.  The Recipient will not make any changes to the Project, the 
Timelines, or the Budget without the prior written consent of the Province. 

 
4.6 Interest Bearing Account.  If the Province provides Funds to the Recipient 

before the Recipient’s immediate need for the Funds, the Recipient will place the 
Funds in an interest bearing account in the name of the Recipient at a Canadian 
financial institution.  

 
4.7 Interest.  If the Recipient earns any interest on the Funds, the Province may:   
 

(a) deduct an amount equal to the interest from any further instalments of 
Funds; or 

 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 7 of 34 

(b)  demand from the Recipient the repayment of an amount equal to the 
interest.   

 
4.8 Maximum Funds.  The Recipient acknowledges that the Funds available to it 

pursuant to the Agreement will not exceed the Maximum Funds. 
 
4.9 Rebates, Credits and Refunds.  The Recipient acknowledges that the amount 

of Funds available to it pursuant to the Agreement is based on the Eligible Costs 
incurred and paid by the Recipient in accordance with the Budget, less any costs 
(including taxes) for which the Recipient has received, will receive, or is eligible 
to receive, a rebate, credit or refund against Eligible Costs.  

 
4.10 Funding, Not Procurement.  For greater clarity, the Recipient acknowledges 

that:  
 
(a) it is receiving funding from the Province for the Project and is not 

providing goods or services to the Province; and 
 

(b)  the funding the Province is providing under the Agreement is funding for 
the purposes of the PSSDA. 

 
5.0 RECIPIENT’S ACQUISITION OF GOODS OR SERVICES, AND DISPOSAL OF 

ASSETS 
 
5.1 Acquisition.  If the Recipient acquires goods or services, or both, with the 

Funds, it will: 
 
(a)  do so through a process that promotes the best value for money; and 
 
(b)  comply with the BPSAA, including any procurement directive issued 

thereunder, to the extent applicable. 
 
5.2 Disposal.  The Recipient will not, without the Province’s prior written consent 

and at any time within a period of 10 years following the acquisition of the asset, 
sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any asset purchased or created with the 
Funds or for which Funds were provided, the cost of which exceeded $5,000.00 
at the time of purchase.  

 
6.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
6.1 No Conflict of Interest.  The Recipient will carry out the Project and use the 

Funds without an actual, potential or perceived conflict of interest. 
 
6.2 Conflict of Interest Includes.  For the purposes of this Article, a conflict of 

interest includes any circumstances where: 
 

(a) the Recipient; or  
 
(b) any person who has the capacity to influence the Recipient’s decisions, 

           



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 8 of 34 

      has outside commitments, relationships or financial interests that could, or could 
be seen to, interfere with the Recipient’s objective, unbiased and impartial 
judgment relating to the Project, the use of the Funds, or both. 

 
6.3 Disclosure to Province.  The Recipient will: 
 

(a) disclose to the Province, without delay, any situation that a reasonable 
person would interpret as an actual, potential or perceived conflict of 
interest; and  

 
(b) comply with any terms and conditions that the Province may prescribe as a 

result of the disclosure.  
 

7.0  REPORTING, ACCOUNTING AND REVIEW 
 
7.1 Preparation and Submission.  The Recipient will: 
 

(a) submit to the Province at the address provided in section 18.1 (Notice in 
Writing and Addresses), all Reports in accordance with the timelines and 
content requirements set out in Schedule “E” (Reporting), or in a form as 
specified by the Province from time to time; 

 
(b) submit to the Province at the address provided in section 18.1 (Notice in 

Writing and Addresses), any other reports as may be requested by the 
Province in accordance with the timelines and content requirements 
specified by the Province; 

 
(c) ensure that all Reports and other reports are completed to the satisfaction 

of the Province; and  
 

(d) ensure that all Reports and other reports are signed on behalf of the 
Recipient by an authorized signing officer. 

 
7.2 Record Maintenance.  The Recipient will keep and maintain: 
 

(a) all financial records (including invoices) relating to the Funds or otherwise 
to the Project in a manner consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles; and 

(b) all non-financial documents and records relating to the Funds or 
otherwise to the Project. 

7.3 Inspection.  The Province, its authorized representatives or an independent 
auditor identified by the Province may, at its own expense, upon twenty-four 
hours’ Notice to the Recipient and during normal business hours, enter upon the 
Recipient’s premises to review the progress of the Project and the Recipient’s 
allocation and expenditure of the Funds and, for these purposes, the Province, its 
authorized representatives or an independent auditor identified by the Province 
may take one or more of the following actions:  

 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 9 of 34 

(a) inspect and copy the records and documents referred to in section 7.2 
(Record Maintenance);  

(b) remove any copies made pursuant to section 7.3(a) from the Recipient’s 
premises; and  

(c) conduct an audit or investigation of the Recipient in respect of the 
expenditure of the Funds, the Project, or both. 

7.4 Disclosure.  To assist in respect of the rights set out in section 7.3 (Inspection), 
the Recipient will disclose any information requested by the Province, its 
authorized representatives or an independent auditor identified by the Province, 
and will do so in the form requested by the Province, its authorized 
representatives or an independent auditor identified by the Province, as the case 
may be. 

 
7.5 No Control of Records.  No provision of the Agreement will be construed so as 

to give the Province any control whatsoever over the Recipient’s records. 
 
7.6 Auditor General.  For greater certainty, the Province’s rights under this Article 

are in addition to any rights provided to the Auditor General pursuant to section 
9.1 of the Auditor General Act (Ontario). 

 
8.0  COMMUNICATIONS REQUIREMENTS 

 
8.1 Acknowledge Support.  Unless otherwise directed by the Province, the 

Recipient will acknowledge the support of the Province in a form and manner as 
directed by the Province.  
 

8.2 Publication. The Recipient will indicate, in any of its Project-related publications, 
whether written, oral, or visual, that the views expressed in the publication are 
the views of the Recipient and do not necessarily reflect those of the Province. 

 
8.3 Recognition, Promotional Events and Others. The Recipient will: 

 
(a) in the event that the Recipient intends to communicate with the media or 

carry out any promotional event in relation to the Agreement, notify the 

Province in a timely manner at least 15 days prior to any such 

communication; and  

(b) provide, whenever available, professional quality visual or audio-visual 

material about the Project to the Province to support wider 

communications about the Project.  

9.0 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND PROTECTION OF PRIVACY 
 
9.1 FIPPA.  The Recipient acknowledges that the Province is bound by the Freedom 

of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (Ontario) and that any information 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 10 of 34 

provided to the Province in connection with the Project or otherwise in connection 
with the Agreement may be subject to disclosure in accordance with that Act. 

 
10.0  INDEMNITY 

 
10.1 Indemnification.  The Recipient hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless 

the Indemnified Parties from and against any and all liability, loss, costs, 
damages and expenses (including legal, expert and consultant fees), causes of 
action, actions, claims, demands, lawsuits or other proceedings, by whomever 
made, sustained, incurred, brought or prosecuted, in any way arising out of or in 
connection with the Project or otherwise in connection with the Agreement, 
unless solely caused by the negligence or wilful misconduct of the Province. 

10.2 Recipient’s Participation.  The Recipient will, at its expense, to the extent 
requested by the Province, participate in or conduct the defence of any 
proceeding against any Indemnified Parties and any negotiations for their 
settlement.  

10.3 Province’s Election.  The Province may elect to participate in or conduct the 
defence of any proceeding by providing Notice to the Recipient of such election 
without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the Province under the 
Agreement, at law or in equity. Each Party participating in the defence will do so 
by actively participating with the other’s counsel.  

10.4 Settlement Authority.  The Recipient will not enter into a settlement of any 
proceeding against any Indemnified Parties unless the Recipient has obtained 
the prior written approval of the Province. If the Recipient is requested by the 
Province to participate in or conduct the defence of any proceeding, the Province 
will co-operate with and assist the Recipient to the fullest extent possible in the 
proceeding and any related settlement negotiations.  

10.5 Recipient’s Co-operation.  If the Province conducts the defence of any 
proceedings, the Recipient will co-operate with and assist the Province to the 
fullest extent possible in the proceedings and any related settlement 
negotiations.  

 
11.0 INSURANCE 
 
11.1 Recipient’s Insurance.  The Recipient represents and warrants that it has, and 

will maintain for the term of the Agreement, at its own cost and expense, with 
insurers having a secure A.M. Best rating of B+ or greater, or the equivalent, all 
the necessary and appropriate insurance that a prudent person carrying out a 
project similar to the Project would maintain, including commercial general 
liability insurance on an occurrence basis for third party bodily injury, personal 
injury and property damage, to an inclusive limit of not less than two million 
dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence. The policy will include the following:  

 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 11 of 34 

(a) the Indemnified Parties as additional insureds with respect to liability 
arising in the course of performance of the Recipient’s obligations under, 
or otherwise in connection with, the Agreement; 

 
(b) a cross-liability clause;  
 
(c) contractual liability coverage; and 
 
(d) a 30 day written notice of cancellation. 

 
11.2 Reference to Program.  The insurance policy referred to in section 11.1 

(Recipient’s Insurance) will include, in addition to the provisions listed in that 
section, a reference to the Program.  
 

11.3 Proof of Insurance.  The Recipient will provide the Province with certificates of 
insurance, or other proof as may be requested by the Province, that confirms the 
insurance coverage as provided for in section 11.1 (Recipient’s Insurance).  
Upon the request of the Province, the Recipient will make available to the 
Province a copy of each insurance policy.  

 
12.0 TERMINATION ON NOTICE 
 
12.1 Termination on Notice.  The Province may terminate the Agreement at any time 

upon giving at least 30 days Notice to the Recipient. 
 
12.2 Consequences of Termination on Notice by the Province.  If the Province 

terminates the Agreement pursuant to section 12.1 (Termination on Notice), the 
Province may take one or more of the following actions: 

 
(a) cancel all further instalments of Funds; 
 
(b) demand the repayment of any Funds remaining in the possession or 

under the control of the Recipient; and 
 

(c) determine the reasonable costs for the Recipient to wind down the 
Project, and do either or both of the following: 
 
(i) permit the Recipient to offset the costs against the amount owing 

pursuant to paragraph 12.2(b); and  
 
(ii) subject to section 4.8 (Maximum Funds), provide Funds to the 

Recipient to cover such costs.  
 

13.0 TERMINATION WHERE NO APPROPRIATION 
 

13.1 Termination Where No Appropriation.  If, as provided for in section 4.2(d), the 
Province does not receive the necessary appropriation from the Ontario 
Legislature for any payment the Province is to make pursuant to the Agreement, 
the Province may terminate the Agreement immediately without liability, penalty or 
costs by giving Notice to the Recipient. 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 12 of 34 

 
13.2 Consequences of Termination Where No Appropriation.  If the Province 

terminates the Agreement pursuant to section 13.1 (Termination Where No 
Appropriation), the Province may take one or more of the following actions:  

 
(a) cancel all further instalments of Funds; 
 
(b) demand the repayment of any Funds remaining in the possession or 

under the control of the Recipient; and 
 

(c) determine the reasonable costs for the Recipient to wind down the Project 
and permit the Recipient to offset such costs against the amount owing 
pursuant to paragraph 13.2(b). 

 
13.3 No Additional Funds.  For purposes of clarity, if the costs determined pursuant 

to paragraph 13.2(c) exceed the Funds remaining in the possession or under the 
control of the Recipient, the Province will not provide additional Funds to the 
Recipient. 

 
14.0 EVENT OF DEFAULT, CORRECTIVE ACTION AND TERMINATION FOR 

DEFAULT 
 
14.1 Events of Default.  Each of the following events will constitute an Event of 

Default:  
 
(a) in the opinion of the Province, the Recipient breaches any representation, 

warranty, covenant or other material term of the Agreement, including 
failing to do any of the following in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the Agreement:  

 
(i) carry out the Project; 

 
(ii) use or spend Funds; or 

 
(iii) provide, in accordance with section 7.1 (Preparation and 

Submission), Reports or such other reports as may have been 
requested pursuant to section 7.1(b);  
 

(b) the Recipient’s operations, or its organizational structure, changes such 
that it no longer meets one or more of the eligibility requirements of the 
Program; 

 
(c) the Recipient makes an assignment, proposal, compromise, or 

arrangement for the benefit of creditors, or a creditor makes an 
application for an order adjudging the Recipient bankrupt, or applies for 
the appointment of a receiver; and 

 
(d) the Recipient ceases to operate. 
 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 13 of 34 

14.2 Consequences of Events of Default and Corrective Action.  If an Event of 
Default occurs, the Province may, at any time, take one or more of the following 
actions: 

 
(a) initiate any action the Province considers necessary in order to facilitate 

the successful continuation or completion of the Project; 
 
(b) provide the Recipient with an opportunity to remedy the Event of Default; 
 
(c) suspend the payment of Funds for such period as the Province 

determines appropriate; 
 
(d) reduce the amount of the Funds; 
 
(e) cancel all further instalments of Funds;  
 
(f) demand the repayment of any Funds remaining in the possession or 

under the control of the Recipient;  
 
(g) demand the repayment of an amount equal to any Funds the Recipient 

used, but did not use in accordance with the Agreement; 
 
(h) demand the repayment of an amount equal to any Funds the Province 

provided to the Recipient; and 
 
(i) terminate the Agreement at any time, including immediately, without 

liability, penalty or costs to the Province upon giving Notice to the 
Recipient. 

 
14.3 Opportunity to Remedy.  If, in accordance with paragraph 14.2(b), the Province 

provides the Recipient with an opportunity to remedy the Event of Default, the 
Province will provide Notice to the Recipient of:  

 
(a) the particulars of the Event of Default; and 

 
(b) the Notice Period.  

 
14.4 Recipient not Remedying.  If the Province has provided the Recipient with an 

opportunity to remedy the Event of Default pursuant to paragraph 14.2(b), and: 
 

(a) the Recipient does not remedy the Event of Default within the Notice 
Period; 

 
(b) it becomes apparent to the Province that the Recipient cannot completely 

remedy the Event of Default within the Notice Period; or 
 

(c) the Recipient is not proceeding to remedy the Event of Default in a way 
that is satisfactory to the Province, 

 
the Province may extend the Notice Period, or initiate any one or more of the 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 14 of 34 

actions provided for in paragraphs 14.2(a), (c), (d), (e), (f), (g), (h) and (i). 
 

14.5 When Termination Effective. Termination under this Article will take effect as 
set out in the Notice.  

 
15.0 FUNDS AT THE END OF A FUNDING YEAR 

 
15.1 Funds at the End of a Funding Year. Without limiting any rights of the Province 

under Article 14.0 (Event of Default, Corrective Action and Termination for 
Default), if the Recipient has not spent all of the Funds allocated for the Funding 
Year as provided for in the Budget, the Province may take one or both of the 
following actions:  

 
(a) demand the return of the unspent Funds; and 
 
(b) adjust the amount of any further instalments of Funds accordingly. 

 
16.0 FUNDS UPON EXPIRY 
 
16.1 Funds Upon Expiry.  The Recipient will, upon the Expiration Date, return to the 

Province any Funds remaining in its possession or under its control.  
 

17.0 REPAYMENT 
 
17.1 Repayment of Overpayment. If at any time during the term of the Agreement 

the Province provides Funds in excess of the amount to which the Recipient is 
entitled under the Agreement, the Province may: 

 
(a)  deduct an amount equal to the excess Funds from any further instalments 

of Funds; or 
 
(b)  demand that the Recipient pay an amount equal to the excess Funds to 

the Province.  
 
17.2 Debt Due. If, pursuant to the Agreement: 
 

(a) the Province demands the payment of any Funds or an amount equal to 
any Funds from the Recipient; or 

 
(b) the Recipient owes any Funds or an amount equal to any Funds to the 

Province, whether or not their return or repayment has been demanded 
by the Province,  

 
such Funds or other amount will be deemed to be a debt due and owing to the 
Province by the Recipient, and the Recipient will pay or return the amount to the 
Province immediately, unless the Province directs otherwise. 

 
17.3 Interest Rate. The Province may charge the Recipient interest on any money 

owing by the Recipient at the then current interest rate charged by the Province 
of Ontario on accounts receivable. 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 15 of 34 

 
17.4 Payment of Money to Province.  The Recipient will pay any money owing to the 

Province by cheque payable to the “Ontario Minister of Finance” and delivered to 
the Province at the address provided in section 18.0 (Notice). 

 
17.5  Failure to Repay.  Without limiting the application of section 43 of the Financial 

Administration Act (Ontario), if the Recipient fails to repay any amount owing 
under the Agreement, Her Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario may deduct any 
unpaid amount from any money payable to the Recipient by her Majesty the 
Queen in right of Ontario. 

18.0 NOTICE  
 
18.1 Notice in Writing and Addresses.  Notice will be in writing and delivered by 

email, postage-prepaid mail, personal delivery or fax, and addressed to the 
Province and the Recipient respectively as set out below, or as either Party later 
designates to the other by Notice: 

 
To the Province: 
 
Ministry of Transportation 
Municipal Transit Policy Office 
777 Bay St., 30th Floor 
Toronto, Ontario M7A 2J8 
 
Attention: Katrina Fernandez, 
Administrative Assistant 
 
Fax:     416-585-7343  
Email:   CTProgram@ontario.ca 

To the Recipient: 
 
Corporation of the City of 
Temiskaming Shores 
325 Farr Drive 
Haileybury, ON  P0J 1K0 
 
Attention: James Franks, 
Economic Development Officer  
 
Fax: 705-672-3200 
Email:jfranks@temiskamingshores.ca  
 
 

18.2 Notice Given.  Notice will be deemed to have been given:  
 

(a) in the case of postage-prepaid mail, five Business Days after the Notice is 
mailed; or  
 

(b) in the case of email, personal delivery or fax, one Business Day after the 
Notice is delivered. 

 
18.3 Postal Disruption.  Despite paragraph 18.2(a), in the event of a postal 

disruption: 
 

(a) Notice by postage-prepaid mail will not be deemed to be received; and 
 
(b) the Party giving Notice will provide Notice by email, personal delivery or 

by fax.   
 
 

mailto:CTProgram@ontario.ca
mailto:jfranks@temiskamingshores.ca


Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 16 of 34 

19.0  CONSENT BY PROVINCE AND COMPLIANCE BY RECIPIENT  
 

19.1 Consent. When the Province provides its consent pursuant to the Agreement, it 
may impose any terms and conditions on such consent and the Recipient will 
comply with such terms and conditions.  
 

20.0 SEVERABILITY OF PROVISIONS 
 

20.1 Invalidity or Unenforceability of Any Provision. The invalidity or 
unenforceability of any provision of the Agreement will not affect the validity or 
enforceability of any other provision of the Agreement. Any invalid or 
unenforceable provision will be deemed to be severed. 

 
21.0 WAIVER 
 
21.1 Waivers in Writing.  If a Party fails to comply with any term of the Agreement, 

that Party may only rely on a waiver of the other Party if the other Party has 
provided a written waiver in accordance with the Notice provisions in Article 18.0 
(Notice).  Any waiver must refer to a specific failure to comply and will not have 
the effect of waiving any subsequent failures to comply. 
 

22.0 INDEPENDENT PARTIES 
 

22.1 Parties Independent.  The Recipient acknowledges that it is not an agent, joint 
venturer, partner or employee of the Province, and the Recipient will not 
represent itself in any way that might be taken by a reasonable person to suggest 
that it is, or take any actions that could establish or imply such a relationship. 
 

23.0 ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT OR FUNDS 
 

23.1 No Assignment.  The Recipient will not, without the prior written consent of the 
Province, assign any of its rights, or obligations under the Agreement. 
 

23.2 Agreement Binding.  All rights and obligations contained in the Agreement will 
extend to and be binding on the Parties’ respective heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors and permitted assigns. 
 

24.0 GOVERNING LAW 
 
24.1 Governing Law.  The Agreement and the rights, obligations and relations of the 

Parties will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
Province of Ontario and the applicable federal laws of Canada. Any actions or 
proceedings arising in connection with the Agreement will be conducted in the 
courts of Ontario, which will have exclusive jurisdiction over such proceedings. 
 

25.0 FURTHER ASSURANCES 
 

25.1 Agreement into Effect.  The Recipient will provide such further assurances as 
the Province may request from time to time with respect to any matter to which 
the Agreement pertains, and will otherwise do or cause to be done all acts or 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 17 of 34 

things necessary to implement and carry into effect the terms and conditions of 
the Agreement to their full extent. 
 

26.0 JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY 
 

26.1 Joint and Several Liability. Where the Recipient is comprised of more than one 
entity, all such entities will be jointly and severally liable to the Province for the 
fulfillment of the obligations of the Recipient under the Agreement. 
 

27.0 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES CUMULATIVE 
 

27.1 Rights and Remedies Cumulative.  The rights and remedies of the Province 
under the Agreement are cumulative and are in addition to, and not in 
substitution for, any of its rights and remedies provided by law or in equity. 
 

28.0 ACKNOWLEDEMENT OF OTHER LEGISLATION AND DIRECTIVES 
 

28.1 Recipient Acknowledges. The Recipient: 

(a) acknowledges that by receiving Funds it may become subject to 

legislation applicable to organizations that receive funding from the 

Government of Ontario, including the BPSAA, the PSSDA and the Auditor 

General Act (Ontario);  

(b) acknowledges that Her Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario has issued 

expenses, perquisites, and procurement directives and guidelines 

pursuant to the BPSAA; and 

(c) will comply with any such legislation, including directives issued 

thereunder, to the extent applicable. 

 
29.0 FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH OTHER AGREEMENTS 
 
29.1 Other Agreements.  If the Recipient: 
  

(a) has failed to comply (a “Failure”) with any term, condition or obligation 
under any other agreement with Her Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario 
or one of Her agencies;  

 
(b)  has been provided with notice of such Failure in accordance with the 

requirements of such other agreement;  
 
(c)  has, if applicable, failed to rectify such Failure in accordance with the 

requirements of such other agreement; and 
 
(d)  such Failure is continuing, 
 
the Province may suspend the payment of Funds for such period as the Province 
determines appropriate. 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 18 of 34 

 
30.0     SCHEDULES 
 
30.1 Schedules.  The Agreement includes the following schedules: 

 
(a) Schedule “A” - Project Description and Timelines; 
 
(b) Schedule “B” - Budget;  
 
(c) Schedule “C” - Eligible Costs and Ineligible Costs;  
 
(d) Schedule “D” - Payments;  
 

(i) Sub-schedule “D.1” - Payment Plan; and 
 
(ii)   Sub-schedule “D.2” – Claim and Payment Procedures; and 

 
(e) Schedule “E” – Reporting: 
 

(i) Sub-schedule “E.1” – Project Status Report;  
 

(ii) Sub-schedule “E.2” – Interim and Final Financial Status Report; 
and 
 

(iii) Sub-schedule “E.3” – Report on Coordinated Community 
Transportation Services. 

31.0 SURVIVAL 
 
31.1 Survival.  The following Articles and sections, and all applicable cross-

referenced sections and schedules, will continue in full force and effect for a 
period of seven years from the Expiration Date or the date of termination of the 
Agreement: Article 1.0 (Interpretation and Definitions) and any other applicable 
definitions, paragraph 4.2(d), section 4.7 (Interest), section 5.2 (Disposal), 
section 7.1 (Preparation and Submission) to the extent that the Recipient has not 
provided the Reports to the satisfaction of the Province, sections 7.2 (Record 
Maintenance), 7.3 (Inspection), 7.4 (Disclosure), 7.5 (No Control of Records), 7.6 
(Auditor General), Article 8.0 (Communications Requirements), Article 10.0 
(Indemnity), subsection 12.2 (Consequences of Termination on Notice by the 
Province), sections 13.2 (Consequences of Termination Where No Appropriation) 
and 13.3 (No Additional Funds), section 14.1 (Events of Default), paragraphs 
14.2(d), (e), (f), (g) and (h), Article 16.0 (Funds Upon Expiry), Article 17.0 
(Repayment), Article 18.0 (Notice), Article 20.0 (Severability of Provisions), 
section 23.2 (Agreement Binding), Article 24.0 (Governing Law), Article 26.0 
(Joint and Several Liability), Article 27.0 (Rights and Remedies Cumulative), 
Article 28.0 (Acknowledgment of other Legislation and Directives), Article 29.0 
(Failure to Comply with Other Agreements), Article 30.0 Schedules), Article 31.0 
(Survival), Article 33.0 (Entire Agreement), and Article 34.0 (Modification of 
Agreement).  

 
 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 19 of 34 

32.0 COUNTERPARTS 
 
32.1  Counterparts.  The Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 

each of which will be deemed an original, but all of which together will constitute 
one and the same instrument. 
 

33.0 ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 

33.1 Entire Agreement.  The Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between 
the Parties with respect to the subject matter contained in the Agreement and 
supersedes all prior oral or written representations and agreements. 

 
34.0 MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT 

 
34.1 Modification of Agreement.  The Agreement may only be amended by a written 

agreement duly executed by the Parties. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed the Agreement on the dates set out 
below. 
 

HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN IN RIGHT OF 
ONTARIO as represented by the Minister of 
Transportation for the Province of Ontario 
 

 by:  
 
_________________ ____________________________________ 
Date Name: Steven Del Duca 

 Title: Minister of Transportation 

 
Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

 
 
 by: 
 
_________________ ____________________________________ 
Date Name:  

 Title:  

  
  
 by: 
_________________ ____________________________________ 
Date Name:  

 Title:  

 I/We have authority to bind the Recipient. 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 20 of 34 

SCHEDULE “A” 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND TIMELINES 
 
PROJECT BACKGROUND 

Transportation for all members of the City of Temiskaming Shores (the “City”) is an 

important component in maintaining the independence of Temiskaming residents. There 

are a number of transportation services already available in Temiskaming Shores, 

including: 

 

1) Temiskaming Transit, which through a cost-shared approach, offers transportation 

services service between the City of Temiskaming Shores and the Town of Cobalt;  

2) Temiskaming Shores Taxi provides 24-hour reliable transportation service from curb-

to-curb to destinations around the region; however, this service does not provide fully 

accessible vehicles; 

3) Timiskaming Home Support provides curb-to-curb transportation for seniors to 

destinations within the Timiskaming District using a wheelchair accessible vehicle; 

and  

4) North Eastern Patient Transfer Services provides 24-hour patient transfers between 

hospitals and receiving facilities or residences, and transports seniors and persons 

with disabilities to appointments. In addition, a fully accessible bus and van are used 

for "on demand" and assisted transportation service for those with mobility 

restrictions requiring transportation for shopping, cultural activities and family events.  

 

However, there is a limited knowledge base of transportation service in the area, 

resulting in unused capacity and gaps in service. The City has identified a need to 

coordinate these transportation services, and to match users with the appropriate 

service providers.  The City also faces the challenge of a large geographic area with a 

low population density in comparison to Southern Ontario municipalities. This makes it 

difficult to provide effective transportation services to meet the needs of the community 

as a whole.  Therefore, it is important to increase awareness of existing services to 

ensure residents are aware of their options, as this will remove barriers for accessing 

and participating in the community. 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND OBJECTIVES 

 

The purpose of this Project is to enhance and strengthen the sharing of knowledge of 

the available transportation services in the City of Temiskaming Shores.   

 

The creation of a database of existing transportation services will facilitate the 

coordination and communication of the range of available transportation services in the 

community. The service will assist with matching riders with the most appropriate option 

for the type of trip being made. This will empower residents to select the right fit for their 

own circumstances, and will also improve service levels in our region by optimizing 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 21 of 34 

services within current budgets.  The transportation service providers will benefit from 

coordinated transportation services gaining an increased presence in the community 

achieved through shared marketing materials, which may lead to generation of new 

users and an expanded client base. The community organizations will benefit by bringing 

together organizations of mutual interest to create networking opportunities. These 

opportunities will generate an informal referral process between partners, and their 

contribution of time (in-kind) at consultation sessions, will lead to increased collaboration 

and development of ideas that will result in improved local transportation services.  The 

Project will also create a forum for public feedback, providing community organizations 

with the opportunity to better understand the needs of the public. 

 

SCOPE OF COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION SERVICE 

 

The Project involves collaboration between existing transportation providers to share 

marketing services, which will streamline the trip referral process and will create a 

central point of access for information. The creation of an outreach program to 

disseminate this information will help raise awareness of services available to improve 

the mobility options for individuals who do not have access to their own vehicle or 

alternatives, including seniors, persons with disabilities, and others. 

 

The Project includes hiring a coordinator to create an inventory of existing transportation 

services in the region, to create a database of these resources, and to develop 

promotional material and an outreach program to market this tool. This will be completed 

by presenting material to relevant organizations and by making the information available 

by using a variety of methods, including: pamphlets, newspapers, web, social media, 

etc.  This information will be marketed directly to the public, to agencies, and to 

businesses to highlight the transportation modes available, which will better utilize 

existing transportation resources. 

 

Each community organization the Recipient identified in its Program funding application 
is incorporated and has been in operation for at least one year prior to January 30, 2015. 
The community organization will participate in the Project as described in the Recipient’s 
Program funding application until the Completion Date. 
 

DATE COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION SERVICE TO BE IN PLACE 

 

The joint marketing materials and promotion of services will be in place by May 31, 

2016. 

 

PROJECT TIMELINES  

 

The joint marketing materials and promotion of services will be in place by May 31, 

2016.  Project tasks are anticipated to be 75% complete by January 31, 2016. 

 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 22 of 34 

Table 1:  Project Workplan 

 

 
 
 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 23 of 34 

SCHEDULE “B” 
 

BUDGET 
 

Table B.1: Community Transportation Project Budget  

Project Budget 

 
Item and Description 

 
Cost 

 
Funding Breakdown 
(Amount by Source) 

 

   
 

Province 

 
 

Recipient 

 
 

Other Sources*  
 

Staff     

Coordinator Salary $45,000.00 $22,475.00  $22,475.00 

Coordinator Benefits $4,950.00 $2,475.00  $2,475.00 

Public Outreach and Communication Materials 

Marketing materials and 
advertising expenses  

$13,550.00 $13,550.00   

Event-Related Expenses     

Forum (3X$500) $1,500.00 $1,500.00   

Total $65,000.00 $40,000.00  $25,000.00 

2015-16 Funding Year Total $36,000.00   

2016-17 Funding Year Total $4,000.00   

*Age-Friendly Community Plan Grant Program 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 24 of 34 

SCHEDULE “C” 

ELIGIBLE COSTS AND INELIGIBLE COSTS 

C.1.0 ELIGIBLE COSTS 
 

C.1.1 Eligible costs are the costs that are directly related to and necessary for the successful 
completion of the Project and that are incurred and paid after the Effective date of the 
Agreement and prior to the Completion Date. No expenditures incurred outside of this 
period will be eligible for payment under the Program. 

 
C.1.2 Eligible costs must be documented through paid invoices or original receipts, or both.  
 
C.1.3 Provided that the above-noted general eligibility criteria are met, Eligible Costs may 

include: 
  

(a) Salary and benefits of a coordinator responsible for planning and implementing 
coordinated community transportation services;  

 
(b) Consultant services to assist the Recipient and community organization(s) in 

implementing coordinated services (e.g., to assist in the implementation of 
information technology or the facilitation of cooperative initiatives between the 
municipality and community organizations);  

 
(c) Purchase and implementation of a contact number or website, or both;  
 
(d) Purchase and implementation/installation of software or hardware, or both; 
 
(e) Acquisition of community transportation services (e.g., vehicles, drivers, booking 

and dispatch services) that are part of the Project;  
 
(f) Legal services for the drafting of legal agreements;  
 
(g) Costs of holding and facilitating meetings/consultation events/workshops with 

community transportation organizations for the Project;  
 
(h) Training costs related to the implementation of the Project;  
 
(i) Ontario-only travel and accommodation costs directly related to the planning and 

implementation of the Project. Expenses must align with the Government of 
Ontario’s Travel, Meal and Hospitality Expenses Directive; 

 
(j) Facilities costs of centralizing functions;  

 
(k) Public outreach, communications materials and activities to promote the Project 

and service;  
 

(l) Equipment, supplies and materials associated with the implementation of the 
Project; and 

http://www.ontario.ca/document/travel-meal-and-hospitality-expenses-directive
http://www.ontario.ca/document/travel-meal-and-hospitality-expenses-directive


Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 25 of 34 

 
(m) Other costs not indicated in the Budget that are, in the opinion of the Province, 

considered necessary for the completion of the Project, and have been approved 
in writing prior to being incurred. 

 
 

C.2.0 INELIGIBLE COSTS 
 

The following costs are Ineligible Costs:  
 
C.2.1 Cash prizes or direct subsidies to individuals, including multi-use transit passes for 

services that are not related to the Project; 
 
C.2.2 Food and beverages;  
 
C.2.3 Refundable goods and services tax, pursuant to the Excise Tax Act, R.S.C. 1985, c. E. 

15, as amended, or other refundable expenses;  
 
C.2.4    Costs associated with obtaining necessary approvals, licences or permits where the 

Recipient is the entity providing the approval, license or permit; 
 
C.2.5 Litigation costs incurred by the Recipient in any legal proceedings; 
 
C.2.6 Costs incurred before the Effective Date and after the Completion Date of the 

Agreement; and 
 
C.2.7 Other costs which are not specifically listed as Eligible Costs under this Schedule “C” 

(Eligible Costs and Ineligible Costs) and which, in the opinion of the Ministry, are 
considered to be ineligible. 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 26 of 34 

SCHEDULE “D” 

PAYMENTS  

SUB-SCHEDULE “D.1” - PAYMENT PLAN 

Subject to Sub-schedule “D.2” (Claim and Payment Procedures) of this Schedule “D” 

(Payments), the projected timing and amounts of the payments to be made pursuant to 

the Agreement is illustrated in the table below.  

 MILESTONE MILESTONE PAYMENT 
AMOUNT 

 
1. Receipt, as of the Effective Date, of the following: 
 

 Certificate of Insurance; and 
 

 By-law or resolution designating signing officer and 
authorizing the Project.  

 

 
Up to $ 20,000.00 

 
2. Receipt, as required pursuant to Sub-schedule “D.2” 

(Claim and Payment Procedures) and upon completion 
of 75% of the Project, of the following Reports from the 
Recipient: 

 

 the Project Status Report (see Sub-schedule “E.1”); 
and 
 

 the Interim Financial Report (see Sub-schedule 
“E.2”). 

 

 
Up to $ 16,000.00   

 
Receipt, as of the Completion Date, of the following 
Reports from the Recipient as required pursuant to Sub-
schedule “D.2” (Claim and Payment Procedures):  

 the Final Financial Report (see Sub-schedule “E.2”); 
and 
 

 the Report on Coordinated Community 
Transportation Services (see Sub-schedule “E.3”). 

 

 
Up to $ $4,000.00 
 
 

Note:  The Province reserves the right to request additional information it deems 

necessary from the Recipient prior to making any milestone payment. 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 27 of 34 

SCHEDULE “D” – PAYMENTS 

SUB-SCHEDULE “D.2” - CLAIM AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

D.2.1 The submission of all documents listed under each Milestone under Sub-

schedule “D.1” (Payment Plan) shall constitute a claim under that Milestone. 

D.2.2 The Recipient agrees that each claim shall be submitted to the Ministry within 60 

days of: 

 (a)  in the case of Milestone 1, the Effective Date; 

 (b) in the case of Milestone 2, achieving 75% of Project completion; and 

 (c) in the case of Milestone 3, after the Completion Date.     

D.2.3  The Ministry may request additional information from the Recipient prior to 

processing a payment and the Recipient shall make every effort to provide the 

information within 30 days of the request. 

D.2.4 Subject to the terms and conditions set out in the Agreement, including annual 

appropriations, the Province will use its reasonable efforts to make a payment to 

the Recipient, if due and owing under the terms of the Agreement, within 30 days 

of receipt, to the Province’s satisfaction, of a claim fully completed in accordance 

with this Sub-schedule “D.2” (Claim Payment and Procedures), and evidence that 

a Project milestone has been completed. The Province will under no 

circumstance be liable for interest for failure to make a payment within the time 

limit set out in this Sub-schedule “D.2” (Claim Payment and Procedures).  

D.2.5 The Ministry shall have no obligation to pay a claim submitted more than 60 days 

after the Completion Date. 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 28 of 34 

SCHEDULE “E” 
 

REPORTING 

 

 
Name of Report 

 
Due Date 

 

1. Project Status Report  By March 31, 2016, unless otherwise 
specified by the Province 
 

2. Interim Financial Report By March 31, 2016, unless otherwise 
specified by the Province 
 

3. Final Financial Report By May 31, 2017, unless otherwise 
specified by the Province 
 

4. Report on Coordinated Community 
Transportation Services  
 

By May 31, 2017, unless otherwise 
specified by the Province 

5. Reports, including records and 
documentation, specified from time 
to time 
 

On a date or dates specified by the 
Province 

6. Participation in Post-program 
Evaluation  

To be specified by the Province 
 

 

Note:    The Province reserves the right to request additional financial information 

on the Project as it may deem necessary. 

 

1. Project Status Report: 

 

The Recipient will prepare a report on the implementation of the Project that confirms 

75% completion and indicates the relevant milestones completed. The report should 

reflect the work plan in Schedule “A” (Project Description and Timelines).  

 

2. Financial Reports: 

 

The Recipient will prepare an Interim Financial Report and a Final Financial Report 

containing a statement of Project expenditures incurred and paid to date, the Funds 

received, interest earned, other funding sources broken down by category. The financial 

reports will reflect actual Project expenditures and will provide an explanation for any 

variances. See Schedule “E.2” (Interim and Final Financial Status Report) for details. 

 

The Interim Financial Report should, if there are variances or changes in the Budget or 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 29 of 34 

the Project expenditures, include a revised forecast of the Budget up to the Completion 

Date. See Schedule “E.2” (Interim and Final Financial Status Report) for details. 

 

Additional detailed financial reporting may also be required from the Recipient to reflect 

the amount of Funds received for the Project and the Project expenditures that occurred 

during the Funding Year.  

 

3. Report on Coordinated Community Transportation Services: 

 

The Recipient will be required to submit a report on the Project implementation and the 

resulting coordinated community transportation services. See Sub-schedule “E.3” 

(Report on Coordinated Community Transportation Services) for details. 

 

4. Participation in Post-Program Evaluation:  

 

The Recipient will, if requested by the Province, participate in any post-program 

evaluation events or activities after the Completion Date.  This may include:  

 Completing a survey on the Program, the Project and outcomes of the Project; 

and  

 Participating in information sessions on community transportation to report on the 

Project, Recipient’s experiences, and lessons.  



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 30 of 34 

SUB-SCHEDULE “E.1” 

COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION PILOT GRANT PROGRAM 

PROJECT STATUS REPORT 

 

Name of Recipient (municipality):  __________________________________________ 

Report submitted by: ____________________________________________________ 

Telephone: ____________________________________________________________ 

Email: ________________________________________________________________ 

Date:    _______________________________________________________________ 

Project Status  

Provide a summary of the Project status to date. Include any issues, concerns or 

challenges related to the implementation of community transportation service, and the 

actions taken or to be taken to address them.   

Insert information from your approved Project work plan in Schedule “A” (Project 

Description and Timelines).  Indicate all tasks, status and any completion dates. Indicate 

the 75% milestone reached. 

 
Project Task 
 

 
Description 

 
Projected 
Date of 
completion 

 
Actual Date 
of 
completion  
 

 
Status/Comments 

     

     

 

 

 

 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 31 of 34 

SUB-SCHEDULE “E.2” 

COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION PILOT GRANT PROGRAM 

INTERIM AND FINAL FINANCIAL STATUS REPORT  

 

Name of Recipient (municipality): __________________________________________ 

Report submitted by: ____________________________________________________ 

Telephone: ____________________________________________________________ 

Email: ________________________________________________________________ 

Date:    _______________________________________________________________ 

Financial Statement 

Complete the table below using information from the Budget in Schedule “B” (Budget).  

Include any approved revisions and adjustments to the Budget. 

Recipient Name 

Interim Financial Report 

Item and 
Description 

 

Initial 
Cost 

 

Spending to Date 

Revised 
Project 

Cost 
 

Variance 
(Initial 

Cost less 
Spending 
to Date) 

 

Explana-
tion1 

 

Spending 
to Date  

 

 
Provincial 

Portion 

 
Recipient 
Portion 

Other 
Funding 
(Identify 
Source) 

 

If item is not 
included in 
original 
Budget, list it 
with a zero 
cost.                

                 

                 

                 

Total                

 

 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 32 of 34 

Recipient Name 

Final Financial Report 

               

Item and 
Description 

Initial 
Cost  

Total 
Spending 

Provincial 
Portion 

Recipient 
Portion 

Other 
Funding 
(Identify 
Source) 

Variance (Initial 
Cost less Total 

Spending) Explanation1 

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

Total              

 

1.  Explanation of Variances 

Provide explanations of any variances indicated in the Variance column.  Include any 

variances between the funding from other sources budgeted and actual funding received 

with explanations.  



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 33 of 34 

SUB-SCHEDULE “E.3” 

COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION PILOT GRANT PROGRAM 

REPORT ON COORDINATED COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 

 

Name of Recipient (municipality): __________________________________________ 

Report submitted by: ____________________________________________________ 

Telephone: ____________________________________________________________ 

Email: ________________________________________________________________ 

Date:    _______________________________________________________________ 

1. Transportation Needs in the Community – Include description of available 

transportation service and service levels prior to the Project. Use the 

performance indicators selected in the Recipient’s Program funding application, 

as applicable. 

 

2. Coordinated Community Transportation Service Implementation –  

a. Describe the new or enhanced services;  

b. Indicate the timeframe of the implementation, the date the service was 

implemented, and describe the process of implementation; 

c. Describe any technology/software utilized; 

d. Describe any resources and/or assets shared; 

e. Describe optimization of services (unused capacity, leveraging duplication 

of service); and 

f. Describe any centralizing functions and/or standardization of procedures. 

 

3. Project Partnership and Collaboration – Describe the partnership between 

municipality and community organization(s) and the collaboration that contributed 

to the Project. 

 

4. Project Outcomes – Compare service levels prior to the Project to the new 

service levels achieved – including performance indicators. Use the performance 

indicators selected in the Recipient’s Program funding application, as applicable. 

Describe the overall impact to the community. 

 

5. Community Feedback – Provide any feedback from your ridership and the 

broader community. 

 



Confidential – Draft # 1 – April 30, 2015 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program TPA 
For MTO and Municipality Discussion Purposes Only 
Not for Further Distribution 

 

 
 
 

Page 34 of 34 

6. Lessons Learned – Describe the challenges and lessons learned from your 

Project and any recommendations that could be shared with other municipalities 

or community organizations. 



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2015-140 

Being a by-law to enter into a Funding Agreement with Her 
Majesty the Queen in Right of Ontario as represented by the 

Minister of Citizenship, Immigration and International Trade – 
Age Friendly Community Planning Grant Program 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, the 
powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to govern its affairs as 
it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s ability to respond to municipal 
issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural 
person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  

And whereas Council, through Resolution No. 2015-081 directed staff to submit a 
funding application to the Age-Friendly Community Planning Grant Program and to the 
Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program; 

And whereas the Ministry of Citizenship, Immigration and International Trade under the 
Community Planning Grant Program approved funds in the amount of $25,000 towards 
the establishment of an Age Friendly Community Action Plan; 

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. RS-016-2015 at the June 
16, 2015 Regular Council meeting and directed staff to prepare the necessary by-law to 
enter into an agreement with the Ministry of Citizenship, Immigration and International 
Trade; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That the Mayor and Clerk be authorized to enter into a funding agreement with Her 
Majesty the Queen in Right of Ontario as represented by the Minister of Citizenship, 
Immigration and International Trade for the establishment of an Age Friendly 
Community Action Plan in the amount of $25,000, a copy of which is attached 
hereto as Schedule “A” and forming part of this by-law; and 

2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make  
minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical nature to the 
by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where such modifications 
or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law. 

 



Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 16th day of June, 2015. 

 
 
 
___________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 

 
Schedule “A” to  

 

By-law No. 2015-140 
 

Being a funding Agreement between 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores  

and 

Ministry of Citizenship, Immigration and International Trade 

For the establishment of an Age Friendly Community Action 
Plan under the Age-Friendly Community Planning Grant 

Program Case No. 2014-11-1-53061429 
 
 
 
 



ONTARIO FUNDING AGREEMENT
AGE-FRIENDLY COMMUNITY PLANNING GRANT PROGRAM

Grants Ontario Case #: 2014-11-1-53061429

THE AGREEMENT effective as of June 15, 2015

BETWEEN:

HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN IN RIGHT OF ONTARIO
as represented by the Minister of Citizenship, Immigration and
International Trade

(the “Province”)

- and -

THE CITY OF TEMISKAMING SHORES

(the “Recipient”)

BACKGROUND:

The Province funds projects similar to the Project.

The Recipient has applied to the Province for funds to assist the Recipient in carrying out the Project
and the Province wishes to provide such funds.

CONSIDERATION;

In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are expressly acknowledged the Parties
agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
INTERPRETATION AND DEFINITIONS

1.1 Interpretation. For the purposes of interpretation:

(a) words in the singular include the plural and vice-versa;

(b) words in one gender include all genders;

(c) the background and the headings do not form part of the Agreement; they are for
reference only and shall not affect the interpretation of the Agreement;

(d) any reference to dollars or currency shall be to Canadian dollars and currency; and

(e) include”, ‘includes” and “including” shall not denote an exhaustive list.

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-17



1 .2 Definitions. In the Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

“Additional Funding Requirements’ means the requirements as specified in Schedule “A”.

“Agreement” means this agreement entered into between the Province and the Recipient

and includes all of the schedules listed in section 28.1 and any amending agreement entered

into pursuant to section 34.2.

“BPSAA” means the BroaderPublic SectorAccountability Act, 2010 (Ontario), including any

directives issued pursuant to that Act.

“Budget” means the budget attached to the Agreement as Schedule “C”.

“Effective Date” means the date set out at the top of the Agreement.

“Eligible Expenses” means costs incurred as of the date of the Minister’s Approval letter, and

which are determined by the Province in its sole discretion to be reasonable, necessary and
directly incurred and paid by the Recipient for goods, equipment or services related to carrying

out the Project as described in Schedule “B” and as such costs may be further described in
Schedule “C”.

“Event of Default” has the meaning ascribed to it in section 14.1.

“Force Majeure” has the meaning ascribed to it in Article 26.

“Funding Year” means:

(a) in the case of the first Funding Year, the period commencing on June 15, 2015 and
ending on the following March 31; and

(b) in the case of Funding Years subsequent to the first Funding Year, the period
commencing on April 1 following the end of the first Funding Year and ending on the
following March 31.

“Funds” means the money the Province provides to the Recipient pursuant to the Agreement.

“Indemnified Parties” means Her Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario, her ministers,
agents, appointees and employees.

“Maximum Funds” means approved up to $25 000.00

“Notice” means any communication given or requited to be given pursuant to the Agreement.

“Notice Period” means the period of time within which the Recipient is required to remedy an
Event of Default, and includes any such period or periods of time by which the Province
considers it reasonable to extend that time.

“Parties” means the Province and the Recipient.

“Party” means either the Province or the Recipient.

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-17 2



“Project” means the undertaking described in Schedule “B”.

“Project End Date” means the last date when Eligible Expenses can be incurred for this
Project.

“Reports” means the reports described in Schedule “A”.

“Timelines” means the Project schedule set out in Schedule “B”.

ARTICLE 2
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS

2.1 General. The Recipient represents, warrants and covenants that:

(a) it is, and shall continue to be for the term of the Agreement, a validly existing legal
entity with full power to fulfill its obligations under the Agreement;

(b) it has, and shall continue to have for the term of the Agreement, the experience and
expertise necessary to carry out the Project; and

(C) untess otherwise provided for in the Agreement, any information the Recipient provided
to the Province in support of its request for funds (including information relating to any
eligibility requirements) was true and complete at the time the Recipient provided it and
shall continue to be true and complete for the term of the Agreement.

2.2 Execution of Agreement. The Recipient represents and warrants that:

(a) it has the full power and authority to enter into the Agreement; and

(b) it has taken all necessary actions to authorize the execution of the Agreement.

2.3 Governance. The Recipient represents, warrants and covenants that it has, and shall
maintain, in writing, for the period during which the Agreement is in effect:

(a) a code of conduct and ethical responsibilities for all persons at all levels of the
Recipient’s organization;

(b) procedures to ensure the ongoing effective functioning of the Recipient;

(c) decision-making mechanisms;

(d) procedures to provide for the prudent and effective management of the Funds;

(e) procedures to enable the successful completion of the Project;

(f) procedures to enable the timely identification of risks to the completion of the Project
and strategies to address the identified risks;

(g) procedures to enable the preparation and delivery of all Reports required pursuant to
Article 7; and

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-17 3



(h) procedures to deal with such other matters as the Recipient considers necessary to

ensure that the Recipient carries out its obligations under the Agreement.

2.4 Supporting Documentation. Upon request, the Recipient shall provide the Province with

proof of the matters referred to in this Article 2.

ARTICLE 3
TERM OF THE AGREEMENT

3.1 Term. The term of the Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall expire on

June 30, 2016 unless terminated earlier pursuant to Article 12, Article 13 or Article 14.

ARTICLE 4
FUNDS AND CARRYING OUT THE PROJECT

4.1 Funds Provided. The Province shall:

(a) provide the Recipient up to the Maximum Funds for the purpose of carrying out the
Project;

(b) provide the Funds to the Recipient in accordance with the payment schedule attached
to the Agreement as Schedule ‘A’; and

(c) deposit the Funds into an account designated by the Recipient provided that the
account:

(i) resides at a Canadian financial institution; and

(ii) is in the name of the Recipient.

4.2 Limitation on Payment of Funds. Despite section 4.1:

(a) the Province is not obligated to provide any Funds to the Recipient until the Recipient
provides the insurance certificate or other proof as provided for in section 11 .2, and
any Additional Funding Requirements as may be described in Schedule “A”;

(b) the Province is not obligated to provide instalments of Funds until it is satisfied with the
progress of the Project;

(c) the Province shall only provide Funds for Eligible Expenses incurred by the Recipient
on or before the Project End Date;

(d) the Province may adjust the amount of Funds it provides to the Recipient in any
Funding Year based upon the Province’s assessment of the information provided by
the Recipient pursuant to section 7.1; and

Ce) if, pursuant to the provisions of the Financial Administration Act (Ontario), the Province
does not receive the necessary appropriation from the Ontario Legislature for payment
under the Agreement, the Province is not obligated to make any such payment, and, as
a consequence, the Province may:

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-17 4



(i) reduce the amount of the Funds and, in consultation with the Recipient, change
the Project; or

(ii) terminate the Agreement pursuant to section 13.1.

4.3 Use of Funds and Project. The Recipient shall:

(a) carry out the Project:

(i) in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement; and

(ii) in compliance with all federal and provincial laws and regulations, all municipal
by-laws, and any other orders, rules and by-laws related to any aspect of the
Project;

(b) use the Funds only for the purpose of carrying out the Project; and

(c) spend the Funds only in accordance with the Budget.

4.4 No Changes. The Recipient shall not make any changes to the Project, the Timelines and/or
the Budget without the prior written consent of the Province.

4.5 Interest Bearing Account. If the Province provides Funds to the Recipient prior to the
Recipient’s immediate need for the Funds, the Recipient shall place the Funds in an interest
beating account in the name of the Recipient at a Canadian financial institution.

4.6 Interest. If the Recipient earns any interest on the Funds:

(a) the Province may deduct an amount equal to the interest from any further instalments
of Funds; or

(b) the Recipient shall pay an amount equal to the interest to the Province as directed by
the Province.

4.7 Maximum Funds. The Recipient acknowledges that the Funds available to it pursuant to the
Agreement shall not exceed the Maximum Funds.

4.8 Rebates, Credits and Refunds. The Recipient acknowledges that the amount of Funds
available to it pursuant to the Agreement is based on the actual costs to the Recipient, less
any costs (including taxes) for which the Recipient has received, will receive, or is eligible to
receive, a rebate, credit or refund.

ARTICLE 5
ACQUISITION OF GOODS AND SERVICES, AND DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

5.1 Acquisition. Subject to section 32.1, if the Recipient acquires supplies, equipment or
services with the Funds:

(a) it shall do so through a process that promotes the best value for money; and

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-17 5



(b) if the estimated cost of the supplies, equipment or services exceeds $5,000, the Recipient

shall obtain at least three written quotes unless:

fi) the supplies, equipment or services the Recipient is purchasing is specialized and

is not readily available; or
(ii) the Recipient has previously researched the market for a similar purchase and

knows prevailing market costs for the equipment, services or supplies.

5.2 Disposal. The Recipient shall not, without the Province’s prior written consent, sell, lease or

otherwise dispose of any asset purchased with the Funds or for which Funds were provided,

the cost of which exceeded $1000 at the time of purchase.

ARTICLE 6
CONFLICT OF INTEREST

6.1 No Conflict of Interest. The Recipient shall carry out the Project and use the Funds without

an actual, potential or perceived conflict of interest.

6.2 Conflict of Interest Includes. For the purposes of this Article, a conflict of interest includes
any circumstances where:

(a) the Recipient; or

fb) any person who has the capacity to influence the Recipient’s decisions,

has outside commitments, relationships or financial interests that could, or could be seen to,
interfere with the Recipient’s objective, unbiased and impartial judgment relating to the Project
and the use of the Funds.

6.3 Disclosure to Province. The Recipient shall:

(a) disclose to the Province, without delay, any situation that a reasonable person would
interpret as either an actual, potential or perceived conflict of interest; and

(b) comply with any terms and conditions that the Province may prescribe as a result of the
disclosure.

ARTICLE 7
REPORTING, ACCOUNTING AND REVIEW

7.1 Preparation and Submission. The Recipient shall:

(a) submit to the Province all Reports in accordance with the timelines and content
requirements set out in Schedule “A”, or in a form as specified by the Province from
time to time;

(b) submit to the Province any other reports as may be requested by the Province in
accordance with the timelines and content requirements specified by the Province;

(c) ensure that all Reports and other reports are completed to the satisfaction of the
Province; and

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 201 5-17 6



(U) ensure that all Reports and other reports are signed on behalf of the Recipient by an
authorized signing officer.

7.2 Record Maintenance. The Recipient shall keep and maintain:

(a) all financial records (including invoices and proof of payments) relating to the Funds or
otherwise to the Project in a manner consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles; and

(b) all non-financial documents and records relating to the Funds or otherwise to the
Project.

7.3 Inspection. The Province, its authorized representatives or an independent auditor identified
by the Province may, at its own expense, upon twenty-four hours’ Notice to the Recipient and
during normal business hours, enter upon the Recipient’s premises to review the progress of
the Project and the Recipient’s expenditure of the Funds and, for these purposes, the
Province, its authorized representatives or an independent auditor identified by the Province
may:
(a) inspect and copy the records and documents referred to in section 7.2; and

fb) conduct an audit or investigation of the Recipient in respect of the expenditure of the
Funds and/or the Project.

7.4 Disclosure. To assist in respect of the rights set out in section 7.3, the Recipient shall
disclose any information requested by the Province, its authorized representatives or an
independent auditor identified by the Province, and shall do so in a form requested by the
Province, its authorized representatives or an independent auditor identified by the Province,
as the case may be.

7.5 No Control of Records. No provision of the Agreement shall be construed so as to give the
Province any control whatsoever over the Recipient’s records.

7.6 Auditor General. For greater certainty, the Province’s rights under this Article are in addition
to any rights provided to the Auditor General pursuant to section 9.1 of the Auditor General Act
(Ontario).

ARTICLE 8
CREDIT

8.1 Notice of Publicity and Marketing: The Recipient shall give the Province notice of its media
events and marketing materials in accordance with the protocol attached to the Agreement as
Schedule E”.

8.2 Acknowledge Support. Unless otherwise directed by the Province, the Recipient shall, in a
form approved by the Province, acknowledge the support of the Province in any publication of
any kind, written or oral, relating to the Project using the statement provided below:.

Funded by the Government of Ontario

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-1 7 7



8.3 Publication. The Recipient shall indicate, in any of its publications, of any kind, written or oral,

relating to the Project, that the views expressed in the publication are the views of the

Recipient and do not necessarily reflect those of the Province.

ARTICLE 9
FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND PROTECTION OF PRIVACY

9.1 FIPPA. The Recipient acknowledges that the Province is bound by the Freedom of Information

and Protection of Privacy Act (Ontario) and that any information provided to the Province in

connection with the Project or otherwise in connection with the Agreement may be subject to
disclosure in accordance with that Act.

ARTICLE 10
INDEMNITY

10.1 Indemnification. The Recipient hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the
Indemnified Parties from and against any and all liability, loss, costs, damages and expenses
(including legal, expert and consultant fees), causes of action, actions, claims, demands,
lawsuits or other proceedings, by whomever made, sustained, incurred, brought or
prosecuted, in any way arising out of or in connection with the Project or otherwise in
connection with the Agreement, unless solely caused by the negligence or wilful misconduct of
the Province.

ARTICLE 11
INSURANCE

11.1 Recipient’s Insurance. The Recipient represents and warrants that it has, and shall maintain
for the term of the Agreement, at its own cost and expense, with insurers having a secure A.M.
Best rating of B+ or greater, or the equivalent, all the necessary and appropriate insurance that
a prudent person carrying out a project similar to the Project would maintain, including
commercial general liability insurance on an occurrence basis for third party bodily injury,
personal injury and property damage, to an inclusive limit of not less than two million dollars
($2,000,000) per occurrence. The policy shall include the following:

(a) the Indemnified Parties as additional insured with respect to liability arising in the
course of performance of the Recipient’s obligations under, or otherwise in connection
with, the Agreement;

(b) a cross-liability clause;

(c) contractual liability coverage; and

(d) a thirty (30) day written notice of cancellation, termination or material change.

11.2 Proof of Insurance. The Recipient shall provide the Province with certificates of insurance, or
other proof as may be requested by the Province, that confirms the insurance coverage as
provided for in section 11.1. Upon the request of the Province, the Recipient shall make
available to the Province a copy of each insurance policy.

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-17 8



ARTICLE 12
TERMINATION ON NOTICE

12.1 Termination on Notice. The Province may terminate the Agreement at any time upon giving
at least 30 days’ Notice to the Recipient.

12.2 Consequences of Termination on Notice by the Province, lithe Province terminates the
Agreement pursuant to section 12.1, the Province may:

(a) cancel all further instalments of Funds;

(b) demand the repayment of any Funds remaining in the possession or under the control
of the Recipient; and/or

(c) determine the reasonable costs for the Recipient to wind down the Project, and:

(i) permit the Recipient to offset the costs determined pursuant to section 12.2(c),
against the amount owing pursuant to section 12.2(b); and/or

(ii) subject to section 4.7, provide Funds to the Recipient to cover the costs
determined pursuant to section 12.2(c).

ARTICLE 13
TERMINATION WHERE NO APPROPRIATION

13.1 Termination Where No Appropriation. If, as provided for in section 4.2(d), the Province does
not receive the necessary appropriation from the Ontario Legislature for any payment the
Province is to make pursuant to the Agreement, the Province may terminate the Agreement
immediately by giving Notice to the Recipient.

13.2 Consequences of Termination Where No Appropriation. If the Province terminates the
Agreement pursuant to section 13.1, the Province may:

(a) cancel all further instalments of Funds;

(b) demand the repayment of any Funds remaining in the possession or under the control
of the Recipient; and/or

(c) determine the reasonable costs for the Recipient to wind down the Project and permit
the Recipient to offset such costs against the amount owing pursuant to section
13.2(b).

13.3 No Additional Funds. For purposes of clarity, if the costs determined pursuant to section
13.2(c) exceed the Funds remaining in the possession or under the control of the Recipient,
the Province shall not provide additional Funds to the Recipient.

ARTICLE 14
EVENT OF DEFAULT, CORRECTIVE ACTION AND TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT

14.1 Events of Default. Each of the following events shall constitute an Event of Default:
(a) in the opinion of the Province, the Recipient breaches any representation, warranty,

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-17 9



covenant or other material term of the Agreement, including failing to do any of the

following in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement:

(i) catty out the Project;

(ii) use or spend Funds; and/or

iii) provide, in accordance with section 7.1, Reports or such other reports as may

have been requested pursuant to section 7.1(b);

(b) the Recipient’s operations, or its organizational stwcture, changes such that it no

longer meets one or more of the applicable eligibility requirements of the program

under which the Province provides the Funds;

(c) the Recipient makes an assignment, proposal, compromise, or arrangement for the
benefit of creditors, or is petitioned into bankruptcy, or files for the appointment of a
receiver;

(U) the Recipient ceases to operate; and

(e) an event of Force Majeure that continues for a period of sixty (60) days or more.

14.2 Consequences of Events of Default and Corrective Action. If an Event of Default occurs,

the Province may, at anytime, take one or more of the following actions:

(a) initiate any action the Province considers necessary in order to facilitate the successful
continuation or completion of the Project;

(b) provide the Recipient with an opportunity to remedy the Event of Default;

(c) suspend the payment of Funds for such period as the Province determines appropriate;

(d) reduce the amount of the Funds;

(e) cancel all further instalments of Funds;

ff) demand the repayment of any Funds remaining in the possession or under the control
of the Recipient;

(g) demand the repayment of an amount equal to any Funds the Recipient used, but did
not use in accordance with the Agreement;

(h) demand the repayment of an amount equal to any Funds the Province provided to the
Recipient; and/or

(i) terminate the Agreement at any time, including immediately, upon giving Notice to the
Recipient.

14.3 Opportunity to Remedy. If, in accordance with section 14.2(b), the Province provides the
Recipient with an opportunity to remedy the Event of Default, the Province shall provide Notice
to the Recipient of:

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-17 10



(a) the particulars of the Event of Default; and

(b) the Notice Period.

14.4 Recipient not Remedying. If the Province has provided the Recipient with an opportunity to
remedy the Event of Default pursuant to section 14.2(b), and:

(a) the Recipient does not remedy the Event of Default within the Notice Period;

(b) it becomes apparent to the Province that the Recipient cannot completely remedy the
Event of Default within the Notice Period; or

(C) the Recipient is not proceeding to remedy the Event of Default in a way that is
satisfactory to the Province,

the Province may extend the Notice Period, or initiate any one or more of the actions provided
for in sections 14.2(a), (c), (U), (e), (f), fg), (h) and (i).

14.5 When Termination Effective. Termination under this Article shall take effect as set out in the
Notice.

ARTICLE 15
FUNDS AT THE END OF A FUNDING YEAR

15.1 Funds at the End of a Funding Year. Without limiting any rights of the Province under Article
14, if the Recipient has not spent all of the Funds allocated for the Funding Year as provided
for in the Budget, the Province may:

(a) demand the return of the unspent Funds; or

(b) adjust the amount of any further instalments of Funds accordingly.

ARTICLE 16
FUNDS UPON EXPIRY

16.1 Funds Upon Expiry. The Recipient shall, upon expiry of the Agreement, return to the
Province any Funds remaining in its possession or under its control.

ARTICLE 17
REPAYMENT

17.1 Debt Due. If:

(a) the Province demands the payment of any Funds or any other money from the
Recipient; or

(b) the Recipient owes any Funds or any other money to the Province, whether or not their
return or repayment has been demanded by the Province,

such Funds or other money shall be deemed to be a debt due and owing to the Province by
the Recipient, and the Recipient shall pay or return the amount to the Province immediately,
unless the Province directs otherwise.

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-17 11



17.2 Interest Rate. The Province may charge the Recipient interest on any money owing by the

Recipient at the then current interest rate charged by the Province of Ontario on accounts

receivable.

17.3 Payment of Money to Province. The Recipient shall pay any money owing to the Province

by cheque payable to the “Ontario Minister of Finance” and mailed to the Province at the

address provided in section 18.1.

ARTICLE 18
NOTICE

18.1 Notice in Writing and Addressed. Notice shall be in writing and shall be delivered by email,

postage-prepaid mail, personal delivery or fax, and shall be addressed to the Province and the

Recipient respectively as set out below, or as either Party later designates to the other by

Notice:

To the Province: To the Recipient:

Ministry Citizenship, Immigration and The City of Temiskaming Shores
International Trade, Ontario Seniors 325 Farr Drive
Secretariat Haiteybury, ON P0] iKO
Ontario Governement Complex, Hwy
101 E, P0 Box 3085 Attention:
South Porcupine, ON PON IHO Mrs. Tammie Caidwell

Director of Recreation
Attention: tcaldwell@temiskamingshores.ca
Tanya Litt
Tanya. Litt@ontario.ca

18.2 Notice Given. Notice shall be deemed to have been received:

(a) in the case of postage-prepaid mail, seven days after a Party mails the Notice; or

(b) in the case of email, personal delivery or fax, at the time the other Party receives the
Notice.

18.3 Postal Disruption. Despite section 18.2(a), in the event of a postal disruption:

(a) Notice by postage-prepaid mail shall not be deemed to be received; and
fb) the Party giving Notice shall provide Notice by email, personal delivery or by fax.

ARTICLE 19
CONSENT BY PROVINCE

19.1 Consent. The Province may impose any terms and/or conditions on any consent the Province

may grant pursuant to the Agreement.

ARTICLE 20
SEVERABILITY OF PROVISIONS

20.1 Invalidity or Unenforceability of Any Provision. The invalidity or unenforceability of any

provision of the Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-17 12



of the Agreement. Any invalid or unenforceable provision shall be deemed to be severed.

ARTICLE 21
WAIVER

21.1 Waivers in Writing. If a Party fails to comply with any term of the Agreement, that Party may
only rely on a waiver of the other Party if the other Party has provided a written waiver in
accordance with the Notice provisions in Article 18. Any waiver must refer to a specific failure
to comply and shall not have the effect of waiving any subsequent failures to comply.

ARTICLE 22
INDEPENDENT PARTIES

22.1 Parties Independent. The Recipient acknowledges that it is not an agent, joint venturer,
partner or employee of the Province, and the Recipient shall not take any actions that could
establish or imply such a relationship.

ARTICLE 23
ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT OR FUNDS

23.1 No Assignment. The Recipient shall not assign any part of the Agreement or the Funds
without the prior written consent of the Province.

23.2 Agreement to Extend. All tights and obligations contained in the Agreement shall extend to
and be binding on the Parties’ respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and
permitted assigns.

ARTICLE 24
GOVERNING LAW

24.1 Governing Law. The Agreement and the rights, obligations and relations of the Parties shall
be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of Ontario and the
applicable federal laws of Canada. Any actions or proceedings arising in connection with the
Agreement shall be conducted in Ontario.

ARTICLE 25
FURTHER ASSURANCES

25.1 Agreement into Effect. The Recipient shall do or cause to be done all acts or things
necessary to implement and carry into effect the terms and conditions of the Agreement to
their full extent.

ARTICLE 26
CIRCUMSTANCES BEYOND THE CONTROL OF EITHER PARTY

26.1 Force Majeure Means. Subject to section 26.3, Force Majeure means an event that:

(a) is beyond the reasonable control of a Party; and

(b) makes a Party’s performance of its obligations under the Agreement impossible, or so
impracticable as reasonably to be considered impossible in the circumstances.

26.2 Force Majeure Includes. Force Majeure includes:

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-77 13



(a) infectious diseases, war, riots and civil disorder;

(b) storm, flood, earthquake and other severely adverse weather conditions;

(c) lawful act by a public authority; and

(U) strikes, lockouts and other labour actions,

if such events meet the test set out in section 26.1.

26.3 Force Majeure Shall Not Include. Force Majeure shall not include:

(a) any event that is caused by the negligence or intentional action of a Party or such
Party’s agents or employees; or

(b) any event that a diligent Party could reasonably have been expected to:

(i) take into account at the time of the execution of the Agreement; and

(ii) avoid or overcome in the carrying out of its obligations under the Agreement.

26.4 Failure to Fulfil Obligations. Subject to section 14.1(e), the failure of either Party to fulfil any
of its obligations under the Agreement shall not be considered to be a breach of, or Event of
Default under, the Agreement to the extent that such failure to fulfill the obligation arose from
an event of Force Majeure, if the Party affected by such an event has taken all reasonable
precautions, due care and reasonable alternative measures, all with the objective of carrying
out the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

ARTICLE 27
SURVIVAL

27.1 Survival. The provisions in Article 1, any other applicable definitions, sections 4.6(b), 5.2, 7.1
(to the extent that the Recipient has not provided the Reports or other reports as may be
requested by the Province to the satisfaction of the Province), 7.2, 7.3, 7.4, 7.5, 7.6, Articles 8
and 10, sections 12.2, 13.2, 13.3, 14.1, 14.2(d), fe), (f), (g) and (h), Articles 16, 17, 18, 20, 24,
27, 28, 30, 31 and 34, and all applicable cross-referenced provisions and schedules shall
continue in full force and effect for a period of seven years from the date of expiry or
termination of the Agreement.

ARTICLE 28
SCHEDULES

28.1 Schedules. The Agreement includes the following schedules:

(a) Schedule “A” - Project Specific Information and Additional Provisions;

(b) Schedule “B” - Project Description and Timelines;

(c) Schedule “C” - Budget; and

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-17 14



(d) Schedule “D” - Requirements for Use of the Ontario Logo and Acknowledgement of
Funding.

fe) Schedule “E” — Communications Protocol

ARTICLE 29
COUNTERPARTS

29.1 Counterparts. The Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same
instrument.

ARTICLE 30
JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY

30.1 Joint and Several Liability. Where the Recipient is comprised of more than one entity, all
such entities shall be jointly and severally liable to the Province for the fulfillment of the
obligations of the Recipient under the Agreement.

ARTICLE 31
RIGHTS AND REMEDIES CUMULATIVE

31.1 Rights and Remedies Cumulative. The rights and remedies of the Province under the
Agreement are cumulative and are in addition to, and not in substitution for, any of its rights
and remedies provided by law or in equity.

ARTICLE 32
BPSAA

32.1 BPSAA. For the purposes of clarity, if the Recipient is subject to the BPSAA and there is a
conflict between any of the requirements of the Agreement and the requirements of the
BPSAA, the BPSM shall prevail.

ARTICLE 33
FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH OTHER AGREEMENTS

33.1 Other Agreements. If the Recipient:

(a) has failed to comply (a Failure”) with any term, condition or obligation under any other
agreement with Her Majesty the Queen in tight of Ontario or a Crown agency;

(b) has been provided with notice of such Failure in accordance with the requirements of
such other agreement;

(c) has, if applicable, failed to rectify such Failure in accordance with the requirements of
such other agreement; and

(d) such Failure is continuing,

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-17 15



the Province may suspend the payment of Funds for such period as the Province determines

appropriate.

ARTICLE 34
ENTIRE AGREEMENT

34.1 Entire Agreement. The Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties with

respect to the subject matter contained in the Agreement and supersedes all prior oral or

written representations and agreements.

34.2 Modification of Agreement. The Agreement may only be amended by a written agreement
duly executed by the Parties.

The Parties have executed the Agreement on the dates set out below.

HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN IN RIGHT OF ONTARIO
as represented by the Minister of Citizenship, Immigration and
International Trade

Name: Abigail Katz Starr Date
Title: Director, Ontario Seniors Secretariat

THE CITY OF TEMISKAMING SHORES

Name: Christopher Oslund Date
Title: City Manager

I have authority to bind the Recipient.

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-17 16



SCHEDULE “A”

PROJECT SPECIFIC INFORMATION AND ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

PROJECT SPECIFIC INFORMATION AND ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

Maximum Funding Lesser of $25,000.00

Funding Instalments Subject to section 4.2 of this Agreement,

I. Initial Payment of sixty percent (60%) of the maximum funding amount upon
execution by both parties of the Agreement;

II. Up to twenty-five percent (25%) of the maximum funding amount upon receipt and
acceptance of a satisfactory Interim Report;

Ill. Up to fifteen percent (15%) of the maximum funding amount or applicable portion of
eligible cash expenditures upon receipt and acceptance of a satisfactory Final Report.

Address for notice If to Ministry of Citizenship, Immigration and International Trade
the Province Regional Services Branch

Tanya Litt
Ontario Governement Complex, Hwy 101 E, P0 Box 3085
South Porcupine, ON PON 1HO
(705) 235-1557
Tanya. Litt@ontario.ca

. APPLICANT/PRIMARY CONTACT PERSON
Address for notice if to
the Recipient Mrs. Tammie Caldwell

Director of Recreation
325 Farr Drive
Haileybury, ON P0] 1KO
(705) 672-3363
tcaldweIItemiskamingshores.ca

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-17 17



An Interim Report is due: 31112016 and must include the following:
Reporting

e A copy of your organization’s general ledger of account for this project reflecting cash

transactions earned and incurred up to the Interim Report due date.

An expenditure forecast that reflects total eligible project costs as of the Interim Report

due date through Project End Date; and
• A completed Interim Report Form, signed on behalf of the Recipient by an authorized

signing officer.

A Final Report is due on or before: 311/2017 and must include the following:

• Copies of invoices and proof of payment for all eligible cash expenditures incurred on or
before the Project End Date. N.B.: A print-out of your organization’s general ledger of

account that supports actual project expenditures can serve as proof of payment;

• A copy of all reports and publications produced as part of the Project including samples

indicating how the Province’s support has been acknowledged;
• A completed Final Report Form, signed on behalf of the Recipient by an authorized

signing officer, and
• Any other details that may be requested by the Province.

Interim and Final Report Forms can be obtained from your local Ministry contact or
downloaded from the Grants Ontario web portal.

Additional Funding The Province will not provide any Funds to the Recipient until the Recipient has provided:
• Certificate of Insurance

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-17 18



SCHEDULE “8”
PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND TIMELINES

.-.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND TIMELINES

Project Title and City of Temiskaming Shores Age-Friendly Community Action Plan
Description

establish an AFC committee, do a local needs assessment, and develop an action plan for
implementation.

Project End Date 1213112016

N.B.; No eligible expenses will be funded after this date.

Timelines (Key As per Project Work Plan (section G3) of your application for funding under the Age-Friendly
project milestones Communities Planning Grant Program.
and activities)

In summary, this project will: establish an AEC committee, do a local needs assessment, and
develop an action plan for implementation.

N.B.: Pursuant to Article 4.4 of this Agreement, the Recipient will not make any changes to the Project, the
Timelines and/or the Budget without the prior written consent of the Province.

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-17 19



SCHEDULE “C”
BUDGET

• The Province will provide funds of up to $ 25,000.00 to the Recipient to carry out the Project.

• The Recipient’s total revenues and expenses related to the Project are detailed in Table 1.

• Project funding may only be used to support expenses detailed below.

• No ineligible expenses will be funded by the Province. Ineligible expenses are listed at the end of

this Schedule.

• As part of the reporting requirements, the Recipient is required to report on the interim and final

status of the project, and actual expenditures.

• The final payment is contingent on receipt and acceptance of a satisfactory Final Report, including
invoices and appropriate proof of payments.

• The final payment will be adjusted and made based on actual project expenditures.

TABLE I — TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Community Transportation Pilot Grant Program

Age Friendly Community Planning Grant

TOTAL

REVENUES (Cash) AMOUNT

PROJECT FUNDED EXPENSES (Cash) AMOUNT

Coordinator (salary) $ 45,000.00

Benefits $ 4,950.00

Forums (3 x$500.00) $ 1,500.00

Marketinglpromotion $ 13,550.00

TOTAL $ 65,000.00

$ 40,000.00

$ 25,000.00

$ 65,000.00

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-17 20



INELIGIBLE PROJECT EXPENSES

Capital projects, including renovations or upgrades to buildings.
• On-going operating or regular planning activities. This includes regular maintenance and operating

expenses, core administrative and overhead costs such as rent, office supplies, telephone, and
communications services such as internet.

• Acquisition of long-term assets such as computers, laptops, printers or other technology.
• Website development or upgrades.
• Development of architectural, engineering or other design drawings for the construction or

renovation of facilities providing services to seniors, including housing.
• Fundraising, lobbying or sponsorship campaigns.
• Legal, audit or interest fees.
• Purchase of vehicles, fuel that is not related to supporting the project, and vehicle insurance
• Grants or funding to other organizations
• Credit and non-credit courses at a college or university
• Deficit reduction plans
• Project components already completed or funded by another organization
• Any costs incurred for initiatives held outside Ontario.
• Capital costs related to permanent structures (e.g., materials, labour, vehicles, land acquisition,

purchase of equipment for project construction, computers, etc.).
• Alcohol

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-17 21



SCHEDULE “D”

REQUIREMENTS FOR USE OF THE ONTARIO LOGO AND

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF FUNDING

Below are the requirements for use of the Ontario logo and acknowledgment of funding in all print and electronic

communications, reports and publications produced in relation to the Project:

1. The Ontario logo should be used only as provided. The visual or structural relationship may not be

changed in any way.

2. In most applications (e.g. business stationery), the Ontario logo appears in a black against a white or
light background, e.g.

;v Ontario

or, in white against a black or dark background, e.g.

P Ontario

There is no colour version of the logo. Digital files of the Ontario logo, in three formats feps, tif and jpg)
will be provided by the Province.

3. When accompanying other corporate logos, the Ontario Logo should be the same size.

4. The ministry name should not be used with the Ontario logo. Acknowledgement is ci the Government
of Ontario not the Ministry or Secretariat. The following are the two most common tag lines:

Funded by the Government of Ontario

or

Funding provided by the Government of Ontario

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-17 22



SCHEDULE “E”
GRANT RECIPIENT COMMUNICATIONS PROTOCOL

M EDIA, MARKETING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT PROTOCOL

As part of the Province’s effort to build awareness of programs for seniors, it may hold media events about or
otherwise publicize its programs, including the Project.

This protocol applies to your own media and marketing efforts.

If you have any questions about this protocol, please contact the Ontario Seniors Secretariat. All notices of
media events and advance copies of marketing materials should go to:

Ontario Seniors’ Secretariat, Age-Friendly Community Planning Grant Program, lnfoseniorscontario.ca

1. Media Events

a. You must notify the Ontario Seniors’ Secretariat if you plan to hold any media event in relation to the
Project. Provide a minimum of seven business days’ notice of the date and location of any event.
Include details about anticipated attendance, invited guests and speakers. If there will be an
announcement to the media and public, provide this a minimum of 7 business days’ notice of its release.

b, You may wish to consider inviting Members of Provincial Parliaments or other elected officials to your
event.

2. Marketing Materials

a. Marketing materials include but are not limited to brochures, reports, oral presentations or interviews,
relating to the Project.

b. You must provide the Province with advance copies of your marketing materials 7 business days prior to
their distribution to the public, for information.

3. Acknowledgment of Province’s Support

As provided in Article 8 of this Agreement, you must acknowledge funding from the Province in any
publication, unless otherwise directed. This includes any oral or written publication.

Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-17 23



Age-Friendly Communities Planning Grant Program 2015-1 7 1



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2015-141 

Being a by-law to adopt the Delegation of Powers and Duties 
Policy for the City of Temiskaming Shores 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as amended, 
the powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to govern its affairs 
as it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s ability to responds to 
municipal issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural 
person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  

Whereas under Section 270 (1)(6) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, provides that every municipality shall adopt and maintain policies with 
respect to the delegation of powers and duties; 

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report CS-023-2015 at the June 16, 
2015 Regular meeting of Council and directed staff to prepare the necessary by-law for 
the adoption of a Delegation of Powers and Duties Policy for the City of Temiskaming 
Shores; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That Council for the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby adopts a Policy for the 
Delegation of Powers and Duties, a copy of which is attached hereto as Schedule “A” 
forming part of this by-law; 

2. That  the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make 
minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical nature to the 
by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where such modifications or 
corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law or its associated schedule. 

Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 16th day of June, 2015. 

 
______________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 
 
______________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 
 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law No. 2015-141 

Delegation of Powers and Duties Policy 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Delegation of Powers Policy By-law No. 2015-141 

 

 

1 

Delegation of Powers and Duties Policy 

Purpose 

Section 270 of the Municipal Act, 2001 as amended (the “Act”) requires that all 
municipalities adopt and maintain a policy with respect to the delegation of Council’s 
legislative and administrative authority. 

The purpose of this policy is to set out the scope of the powers and duties which 
Council may delegate its legislative and administrative authority and to establish 
principles governing such delegation. This policy has been developed in accordance 
with the Act in order to comply with its other applicable sections, including section 270. 
This Policy applies to all committees of Council, departments and staff. 

Definitions 

i. Legislative Powers includes all matters where Council acts in a legislative or quasi-
judicial function including enacting by-laws, setting policies, and exercising decision 
making authority; 

ii. Administrative Powers includes all matters required for the management of the 
corporation which do not involve discretionary decision making. 

Policy Statement 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores, as a duly elected 
municipal government is directly accountable to its constituents for its legislative 
decision making, policies and administrative functions. Council’s decisions are generally 
expressed by by-law or resolution of Council carried by a majority vote. The efficient 
management of the municipal corporation and the need to respond to issues in a timely 
fashion require Council to entrust certain powers and duties to designated staff while 
concurrently maintaining accountability, which can be effectively accomplished through 
the delegation of certain legislative and administrative functions. Council authority will 
be delegated within the context set out in the Act and will respect the applicable 
restrictions outlined in the Act. 

Policy Requirements 

1. All delegations of Council powers, duties or functions shall be effected by by-law; 

2. Unless a power, duty or function of Council has been expressly delegated by by-
law, all of the powers, duties and functions of Council remain with Council; 

3. A delegation of a power, duty or function under any by-law to any member of staff 
includes a delegation to a person who is appointed by the City Manager or selected 
from time to time by the delegate to act in the capacity of the delegate in the 
delegate’s absence; 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Delegation of Powers Policy By-law No. 2015-141 

 

 

2 

4. Subject to section 3, a person whom a power, duty or function has been delegated 
by by-law has no authority to further delegate to another person any power, duty or 
function that has been delegated, unless such sub-delegation is expressly 
permitted; 

5. Legislative matters may be delegated by Council where they are minor in nature or 
where Council has explicitly provided for the terms and conditions under which the 
powers shall be exercised, and must take into account the limitations set out in the 
Act; 

6. Administrative matters may generally be delegated to staff subject to the conditions 
set out in the delegation and in this policy, and must take into account the limitations 
set out in the Act; 

7. Council has authorized the delegation of specific administrative matters to those 
individuals listed in Appendix 01 subject to the terms set out therein. 

 

General Delegation Limits and Rules 

In exercising any delegated power, the delegate shall ensure the following: 

 Any expenditure related to the matter shall have been provided for in the current 
year’s budget (or as authorized by the City’s Purchasing By-law); 

 The scope of the delegated authority shall not be exceeded by the delegate; 

 Where required by the specific delegated authority, reports shall be submitted to 
Council advising of exercise of a delegated power and confirming compliance 
with the delegated authority and this policy; 

 All policies regarding insurance and risk management shall be complied with; 

 Delegates shall ensure the consistent and equitable application of Council 
policies and guidelines; 

 Any undertaking or contract with a third party shall be subject to the approval of 
the City Manager. 



City of Temiskaming Shores Appendix 01 to Schedule “A” to 
Delegation of Powers Policy By-law No. 2015-141 

 

 

1 

Appendix 01 

Delegation of Powers and Duties 

1. City Manager 

The following duties and responsibilities are delegated to the City Manager. 

1.1 to direct and coordinate the business of the City in all its branches and 
departments in accordance with the policies and plans established and 
approved by Council; 

1.2 to direct and coordinate the preparation of plans and programs to be submitted 
to the Council and to the appropriate Committees of Council for the 
development, construction, maintenance, improvement and rehabilitation of the 
City property and facilities and for the development and improvement of City 
services; 

1.3 to direct and coordinate the compilation, consideration and presentation to 
Council, and the appropriate Committees, recommendations arising from 
departmental operations, which require Council’s approval and to propose by-
laws or resolutions arising from such recommendations; 

1.4 to direct the preparation and compilation of and to present to Council, the 
annual estimates of revenues and expenditures and the annual review of the 
periodic capital forecasts; 

1.5 to exercise general financial control over all departments in terms of the 
approved appropriation; 

1.6 to direct the placing and maintaining of adequate insurance on all City property, 
and to negotiate for the purchase and sale of all real property on behalf of the 
City; 

1.7 to have general control over all City purchasing with authority to enter into 
contracts for individual purchases of materials required for the normal operating 
of the budget not exceeding the sum of $50,000 including purchases provided 
for by any approved construction by-laws, provided that such expenditures are 
included within the annual estimates as approved by Council; 

1.8 to direct collective bargaining with all City employees within collective 
bargaining units, to recommend to Council agreements concerning wages, 
salaries and working conditions and upon approval by Council, to administer 
such agreements and in general to be responsible for wage and salary 
administration subject to normal grievance procedures, and to recommend to 
Council and its appropriate Committee, a system of grievance procedures for 
such employees as are not covered by existing agreements, or included in 
collective bargaining units; 



City of Temiskaming Shores Appendix 01 to Schedule “A” to 
Delegation of Powers Policy By-law No. 2015-141 

 

 

2 

1.9 to have full control and direction of all City employees, except with respect to 
the statutory duties of such officials as are appointed pursuant to statute, and 
also subject to the personnel policies approved by Council; 

i. to have authority to recommend to Council the appointment, employment, 
suspension or dismissal of Managing Directors or the Treasurer; 

ii. to have authority to appoint, employ, suspend or dismiss for cause 
employees below the rank of Managing Directors or the Treasurer and not 
covered by collective bargaining agreements, subject to their right to 
appeal to Council in respect of any suspension or dismissal; 

iii. to have authority to appoint and employ other employees of the City in 
accordance with procedures contained in collective bargaining 
agreements, and to suspend or dismiss such employees for cause, 
subject to the normal grievance procedures contained in the relevant 
collective bargaining agreements; 

1.10 to present to the Council reports and information regarding progress and 
accomplishments of programs and projects, the status of revenues and 
expenditures, and the general administration of the City; 

1.11 to have cognizance of all correspondence and communications to the 
Corporation and to receive all communications from the several local boards 
and commissions and to direct the submission of the same to the Council, 
together with his/her recommendations thereon; 

1.12 to meet with Senior Management regularly to discuss matters of policy which 
have been agreed upon by the Council and to coordinate all departmental 
activities; and 

1.13 to perform such other duties and exercise such other powers as the Council 
may from time to time lawfully assign to him/her. 

 

2. Community Improvement Loans 

The Treasurer and the Clerk shall be delegated the authority to sign Community 
Improvement Loan Agreements on behalf of the City of Temiskaming Shores. 

 

3. Facility Rentals 

That the Director of Recreation or his/her delegate be authorized to enter into 
agreements associated with the rental of facilities. These activities would include such 
things as ice and field rental, park rentals and arena rentals for conventions, concerts 
and special events. 



City of Temiskaming Shores Appendix 01 to Schedule “A” to 
Delegation of Powers Policy By-law No. 2015-141 

 

 

3 

4. Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act 

The Clerk shall be delegated to act as head of the institution for the purpose of the 
Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. 

 

5. Property 

5.1 The City Manager be delegated the authority to negotiate and authorize the 
acquisition of property on behalf of the municipality for values under $50,000. 

5.2 The City Manager and Clerk be delegated the authority to execute all 
documents necessary to complete the real estate transaction for property 
acquisitions on behalf of the municipality for values under $50,000. 

5.3 The City Manager and Clerk be delegated the authority to execute all 
documents necessary to complete the lease of City-owned land for up to a 10 
year term and for annual rents less than $50,000. 

 

6. Provision of Service Agreements 

6.1 The Managing Directors be authorized to enter into agreements associated with 
providing services, so long as the value associated with such agreements are 
within the signing authority defined under the Purchasing By-law. 

6.2 The Clerk shall, upon receipt of all required certificates and documentation, co-
sign all agreements for record purposes. 

 

7. Site Plan Control Agreements 

The City Manager, or his/her authorized delegate, is hereby authorized to execute any 
site plan control agreement in a zone designated as a Site Plan Control Area by City of 
Temiskaming Shores applicable zoning by-law where, in the opinion of the City 
Manager, the interest of the municipality and the subject neighborhood are adequately 
protected by the agreement. 

 

8. Subdivision Agreements 

8.1 The Director of Community Growth and Planning, Director of Public Works are 

delegated the authority to enter into negotiations on behalf of the City with land 
developers relating to Subdivision Agreements with respect to the following conditions, 
provisions, matters and items: 



City of Temiskaming Shores Appendix 01 to Schedule “A” to 
Delegation of Powers Policy By-law No. 2015-141 

 

 

4 

8.1.1 Planning 

In general, when a plan of subdivision creates more than three lots or involves 
the dedication of road allowance, the developer will be required to prepare a 
plan and register same in the appropriate Land Titles Office. 

8.1.2 Services 

Standard requirements in new subdivisions will include the following: 

a) Watermains; 

b) Storm Sewers (where physically possible); 

c) Curbs and Gutters (where possible); 

d) Paved Streets; 

e) Sidewalks (at least one side of collector or arterial roads); 

f) Street lights; 

g) Street signs; 

h) Sodded boulevards; 

i) Rear lot drainage (where required); 

j) Underground wiring where soil conditions permit, subject to a satisfactory 
agreement with the associated utility. 

The subdivider will pay for the entire cost of the above fixtures. 

8.1.3 Financial Arrangements 

a) The developer will pay for all internal services required for the subdivision 
and the developer will post security for the 10 percent (10%) holdback 
required under the Construction Lien Act for the value of all work to be done 
on lands dedicated or to be dedicated as public highways by way of an 
irrevocable letter of credit from a bank or trust company which letter of 
credit shall not expire prior to the completion of the works. 

b) The City will participate on a negotiated basis for oversizing of facilities. In 
general, the City will only pay for the cost of the oversized required. The 
facility will be constructed by the developer and he will be reimbursed from 
the Extended Service Charges levied against the subdivision. 

c) The developer will be expected to commute all Local Improvement Charges 
against the lands to be subdivided. 

d) Where lots or blocks are provided with direct access the developer will pay 
one-half of the cost of boundary road improvements subject to oversizing 
negotiations. 

e) Offsite services required by the subdivision will be paid for on a basis to be 



City of Temiskaming Shores Appendix 01 to Schedule “A” to 
Delegation of Powers Policy By-law No. 2015-141 

 

 

5 

negotiated with Council. 

f) The maximum amount of funds to be contributed by the City towards the 
participation in negotiated shared servicing costs for any one subdivision 
will not exceed the total sum of the funds derived from that subdivision as 
the Extended Service Fee. 

g) Extended service charges levied on a per dwelling unit basis at a rate to be 
determined from time to time will be paid by the developer at the time 
application is made for building permits. 

8.1.4 Oversizing 

Oversizing means in excess of the normal requirements of the subdivision or 
the following: 

a) Watermain – over 200 mm (8”) in diameter; 

b) Sanitary Sewers – over 200 mm (8”) in diameter; 

c) Storm Sewers over 680 mm (27”) in diameter; 

d) Roads – over 8.5 m (28’) in width. 

8.2 All such Subdivision Agreements shall be subject to approval by Council prior to 
the execution thereof. 

 

9. Taxi Licensing 

The exercise of the power under Section 156. (1) of the Municipal Act to license and 
regulate the business of taxicabs is hereby delegated to the Community Growth and 
Planning Department. 

 

10. Temporary Road Closures 

The Director of Public Works and/or the Roads Superintendent be delegated the 
authority to approve temporary road closures for the purpose of special events and 
infrastructure construction and/or repair. 



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2015-142 

Being a by-law to enter into a Funding Agreement with 
Northern Ontario Heritage Fund Corporation (NOHFC) under 

the Northern Ontario Internship Program Agreement – 
Engineering Technician 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, the 
powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to govern its affairs as 
it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s ability to respond to municipal 
issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural 
person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  

And whereas the Northern Ontario Heritage Fund Corporation (NOHFC) under the 
Northern Ontario Internship Program approved funds in the amount of $31,500 for an 
Engineering Technician Intern; 

And whereas Council considered Administrative Report No. PW-032-2015 at the June 
2, 2015 Regular Council meeting and directed staff to prepare the necessary by-law to 
enter into an agreement with the Northern Ontario Heritage Fund Corporation (NOHFC) 
as a funding partner for an Engineering Technician Intern position; 

Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
enacts the following as a by-law: 

1. That the Mayor and Clerk be authorized to enter into a funding agreement with 
Northern Ontario Heritage Fund Corporation for an Engineering Technician Intern 
in the amount of $31,500, a copy of which is attached hereto as Schedule “A” and 
forming part of this by-law; and 

2. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make  
minor modifications or corrections of a grammatical or typographical nature to the 
by-law and schedule, after the passage of this by-law, where such modifications 
or corrections do not alter the intent of the by-law. 

  



Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 16th day of June, 2015. 

 
 
___________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 

 
 
 
___________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 

 
Schedule “A” to  

 

By-law No. 2015-142 
 

Being a funding Agreement between 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores  

and 

Northern Ontario Heritage Fund Corporation (NOHFC) 

For an Engineering Technician Intern 
Project No. 8500713 

 
 
 
 



Internship Project Number: 8500713

THIS AGREEMENT is made effective as of March 31, 2015 (the “Agreement”)

B E T W E E N: Northern Ontario Heritage Fund Corporation (“NOHFC”)

A N D: City of Temiskaming Shores (the “Employer”)

WHEREAS the Employer is municipal corporation under the laws of Ontario and wishes to obtain financial
assistance from NOHFC to enable it to hire a post-secondary graduate to fill an internship Position, as more
fully described in Schedule B;

AND WHEREAS NOHFC wishes to provide financial assistance towards the costs of the Position in the form
of a conditional contribution that does not need to be repaid by the Employer provided that the terms and
conditions of this Agreement are satisfied;

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of mutual promises and agreements contained in this Agreement and
other good and valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows:

A. The Agreement

The following Schedules ate attached to, and form part of, this Agreement:

Schedule A - Terms and Conditions
Schedule B - Position Description and Financial Information
Schedule C - Form of Request for Reimbursement
Schedule D - Final Report

Capitalised terms not otherwise defined in this document shall have the meanings ascribed to them in
Schedule A.

B. Agreement Term and Internship Work Term

This Agreement shall continue in effect until the Work Term is completed or this Agreement is terminated
in accordance with its terms.

The Employer shall cause the Position to be filled and paid for during the Work Term set out in Schedule
B.

The Employer must have selected, hired and advised the Project Officer of an Eligible Candidate within 6
months commencing on the Minister’s approval letter date of March 15, 2015, and the Work Term must
be completed within 18 months of this date. No financial assistance will be provided for any employment
after the 18 month period.

If there is a delay in filling a Position, the Employer may, by giving prior notice to the assigned project
officer, amend the Start Date of the Work Term to coincide with the date on which the Position is filled,
and employment commences. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Start Date may not be later than 6
months after the date of approval and the duration of the Work Term may not be amended except with
the prior written agreement of NOHFC.

Northern Ontario Heritage Fund Corporation

Northern Ontario Internship Program Agreement



2

C. Contribution

The Contribution is limited to the lesser of:

(i) ninety percent (90%) of Eligible Costs incurred and paid by the Employer to the Intern during the
Work Term (Note: this percentage is based on the weekly wage set out in Schedule B; if the
Employer pays the Intern more or less than that wage, NOHFC will adjust the percentage
accordingly), and

(ii) thirty one thousand five hundred dollars ($31,500.00)

D. Specific Terms and Conditions

NOHFC’s obligation to pay some or all of the Contribution to the Employer at any time during the term of
this Agreement is conditional upon the Employer recruiting, hiring, training and paying the Intern in
accordance with this Agreement and complying with all other provisions of this Agreement, including the
additional terms set out in this section D, if any.

E. Contact

The contact information for the parties is as follows:

NOHFC CITY OF TEMISKAMING SHORES

Full Legal Northern Ontario Heritage Fund City of Temiskaming Shores
Name Corporation
Address 70 Foster Drive, Suite 200 325 Farr Drive P0 Box 2050

Sault St. Marie, Ontario P6A 6V8 Haileybury ON POJ 1 KU
Contact Name Bruce Strapp Mr. Douglas Walsh

Executive Director Director, ninety percent (90%) Works
Telephone 1 (800) 461-8329; 1 (705) 945-6700 (705)672-3363
Facsimile 1 (705) 945-6701 (705)672-291 1
E-mail nohfc(.ndm .qov.on.ca dwalsh@temiskmaingshores.ca

F. Agreement to be Bound.

The parties to this Agreement acknowledge and agree that they have read it, understand it, have the
authority to enter into it and agree to be bound by it. The signatories certify that they have the power and
authority to bind the party on behalf of which they are executing this Agreement.

CITY OF TEMISKAMING SHORES

By:

_________________________________

Date Signed:

______

Name (Print):

____________________________

Title:

_______________

NORTHERN ONTARIO HERITAGE FUND CORPORATION

By:

___________________________

Date Signed:
Bruce Strapp, Executive Director



1

Internship Project Number: 8500713

SCHEDULE A
TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Interpretation

1.1. In this Agreement, the following capitalized terms have the meanings set out below:

(a) “Contribution” means the conditional contribution payable by NOHFC to the Employer in
accordance with this Agreement;

(b) Eligible Candidate” means an individual who is (i) a graduate of a college or university
registered with the Ministry of Training, Colleges and Universities (MTCU) from a program
that is approved by MTCU with qualifications in a field of study that is related to the
employment offered by the Employer, (ii) not an immediate family member or relative of
the Employer;

(c) “Eligible Costs” means the actual salary or wages paid to the Intern which were incurred
by the Employer during the Work Term, but does not include:

(i) any benefits paid by the Employer including but not limited to: vacation pay;
bonuses; gifts; termination or severance pay; expenses and allowances; and group
medical, dental, or life insurance; Employer Health Tax (EHT); and

(ii) the Employer’s portion of statutory remittances, including but not limited to
contributions to the Canadian Pension Plan and Employment Insurance (El)
premiums;

(d) “Intern” means an Eligible Candidate hired to fill the Position, and

(e) “Northern Ontario” means the territorial districts of Algoma, Cochrane, Kenora,
Manitoulin, Nipissing, Parry Sound, Rainy River, Sudbury, Thunder Bay and Timiskaming;

(f) “Position” means the internship position described in Schedule B;

(g) “Work Term” means the timing and duration of the Position set out in Schedule B, which
may be amended by the Employer in accordance with section B of the Agreement.

1.2. In the event of conflict between the provisions of the different components of this Agreement,
the main body of this Agreement shall prevail over the Schedules, and Schedule A shall prevail
over Schedule B.

2. Position and Hiring

2.1. The Employer shall fulfill its obligations under this Agreement with due diligence and in a
businesslike manner. At all times during the term of this Agreement, the Employer shall be
responsible for (i) the identification and recruitment of Eligible Candidates, and (ii) the hiring,
training, supervision and payment of the Intern. Before filling a Position, the Employer shall
provide such information to the assigned project officer about the prospective Intern as NOHFC
may reasonably require (but not personal information, as defined in the Freedom of Information
and Protection of Privacy Act) to satisfy NOHFC that the Intern meets the applicable eligibility
criteria set out in the definition of Eligible Candidate, above. NOHFC has no responsibility for,
no relationship with, and no liability for the actions of, any Intern.



2

2.2. The Employer agrees that it shall be responsible for recruiting Eligible Candidates through a fair
selection process and will work through career centres of post-secondary educational
institutions, where reasonably possible.

2.3. The Employer shall notify NOHFC as soon as possible in the event that it becomes aware of
actual or possible hiring delays or inability to fill a Position or complete a Work Term. Except as
set out in section B of this Agreement, the Employer shall not alter any element of a Position (as
described in its application for a Contribution) or permit or cause any other material change to
the Position, without the prior written consent of NOHFC. NOHFC’s consent shall not be
withheld unreasonably.

2.4. The Employer shall notify NOHFC promptly when an Intern has been hired for the Position and
when the Intern leaves the Position. If the Position becomes vacant for any reason prior to the
end of the Work Term, the Employer must immediately notify NOHFC and indicate whether or
not the Employer wishes to hire a replacement Intern for the Position. If the Employer wishes to
hire a replacement Intern for the position, NOHFC will agree to contribute towards the
replacement Intern’s salary or wages, provided that all of the following conditions are satisfied:

(a) The Employer is not in default under this Agreement;
(b) The departing Intern has left the Position within the first 9 months of the Work Term;
(c) NOHFC is satisfied, in its sole discretion, that the Employer will offer the same suitable

employment to the replacement Intern that was previously offered to the departing Intern;
(d) The Employer informs the assigned project officer promptly of a replacement Intern whom

it wishes to hire, and NOHFC is satisfied, acting reasonably, that the replacement Intern
is suitably qualified to fill the Position;

(e) The Employer shall have entered into a new written agreement with NOHFC with respect
to a 12-month work term for the replacement Intern (the “Replacement Agreement”) on
substantially the same terms and conditions as this Agreement, with the following
exceptions:
(i) the maximum aggregate amount of funding payable by NOHFC under the

Replacement Agreement shall not exceed the maximum amount of the
Contribution;

(ii) if the replacement Intern leaves the Position before the end of the replacement’s
work term, NOHFC will not provide funding for a subsequent Intern to fill the
Position.

Despite the foregoing, if the Employer wishes to hire a new intern for any position at any time,
the Employer may submit a new funding application under the Northern Ontario Internship
Program, which will be evaluated in the normal course in accordance with NOHFC’s usual
guidelines and criteria.

3. Contribution Conditions

3.1. NOHFC makes the Contribution on the basis of reimbursement for Eligible Costs incurred. On
expiry or termination of this Agreement or termination of a Position, NOHFC may recover any
excess of funds provided to the Employer and such amount is considered to be a debt
immediately due and payable to NOHFC.

3.2. The amount of the Contribution paid to the Employer shall be used only to reimburse actual
expenditures on Eligible Costs during the term of this Agreement.

3.3. In no event will NOHFC be responsible for funding any cost overruns related to a Position.

3.4. Before advancing any part of the Contribution, NOHFC shall have received a completed
electronic funds transfer information form which will enable NOHFC to deposit the funds into the
Recipient’s designated bank account by way of electronic funds transfer.



3

4. Additional Assistance

4.1. The Employer shall notify NOHFC if the Employer receives additional assistance towards the
cost of a Position from sources other than NOHFC. NOHFC may in its sole discretion reduce
the amount of the Contribution by an amount equal to the amount of any new funding received
by the Employer, to ensure that there is no duplication in funding.

5. Pre-disbursement Requirements

5.1. Prior to the first disbursement of the Contribution under this Agreement, the Employer shall
provide to the assigned project officer: (i) copies of its resolution(s), by-law(s) or other
documentation satisfactory to NOHFC, evidencing that the Position and the application for a
conditional contribution have been properly authorised, and (ii) any additional authorisations
identified in section D of the main body of this Agreement, ‘Specific Terms and Conditions”, and
(iii) the insurance certificate(s) or other documents provided for in section 9.

6. Default

6.1. If the Employer is in default under this Agreement or any other agreement between it and
NOHFC, in its sole discretion NOHFC may recover any funds advanced or an amount equal to
the advanced funds and may refrain from making further payments of the Contribution. The
Employer agrees that if it is in default under this Agreement, NOHFC may refuse to consider
any future applications by the Employer for NOHFC funding.

6.2. The following constitute events of default under this Agreement:

(a) the Employer becomes bankrupt or insolvent, goes into receivership, or takes the benefit
of any statute relating to bankrupt or insolvent debtors, or in the sole opinion of NOHFC,
otherwise faces other serious financial difficulty;

(b) an order is made or resolution passed for the winding up of the Employer, or the
Employer is dissolved or in the sole opinion of NOHFC, the Employer ceases to operate;

(c) the Employer has submitted false or misleading information to NOHFC, or otherwise
makes a false representation in this Agreement;

(d) the Employer has failed to perform one or more of its obligations under this Agreement;

(e) the Employer has failed to hire an Intern to commence employment within the first 6
months of the Work Term;

(f) in the opinion of NOHFC, there is a material adverse change in risk.

7. Payment of Contribution

7.1. The Contribution will be paid semi-annually on a reimbursement basis. At the end of the first 6
months of the Work Term, the Employer shall submit to the assigned project officer a Statement
of Account and any semi-annual reports or deliverables required herein. A final payment at the
end of the Work Term will not be made until NOHFC has received a final Statement of Account
and a Final Report. “Statement of Account” and “Final Report” are described in subsections 7.4
and 7.5 below, respectively.

7.2. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreement, NOHFC shall issue a cheque in the
Recipient’s name or deposit the Funds electronically into an account designated by the
Recipient in writing, provided that the account resides at a Canadian financial institution and is
in the name of the Recipient.



4

7.3. In the event of a debt owing to NOHFC by the Employer, the Employer shall pay the amount of
the debt, if any, by cheque payable to the “Northern Ontario Heritage Fund Corporation” and the
said cheque shall accompany the final Statement of Account.

7.4. Every Statement of Account required under this Agreement shall include:

(a) details of expenditures on Eligible Costs to date in the form set out in Schedule C;

(b) a statement that the Intern meets the applicable eligibility criteria set out in paragraph
1 .1(b) and that all expenditures are in accordance with this Agreement;

(c) a signature by a person with signing authority for the Employer, verifying the information
in paragraphs 7.4 (a) and (b) above; and

(d) if requested by NOHFC, original receipts or other evidence of payment of salary, wages
and employee benefits, which upon request by the Employer may be returned to the
Employer after the Statement of Account has been paid.

7.5. The Final Report shall be in the form set out in Schedule D to this Agreement.

8. Records and Monitoring

8.1. The Employer shall maintain financial records and books of account respecting the Position in
accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures.

8.2. NOHFC and the Provincial Auditor and their employees and agents shall be allowed access to
the Employer’s premises and to the Intern’s work site to inspect and assess the progress and
results of the Position and the Position records, both during and following the term of this
Agreement.

8.3. The Employer shall supply, on request, such information in respect of the Position and its
results as NOHFC may require for the purpose of monitoring the Position or the Northern
Ontario Internship Program.

8.4. If NOHFC or the Provincial Auditor believes that there are material inaccuracies in or
inconsistencies between the Statements of Account and the Employer’s financial records and
books of account, NOHFC or the Provincial Auditor may request and the Employer must provide
at its own expense an audit report from a public accountant licensed under the laws of Ontario.
The audit report must be satisfactory to NOHFC in form and content and address:

(a) NOHFC funds received to date;

(b) expenditures made to date;

(c) whether the expenditures were made in accordance with this Agreement; and

(d) other financial information pertaining to this Agreement as may be reasonably specified in
the request.

9. Indemnity and Insurance

9.1. The Employer hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Northern Ontario Heritage Fund
Corporation and each of its officers, directors, advisors, agents, and representativesfrom and
against any and all liability, losses, costs, damages and expenses (including legal, expert and
consultant fees), causes of action, actions, claims, demands, lawsuits or other proceedings, by
whomever made, sustained, incurred, brought or prosecuted, in any way arising out of or in
connection with the Employer or otherwise in connection with the Agreement..



5

9.2. The Employer represents and warrants that it has, and shall maintain for the term of the
Agreement, at its own cost and expense, with insurers having a secure A.M. Best rating of B+ or
greater, or the equivalent, all the necessary and appropriate insurance that a prudent person
carrying out obligations similar to the obligations required of the Employer under this Agreement
would maintain, including commercial general liability insurance on an occurrence basis for third
party bodily injury, personal injury and property damage, to an inclusive limit of not less than two
million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence. The policy shall include the following:

(a) Northern Ontario Heritage Fund Corporation and each of its officers, directors, advisors,
agents, and representatives as additional insureds with respect to liability arising in the
course of performance of the Employer’s obligations under, or otherwise in connection
with, this Agreement;

(b) a cross-liability clause;

(c) contractual liability coverage; and

(d) a thirty (30) day written notice of cancellation.

9.3. The Employer shall provide to the assigned project officer with valid certificates of insurance, or
other proof as may be requested by NOHFC, that confirms the insurance coverage as provided
in section 9.2. Upon the request of NOHFC, the Employer shall make available to NOHFC a
copy of each insurance policy.

9.4. If the Employer is subject to the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act, 1997, the Employer is
registered with the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board (WSIB), shall at all times throughout
the employment of the Intern pay all amounts payable under the Act to the WSIB when they are
due and, upon the request of NOHFC, shall deliver to NOHFC a copy of a current compliance
certificate issued by the WSIB.

10. Compliance with Laws

10.1. The Employer shall, and shall require its directors, officers, partners, employees, agents,
contractors and volunteers, if any, at all times to comply with any and all federal, provincial and
municipal laws, ordinances, statutes, rules, regulations and orders applicable to the
performance of this Agreement, the employment of the Intern and the Position. The Employer
shall obtain, at its own expense, all permits from public authorities which may be required in
connection with the performance of this Agreement, the employment of the Intern and the
Position.

II. Information and Acknowledgement

11 .1. The Contribution shall be acknowledged by the Employer on all reports, press releases, public
statements, and publications pertaining to the Position or the Intern.

11.2. Subject to the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, all information pertaining to
the Contribution and the Employer’s obligations under this Agreement is public information and
may be released to third parties upon request.

12. Notices

12.1. Any notices to be given, and all reports and statements of account, and correspondence, under
the provisions of this Agreement, shall be in writing and shall be given by personal delivery,
prepaid registered mail, facsimile transmission, or courier service, and subject to change by
either party with written notice, shall be addressed to the party at the address set out in this
Agreement. Notices shall be deemed to have been effectively given on the date of delivery by



6

personal service, facsimile transmission, or courier, or in the case of service by registered mail
five business (5) days after the date of mailing.

13. Other Terms and Conditions

13.1. Corporate Changes. The Employer shall not alter its legal or corporate structure, ownership,
control, financing or objects without the prior written consent of NOHFC. NOHFC’s consent
shall not be withheld unreasonably.

13.2. Assignment. The Employer shall not assign this Agreement, nor any part hereof, without the
prior written approval of NOHFC. Such approval may be withheld by NOHFC in its sole
discretion, or given on such terms and conditions as NOHFC may require.

13.3. Third Parties. The Employer shall take reasonable measures to ensure that its officers,
directors, partners, employees, agents, contractors and volunteers shall be bound to observe
the provisions of this Agreement.

13.4. Financial Assistance Only. This Agreement is not an employment agreement. This Agreement
is a contract for conditional financial assistance only and nothing in it, or done pursuant to it, is
to be construed as constituting the Employer as NOHFC’s agent, employee, partner or joint
venturer.

13.5. Waiver. The failure by NOHFC to insist in one or more instances upon the performance by the
Employer of any of the terms or conditions of the Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver
of NOHFC right to require future performance of any such terms or conditions, and the
obligations of the Employer with respect to such future performance shall continue in full force
and effect.

13.6. Force Maieure. A party to this Agreement shall not be responsible for failures in performance
resulting from matters beyond the reasonable control of the party, including acts of God, riots or
other civil insurrection, war, or strikes and lock-outs.

13.7. Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement or any
covenant in it shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision or covenant in it
and the invalid provision or covenant shall be deemed to be severable.

13.8. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended only by written agreement between the parties.
An amendment may (I) be prepared by NOHFC for signature by the Employer, or (ii) consist of a
written request for one or more changes to this Agreement which the Employer submits to
NOHFC by facsimile transmission (fax”), e-mail or lettermail, and if approved without
modification by NOHFC, has been signed or, in the case of e-mails, approved by the Executive
Director of NOHFC and faxed, e-mailed or mailed back to the Employer.

13.9. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the Province of Ontario and the laws of Canada applicable therein.

13.10. Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence in the performance of the obligations under this
Agreement.

13.11. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including the Schedules, embodies the entire agreement
between the Employer and NOHFC with respect to its subject matter and supersedes any
previous understanding or agreement, collateral, oral or otherwise, between them in the event of
conflict.

13.12. Survival. The following provisions shall survive the termination or expiration of the Agreement:
sections 2.0 - Position and Hiring, 7.0 - Payment of Contribution, 8.0 - Monitoring, 9.0 -

Indemnity and Insurance, 11.0 - Information and Acknowledgement, and this subsection 13.12.



7

Internship Project Number: 8500713

SCHEDULE B

POSITION DETAILS!JOB DESCRIPTION AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A. POSITION DETAILSIJOB DESCRIPTION — REFER TO SECTION E OF APPLICATION

JOB TITLE: Engineering Technician/Technologist

JOB DESCRIPTION:

The City of Temiskaming Shores wishes to hire an Engineering Technician/Technologist who,
under the supervision of the Director of Public Works will provide continued engineering support for
the Public Works Department in both the Transportation and Environmental Services divisions.
Secondary to this work would be the implementation and maintenance of the use of Municipal Data
Works (MDW) software that is supported by the Ontario Good Roads Association and available to
its members.

The key duties and responsibilities the intern will undertake will be the following:
Provide engineering support for the Public Works Department in both the Transportation and
Environmental Services
divisions by:
• Conducting field inspections during construction projects and service repair work;
• Coordinating the collection, verification and maintenance of all pertinent information/data related
to municipal
• infrastructure;
• Completing an accurate inventory of all infrastructure to be included in Municipal Data Works and
verify accuracy of the comprehensive Asset Management Plan;
• Updating the current Roads, Water and Sewer Needs Studies;
• Maintenance of the 911 municipal numbering system as well as the Entrance and Municipal
Servicing permitting process;
• Co-ordination of all Ontario One Call locate requests received by City to ensure compliance; and,
• Providing assistance with project development, management and administration.
Implementation of the use of Municipal Data Works software by:
• Refining, enhancing or developing an inventory system that will accurately reflect the information
to be reported/ recorded and tracked for current and future use;
• Entering all data to be included in Municipal Data Works in a manner that can be manipulated
and updated as
• required; and,
• Provide in house training to other city staff members to ensure maximum use.

The educational background being sought is a diploma in Civil Engineering Technology or
equivalent. Through the Ontario Association of Certified Engineering Technicians and
Technologists the successful candidate would be required to complete two (2) years of work
related training and as well as successfully complete a Professional Practice Exam to become
certified. The City of Temiskaming Shores is requesting that consideration be given towards a 2
year Engineering Technician / Technologist Intern position to coincide with the OACETT
requirements for successful completion.



8

B. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

START DATE: June 1, 2015 END DATE: May 31, 2016

# OF WEEKS HOURS PER HOURLY RATE WEEKLY TOTAL NOHFC NOHFC %
WEEK RATE WAGES CONTRIBUTION OF ELIGIBLE

COsTS*

52 35 $20.00 $700.00 $36,400.00 $31,500.00 86.5%

* Note: NOHFC’s % of Eligible Costs” is based on the weekly rate set out above, lithe Employer pays the
Intern more or less than that weekly wage, NOHFC will adjust the percentage accordingly so that in any
event the maximum NOHFC contribution per week does not exceed the weekly rate set out above multiplied
by the percentage set out above.



9
SCHEDULE C

Request for Reimbursement under the Northern Ontario Internship Program

This request for reimbursement form should be completed by the Employer and returned to the project officer assigned to the Employer
by NOHFC. A Statement of Account must accompany this form. If this is a final request for reimbursement, then a Statement of
Account and a Final Report (Schedule D attached) must accompany this request form.

General Information Internship Claim
NOHFC Number: 8500713 1st Claim El FinaiClaim El

.
Pay Period covered Pay Period covered

Job Title: Engineering Technician/Technologist From: From
To:

To:
Employment Start Date: Last Date Intern Worked:

Employer Profile
Employer Name: City of Temiskaming Shores Contact Name:

Contact Number(s):

NOTE: has your mailing address changed since you applied: Yes El No El
Provide Current Mailing Address: City or Town: Postal Code:

(Cheques will be mailed to your current mailing address, If the employer or payment address has changed;
written direction from the Employer will be required. For assistance please speak to your project officer.)

Funding Calculations
Maximum NOHFC Funding Approved: $ Claims to Date: $

Note: Eligible Costs” means the actual salary or wages paid to an Intern, which were incurred by the Employer
during the Work Term, but do not include:

(i) any benefits paid by the Employer including but not limited to: vacation pay; bonuses; gifts; termination or
severance pay; expenses and allowances; and group medical, dental, or life insurance; Employer Health
Tax (EHT); and

(ii) the Employer’s portion of any deductions including but not limited to contributions to the Canadian
Pension Plan and Employment Insurance (El) premiums

For Office Use Only

Eligible Costs on this Claim:
$

Percentage of Eligible Costs
payable by NOHFC:

%

Amount Claimed from NOHFC:
$

Claim Calculation (reference note below for eligible costs)
Total Weeks Worked: Total Hours per Week: Hourly Rate Paid: Weekly Rate Paid: Total Paid (this claim):

$ $

Declaration by Employer ._I

The undersigned hereby declares that all expenditures reported in this claim form are Eligible Costs under NOHFC’s Internship
program. Funds provided by NOHFC shall be used solely by the undersigned for the reimbursement of salary costs incurred
through the employment of the Intern under the Internship program. Evidence of reported expenditures will be provided if
requested. The Employer has fulfilled all applicable terms and conditions of the Northern Ontario Internship Agreement between
the Employer and NOHFC.

By:

_______________________________ ____________________________

Authorized Signature Date

Name (Print) Title

I



10

SCHEDULE D
Final Report

NOHFC Project Number: 8500713

Employer: City of Temiskaming Shores

Job Title: Engineering Technician/Technologist

Please provide an assessment of the Internship program

Have the objectives of the Position been met? (Please use Schedule B as a reference)

What is the employment status of the intern hired under the program?

El Intern will be hired full- time by this organization

El As a result of training received during the internship, the intern has secured full-time employment:

El In northern Ontario

El Outside northern Ontario

El None of the above — please explain:

_______________________

Supervisor signature:

________________________________

Date:

Name (Print)

_____________________________________



 

The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2015-128 

Being a by-law to establish a system for the Collection and 
Disposal of Garbage, Recyclables and other refuse 

‘ 

Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as amended, the 
powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to govern its affairs as it 
considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s ability to responds to municipal 
issues; 

And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, 
a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural person for the 
purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; 

And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  

And whereas The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores (the “City”) is the 
owner and operator of two (2) municipal landfill sites (“Haileybury Landfill” and “New 
Liskeard Landfill”) located within the boundaries of the City; 

And whereas Council for the Corporation of The City of Temiskaming Shores deems it 
desirable to regulate the disposal of garbage by way of landfill bans, recycling and home 
composting systems; 

And whereas Council considered Memo No. 022-2015-CGP at the June 2, 2015 
Regular meeting of Council and directed staff to prepare the necessary by-law for Solid 
Waste Management for consideration of first and second reading at the June 2, 2015 
Regular meeting of Council; 

And whereas Council directed staff to submit the by-law to the Ministry of Attorney 
General and Regional Senior Justice for approval of the short form wording and set fines 
prior to third reading; 

Now therefore the Council of the Corporation of The City of Temiskaming Shores 
hereby enacts as follows: 

1. That municipal Council adopts a “Solid Waste Management” Regulation, a copy 
of which is attached hereto as Schedule “A” and forming part of this by-law; and 

2. That this By-law shall become effective on the date of passing thereof; 

3. That By-law No. 2015-021, as amended is hereby repealed; 

4. That the Clerk of the City of Temiskaming Shores is hereby authorized to make 
any minor modifications or corrections of an administrative, numerical, 
grammatical, semantically or descriptive nature or kind to the By-law and 
schedule as may be deemed necessary after the passage of this By-law. 



 

Read a first and second time this 2nd day of June, 2015. 
 
 

___________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 

 
 
 

___________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 
 
 

 
Read a third time and finally passed this 16th day of June, 2015. 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 

 
 

___________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 



 

 

 
 
 

Schedule “A” to 

By-law No. 2015-128 

Solid Waste Management 

 

 

 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

i 

Table of Contents 
 

Section 1 - Title, Application and Scope ...................................................................... 1 

1.1 Short Title ........................................................................................................................ 1 

1.2 Application ....................................................................................................................... 1 

1.3 Conflicts ........................................................................................................................... 1 

1.4 Enforcement .................................................................................................................... 1 

Section 2 - Definitions ................................................................................................... 1 
Section 3 – Administration ........................................................................................... 7 

3.1 Solid Waste Management ............................................................................................... 7 

3.2 Performance of Work described in By-law ...................................................................... 7 

3.3 Waste Diversion Levy ...................................................................................................... 7 

3.4 Waste Diversion Plan ....................................................................................................... 7 

3.5 Duties - Director of Public Works ..................................................................................... 7 

3.6 Duties – Corporate Services Department ........................................................................ 9 

3.7 Duties – Owner ................................................................................................................ 9 

3.8 Duties – Construction Companies ................................................................................. 12 

Section 4 – Collection Services ............................................................................................ 12 

4.1 Single Dwelling .............................................................................................................. 12 

4.2 Low-Density Residential Building................................................................................... 12 

4.3 Multi-Unit Residential Building ...................................................................................... 13 

4.4 ICI Establishments .......................................................................................................... 13 

4.5 Frequency of Collection Services/ Limitations .............................................................. 13 

4.6 Assisted Waste Collection Program............................................................................... 14 

4.8 Statutory Holidays ......................................................................................................... 14 

4.9 Municipal Hazardous or Special Waste ......................................................................... 14 

4.10 Organic Materials .......................................................................................................... 14 

4.11 Yard Waste .................................................................................................................... 14 

4.12 Bulky Items .................................................................................................................... 15 

Section 5 - Private Waste Collection Operations .................................................. 15 

5.1 Private Collection Services ............................................................................................ 15 

5.2 Arrangements for Private Collection ............................................................................. 15 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

ii 

5.3 Private Collection – Provisions ...................................................................................... 15 

Section 6 - Landfill Site/Spoke Transfer Station ....................................................... 16 

6.1 Landfill Site/ Spoke Transfer Station – General Restrictions ......................................... 16 

6.2 Asbestos Waste Disposal ............................................................................................... 17 

6.3 Refusal Rights ................................................................................................................ 18 

6.4 Order to Leave Landfill Site/Spoke Transfer Station ..................................................... 18 

6.5 Trespassing – Police Assistance ..................................................................................... 18 

6.6 Landfill Site/ Spoke Transfer Station Operation – Disposal Fees .................................. 18 

6.7 Landfill Site/Spoke Transfer Station Operation – Hours of Operation .......................... 19 

Section 7 – Privately-Owned Waste Disposal Sites .................................................. 19 

7.1 Authorization to Operate Private-Owned Waste Disposal Site .................................... 19 

7.2 Right to impose conditions for Operation of Privately-Owned Waste Disposal Site .... 19 

7.3 Other Approvals required to Operate Privately-Owned Waste Disposal Site............... 19 

Section 8 - General Provisions and Prohibitions ................................................. 19 

8.1 General Waste Provisions.............................................................................................. 19 

8.2 Pet Excrement ............................................................................................................... 20 

8.3 Animal Carcasses ........................................................................................................... 21 

8.4 Inspection ...................................................................................................................... 21 

8.5 Notice to Remove Waste ............................................................................................... 21 

8.6 Notice of Default ........................................................................................................... 21 

8.7 Order to Suspend Waste Collection Services ................................................................ 22 

8.8 Service of Notices and Orders ....................................................................................... 22 

8.9 Reinstatement of Waste Collection Services................................................................. 22 

8.10 Liability for Damage to Landfill Site and/or Spoke Transfer Station ............................. 23 

8.11 Costs Recoverable in like manner as Property Taxes .................................................... 23 

Section 9 - Enforcement and Penalties ...................................................................... 23 

9.1 Penalties – Individuals ................................................................................................... 23 

9.2 Penalties – Corporation ................................................................................................. 23 

9.3 Subsequent Conviction .................................................................................................. 23 

9.4 Order of Prohibition ...................................................................................................... 23 

9.5 Set Fines......................................................................................................................... 23 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

iii 

Appendix 01 – Recyclable Materials  

Appendix 02 – Organic Materials, Yard Waste & Amnesty Program  

Appendix 03 – Tipping Fees  

Appendix 04 – Prohibited Waste  

Appendix 05 – Part 1 Provincial Offices Act – Set Fines 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

1 

Section 1 - Title, Application and Scope 

1.1 Short Title 

This By-law shall be cited as the “Solid Waste Management” By-law. 

1.2 Application 

The Provisions of this By-law shall apply to all properties within the geographic limits of 
the City of Temiskaming Shores. 

1.3 Conflicts 

Where a provision of this By-law conflicts with a provision of another By-law in force in 
the City of Temiskaming Shores; the provisions that establish the higher standard shall 
prevail in order to protect the health, safety and welfare of the general public. 

When any provision of this By-law is declared invalid for any reason by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this By-law shall continue to be in force. An 
invalid provision will not void the entire By-law. 

1.4 Enforcement 

This By-law shall be enforced by the Director of Public Works, a By-law Enforcement 
Officer, a Fire Prevention Officer, a Chief Fire Official, or a Police Officer. 

Section 2 - Definitions 

For the purpose of this By-law, the words and terms in italics in the by-law shall have the 
following definitions and interpretations given in this section shall govern. The use of the 
defined terms in either its singular or plural form shall have the same meaning. Words 
and phrases used in this By-law which are not included in Section 2.0 shall have the 
meanings which are commonly assigned to them in the context in which they are used. 

2.1 Aerosol container means any empty aerosol container, which falls within the 
meaning of the definition of “empty container” in the regulations made under the 
Environmental Protection Act; 

2.2 Alternating Weekly Collection means where the recycling container is collected 
one week, the garbage container is collected on the next or alternating week; 

2.3 Appendix means all regulations attached to and forming part of this By-law 
including any amendments thereto; 

2.4 Approved Container includes: 

i. Garbage Container means the container provided by the City for the 
storage of garbage; designed for automated collection services. 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

2 

ii. Organics Container means the container designated to store and collect 
organic materials, which meets the requirements established for collection of 
organic materials; 

2.5 Recycling Container means the container provided by the City for the storage of 
recyclable materials; designed for automated collection services; 

2.6 Automated Collection means the collection of waste by means of the 
mechanical lifting and tipping of approved containers into specially designed 
collection vehicles; 

2.7 Bi-Weekly Collection means materials are collected one day every two weeks; 

2.8 Books means all soft and hard covered books; 

2.9 Boxboard means non-corrugated cardboard packaging such as cereal and 
shoeboxes, and any similar rigid paper packaging with the metal or plastic 
portion or both removed; 

2.10 Bulky Items means  large items including, but not limited to, white goods, 
bicycles, floor lamps, mattresses, furniture, microwaves, sinks, toilet bowls, 
barrels, pool pumps, pool covers and any other similar discarded material; 

2.11 By-law Enforcement Officer means the person or persons duly appointed by 
Council as Municipal Law Enforcement Officers for the purpose of enforcing 
regulatory by-laws of the City; 

2.12 Chief Fire Official means the assistant to the Fire Marshal who is the Municipal 
Fire Chief or a member or members of the fire department appointed by the 
Municipal Fire Chief under Article 1.1.1.2 of Division C or a person appointed by 
the Fire Marshall under Article 1.1.1.1 of Division C; 

2.13 Christmas Trees means trees including but not limited to the pine, spruce, 
balsam or fir species, which are typically decorated for display during the 
Christmas season; 

2.14 City means the Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores;  

2.15 City Manager means the City Manager for the City and where applicable 
includes a person designated by the City Manager to perform that task or 
exercise that power in his or her place and stead; 

2.16 Collection Location means the location designated by the Director of Public 
Works for placement of approved containers for collection and removal as part of 
the City's waste collection system; 

2.17 Collection System means the City’s collection system for permitted waste, 
where collection services are provided; 

2.18 Common Pad Location means the system of collection of permitted waste 
placed in approved containers at a shared common area location; 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

3 

2.19 Contamination means the co-mingling of material in approved containers and/or 
dumpsters for containerized collection, referred to in the list below: 

i. Recyclable materials 

ii. Garbage 

Generally refers to any item which is not acceptable in either of the garbage 
containers or dumpster and/or recycling containers or dumpsters. In the case of 
recyclable materials, contamination also refers to recyclable materials which may 
be soiled or dirty, which renders such items non-recyclable.  

2.20 Containerized Collection means the system of collection of permitted waste 
placed in dumpsters; 

2.21 Contractor means any person, partnership or corporation and the employees of 
any such person, partnership or corporation with whom the City has entered into 
a contract or agreement; 

2.22 Corrugated Cardboard  means any paper board product which is composed of 
a rippled, flute or wave-shaped paper insert with paper liners bonded to the 
outside of the product and which does not have contaminants; 

2.23 Council means the municipal Council of the City of Temiskaming Shores; 

2.24 Curbside Collection means the system of collection of permitted waste placed 
in approved containers at a collection location, which is at or near the curb; 

2.25 Director of Public Works means the Director of Public Works for the City and 
where applicable includes a person designated by the Director of Public Works to 
perform that task or exercise that power in his or her place and stead; 

2.26 Environmental Protection Act means the Environmental Protection Act, R.S.O. 
1990, c.E.19, as amended; 

2.27 E-Waste means electronic items as defined by Phase 1 of the Waste Electrical 
Electronics Equipment (WEEE) Program and includes: laptop computers, 
desktop computers, peripherals such as keyboards and mice, monitors, desktop 
printers, disk drives, printers, fax machines and televisions; 

2.28 Farm Waste means any waste which is the normal by-product of farming 
operations within the City and excludes construction and demolition materials 
from any building or structure, compostable materials other than what may result 
from clearing land for farm operation purposes, recyclable material that can be 
placed for curbside collection, and other material deemed unacceptable for 
disposal at a landfill site by the Ministry of Environment or under this By-law; 

2.29 Fine Paper means computer paper and all white and coloured ledger, including 
writing pad paper, letterhead, reports, business forms, copy paper and scratch 
pads, flyers and envelopes; 

2.30 Fire Prevention Officer means the person or persons appointed by Council as 
Fire Prevention Officer; 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

4 

2.31 Gable Top Cartons means milk and juice cartons constructed of coated paper 
and opened by unfolding the top or screw cap; 

2.32 Garbage means all materials permitted to be discarded, save and except those 
materials defined by this By-law as bulky items, recyclable material, yard waste, 
sharp items, sharps; white goods, Christmas trees, organic material, prohibited 
wastes, and other non-collectable waste; 

2.33 Glass Bottles and Jars means all glass food and beverage bottles and jars; 

2.34  ICI Establishments (Industrial, Commercial and Institutional) means a: 

i. multi-unit residential building; i.e.  a building containing more than eight (8) 
dwelling units; 

ii. any establishment within the City that is not defined as a Residential Building; 
and 

iii. any other establishment as designated by the Director of Public Works; 

2.35 Landfill Site means an area of land designated by the City and approved by the 
Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change to be used for the disposal of 
solid waste, except for items listed in Appendix 01 and in Appendix 04 of this By-
law; 

2.36 Magazines/Catalogues means all magazines and catalogues bound with glue or 
stapled along the spine; 

2.37 Metal Food and Beverage Containers means all steel and aluminum food and 
beverage cans and containers; 

2.38 Municipality means the municipal land within the geographic limit of the City of 
Temiskaming Shores; 

2.39 Newspapers means all newspapers including the inserts that are delivered 
therein; 

2.40 Non-Collectible Waste means any item designated by Council or the Director of 
Public Works which is not permitted to be collected within the City’s waste 
collection system; 

2.41 Occupant means any person over the age of eighteen (18) years in possession 
of property, or any person who occupies the premise under a lease or license, or 
with the permission of the owner; 

2.42 Organic Material means those items described in Appendix 02 or as designated 
by the Director of Public Works to be collected separately for the purpose of 
organic materials collection; 

2.43 Owner includes but is not limited to: 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

5 

i. A person, corporation, partnership or any other legal entity that is the 
registered owner of a property, land or premise; 

ii. Both the owner in trust and the beneficial owner of property which is subject 
to this By-law; 

iii. The person for the time being managing or receiving the rent of the 
property, which is subject to this By-law, in connection with which the word 
is used, whether on the person’s own account or as agent or trustee of any 
other person or who receive the rent if the property was let; and 

iv. A lessee or occupant of the private property, which is subject to this By-law; 

2.44 Paper Cores means the cardboard paper roll used for toilet paper or paper 
towels; 

2.45 Person means an individual, firm, partnership, association, corporation, 
company, or organization of any kind, and may include the heirs, executors or 
legal representatives of a person;  

2.46 Plastic Film refers to all plastic grocery, retail store, milk bags and pouches, 
frozen food, bulk food, breads, meat and cheese bags and wrap, over wrap from 
boxed products, stretch wrap, cereal wrap, snack food bags and the like; 

2.47 Police Officer means a member of the Ontario Provincial Police; 

2.48 Private Collection means a person or corporation in the business of transporting 
waste to the landfill site or spoke transfer station by any means, including but not 
limited to personal vehicles and commercial vehicles, except while operating 
such vehicles under contract to the City; 

2.49 Private Property means property, which is privately-owned and is not the City’s 
property, or property of a local board, or property of the Crown in Right of 
Ontario, the Crown in Right of Canada or any emanations thereof; 

2.50 Prohibited Wastes means those items described in Appendix 04, or designated 
by the Director of Public Works; 

2.51 Public Property means property, which is the City’s property, or property of a 
local board, or property of the Crown in Right of Ontario, the Crown in Right of 
Canada or any emanations thereof; 

2.52 Recyclable Materials means those items described in Appendix 01 or as 
designated by the Director of Public Works; 

2.53 Residential Building includes: 

i. Low-Density Residential Building means a property on which is 
situated a  duplex, apartment building, townhouse complex, co-operative 
housing complex or other similar residential complex containing less than 
nine (9) dwelling units; 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

6 

ii. Dwelling Unit means one or more rooms connected together as a self-
contained, separate household in the same building comprising of part of 
the building and constituting an independent housekeeping unit for 
residential occupancy by persons and may contain facilities for persons to 
sleep, cook and eat and including its own sanitary facilities; 

iii. Single Dwelling means a residence designed for one household only; 

2.54 Scavenge/Scavenging means the unauthorized removal of solid waste;  

2.55 Semi-automated collection means manually assisted automated collection of 
waste from collection locations in approved containers; 

2.56 Sharp Items includes windows, drinking glasses, dishes, ceramics, mirrors, light 
bulbs, sheet metal and other objects capable of cutting or puncturing but does 
not include sharps; 

2.57 Sharps includes used and unused hypodermic needles, insulin pen tips, lancets 
and glass pipe stems; 

2.58 Solid Waste means discarded materials which: 

i. Includes, but is not limited to garbage, bulky items, yard waste, farm waste, 
Christmas Trees; non-collectable waste; white goods; E-Waste; sharp items  
and  

ii. Are in a solid physical state, as determined by the “slump test” prescribed by 
the regulations passed under the provisions of the Environmental Protection 
Act; and 

iii. materials set forth in Appendix 01 and Appendix 04 to this By-law and such 
other materials as may from time-to-time be designated by the Director of 
Public Works as solid waste; 

2.59 Spoke Transfer Station means any area of land or buildings in the City 
designated as a spoke transfer station by the City for the temporary storage of 
recyclable materials  intended to be transferred to a recycling processing facility; 

2.60 Street  means a common and public highway, street, roadway, crescent, avenue, 
parkway, driveway, square, place, bridge, viaduct, trestle or other such place 
designated and intended for, or used by the general public for the passage or 
parking of vehicles and includes the area of land between the lateral property 
lines thereof; 

2.61 Transient Waste shall mean any solid waste including recyclable materials 
carried into the municipality from outside its boundaries by any person; 

2.62 White Goods includes, but may not be limited to refrigerators, ovens/stoves, 
washers, dryers, dishwashers, freezers, air conditioning units, microwave ovens, 
hot water tanks, or other items containing ozone depleting substances; and 

2.63 Yard Waste means those items described in Appendix 02 or as designated by 
the Director of Public Works. 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

7 

Section 3 – Administration 

3.1 Solid Waste Management 

The City shall operate a solid waste management system for the collection, removal and 
disposal of solid waste in accordance with the provisions of this By-law. 

3.2 Performance of Work described in By-law 

The City may contract with any person or company for the performance of the whole of 
or any part of the work described in this By-law. 

3.3 Waste Diversion Levy 

Each single dwelling, dwelling unit and ICI establishment entitled to the City’s collection 
system will be subject to a waste diversion levy.  

3.4 Waste Diversion Plan 

An owner or his/her agent shall submit a Waste Diversion Plan to maximize the amount 
of construction, renovation, or demolition (CRD) waste to be diverted from disposal 
through salvage, reuse and recycling, prior to the issuance of a building or demolition 
permit.   

3.5 Duties - Director of Public Works 

3.5.1 Collection Program 

i. The Director of Public Works shall supervise and administer a solid waste 
management system and shall be responsible for its operation in accordance 
to this By-law. 

ii. The Director of Public Works shall establish waste reduction, recycling and 
recovery programs as deemed appropriate. 

iii. The Director of Public Works shall administer the By-law with the power to 
determine: 

a) the level and type of collection service provided to residential buildings 
and ICI establishments; 

b) the location where garbage, bulky items, recyclable materials, yard 
waste and organic materials are placed out for collection at residential 
buildings and ICI establishments; 

c) the location where approved containers are stored at the property for 
residential buildings and ICI establishments; 

d) the scheduling of collection services, including collection day or the 
changes to collection schedules or services; 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

8 

e) whether a building, collection location, or property is safe for entry by 
any employees of the City or its contractor having regard to the physical 
condition and layout, loading facilities, method of handling collectible 
waste at the building, collection location or property; 

f) new types of non-collectable waste and new types of recyclable 
materials  and organic materials; 

g) the level and type of service to any land or building owned or leased by 
the Crown in right of Canada, the Crown in right of Ontario, a school 
board, a university, a community college, a hospital, or to any property 
for which no taxes are paid and for which no grants in lieu are received;  

h) the refusal to collect permitted solid waste at a property otherwise 
entitled to collection services, and can designate this authority to the 
Contractor; and 

i) any other matter necessary for the administration of this By-law. 

iv. Should emergency conditions arise that, in the opinion of the Director of 
Public Works, imperil the municipal landfill site, the spoke transfer station or 
other solid waste handling facility(s) and the collection system, the Director of 
Public Works shall: 

a) take all remedial measures as may be deemed necessary, which may 
include limiting or stopping the collection of solid waste in any area for 
any purpose; 

b) expend money and employ workers as needed to restore the City’s solid 
waste collection system; and 

c) report to Council as soon as practical after such measures have been 
taken. 

3.5.2 Acceptance of Solid Waste at Landfill Site and Spoke Transfer Station 

a) The Director of Public Works is authorized, subject to any limitations contained in 
this By-law or applicable legislation, to do each of the following with respect to 
accepting solid waste: 

i. negotiate the terms and conditions of an agreement accepting waste, 
other than recyclable materials, into a landfill site where not otherwise 
authorized under this By-law, and recommend such agreement to 
Council; and 

ii. negotiate the terms and conditions of an agreement accepting recyclable 
materials at a spoke transfer station where not otherwise authorized 
under this By-law, and to sign such an agreement.  

 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

9 

3.5.3 Guidelines 

The Director of Public Works is authorized, subject to any limitations contained in this 
By-law or applicable legislation, to establish from time-to-time, guidelines: 

i. for the disposition of various forms of waste in accordance with federal or 
provincial statutes and regulations and municipal by-laws; 

ii. as to what constitutes non-collectible waste and other forms of waste for 
which no waste collection services are available; and 

iii. for the packing of various forms of waste. 

3.5.4 Residential Densities 

The Director of Public Works is authorized, subject to any limitations contained in this 
By-law, to determine whether a property is a multi-unit residential building, or a low-
density residential building, by reference to the number of dwelling units recorded for 
that property in the data base maintained, and operated by the Municipal Property 
Assessment Corporation (MPAC) and used by the City. 

3.5.5 Amnesty Program 

The Director of Public Works is authorized, subject to any limitations contained in this 
By-law, to establish for the purposes of Appendix 02 to this By-law, the associated 
dates for the annual amnesty program. 

3.5.6 General Provision 

The Director of Public Works is authorized, subject to any limitations contained in this 
By-law or applicable legislation, to deal with any other matter necessary for the 
administration of this By-law. 

3.6 Duties – Corporate Services Department 

The Corporate Services Department shall collect fees associated with the solid waste 
management system.  

3.7 Duties – Owner 

3.7.1 Approved Containers 

i. The approved container(s) is/are assigned to the designated property, and 
not to the owner; 

ii. Each owner shall only utilize the approved container(s) provided by the City 
designed for automated collection and semi-automated collection;  

iii. Each owner shall maintain the approved container(s) at the owner’s expense; 

iv. Each owner shall contact the City if an approved container is damaged by the 
Contactor or by the City, for the repair of the container at no cost to the 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

10 

owner;  

v. No owner shall alter or modify the approved containers without the written 
consent of the Director of Public Works;  

vi. No owner shall damage the approved containers through neglect, wilful 
damage or non-compliance with any part of this By-law. The owner shall be 
responsible for the full cost of replacement of the approved container or parts 
for the container(s), along with any applicable fees; 

vii. Each owner shall contact the local police detachment to file a police report if 
an approved container(s) is stolen. The owner shall provide the City with a 
copy of the police report, or a signed affidavit confirming that a police report 
has been filed, prior to the City issuing a new container at no cost to the 
owner; 

viii. No owner shall set out a container for collection that: 

a) Is not an approved container; 

b) Contains contamination; 

c) Is damaged to the extent that it is unsafe to manoeuvre; 

d) Has graffiti;  

e) Is not properly placed at the collection location, as defined in subsection 
3.7.3. of this By-law; 

f) Exceeds the allowable weight limits for the approved container: 

(1) Garbage Container – 100 pounds (45.4 kg); 

(2) Recycling Container – 120 pounds (54.4 kg); 

g) Has not been cleared of snow and/or ice; 

h) Is secured with bungee cords, ties, or other lid securing device(s); 
and/or  

i) Is unclean or unsanitary. 

3.7.2 Storage Area  

i. No owner shall store, place or leave any solid waste for collection in a 
location which is a nuisance to any person, whether or not in an approved 
container. 

ii. No owner shall store an approved container at the collection location unless 
authorized by the Director of Public Works. 

iii. No owner shall keep the storage area for approved containers in an unclean 
or unsanitary condition. 

  



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

11 

3.7.3 Placement of Approved Containers for Curbside Collection 

i. Each owner shall place approved containers as close as possible to the 
edge of the street off of the travelled portion of the road. 

ii. Each owner shall place the approved containers in an accessible location to 
ensure that the operator of the collection vehicle does not exit the vehicle to 
facilitate automated collection. 

iii. Each owner shall place an approved container no closer than three (3) feet 
from any obstruction. 

iv. Each owner shall keep the collection location clear of snow and litter. 

v. Each owner shall place the approved container with the arrows on the lid 
pointing towards the street. 

vi. No owner shall place approved containers to obstruct pedestrian and 
vehicular traffic, or maintenance operations. 

vii. No owner shall place approved containers in a location which the Director of 
Public Works deems unreasonable, inefficient or dangerous. 
 

3.7.4 Semi-Automated Collection – Common Pad Location  

i. No owner shall keep the storage area for approved containers in an unclean 
or unsanitary condition. 

ii. Each owner shall keep the common pad location clear of snow and litter. 

3.7.5 Waste Disposal Packing Standards  
 

i. Each owner shall pack any wet waste such as food waste, food 
contaminated paper, kitty litter and any other compostable material in a leak-
proof bag prior to placement in the approved container. 

ii. No owner shall bag recyclable materials within an approved container, 
except for shredded paper which shall be packaged in a clear plastic bag. 

iii. No owner shall fail to clean up any mess or debris created if waste spills 
from, or for any reason is no longer contained in the approved container. 

iv. No owner shall place garbage and/or recyclable material in such a manner 
that the lid of the approved container cannot completely close. 

v. No owner shall pack garbage and/or recyclable material too tightly that it 
cannot be emptied from the approved container. 
 

3.7.6 Timing 

i. No owner of a residential building shall place approved containers for 
curbside collection at ground level earlier than 8:00 p.m. on the evening 
before collection, but no later than 6:30 a.m. on the designated day for 
collection. 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

12 

ii. No owner of a residential building shall fail to remove the empty approved 
container from the collection location before 10:00 p.m. on the day of 
collection. 

iii. No owner of a residential building shall fail to remove uncollected waste from 
the collection location before 10:00 p.m. on the day of collection. 

iv. No owner of an ICI establishment shall place approved containers for 
curbside collection at ground level earlier than 5:00 p.m. the evening before 
collection, but no later than 6:30 a.m. on the designated day for collection. 

v. No owner of an ICI establishment shall fail remove the empty approved 
container from the collection location before 5:00 p.m. on the day of 
collection. 

vi. No owner of an ICI establishment shall fail to remove uncollected waste from 
the collection location before to 5:00 p.m. on the day of collection. 

 

3.8 Duties – Construction Companies 

In the event that any construction will disrupt automated collection services, each 
construction company shall be responsible to find an alternative solution or collection 
location for the approved containers, to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works. 

 
Section 4 – Collection Services 

The City will not provide waste collection services to any residential building or ICI 
establishment in the City for any form of waste, except as provided for in this Section, or 
by approval from the Director of Public Works. 

4.1 Single Dwelling 

The City will provide garbage and recycling collection services to each single dwelling by 
supplying one (1) garbage container and one (1) recycling container each designed for 
automated collection. 

4.2 Low-Density Residential Building  

The City will provide garbage and recycling collection services to low-density residential 
buildings. The service will be provided in the form of: 

i. Containerized Collection - one (1), two (2) yard dumpster for garbage and one (1), 
two (2) yard dumpster for recyclable materials; or  

ii. Automated Collection – garbage containers for collection of garbage and recycling 
containers for the collection of recyclable materials. 

The quantities of approved containers shall be based on the maximum number of 
dwelling units within a residential building. An owner of a low-density residential building 
may choose the quantity of the garbage and recycling containers, but if no choice is 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

13 

made, the Director of Public Works will select the default quantity of containers, i.e. one 
(1) garbage container and one (1) recycling container per dwelling unit.   

Low-density residential buildings containing four (4) dwelling units and under, shall not 
be eligible for containerized collection services for garbage or recyclable materials.  

4.3 Multi-Unit Residential Building 

Waste services for multi-unit residential buildings, will be the responsibility of the owner, 
except by approval from the Director of Public Works. 

4.4 ICI Establishments 

The City may provide each ICI establishment with one (1) garbage container and up to 
three (3) recycling containers, each designed for automated collection.  

4.5 Frequency of Collection Services/ Limitations 

4.5.1 The collection system for residential buildings and ICI establishment occurs 
on an alternating weekly collection schedule one day per week, between 
garbage and recyclable materials.  

4.5.2 Where access is restricted or limited for automated collection or for semi-
automated collection, alternative collection methods may be approved by the 
Director of Public Works. 

4.5.3 The owner of a residential building or an ICI establishment shall be 
responsible for the cost of any additional services and waste collections 
above the limits prescribed in this By-law. 

4.5.4 For low-density residential buildings receiving containerized collection, the 
bi-weekly collection limits per dwelling unit shall be: 

i. Garbage – four (4) regular sized garbage bags (26” x 32.5”), or capacity 
not to exceed a 65 gallons; and 

ii. Recyclable Materials – the equivalent of six (6) regular sized garbage 
bags (26” x 32.5”), or capacity not to exceed a 95 gallons; and 

iii. Non-collectable Waste – not permitted. 

4.5.5 For ICI establishments, the bi-weekly collection limits per shall be: 

i. Garbage – four (4) regular sized garbage bags (26” x 32.5”), or capacity 
not to exceed a 65 gallons; and 

ii. Recyclable Materials – the equivalent of eighteen (18) regular sized 
garbage bags (26” x 32.5”), or capacity not to exceed a 285 gallons;  

iii. Non-collectable Waste – not permitted. 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

14 

4.6 Assisted Waste Collection Program 

4.6.1 The City shall provide an assisted waste collection program to an owner of a 
residential building entitled to receive semi-automated collection from the City, 
provided that the owner meets eligibility requirements and completes the 
Assisted Waste Collection Service Application Form. Approval is at the discretion 
of the Director of Public Works, and is subject to an annual review. 
 

4.6.2 As a condition of service under subsection 4.6.1 of this By-law, the owner shall 
ensure that the approved containers are at all times freely accessible and not 
enclosed within any building or restricted area, and shall comply with the Waste 
Disposal Packing Standards as described in subsection 3.7.5 of this By-law.  
 

4.6.3 At no time shall the safety of City employees or its contractors be jeopardized.  
 

4.6.4 The City and its contractors are not responsible for any property damage as a 
result of executing this service. 

4.8 Statutory Holidays 

No automated collection, semi-automated collection, or containerized collection shall be 
made on the following holidays which fall on normal collection days:  New Year's Day, 
Family Day, Good Friday, Victoria Day, Canada Day, Labour Day, Thanksgiving Day, 
Christmas Day, Boxing Day, or any other day designated as a holiday, unless an 
emergency or exceptional situation, as deemed by the City, arises and collection must 
occur on a holiday. 

When a normal curbside collection day falls on a holiday, the collection shall be made 
one (1) day later, or as advertised by the City or its contractor. 

4.9 Municipal Hazardous or Special Waste 

The City does not collect on a regular basis Municipal Hazardous Waste or Special 
Waste (MHSW). The City does endeavour to provide at least annually, a MHSW 
collection event (Orange Drop) arranged and organized by the Director of Public Works. 

4.10 Organic Materials 

The City does not separately collect organic materials of any nature, using an organics 
container. Organic materials can be disposed of in the garbage container or at the 
landfill site in accordance to the applicable tipping fee, outlined in Appendix 03 attached 
hereto. 

4.11 Yard Waste  

The City does not collect yard waste of any nature, unless authorized by the Director of 
Public Works. Owners are responsible for the proper disposal of yard waste. Yard waste 
can be disposed of at a landfill site in accordance to the applicable tipping fee, described 
in Appendix 03 of this By-law. 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

15 

4.12 Bulky Items 

The City does not collect bulky items of any nature. Owners are responsible for the 
proper disposal of bulky items. Bulky items can be disposed of at a landfill site in 
accordance to the applicable tipping fee, outlined in Appendix 03 attached hereto. 
 

Section 5 - Private Waste Collection Operations 

5.1  Private Collection Services 

The City does not provide collection services to residential buildings or ICI 
establishments, beyond the limits established in Section 4 of this By-law. 

5.2 Arrangements for Private Collection 

The owner shall arrange for the private collection of waste if: 

i. the property is ineligible to receive collection services from the City; 

ii. collection services have been discontinued for any type of waste;  

iii. limitations established in Section 4 of this By-law are exceeded; or 

iv. waste is of a type for which collection services are not provided by the City. 

5.3 Private Collection – Provisions 

The owner who is required to arrange for private collection services shall ensure: 

i. that all waste is stored in properly constructed and maintained waste storage 
containers; 

ii. every storage container is emptied as necessary to prevent odours or other 
nuisances; 

iii. material does not overflow the storage container and lids or doors of storage 
containers are kept closed; 

iv. a container storage enclosure is provided which is adequate to contain all of the 
storage containers; 

v. that every storage container and any enclosure or other structure or building 
provided for the housing of storage containers are at all times maintained in a 
secure, clean; dry and sanitary condition, to prevent entry of or occupation by 
rodents, insects or other vermin; 

vi. that the waste is conveyed to the point of disposal at the expense of the owner of 
such waste; 

vii. that proof is provided if requested by the Director of Public Works that the waste 
has been transported to an appropriate landfill site in accordance with this By-law 
or legislative requirements; and 

viii. that prohibited waste(s) is/are kept separate from all other waste and stored in a 
container adequate for the safe storage and disposal of the prohibited waste(s). 
 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

16 

Section 6 - Landfill Site/Spoke Transfer Station 

6.1 Landfill Site/ Spoke Transfer Station – General Restrictions 

6.1.1 No person shall deposit waste at any landfill site outside the hours of 
operation as posted at the site. 

6.1.2 No person shall deposit recyclable materials at the spoke transfer station 
outside of hours of operation, unless where approved waste disposal 
containers have been provided for that purpose. 

6.1.3 No person shall, except as provided herein, deposit any prohibited waste at 
any landfill site or at the spoke transfer station. 

6.1.4 No person shall deposit for landfilling purposes any recyclable materials, any 
e-waste or any other form of waste determined by the Director of Public 
Works collectable under another type of diversionary program. 

6.1.5 No person shall deposit at a landfill site or at the spoke transfer station any 
waste determined by the Director of Public Works to require segregation or 
special handling contrary to the site attendant’s direction;  

6.1.6 No person shall deposit septic tank effluent at any location in a landfill site, or 
at the spoke transfer station. 

6.1.7 No person shall set any fire at any landfill site or at the spoke transfer 
station. 

6.1.8 No person shall deposit waste at the gate or entrance to a landfill site or to 
the spoke transfer station, or at any place other than the designated location. 

6.1.9 No person shall neglect or refuse to provide proof of the origin of waste 
tendered for disposal at a landfill site or at the spoke transfer station when 
such is demanded.  

6.1.10 No person shall deposit waste at any landfill site or at the spoke transfer 
station when the attendant at the site refuses deposit of the waste on the 
grounds that the origin of the waste has not been satisfactorily proven. 

6.1.11 No person shall deposit waste at any landfill site or at the spoke transfer 
station when such deposit has been forbidden by the Director of Public 
Works. 

6.1.12 No person shall operate a motor vehicle at a landfill site or at the spoke 
transfer station other than on a designated route, without due care or 
attention. 

6.1.13 No person shall scavenge at any landfill site, or spoke transfer station 
without the prior written approval of the Director of Public Works. 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

17 

6.1.14 No person shall transport waste to or at any landfill site or the spoke transfer 
station except in properly covered containers or in carts, wagons, or 
vehicles, totally enclosed or covered in canvas, tarpaulins or nets, so 
fastened down around the edges to prevent any of the contents from falling 
upon the ground during transport. 

6.1.15 No person shall deposit waste at any landfill site or at the spoke transfer 
station while barred from doing so. 

6.1.16 No person shall deliver any tires to any landfill site co-mingled with any other 
waste. 

6.1.17 No person shall deposit tires with attached rims at any landfill site or spoke 
transfer station. 

6.1.18 No person shall co-mingle white goods with other waste delivered to the 
landfill site or the spoke transfer station. 

6.1.19 No person shall deposit an ozone depleting appliance at a landfill site or the 
spoke transfer station in any location other than the location designated by 
the Director of Public Works for that purpose. 

6.1.20 No person shall deposit any containing ozone depleting appliances at a 
landfill site unless in an upright position. 

6.1.21 No person shall attend at any landfill site or at the spoke transfer station 
except for the purposes of depositing waste, or for other lawful business, 
without the written approval of the Director of Public Works. 

6.1.22 No person shall trespass on any landfill site or the spoke transfer station. 

6.1.23 No person shall deliver or deposit at any landfill site, or spoke transfer station 
any transient waste unless they have entered into an agreement with the 
City. 

6.2 Asbestos Waste Disposal 

6.2.1 No person shall unload or dispose of asbestos waste. 

6.2.2 Notwithstanding subsection 6.2.1., the unloading or disposal shall be in 
accordance with the following conditions: 

i. All asbestos waste must be contained in a rigid, impermeable, sealed container 
of sufficient strength to accommodate the weight and nature of the waste. If the 
container is a cardboard box, the waste must be placed in a polyethylene bag 
placed within the box. The container must be free from punctures, tears or 
leaks. The external surface of the container and the vehicle used for the transport 
of the asbestos waste must be free from asbestos waste; 

ii. During unloading, the packaged asbestos waste materials shall be handled 
individually and care taken to place the package in the designated area to avoid 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

18 

spillage. This unloading shall be the responsibility of the contractor and shall not 
be done by a site attendant; 

iii. The unloading shall only be done in the presence of a site attendant to ensure 
that no loose asbestos waste or broken containers are unloaded and that no 
airborne particulate is generated; 

iv. In the event that loose asbestos waste or broken containers are found, the 
contractor shall repackage the material with additional containers or bags; 

v. The containers shall be placed directly in the designated area which has been 
prepared by the site attendant and immediately after unloading, the containers 
shall be covered by the site attendant; 

vi. The contractor shall contact the City twenty-four (24) hours prior to delivery to 
allow for preparation of the location; and 

vii. Asbestos waste is only accepted by appointment booked in advance. The 
Director of Public Works reserves the right to limit or refuse the acceptance of 
asbestos waste. 

6.3 Refusal Rights 

The City reserves the right to refuse the disposal of any material. Under special or 
emergency conditions, the Director of Public Works may accept waste which has been 
approved by the Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change. 

6.4 Order to Leave Landfill Site/Spoke Transfer Station 

The Director of Public Works or contractor may at any time order any person to leave 
the landfill site or spoke transfer station if such person: 

i. is scavenging; 

ii. is depositing waste contrary to this By-law;  

iii. is conducting any illegal activity; or 

iv. has no lawful reason to be at the landfill site or at the spoke transfer station. 

6.5 Trespassing – Police Assistance 

If any such person fails or refuses to leave in response to an order under Subsection 
6.4, the Director of Public Works or contractor may call for police assistance and cause 
trespass charges to be laid. 

6.6 Landfill Site/ Spoke Transfer Station Operation – Disposal Fees  

6.6.1 The City may from time-to-time establish fees for the use of the landfill site or 
the spoke transfer station by amendment to Appendix 03, and may inform 
users of the facilities of any changes to the disposal fees by posting a notice at 
the landfill site and spoke transfer station. 

6.6.2 Every person shall pay the applicable disposal fees and surcharges in full by 
cash or certified cheque to the site attendant before leaving the site and/or 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

19 

station unless a charge account has been approved in accordance with City 
policy. 

6.6.3 Any person applying the disposal fees or surcharges to a charge account in 
good standing will be required to provide the vehicle license plate to the 
attendant for proper processing of said account. 

6.6.4 Every person, group or municipality located outside the boundaries of the City 
who disposes of recyclable materials at the spoke transfer station must have 
approval from the Director of Public Works, and have entered into a formal 
agreement with the City. Fee associated with the disposal agreement shall be 
in accordance with Appendix 03 of this By-law. 

6.7 Landfill Site/Spoke Transfer Station Operation – Hours of Operation 

The landfill site and/or spoke transfer station shall be open to the public at times 
determined by the Director of Public Works. 

 

Section 7 – Privately-Owned Waste Disposal Sites 

7.1 Authorization to Operate Private-Owned Waste Disposal Site 

No person shall operate a privately-owned waste disposal site or other operation for the 
disposal of waste, either for his or her own use or for the use of others, without having 
first  received authorization from the Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change 
and shall comply with all applicable Official Plan and zoning by-laws prior. 

7.2 Right to impose conditions for Operation of Privately-Owned Waste Disposal Site 

The City may impose conditions on privately-owned waste disposal sites, and the 
applicant shall maintain his or her operation in conformity with the conditions. 

7.3 Other Approvals required to Operate Privately-Owned Waste Disposal Site 

All privately-owned waste disposal sites shall comply with all relevant City, Provincial 
and Federal approvals and standards. 

 

Section 8 - General Provisions and Prohibitions 

8.1 General Waste Provisions 

8.1.1 No person shall, unless authorized by the Director of Public Works, 
scavenge, interfere with, or scatter any waste or cause or permit the 
scavenging, interference with, or scattering of any waste, placed at a 
collection location for collection, whether or not in an approved container.  

8.1.2 Once waste enters the collection vehicle, it becomes the property of the City.  



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

20 

8.1.3 No person shall place any form of waste at the collection location for a 
property, unless waste collection services are provided for that type of waste 
at that property. 

8.1.4 No person shall place any form of waste at the collection location for a 
property unless the waste was generated on that property, without the prior 
consent of the owner of that property. 

8.1.5  No person shall, unless authorized by the Director of Public Works in writing, 
deposit or cause to be deposited or permit any contractor, agent or employee 
of such person to deposit any waste on or in any street, public property, 
private property, vacant lot, yard or watercourse. 

8.1.6 No person, unless authorized by the Director of Public Works, in writing, shall 
place waste on public property for collection by a private waste collection 
operator. 

8.1.7 No person shall permit any animal owned by him or her or under his or her 
control to pick-over, interfere with, remove or scatter any waste placed out for 
collection. 

8.1.8 No person shall deposit waste generated on private property into or beside 
public waste receptacles located on a street or public properties; 

8.1.9 No person shall deposit or cause to be deposited any waste other than in an 
landfill site and/or spoke transfer station;  

8.1.10 Natural soil, earth, sand, clay, gravel, loam, stones or any similar excavated 
material may be used to fill low lots;  

8.1.11 No person shall allow any liquid matter from any cesspool, septic field or 
vehicle, or allow any other objectionable liquid from any source whatsoever, 
to flow or drain upon streets, roadsides, ditches, gutters, public property or 
private property. 

8.2 Pet Excrement 

8.2.1 No person shall dispose of pet excrement from any pet with garbage unless the 
owner first wraps the pet excrement in absorbent paper, and places same in a 
sealed leak-proof bag.  

8.2.2 No person shall mix in with garbage, pet excrement exceeding 10% volume of 
the contents of the bag. 

8.2.3 No person shall deliver pet excrement to a landfill site unless the owner wraps 
the pet excrement in absorbent paper and places same in a sealed leak-proof 
bag, inside a further sealed leak-proof bag. 

8.2.4 No person shall fail to notify the site attendant at the landfill site the contents of ta 
bag include pet excrement. 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

21 

8.3 Animal Carcasses 

No person shall deposit or cause to be deposited the carcass of a dead animal at the 
spoke transfer station, or through curbside collection. 

8.4 Inspection 

8.4.1 A By-Law Enforcement Officer, a City employee or contractor responsible for 
the administration or collection of solid waste, may enter on land at any 
reasonable time for the purpose of carrying out an inspection to determine 
whether or not the following are being complied with: 

i. This By-law; 

ii. A notice, direction or order made under this By-law; 

iii. A condition of a notice or order issued under this By-law; or 

iv. An order made under s. 431 of the Municipal Act. 

8.4.2 A By-Law Enforcement Officer, a City employee or contractor may for the 
purposes of the inspection under subsection 8.4.1 of this By-law: 

i. require the production for inspection of documents or things relevant 
to the inspection;  

ii. inspect and remove documents or things relevant to the inspection for 
the purpose of making copies or extracts;  

iii. require information in writing or otherwise as required by the By-law 
Enforcement Officer from any person concerning a matter related to 
the inspection; or 

iv. alone or in conjunction with a person possessing special or expert 
knowledge, make examinations or take tests, samples or 
photographs necessary for the purposes of the inspection. 

8.4.3 A By-law Enforcement Officer may undertake an inspection pursuant to an 
order issued by a provincial judge or justice of the peace under section 438 of 
the Municipal Act, 2001 where he or she has been prevented or is likely to be 
prevented from carrying out an inspection under subsections 8.4.1 and 8.4.2. 
of this By-law. 

8.5 Notice to Remove Waste 

The Director of Public Works may give written notice to any person who deposits waste 
on public property advising that if such person fails to remove the waste within the time 
specified in the notice, the City may remove the waste at the expense of the person who 
deposited the waste. 

8.6 Notice of Default 

8.6.1 If the Director of Public Works is satisfied that a contravention of this By-law has 
occurred, he or she may give notice requiring the person who contravened this 
By-law or who caused or permitted the contravention, or the owner of the 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

22 

property on which the contravention occurred to cease the specified 
contravention, and/or take action to correct the contravention.  

8.6.2 A notice under subsection 8.6.1 of this By-law shall set out: 

i. Reasonable particulars of the contravention adequate to identify the 
contravention and the location of the property on which the contravention 
occurred; 

ii. The action to be completed, if applicable; and 

iii. The dates or dates by which there must be compliance with the notice.  

8.7 Order to Suspend Waste Collection Services 

Where a person or an owner of the property on which the contravention occurred, fails to 
remedy the contravention, the Director of Public Works may issue an order to suspend 
or discontinue waste collection services.  

8.8 Service of Notices and Orders  

8.8.1 A notice made under subsection 8.5 and/or 8.6.1 of this By-law, or an order 
made under subsection 8.7 of this By-law, may be served personally or by 
registered mail to the last known address of:  

i. the owner of the property where the contravention occurred; and 

ii. such other persons affected by it as the Director of Public Works making the 
notice determines. 

Service by registered mail shall be deemed to have taken place five business 
days after the date of mailing.  

8.8.2 In addition to service given in accordance with subsection 8.8.1, a notice made 
under 8.5 and/or 8.6.1 of this By-law, or an order made under section 8.7 of this 
By-law, may be served by a By-law Enforcement Officer placing a placard 
containing the notice in a conspicuous place on the property where the 
contravention occurred.  

8.8.3 Where service cannot be given in accordance with subsection 8.8.1, sufficient 
service is deemed to have taken place when given in accordance with subsection 
8.8.2. 

8.9 Reinstatement of Waste Collection Services 

Any person or owner may apply to the Director of Public Works in writing for the 
reinstatement of waste collection services, and upon satisfying the Director of Public 
Works that he or she are in compliance with this By-law, and that further contravention of 
this By-law is unlikely to occur, the Director of Public Works may reinstate full or partial 
waste collection services, subject to such conditions or terms as he or she considers 
appropriate. 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

23 

8.10 Liability for Damage to Landfill Site and/or Spoke Transfer Station 

Every person who, by act, offence, default, neglect or omission; occasions any loss, 
cost, damage or injury to the landfill site or spoke transfer station or any part or 
appurtenance thereof, is liable to the City for any and all financial losses and costs 
incurred as a result. 

8.11 Costs Recoverable in like manner as Property Taxes 

If payment is not made, the City may recover the outstanding amount by action or in the 
case of an owner, the same may be recovered in like manner as property taxes, in the 
sole discretion of the Director of Public Works, and the City’s treasurer is hereby 
authorized to take all necessary action to do so. 

 

Section 9 - Enforcement and Penalties 

9.1 Penalties – Individuals 

Every person who contravenes any provision of this By-law is, upon conviction, guilty of 
an offence, and shall be liable:  

i. on a first conviction, to a fine of not more than $10,000; and 
ii. on a subsequent conviction, to a fine of not more than $25,000 as authorized by 

the Municipal Act S.O. 2001 Chapter 25 Section 77(1). 

9.2 Penalties – Corporation 

Despite subsection 9.1, where the person convicted is a corporation, the maximum fines 
in Subsections 9.1 i) and 9.1 ii) are $50,000 and $100,000 respectively, as authorized by 
the Municipal Act S.O. 2001 Chapter 25 Section 77(2). 

9.3 Subsequent Conviction 

Where an offence is a continuing offence, each new day that the offence is continued 
shall constitute a separate and distinct offence.  

9.4 Order of Prohibition 

Where a person has been convicted of an offence, the court in which the conviction has 
been entered and any court of competent jurisdiction thereafter may, in addition to any 
other remedy and to any other penalty imposed by this By-law, make an order 
prohibiting the continuation or repetition of the offence by the person convicted. 

9.5 Set Fines 

9.5.1 Pursuant to Part 1 of the Provincial Offences Act, R.S.O. 1990, Chapter 
P.33, every person who contravenes this By-Law is liable to a set fine for 
each offence committed, as established under Appendix – 05 Set Fines 
annexed hereto. 



City of Temiskaming Shores  Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management By-law No. 2015–128 

 

 

24 

9.5.2 No action or proceeding under the provisions of this By-Law shall preclude 
the Municipality from the right and power to exercise any other right or 
remedy available to the Municipality.



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management Appendix 01 By-Law No. 2015-128 

 

 

Appendix 01 – Recyclable Materials 
 

 

Recyclable Materials 
 

In this By-law "recyclable materials” includes; 

recyclable containers includes the following forms of containers, which have 
been emptied of the contents and rinsed clean:  

a) food and beverage glass bottles and jars, including metal lids; 

b) metal food and beverage containers; 

c) cardboard cans such as from frozen juice, refrigerated dough, chips, 
and nuts; 

d) aluminum cans, foil, foil plates and foil trays; 

e) empty plastic containers (with the number 1 through 7); 

f) aseptic packaging, such as drink boxes; 

g) empty aerosol containers; 

h) foam polystyrene (Styrofoam) such as from takeout, egg cartons, 
drinking cups and meat trays;  

i) polycoat containers or gable top cartons, such as for milk and juice; 
and 

j) any other container designated by the Director of Public Works to be a 
recyclable container. 

recyclable papers includes the following: 

a) household paper, including junk mail, fine paper, non-foil gift wrap, non-foil 
greeting cards and envelopes;  

b) shredded paper (required packaging in a clear plastic bag); 

c) paper egg cartons; 

d) paper cores; 

e) paper bags, other than treated bags, such as flour, sugar, potato and pet food 
bags; 

f) newspapers and inserts; 

g) magazines/ catalogues and glossies; 

h) telephone directories; 

i) soft covered books and hard covered books (hardcover removed and recycled 
separately); and 

j) any other paper or paper products designated by the Director of Public Works to 
be recyclable papers. 

recyclable cardboard includes clean, unwaxed corrugated cardboard and box board; 

recyclable plastic film, includes grocery, shopping, dry cleaning, bread bags, 
vegetable/fruit bags, milk bags (outer and rinsed inner bag), outer wrap from packaging 
and bubbled plastic packaging.



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management Appendix 02 By-Law No. 2015-128 

 

 

Appendix 02 – Organic Materials, Yard Waste & Amnesty Program 
 

Organic Materials 
 
In this By-law "organic materials” includes materials that will breakdown 
naturally and turn into compost such as: 

a) food scraps; 
b) diapers; 
c) animal waste 
d) soiled paper food containers; and 
e) any other materials or products designated by the Director of Public 

Works to be organic materials. 
 

Yard Waste 
 

In this By-law, yard waste means: 
a) leaves; 
b) grass clippings: 
c) trees (excluding root balls); 
d) garden roots and cuttings; 
e) hedge and shrub trimmings; 
f) brush cuttings; 
g) twigs and branches; 
h) natural Christmas Trees, decorations removed; 
i) any other item determined by the Director of Public Works from time-to-time to be 

yard waste. 
 

Amnesty Program 
 

In this By-law “amnesty program” means a program that permits residents to drop of 
garbage at the landfill site without the application of a tipping fee. 
 
The amnesty program shall have the following restrictions/conditions applied: 
 

a) Applicable to residents of the City of Temiskaming Shores and is not applicable 
to ICI establishments; 

b) Deposit up to a maximum of two (2) cubic yards of waste (equivalent to a ½ ton 
truck load)  per amnesty week; 

c) Amnesty shall include no applicable Tipping Fees for brush; 
d) Tipping Fees remain applicable for prohibited waste;  
e) Surcharge fee remains applicable for White Goods containing freon gas or ozone 

depleting substances. 
 
The Director of Public Works shall establish two Amnesty weeks annually, 
once in the spring and once in the fall.   

 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management Appendix 03 By-Law No. 2015-128 

 

 

Appendix 03 – Tipping Fees 
 

Tipping Fees: Landfill Site 
 

Category Description 

Applicable Fee/ yard
3 

(Prices come into effect July 1st of each year)
 

Resident 
Non 

Resident  

1 
Flat Rate - $1.00 per bag up to a maximum of $3.00 (under one 
cubic yard) 

$3.00 $6.00 

2 

Residential/Commercial Garbage: includes abandoned residential 
or commercial waste, either animal or vegetable, organic waste, 
wearing apparel, broken crockery and refuse of a similar nature, 
but shall not include metal, weighty or bulky articles such as large 
appliances, furniture, barrels, bed springs, furnaces or anything of 
a similar nature. 

2015: $4.00 

2016: $5.00 

2017: $6.00 

2015: $8.00 

2016: $10.00 

2017: $12.00 

3 

Metals/Bulky Waste: Items whose large size precludes or 
complicates handling by normal collection, processing or disposal 
methods such as furniture and appliances. Also ferrous metal, 
aluminum, mixed metal, white goods and old vehicles. 

2015: $5.00 

2016: $6.00 

2017: $7.00 

2015: $10.00 

2016: $12.00 

2017: $14.00 

4 
Yard Waste: Includes clean wood, brush, yard and plant materials, 
suitable for composting purposes. 

No Fee $4.00 

5 

Non-Hazardous Waste: includes clean fill 2015: $5.00 

2016: $6.00 

2017: $7.00 

2015: $10.00 

2016: $12.00 

2017: $14.00 

6 

Inorganic Earth Like Material: includes reclaimed asphalt products, 
aggregate, and soils free of chemical contaminants. 

2015: $6.00 

2016: $7.00 

2017: $8.00 

2015: $12.00 

2016: $14.00 

2017: $16.00 

7 

Sorted Construction and Demolition Waste: Recyclable materials 
sorted from non – recyclable materials 

2015: $5.00 

2016: $10.00 

2017: $15.00 

2015: $5.00 

2016: $10.00 

2017: $15.00 

8 

Unsorted Construction and Demolition Waste 2015: $15.00 

2016: $20.00 

2017: $25.00 

2015: $30.00 

2016: $40.00 

2017: $50.00 

9 

Contaminated Waste: includes excavated soils containing organic 
or hydrocarbon contaminants at a level that is acceptable to the 
Ministry of the Environment for disposal at the Municipality’s 
Landfill Site.  

Asbestos waste includes $100.00 flat rate, plus tipping fee. 

$50.00 $100.00 

10 Freon Containing Items $75 each $150 each 

11 

Rubber Tires: 

No Fee 
Passenger Vehicle and Light Truck Tires 

Medium Truck Tires 

Small and Medium Off-the-Road Tires 

 

Notes:  

1. All other tire sizes will not be accepted at the Landfill Site; 

2. Landfill attendant shall accept up to a total of four (4) tires per drop off; 

3. Tires still on a rim will not be accepted. 

Note: The landfill site will only accept waste that is within the conditions of the Certificate of 
Approval.  



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management Appendix 04 By-Law No. 2015-128 

 

 

Appendix 04 – Prohibited Waste 
 

Prohibited Waste 
 
For the purposes of this By-law hazardous waste means: 
 

acute hazardous waste chemical hazardous waste chemical corrosive waste 

hazardous industrial waste ignitable waste PCB waste 

radioactive waste reactive waste severely toxic waste 

leachate toxic waste   

 
or any other waste determined by the Director of Public Works to be a hazardous 
waste. 
 
Pathological waste includes biomedical waste, whether solid or liquid, including but not 
limited to: 
 

animal or human organ 
animal or human bone, muscle 

or tissue 
used bandages, poultices, or 

dressings 

medicines, vitamins, drugs or 
vaccines 

needles, syringes or lancets vials 

 
or any other waste determined by the Director of Public Works to be pathological 
waste. 

 
Household Hazardous Waste includes any household product material or item, other 
than an empty container labelled as: 
 

corrosive or toxic reactive explosive 

Oxidizing poisonous infectious 

Flammable sharps  

 
or any other label or labels as may be established by the Director of Public Works from 
time to time as being prohibited. 
 

Asbestos Waste includes any solid or liquid waste that results from the removal of 
asbestos-containing construction or insulation materials or the manufacture of asbestos-
containing products and contains asbestos in more than a trivial amount or proportion. 

 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management Appendix 05 By-Law No. 2015-128 

 

 

Appendix 05 – Set Fines 

Part 1 Provincial Offences Act 
Set Fines 

 

Item 
No. 

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 

 Short Form Wording 
Provision Creating or 

Defining Offence 
Set Fine 

1. Alter approved container without written consent Sch A, s. 3.7.1 v. $ 125.00 

2. Damage approved container Sch A, s.3.7.1 vi.  $125.00 

3. Set out for collection non-approved container Sch A, s.3.7.1 vii. a) $125.00 

4. Set out for collection container that contains contamination       Sch A, s.3.7.1 vii. b) $125.00 

5. Set out for collection a container that is damaged Sch A, s.3.7.1 vii. c) $125.00 

6. Set out for collection a container that has graffiti  Sch A, s.3.7.1 vii. d) $125.00 

7. Set out for collection a container not placed at collection location Sch A, s.3.7.1 vii. e) $125.00 

8. Set out garbage container that exceeds the allowable weight Sch A, s.3.7.1 vii. f) (1) $125.00 

9. Set out recycling container that exceeds the allowable weight  Sch A, s.3.7.1 vii. f) (2) $125.00 

10. Set out for collection container not cleared of snow/ ice Sch A, s.3.7.1 vii. g) $125.00 

11. Set out for collection container with lid secured  Sch A, s.3.7.1 vii. h) $125.00 

12. Set out for collection container that is unclean/unsanitary Sch A, s.3.7.1 vii. i) $125.00 

13. Store solid waste in a location which is a nuisance Sch A, s.3.7.2 i. $125.00 

14. Store approved container at collection location Sch A, s.3.7.2 ii. $125.00 

15. Keep storage area for approved containers in unclean condition Sch A, s.3.7.2 iii. $125.00 

16. Place approved container obstructing traffic Sch A, s.3.7.2 vi. $125.00 

17. Place approved container in unreasonable location Sch A, s.3.7.3 vii. $125.00 

18. Keep common pad storage area in unclean/ unsanitary condition Sch A, s.3.7.4. i. $125.00 

19. Bag recyclable materials within an approved container  Sch A, s. 3.7.5 ii. $125.00 

20. Fail to clean up debris spilled from approved container Sch A, s. 3.7.5 iii. $125.00 

21. Place waste in such manner that lid cannot completely close Sch A, s. 3.7.5 iv. $125.00 

22. Pack waste too tightly in approved container Sch A, s. 3.7.5 v. $125.00 

23. At residential building place approved container before 8:00 p.m. 
previous day  

Sch A, s. 3.7.6 i. $125.00 

24. At residential building fail to remove approved container before 
10:00 p.m. collection day 

Sch A, s. 3.7.6 ii. $125.00 

25. At residential building fail to remove uncollected waste before 
10:00 p.m. collection day 

Sch A, s. 3.7.6 iii. $125.00 

26. At ICI establishment place approved container before 5:00 p.m. 
previous day   

Sch A, s. 3.7.6 iv. $125.00 

27. At ICI establishment fail to removed approved container before 
5:00 pm collection day 

Sch A, s. 3.7.6 v. $125.00 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management Appendix 05 By-Law No. 2015-128 

 

 

Appendix 05 – Set Fines 

28. At ICI establishment fail to remove uncollected waste before 
5:00 pm collection day 

Sch A, s. 3.7.6 vi. $125.00 

29. Deposit waste at landfill site outside hours of operation Sch A, s. 6.1.1 $125.00 

30. Deposit recyclable materials at spoke transfer site outside hours 
of operation  

Sch A, s. 6.1.2 $125.00 

31. Deposit prohibited waste at landfill site/ spoke transfer station Sch A, s. 6.1.3 $125.00 

32. Deposit recyclable materials at landfill site Sch A, s. 6.1.4 $125.00 

33. Deposit waste at landfill site contrary to direction   Sch A, s. 6.1.5 $125.00 

34. Deposit septic tank effluent at landfill site/ spoke transfer station  Sch A, s. 6.1.6 $125.00 

35. Set fire at landfill site/ spoke transfer station Sch A, s. 6.1.7 $125.00 

36. Deposit waste at entrance to landfill site/ spoke transfer station Sch A, s. 6.1.8 $125.00 

37. Refuse to provide proof of the origin of waste Sch A, s. 6.1.9 $125.00 

38. Deposit waste at landfill site/ spoke transfer station despite 
refusal by attendant 

Sch A, s. 6.1.10 $125.00 

39. Deposit waste at landfill site/ spoke transfer station when 
forbidden 

Sch A, s. 6.1.11 $125.00 

40. Operate motor vehicle other than on a designated route Sch A, s. 6.1.12 $125.00 

41. Scavenge at landfill site/ spoke transfer station Sch A, s. 6.1.13 $125.00 

42. Fail to prevent waste from falling to ground during transport Sch A, s. 6.1.14 $125.00 

43. Deposit waste at landfill site/ spoke transfer station while barred Sch A, s. 6.1.15 $125.00 

44. Deposit at landfill site tires co-mingled with other waste Sch A, s. 6.1.16 $125.00 

45. Deposit at landfill site/ spoke transfer station tires with attached 
rims  

Sch A, s. 6.1.17 $125.00 

46. Deposit at landfill site/ spoke transfer station white goods co-
mingled with other waste  

Sch A, s. 6.1.18 $125.00 

47. Deposit at landfill site/ spoke transfer station ozone depleting 
appliance 

Sch A, s. 6.1.19 $125.00 

48. Deposit landfill site/ spoke transfer station ozone depleting 
appliance in position other than upright 

Sch A, s. 6.1.20 $125.00 

49. Attend landfill site/ spoke transfer station except to deposit waste Sch A, s. 6.1.21 $125.00 

50. Trespass at landfill site/ spoke transfer station Sch A, s. 6.1.22 $125.00 

51. Deposit transient waste at landfill site/ spoke transfer station Sch A, s. 6.1.23 $125.00 

52. Dispose of asbestos waste Sch A, s. 6.2.1 $125.00 

53. Scavenge waste at a collection location Sch A, s. 8.1.1 $125.00 

54. Place ineligible waste for collection  Sch A, s. 8.1.3 $125.00 

55. Place waste for collection at a property other than where it was 
generated 

Sch A, s. 8.1.4 $125.00 

56. Deposit waste on public property or private property Sch A, s. 8.1.5 $125.00 

57. Place waste on public property for collection by private operator   Sch A, s. 8.1.6 $125.00 

58. Permit animal to interfere with waste Sch A, s. 8.1.7 $125.00 



City of Temiskaming Shores Schedule “A” to 
Solid Waste Management Appendix 05 By-Law No. 2015-128 

 

 

Appendix 05 – Set Fines 

59. Deposit waste from private property into/beside public 
receptacles 

Sch A, s. 8.1.8 $125.00 

60. Deposit waste other than in landfill site/ spoke transfer station Sch A, s. 8.1.9 $125.00 

61. Allow objectionable liquid to flow onto public or private property   Sch A, s. 8.1.11 $125.00 

62. Dispose of pet excrement not sealed in bag Sch A, s. 8.2.1 $125.00 

63. Mix in excess 10% pet excrement with garbage   Sch A, s. 8.2.2 $125.00 

64. Fail to notify site attendant of bag containing pet excrement Sch A, s. 8.2.4 $125.00 

65. Deposit carcass of dead animal Sch A, s. 8.3 $125.00 

 
The general penalty provision for the offences listed above is section 61 of the Provincial Offences 
Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P. 33. 



The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores 

By-law No. 2015-143 

Being a by-law to confirm certain proceedings of Council of 
The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores for its 

Regular meeting held on June 16, 2015 
 
Whereas under Section 8 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, the 
powers of a municipality shall be interpreted broadly to enable it to govern its affairs as 
it considers appropriate and to enhance the municipality’s ability to respond to municipal 
issues; 
 
And whereas under Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural 
person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act; 
 
And whereas under Section 10 (1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as 
amended, a single-tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the 
municipality considers necessary or desirable for the public;  
 
And whereas it is the desire of the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming 
Shores to confirm proceedings and By-laws; 
 
Now therefore the Council of The Corporation of the City of Temiskaming Shores hereby 
enacts the following as a by-law: 
 
1. That the actions of the Council at its Regular meeting held on June 16, 2015 with 

respect to each recommendation, by-law and resolution and other action passed and 
taken or direction given by Council at its said meeting, is, except where the prior 
approval of the Ontario Municipal Board is required, hereby adopted, ratified and 
confirmed. 

 
2. That the Mayor, or in his absence the presiding officer of Council, and the proper 

officials of the municipality are hereby authorized and directed to do all things 
necessary to give effect to the said action or to obtain approvals where required, and 
except where otherwise provided, the Mayor, or in his absence the presiding officer, 
and the Clerk are hereby directed to execute all documents required by statute to be 
executed by them, as may be necessary in that behalf and to affix the corporate seal of 
the municipality to all such documents. 

 
Read a first, second and third time and finally passed this 16th day of June, 2015. 
  
 

______________________________ 
Mayor – Carman Kidd 
 
 
______________________________ 
Clerk – David B. Treen 


	Item 04 a) 2015 06 16 Regular - Agenda
	Item 06 a) 2015 06 02 Regular - Minutes
	Item 10 a) Age Friendly Grant
	Item 10 b) Road Laws
	Item 10 c) Hydro Sale
	Item 10 d) Eng Tech
	Item 10 e) Infrastructure
	Item 10 f) Accessibility Certification
	Item 10 g) Health Unit Financial Report
	Item 10 h) FONOM Spring Newsletter
	Item 10 i) Brian Folco
	Item 10 j) UTV Bill - Success
	Item 10 k) ATV rules
	Item 10 l) Railway - Ring of Fire
	Item 10 m) NEOMA - English University
	Item 10 n) NEOMA - Hydro One
	Item 11 a) NEOMA Minutes May 15
	Item 11 b) 2015 04 22 - DTSSAB Minutes
	Item 11 c) 2015-05-25 - Transit Minutes
	Item 12 a) 2015 05 26 - Building Minutes (FM)
	Item 15 g) Memo 023-2015-CGP
	023-2015-CGP Door to Door Dog & Cat Tags
	Appendix 01 - Calling Card

	Item 15 h) Report CGP-029-2015
	CGP-029-2015 - Land Sale - G&W Jelly
	Attachments
	Recommendations
	Background:
	Analysis:
	Alternatives
	Financial / Staffing Implications
	Submission


	Appendix 01 - Map
	Appendix 02 - Offer to Purchase
	Appendix 03 - Draft By-law

	Item 15 i) Report CGP-030-2015
	CGP-030-2014  Sign By-law Annual Fee
	Attachments
	Recommendations
	Background
	Analysis
	Financial / Staffing Implications
	The revenues for the annual encroachment fees would be $1,150 based on the current inventory.
	The City’s cost for removal of abandoned signs will be charged back to the owner.
	Alternatives
	Submission


	Appendix 01 - Sign Inventory
	Sheet1

	Appendix 02 - Draft Amendment

	Item 15 j) Report CGP-031-2015
	CGP-031-2015 - Award RFP - Housing for Small families
	Attachments
	Recommendations
	4. That Council does not accept Alyssa Breault and Robert Cunningham’s proposal for Project 3 on Little Street to construct a single detached dwelling because it does not meet the criteria of the Request for Proposals; and
	Background
	Analysis:
	Financial / Staffing Implications
	Submission


	Appendix 01 - Breault-Cunningham
	Scanned from TS-X-C-02
	Appendix 03 - Loranger

	Item 15 k) Report CS-023-2015
	CS-023-2015 - Delegation of Powers
	Subject: Delegation of Powers Report No.: CS-023-2015
	Attachments
	Recommendations
	Background
	Analysis
	Financial / Staffing Implications
	Alternatives
	Submission


	Appendix 01 - By-la No. 2010-123
	Appendix 02 - Draft by-law - Delegation of Powers

	Item 15 l) Report CS-024-2015
	CS-024-2015 - Amendment to Tax Policy
	Attachments
	Recommendations
	Background
	Analysis
	Financial / Staffing Implications
	Alternatives
	Submission


	Appendix 01 - Sect 11 wording
	Appendix 02 - Draft Amending By-law

	Item 15 m) Report PPP-005-2015
	Attachments
	Recommendations
	Background
	Analysis
	Financial / Staffing Implications
	Alternatives
	Submission


	Item 15 n) Report PW-035-2015
	PW-035-2015 Tender Award - Asphalt Marking Services
	Attachments
	Recommendations
	Background
	Analysis
	Financial / Staffing Implications
	Alternatives
	Submission


	Appendix 01 - PW-035-2015 - Tender Results
	Appendix 02 - Draft Agreement
	Appendix 02 - PW-035-2015 - Draft Agreement
	Appendix 03 - PW-035-2015 - Appendix to Agreement


	Item 15 o) Report PW-036-2015
	PW-036-2015 - Tender Award - Asphalt Patching
	Attachments
	Recommendations
	Background
	Analysis
	Financial / Staffing Implications
	Alternatives
	Submission


	Appendix 01 - PW-036-2015 - Tender Results
	Appendix 02 - Draft Agreement
	Appendix 02
	Appendix 03 - PW-036-2015 - Appendix to Agreement


	Item 15 p) Report PW-037-2015
	PW-037-2015 - Tender Award - Concrete Sidewalk and Curb Repairs
	Attachments
	Recommendations
	Background
	Analysis
	Financial / Staffing Implications
	Alternatives
	Submission


	Appendix 01 - PW-037-2015 - Tender Results
	Appendix 02 - Draft Agreement
	Appendix 02 - PW-037-2015 - Draft Agreement
	Appendix 03 - PW-037-2015 - Appendix to Agreement


	Item 15 q) Report PW-038-2015
	PW-045-2015 App. Municipal Drain - Peters Rd
	Attachments
	Recommendations
	Background
	In 1983 a petition was submitted for a municipal drain for the watershed as shown in Appendix 01 and was entitled “Blain-Wilson Municipal Drain”. H. Sutcliffe Engineers was the firm retained by the former Township of Dymond to design the drain.
	In 2012, as part of the obligations of the Drainage Superintendent, this drain was inspected and found to be in need of significant repairs in order to bring it back into compliance with the original design. The City commenced initiatives to repair th...
	Upon review of archived files it was determined that a petition for the drain was submitted, engineer retained, design completed; however upon notification to landowners within the watershed of their financial obligations towards the drain the origina...
	Mr. Blain noting that he had already completed the proposed work on his property, no doubt making use of the information prepared for the Report (Engineer’s Design).
	That would assist in understanding how the Drainage Superintendent assumed that it was a valid Municipal Drain.
	Analysis
	Subsequent to learning that the drainage system was not a valid drain, the City ceased any and all maintenance and/or repairs to this drainage system. The former Blain property was purchased and the owner has made improvements to the lands that have r...
	Appendix 02 – E-mail from Drainage Superintendent – April 23, 2015 provides further detail as to the issues related to the current conditions as well as additional background information. Mr. Gorecki states, at the end of the e-mail, that “the option ...
	Section 4 (c) – Petition of Drains in the Drainage Act states that “a petition for the drainage by means of a drainage works of an area requiring drainage as described in the petition may be filed with the clerk of the local municipality in which the ...
	a) the majority in number of the owners, as shown by the last revised assessment roll of lands in the area, including the owners of any roads in the area;
	b) the owner or owners as shown by the last revised assessment roll, of lands in the area representing at least 60 per cent of the hectarage in the area;
	c) where a drainage works is required for a road or part thereof, the engineer, road superintendent or person having jurisdiction over such road or part, despite subsection 61 (5);
	d) where a drainage works is required for the drainage of lands used for agricultural purposes, the Director.”
	Financial / Staffing Implications
	Alternatives
	Submission


	Appendix 01 - Watershed
	Appendix 02 - E-mail - Ed Gorecki
	Appendix 03 - Petition

	Item 15 s) Report RS-015-2015
	RS-015-2015 Knock Cancer Out of the Park
	Attachments
	Recommendations
	Background
	Analysis
	Financial / Staffing Implications
	Alternatives
	Submission


	Appendix 01 - Request Letter

	Item 15 u) Report RS-016-2015
	Attachments
	Recommendations
	Background
	Analysis
	Financial / Staffing Implications
	Alternatives
	Submission


	Item 16 a) 2015-130 - Lease - Hlby Arena Conc
	Item 16 b) 2015-131 - Lease - Ricks - NL Arena Concession
	Item 16 c) 2015-132 - Agt - Grass King - Combined
	2015-132 - Agt - Grass King - Asphalt Marking
	Appendix 01 - Form of Agreement

	Item 16 d) 2015-133 - Agt - Patching - combined
	2015-133 - Agt - Miller - Patching
	Appendix 01 - Form of Agreement

	Item 16 e) 2015-134 - Agt - Sidewalk-Curb - Combined
	2015-134 - Agt - PCI - Sidewalk-Curb
	Appendix 01 - Form of Agreement

	Item 16 f) 2015-135 Lorne - Assumption of Roadway
	Item 16 g) 2015-136 amends 2012-039 - Building Fees
	Item 16 h) 2015-137 - Land Sale - Jelly - Combined
	2015-137 - Land Sale - Jelly - Dym Ind Park
	Appendix 02 - Offer to Purchase

	Item 16 i) 2015-138 - Amends 07-045 - Tax Policy
	Item 16 j) 2015-139 - Agt - Transp Pilot - Combined
	2015-139 - Agt - MTO - Transp Pilot
	Temiskaming Shores TPA for CT  2015-4-30 YP

	Item 16 k) 2015-140 - Age Friendly - Combined
	2015-140 - Agt - Age Friendly
	Schedule A - Agreement

	Item 16 l) 2015-141 Delegation of Powers
	Item 16 m) 2015-142 - Agt - Eng Technician - Combined
	2015-142 - Agt - NOHFC - Eng Technician
	Schedule A - Agreement

	Item 17 a) 2015-128 - Solid Waste Mngt - 3rd
	Item 20 a) 2015-143 - Confirming - Jun 16 2015



